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St James’s Place plc1s the FTSE 100 listed parent
company of the St James’s Place Wealth
Management Group The Group provides high
quality wealth management advice, mvestment
management and related services to businesses
and mdnnduals across the UK, through its
representatives — The St James’s Place Partnershup

St James’s Place Wealth Management Group
manages £52 bithon of client funds

At the heart of the sustained growth m our business
1s the importance we place on mamtaining long
lasting relationships with our Partners and clients
and serving them well Our approach was once
agamn publicly endorsed during the last twelve
months, when St James’s Place won several
industry awards that were voted for by chents,
members of the public and fellow industry peers




Highlights

of the Year

Growth 1n clent numbers
contributed to the mcrease in
imestment of new funds The
quahty gftbe chient outcame, as
reflected an client retention and
_feedback, continued to be as

S[FOHH as ever

Partners

Our prapostion contimued o be
ateractive to advisers 1n the year
and we saw improvements in
quality, both in terms of
business credentials and
qualificatrons

Funds

In another successful year, new
business from chents combined
with positrve growth tn
underlyng tnvestments,
resulting 1n an increase in total
Sfunds under management

Growth n chents and Partners,

together with positive
wnvestment pe:jbrmcmce,
underpmned the financial
results We are pleased to report
a continuation qflhﬁ Pﬂslll‘e
trend of recent years

Visit us online
Qur website and 1Pad app

contarns afuﬂ mvestor relation
section with news, reparts,
wehcasts, financial calendar and
Sha]’ﬂ Prffﬂ ]!3}-ﬂfmﬂ'1]ﬂﬂ

www sjp co uk

click on Investor Relations
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Number of chents

484,000 +9%
2013 444,000

Partnership numbers

2.132 +9%
2013 1,958

Funds under management

£52.0 billion +17%

2013 £44 3 hilhion

Gross mflow of funds under management

£7.9 billion +16%

2013 £6 &8 billion

Net inflow of funds under management

£5.09 billion +20%

2013 £4 23 billhon
Profit before shareholder tax

£182.9 million -4%

2013 £190 7 milhion

EEV operating profit

£596.4 million +29%

2013 £462 7 million
Divadend

23.30p per share +46%

2013 15 P6p per share
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Chief

Executive’s

Report

I began my statement last
year by commenting that
2013 would be remembered as
one cy‘"the most S1gn;_tﬁcant
years 1n our history, the year
i which we became a wholly
mdependent FTSE company
for theﬁrst time. However, if

anything, 2014 will be

remembered as an even more

SJgny(icant year. ’

David Bellamy

It was the year that we were elevated to the FTSE100, recognition
of the hard work and commitment shown by everyone 1n the

S5t James's Place community over the 23 years since the Company was
launched and, of course, the support of our chients and shareholders

It was also a year when, despite some uncertainty in world stock
markets, we once again achieved record new investments,
experienced improved retentton and positive investment returns,
leading w ww clant fonds inder management increasing by

£7 7 bilhon to a record £52 bilhion

Qur success has been and continues to be built on our
fundamental belief 1n the value of a human relauonship and the
highly personal interaction, putting the chient and adwiser at the
core of everything we do That focus will not change and will
continue to be the foundation of our future growth In many
respects, more of the same, but better Indeed, at a time when
more people are living longer, not saving enough and having te
take greater personal responsibihity for their long term prospenity,
we believe that the vast majority will welcome the encouragement
coming from government and recogmse the need to seek advice,
from an expenenced adviser that they can trust With over 2,500
qualified advisers 1n the St James's Place Partnership, we are very
well positioned to meet this increasing need

At the same time, we also believe that we can strengthen our
relattonship with our clients by exploring opportumties to
enhance our proposition, through the development of cur
investment approach and the addition of complementary services,
s0 that we are able to offer a more complete proposition

We’re going to start with the introduction of a new banking
service in April, The St James's Flace Money Management
Account Fully branded St James’s Place, but powered by Metro
Bank, the account will ofter eligible clients a tully functional
banlang service, mcluding cheques, debit cards, mobile access and
other on line services [n addition, the account will have the
added benefit of an integrated secured overdraft tacility, providing
immediate access to short term funds, secured against the value
of their St James's Place investment portfolio We are dehghted
to be working with Metro Bank and look forward to being able to
offer this additional faclity for our chents

Finanaal Performance

As a consequence of another year of good growth in new business,
and helped by another positive experience variance, the operating
profit for 2014, on a European Embedded Value (EEV) basis, has
grown by 22% to £596 4 mullion (2013 £462 7 milhon)
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The profit before shareholder tax, on an International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS} basis reflects the sustained growth in
our busmess 1n recent years and was £182 9 million for 2014 The
2013 result was £190 7 million having benefited by £8 9 million
from a remsurance transaction during the year As reported in
more detail in the Chief Financial Officer’s Report, growth in
this measure has also been unpacted by certain accounting
implications arising from the changes to the adviser charging
rulesin 2013

‘We have therefore introduced a new measure to aid mvestors, as

covered 1n the comprehensive presentation of the financial results
for the year in our Chref Financial Officer’s Report and Financial

Review, on pages 14 to 33

Dividend

We continue to see a growing cash result, a trend that 1s expected
to continue with the increasing maturity of funds under
management

At the une of our interim results, given our engoing confidence
in the emergence of future cash, we announced a 40% increase 1n
the 2014 interim dinidend and indicated that the full year
dividend would be increased by a ssmilar amount

The fina] underlying cash result of £173 8 million, up 24%, was
higher than expected at that time and given this strong growth,
the Board proposes increasing the final dividend by 50% to 14 37
pence per share, bringing the full year dividend to 23 30 pence
per share, up 46% on 2013 This gives a full year payout of 70%
of the underlying cash (the 2013 payout was 60%)

In future years we expect our dividend payout ratio to be broadly
in line with 75% of the cash result

The final dividerd far 2014, subject to approval of shareholders at
our AGM, will be paid on 15 May to shareholders on the register at
the close of business on 10 April and as with last year, a Dividend
Reinvestment Plan (DRP) conunues to be available for
shareholders

Chents

At the heart of the sustained growth I mentioned earlier 1s the
importance we place on maintaining long lasting relationships
with our Partners and chients and serving them well We
passionately beheve that this personalised and face-to-face
approach has a very strong place in UK financial services both
today and 1n the future Whalst technology 15 proving to be a
gamne changer and disruptive 1n a number of retail services, we
will embrace the use of technology to enhance the personal
service we provide to our clients, not to replace it

If we do this well, we will mamtamn our strong retention record
and attract new clients and investments through referrals and
introductions That was further evidenced last year by the
introduction of over 52,000 new clients to 8t James's Place and
new mvestments of £7 8 billion
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However, we are not complacent Every year, we seek feedback
from our chients both through the services of the independent
research specialists, Ledbury Research, and by inviting every
single client to provide feedback directly in response to their
annual Wealth Account statement Whilst there 15 room lor
improvemnent, the research carried out in the last three months
once again shows a very considerable out-performance on all key
measures compared to the wider marketplace and an improving
trend Most pleasing 1s the extremely high advocacy score, where
97% of our clients confiimed that they would recommend St
James's Place to others, with 52% having already done so

Such research, together with the direct contact we maintain with
clients, reassures us that our clients value the personal face-to-
face relationship that we provide

2014 also saw ather significant changes for investors, with the
government raising the annual ISA allowance to £15,000 and
announcing the most radical changes to penstons 1n a generation
Both of these measures represent good news for our chents and
also further strengthens the need for advice

Investment Management

At the start of last year, the [nvestment Commuttee and Stamford
Assocrates were in the process of reviewing the funds managed by
Neil Woedford, following hus decision to leave Invesco Perpetual
In the event, we decaded to retain Neal’s services and our clients
continue to 1avest with hum via their St James's Place funds The
seamless transition to his new mvestment firm s a good example of
the strength and the efficiency of our investment approach, which
sits at the heart of what 1t 15 we do to lock after chients” wealth

Throughout the year, the UK’s economy has conunued to 1mprove
with lower unemployment, lower mflation and higher growth
than many had forecast Yet there remains a sense of fragility, due
1n part to the much poorer economic performance of the major
developed economues of the EU and Japan There 1s also the added
uncertainty of the forthcoming General Election in May and the
wider international uncertainty of the impact from lower o1l
prices and continuing tension both in the Middle East and
between Russia and its neighbours

Nevertheless, although the UK stock markets were largely
unchanged 1n the year, with the FTSE 100 down 2 7% in capital
terms but up 0 7% with dividends remvested, higher growth was
achieved in other asset classes, most notably the US stock market,
same secturs of the fixed 1nterest markets and property

Agamnst a background of mixed performance across the world'’s
economies and more volatihty 1n financial markets, our Growth
and Income portfolios produced solid single digit returns,
performing 1n Line with our expectations For individual clients,
returns will, of course, reftect the speaific funds held
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Chief

Executive’s
RGPOI't (continued)

The St James’s Place Partnership

In 2014, alongside the smpressive financial results, [ am pleased to
report that through the continued acquisition of highly established
adwvisers, the integration of our new Partners m Asia and the
graduation of students from our Academy, we attracted 10% more
advisers to the St James's Place Partnership The sustained growth
in our adviser capacity bears testimony to the reputation that we
have built for both the quanty of v chient prepostinn and the level
of support and development our Partners receive Increasing the
number of Partners and providing them with the tools and support
to deliver high quality outcomes for chents 1s one of the key drivers
to achieving our long term growth objectives

We are very encouraged by the success of the Academy, including
those joining farmuly practices through our next generation
wtiative  Last year, 47 students graduated as fully qualified
Partners or advisers from the first three cohorts who jomed the
London Academy in 2012 and we expect a similar number to
qualify this year from the 2013 intake We also extended the
Academy programme through the addiion of a regional centre mn
the North West and in 2015 we will extend this mitiative further,
with two intakes 1n the North West and the establishment of a
regional Academy 1n the Midlands We also plan to open our first
regional Academy in Scotland in early 2016

Notwithstanding the fact that we remain very focused on our UK
business, we also see further opportunities to expand our services
overseas to the expatriate commumty Building on the successful
integration of cur newly acquired team 1n Hong Kong, Shangha
and Singapore, we are 1n discussions with the relevant authorities
in Dubai and Abu Dhabi and expect to make progress in the
pravision of financial advice to members of the British expatriate
community 1n these jurisdictions in the near future

‘Back-office’ Adminmistration

In 2013, we embarked on one of the most sigmfcant
developments in our back affice for some time The mninial phase,
n 2014, saw the unification of our two major back office teams,
1n Craigforth and Essex, comung together under the management
of IFDS The integrated technology platform that will support
them 15 also well advanced and we expect to begin the migration
of our business to the platform duning 2015

We expect to sce the bencfits of this important investment begin
to crystallise 1n 2016

The St James’s Place Foundation & Community
Engagement

Raising funds for those less fortunate has always been at the heart
of the Group’s culture, so [ am dehighted to report that through
the collective effort of the whole of cur community, including
employees, Partners, suppliers and others connected to 5t
James's Place, 2014 was another record year of fund raising for
The St James's Place Foundation In total we raised over £3
million which, when matcned by Jie coTpany, meant over £6
mullion for the Foundation, taking the cumulative total rased to
date 1o over £40 milhon and enabling us to support over 600
charitable projects in the year

Our cultural driver of ‘doing the right thing” extends to all of our
community mvolvement, whuch 15 w}ly we are commutted to, and
proud of, our continued membership of FTSE4GOOD Itisalso
why we have been actively developing structured programmes for
summer 1nterns and a longer term commitment to
Apprenticeships In 2014, we were particularly pleased to get
recogmition 1n the National Apprentices Awards for our work
with over 30 Apprentices in recent years We were also pleased to
recerve the Living Wage accreditation, one of only 26 FTSE100
companies to have achieved this qualihcation to date

I would like to thank our entire community and also our clients,
not only for their sponsorship but also for thewr participation 1n
many of the hundreds of fund raising events that took place
throughout the year

Further details of cur CSR activities are set out on pages 40 to 44
and an update on the Foundation 15 provided on pages 46 to 49

Partners and Employees

The strength and continued growth of the business 1s due 1n no
small part 1o the hard work and dedication of our Partners, their
staff and all of our employees and administration support teams

On behalf of the Board and shareholders 1 thank everyone connected
with St James's Place for therr contribution to these results and for
their continued enthusiasm, dedication and commuitment

Outlook

I'am confident that the growth we achieved 1n 2014, 1n both new
investments and Partner numbers, bodes well for the continuned
growth 1n our business, in hne with our medm term objectives

Hoker—,

David Bellamy
Cf‘m_zf Executive
24 February 2015

Registered No 03183415
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Our Business Strategy

$t James's Place plc1s a FTSE 100 histed company

*  Our Lroup aims w pu 5v.cde 2 hohishe wealth management
service to businesses and individuals

¢ Almost umquely within the UK wealth management market,
our vertically integrated model means we are directly
respansible for the whole offering, including advice,
management of investments and any related services

* Our business 1s centred on the UK, attracting chents from the
mass affluent and high net worth markets We are also
developing an offering for expatriate clients in south-east Asia

* Ouradwvisers, The St James’s Place Partnership, seek to build
strong and endurmg relationships allowing them to support
clients with their financial needs over ume, providing ongoing
advice, and mvestment solutions from St James’s Place, as
appropriate

* Investments with 5t James’s Place are managed through our
distinctive Investment Management Approach (IMA)

Measured in terms of funds under management, the business has
doubled over the last five years as well as in the five years
preceding that We aspire to repeat this rate of organic growth n
a safe and sustainable way over the next five years We believe that
the strength of relationships between cur Partners and our

clients, together with our distinctive approach to investment
management, means we are wdeally positioned to continue to
succeed 1n our approach to the wealth management market

Our Business Model

5t James’s Place speciahses in providing face-to-face advice to
chients through our advisers, the 5t James’s Place Partnership,
and in managing chents’ wealth with our distinctive Investment
Management Approach

The Partnership 1s critical to the success of our business Partners
are able to attract chents and, through building trusted
relationshups, they are able to develop long term relationships
supporting them with therr mvestments and managing their wealth
Thus relationship based approach is greatly valued by our chents, no
more so than in periods of financial uncertainty Qur experience 15
that there 13 an increasing demand for trusted advice from
experienced advisers, backed by a strong brand and an organsation
which takes responstbility for all aspects of the service

Asaresult, St James’s Place 1s able to attract and retain retail
funds under management on which we recerve an annual
management fee This s the principal source of income for the
Group and 1t grows with additional new business and alsp as a
result of growth 1n markets and the success of our Investment
Management Approach

Attracting new funds uhder management 1s core to our success
and growth in new business arises as a result of both increasing
Partner numbers and also encouraging further development of
ex15tlng Partners By provtdmg an attractive proposition we are
able to recruit new members to the Partnership, and by providing
high quality support, we can help them to grow both therr
businesses and ours

Group expenditure 15 carefully managed with clear objectives set
and with a particular focus on managing fixed costs, which we
refer to as establishment expenses Other expenses increase with
business levels and are met from margins 1n the products

(see page 31) A small proportion of expenditure supports
existing funds, but the majority 1s invested in growing the
Partnership and acquiring new funds

Profits emerge from the busingss principatly as a result ot the imcome
from funds under managernent exceeding establishment expenses

Registered No 03183415




Market Overview

The UK Wealth Market

St James's Place’s prime target market 1s UK individuals with
between £50,000 and £5 milhion in investable assets There are
estimated to be 9 1 mullion of such individuals at the end of 2014
and, over the next five years, they are projected to increase by 4%
perannumto 11 1 milhon Their assets are projected to grow
from £1 7 trillion to £2 2 trillion 1n this ime Investable assets
are defined as cash deposits, quoted equities, bonds and mutual
funds Around half of these assets are held in cash

The UK's non-cash investable assets (£850 balhon} are spht between
financral advisers, 1epresenting about 50% of the market,
discretionar y fund managers or investment (as opposed to financial)
adwisers, representing around 32%, and self-directed at 18%

Adwvice-led Sector

At the end of 2013 1t 1s estimated that there were around 25,000
UK financial advisers 1n cur core target recruitment greups of
bank and financial adviscrs tocussing on wealth management, the
total having dechned 26% from over 34,000 10 2011 This dechne
will continue unless the number of new entrants to the market
mereases to exceed the natural attritton rate of advisers retiring
or withdrawing from the industry With 2,784 advisers,

St James's Place now represents some 11% of the UK’s financial
adviser population .

Of the top ten financial adviser networks, exght lost registered
individuals {RIs) 1in 2014 and five of them reported financial losses
1 2013 During the same period St James's Place gained Rls and
reported strong profits

Based on 2013 funds under management of £44 3 billion, we
ranked third 1n the 2014 Private Asset and Wealth Managers
(PAM) Drrectory by Assets under Management, having grown by
£9 5 billion 1n the previous 12 months (+27%) This growth rate
was the second largest in volume and percentage of any in the top
10 and represented 19% of the total growth of the top 40 wealth
managers 1n that year We were also identified as the largest 1SA
manager by the Investment Association in May 2014, with

£8 § lithan 1SA funds under managernent
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Wealth Solutions

The pensions market 15 in a state of flux The old age dependency
rauo 1s expected to increase from 34% to 50% by the middle of
the century with successive governments taking steps to put back
the State Pension Age in order to curb this pressure The
expectation 15 that the timetable of change will be brought
forward and the upper age could be increased 1o 62 Some
800,000 people a year reach state pension age De.laymg the State
Pension Age by one year saves the government around £13 billien

The steady dechne in the number of open defined benefit schemes
in the UK has also contributed to a rapidly building retirement
savings gap The government s trying to encourage individuals to
provide for their own future, complementing the new auto-
enrolment regime with changes to make pensions savings more
appealing, hence the radical changes announced in the March
2014 hudget designed to increase flexibility of the use of pension
savings and remove the obligation to take an annuity at the age of
75 At the same time, the significant increase 1n annual allowance
for ISAs, 1o £15,000 p a and the introduction of the ability to
switch both ways between cash and stocks & shares means [SAs
will become a much more signiheant way to accumulate wealth in
a tax ethorent way

Pensions represented 36% of our new business m 2014 and, in the
last quarter of 2014, no less than 40% of our new single investments
were 1n our Unit Trusts and ISAs, sc all of these changes will have
significance for our business over the next few years
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Our Clients

Putting the chent at the centre of everything we d‘o 15 coTe to our
culture and means we seek to run a genuinely client-focused
business Through our tace-to-iace based advicc sermce, we aim
to help clients manage their wealth 1n a way which reflects their
personal circumstances This approach has allowed us to develop
long-term relationships, founded on trust

We achieve this primarily through the activity of the 5t James's
Place Partnership (see page 9) and their ability to provide a
bespoke service to each of our clients Qur Partners recognise
that no one client’s objectives or circumstances are the same as
ancther and so the advice must be tailored The relationship
between Partner and client 1s founded on mutual respect and
trust, and the emphasis 1s on building and maintaimng a long-
term relationship Our high standards are maintained and
remforced by the high expectations that members of the
Partnerstup have of each other As a result, clients often continue
the working relationship with their Partner over many years,
appreciating a source of trusted advice as their financial needs
evolve over the years

In order to ensure that our business continues to be chent-
focussed, sentor management meets regularly to menitor all areas
of the business which can atfect the chient experience Subjects
discussed cover all stages of the client hife-cyele, including the
suitability of advice, policy administration, claims experience
and, where relevant, client complaints Enhancements to existing
processes and new 1deas which were developed during the year to
mmprove the client experience, mcluded

« the completion of various streams of thematic research
focussed on key areas of chent feedback,

* the sharing of chient servicing best practice, and embedding of
effective client management standards,

* [further development of our on-line services, and

*+ 1mprovements and consohdation of chent correspondence

Given the importance of the Partner-chent relationship, we
are proud of the positive results we recerve in our annual
clhient surveys, where we consistently cutperform the
marketplace on all core satisfaction metrics In our 2014
client survey (conducted by Ledbury Research), 34% of
clients rated their satisfaction level at ten out of ten and
88% of clients agreed that we provided excellent service

1m just totarly huppy § . culd="t rerammend them to other people
yrl weren’t Recommendations can bac.i'gﬁ:e, so you have to know
1t's good *

‘What they've got right 15 their rapport with their chents, 1’s on
the right level I work with another ﬁnancra] company and lhey
seem a bt condescending, whereas St fames’s Place has the night
balance *

‘My St James’s Place Partner 1s a gentleman, whom I can’t
recommend highly enough He 15 someone I go to before | make
any farm of decision, i my personal gffarrs net yust my finanaial
qﬁ'mr: He 15 always attentive to my needs even when I'm not
wvesting with St fames’s Place, he 1s always concerned, the net
effect of that 1 that when I do mvest then 5t James’s Place gets
a bng chunk of 1t

‘Ifind 1t an excellent company and the Partner 15 first class 've got
no problem with them He's got a very good attitude, he's friendly,
he comes round and visits us when we ask I honestly couldn’t ask

for anybody better’

The success of our approach 15 also evident from the fact that over
90% of new investment 15 estumated to come from existing clients
or from referrals and introductions Furthermore, once chents
have invested, they tend to stay invested and we are particularly
pleased with the consistent, year on year, low rate of ad-hoc
withdrawal of funds (typically less than 5%)

Despite receiving much positive feedback from chients, we never
become complacent and 1n 2015 we will continue striving to
umprove our support for clients This will be further developing
the metrics we use to measure positive client outcomes

Registered No 03183415




The St. James’s

Place Partnership

Members of the St James's Place Partnership play the leading role
in delivering our wealth management service to the ‘mass-affluent’
market

Our Partners, so called because of the way they work in
partnership with both their clients and their colleagues, are some
of the most experienced and able professionals working in wealth
management today St James’s Place has chosen to promote our
services exclusively through the Partnership, reflecting the
confidence we have in Partners’ ability to build and maintain
long-term working relationships with their clients, and so to be
able to provide sound financial advice The exclustve arrangement
also provides chents with clanty of responsibility in relation to
thewr financial dealings St James’s Place works hard to support
these chient-Partner relattonships placing them at the heart of all
we do

Establishing long-term relationships 1s key Clients need to be able
to place a lugh degree of rehance on financial advice and so, being
able to call upon the services of a long-term adviser who
understands their individual personal circumstances 15 important
But it 15 also important that chients are dealt with 1 the ‘way they
would choose’ and not simply 1n a single ordained way The wide
diversity of our Partnershup ensures there 15 a suitable Partner for
everyone For mstance, our Partners are located throughout the
United Kingdom, enabling face-to-face advice to be delivered
wherever they may be We also recognise that women often prefer
to deal with another woman and so we are pleased to have

a higher than average proportion of female advisers We are also
keen to support more women into an industry which has
histerically been male dominated Relatienships work for clients
but are also good for business, with over 30% of Partners’ new
business estimated to come from exasting clients and their referrals

New Partners are provided with a document entitled “What 1t
means to be a member’ This sets out a philosophy and some
principles We believe the shared commitment to living up to
these principles 1s what gives the Partnership its competitive edge
and makes 1t a group of professionals that other advisers aspire to
join The document emphasises integrity, trust, openness,
partnership and tearnwork and 1s designed to guide individual and
corporate actions, decisions and standards across our community
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Given the importance of our Partners, we are comrmtted to
providing ongoing professional development to ensure they
remain appropriately qualified, technically able and equipped to
deliver a fivst class service We also encourage and provide
support for Partners who choose to pursue further quahfications,
with many Partners having plans to progress to Chartered Status
For those wanting further development we have established a link
with Loughborough University and this year launched a Masters
Degree Programme in Wealth Management which has been made
available to employees as well as members of the Partnership Asa
result of the professionalism of our Partners, we are happy to
guarantee the switabibity of the advice that they give when
recomimending any of the wealth management products and
services provided by companies in the Group

Growth i the Partnership is a crucial long-term objective and 1n
2014, there were two strands of work undertaken alongside our
existing successful recrurtment proposition  Firstly, we continued
to grow and develop the St James’s Place Academy This provides
an opportunity for suitable second-careerists to recerve training and
assistance to build a Partner business with us In 2014, we had over
80 new students and 47 graduating to jorn the Partnership In 2015,
the Academy should exceed 100 new students for the first ume

Our Next Generaton Academy (speahcally aimed at bringing ‘sons
and daughters’ of existing Partners into their businesses) also
supports growth and helps binid succession for existing successful
businesses So far more than 70 individuals have enrolled

Secondly, we purchased The Henley Group, a successful IFA
business based 1n Hong Kong, Shanghar and Singapore The
Henley Group, which will be rebranded as St James’s Place
Wealth Management in 2015, already has 51 Partners working
ac10ss the three offices with over 4,000 chients and £450 mullion
assets under advice It extends our geographical scope and
provides a new region for recruitment
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The Investment

Management

: ‘ppfea:eh

At the heart of the proposition to our clients 15 our investment
management approach

Investment success 15 critical to future financial well-bemng, butit
15 a field which presents a umque problem future performance 1s
unpredictable As a result, when chents choose investment
managers, no matter how successful hustorically, they can never
be sure that they have made the right cheice, and even 1f they
have, 1t may not continue to be the right choice over the years

ta come

We belteve that our approach to investment management
addresses these challenges We do not place clients’ money mn
the hands of our own team of fund managers, indeed, we have
no fund-managers of our own Instead, we are free to choose
any fund-manager from any fund management irm any where 1n
the world

The responsibility of selecting the range of funds and fund
managers that are made available to the chents of St James’s Place
at any one time falls upon the St James's Place Investment
Commuttee, advised by respected independent investment
research consultancies, led by Stamford Associates Stamford
Associates share their extensive research of the global investment
markets with a small number of companies We are particularly
proud to have them on our team, as St James's Place is the only
company they work with Liiac 75+ .deg wealth management advice
to private individuals

The [nvestment Committee meets regularly to monitor
performance and consider detailed reports from our consultants
and each fund manager If a change in the marketplace calls for
the addition of another manager, the Commuttee will select one
Equally, if the Commuttee’s monitoring activity leads to a loss of
confidence 1n the abihity of an cxisting manager, then 1t wall
replace them With over £50 billion of chient assets invested 1n
St James’s Place funds and products, the Commuttee 15 also
mundful ofits stewardship responsibilities and actively momtors
and promotes engagement by all of our fund managers We are
also very pleased that our fund managers are active 1n voting
most of our holdings

Successful long term investment also depends on judicious
diversification The Investment Commttee provides illustrations
as to how to do this through the provision of Example Portfolios,
which combine vanious managers’ funds in given proportions
depending on the broad investment objective Ultimately,
however, the right solution for each client can only be achieved
through the face-to-face advice process, which 1s the
responsibility of their individual Partner

Registered No 03183415




Our People

‘We are a re]atmnsb;tp business
where peop]e are our most
important asset.’

Thts statement 15 a core cultural belief and a fundamental element
of the success of St James’s Place Members of our community
tend to share core values that are hlghly compatible with the
values embraced by our founders — expertise, mtegrity and
discretion They are passionate about cur business and believe in
hard work and dedication They treat each other with mutual
respect, openness and fairness and are driven by a desire to do the
right thing by all our stakeholders Age, race, colour, creed,
sexuality, disability and gender are irrelevant ment and
experience are of greatest importance

This 15 our culture, which 1s central to our success We are
therefore pro-active 1n building and reinforang it For this most
important of business differentiators 1t 15 the Board that provides
tone at the top and oversight The Board 1s commutted to being
consistent and clear-sighted 1n 1ts contimung leadership and support
of the culture, and in particular the principle that St James’s Place
will seek to do the right thing for its chents and for all its
stakeholders In a world where the reputation of the financial
Services mdustry 18 Constant]y under pressure, we aspire to create
an authentic alternative which clients and supphiers can trust, and
which the communities we are part of can appreciate and admire
However, we can't always get everything right, and so we also
believe 1n acknowledging mustakes made and rectifying them

..

Our people are a sustainable compentive advantage, so we aim to
attract the best and help them fulfil their potential We secure their
commitment by providing them with an interesting and challenging
career within a first class working environment, and reward them
compentively as well as encouraging equity ownershp We area
Living Wage employer having made a commitment to meet the
living wage for all our employees and supphers

We recognuse that as our business grows we will have to take care
with our culture Our employee numbers now exceed 1,000 and
the number of Partners exceeds 2,000 (over 2,700 advisers)
These are expected to continue to grow 1n future years

St ]amcs’s Place plc Annual Report and Aecounts 2014 1 1

To ensure continuity of our culture, we ensure that all employees
and Partners joining the business are selected for their fit with our
corporate values, as well as their competency, and that they are
given a full induction as the first step 1n their career with cur
business This includes receiving a booklet entitled “‘Our
Approach’, which gives guidance on the culture and values of St
James’s Place We believe 1t 15 important that our commumty
knows and understands our objectives, wncluding the ethos behind
the 8t James’s Place brand and how 1ts integrity and values should
be maintained We also encourage shared commutment to the St
James's Place Foundation

4
Maintaining freshness of commitment to our culture 1s assured
through a variety of activities including an Annual Company
Meeting, employee and Partner Surveys, regular Partner
meetings, feedback opportunities for employees with Directors
and a Leadership Conference for semor management They all
provide cpportumties to renew our joint understanding and
encourage commitment to our shared culture as well as ensuring
a common awarcness of the inancial and cconomuc factors
affecting the Company’s performance

Our regular employee survey, which we conduct every other
year, provides important msights, crucially on employee
engagement The most recent survey was in 2014 and we received
a strong survey response rate of 87% (compared to 86% 1n 2012)
Our overall engagement score was 87%, which was significantly
higher than the financial services benchmark of 72% We plan to
continue with the bi-annual process which means our next survey
will be 1n 2016 As a result of the strong engagement we also have
low levels of staff turnover being 9% in 2014 (9% 2013) The
proportion of employees that are temporary staff 15 Just over 7%
(2013 6%)

Information about the breakdown of employees by gender 1
shown 1n the following table

Female Male

Board Directors 2 7
Managers and decision makers 57 306
Total employees 605 631
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Our Objectives
and Related Key

Performance Indicators

To dehver positive outcomes to an

mcreasmg population of chents

Partners

To continue to grow and deve]op
the Partnersh;tp

PROGRESS DURING 20114

2014 was another successful year as the business continued to grow
Client numbers grew by 9% contnbuting to the increase m mvestment
of new funds The quality of the dient sutcome, as reHlected in client
retention and feedback, continued to be as strang as ever

Our business model 15 based on managmg clhient wealth and so the
number of chents 15 a key measure of the health of the business As well
as reflecting past performance, it also indicates future opportunity, as
our experience suggests that over 0% of new business comes from
exssting chients or their referrals In 2014, we were pleased that chent
numbers increased from 444,000 to 484,000

Our business 1s long-term and client retention feeds divectly into the
financizl result However, 1t 15 also an indication of minumum standards
having been met We are therefore delighted that retention has
continued at the very high rate of 96% compared to 97% 15 2013

Our reputation is vitally important to our business medel and this is
best expressed through the expenence of our clients We are therefore
dﬁllghtcd that our C]JEnt Siusfactloﬂ lt:vels }IEVE been mﬂlnmlnﬁd th].S
year at an outstandingly lugh level for the industry of 83%

PROGRESS DURING 2014

Our proposthon conunued 3 52 stoachve to advisers in the year whach,
alongside development of the exasting community, led to improvements
1n quality both 1n terms of business ereduntials and qualiheations The
Partoership also welcomed graduates from the Academy imtiative and
new Partners from The Henley Group

Without our Partners, we would have no chents We were therefore
pleased to deliver growth ahead of our long-term aspirations, supported
by Academy Partners and acquisibon of The Henley Group Partner
numbers grew from 1,958 i 2013 to 2,132 thas year

Partner retention refects Partners continuing satistaction with our
propositton but alse the mantenance of their quality against the
standards we require 'We were therefore pleased retention increased
shightly to 96% compared to 94% 1n 2013

Productivity of Partners 15 a measure of their success as business peaple,
but also feeds into success for the Company We are pleased that n 2014
mndividual adviser productivity continued to increase, leading to an
overall increase n single premuims per Partmer from £3 5 milhion to

£3 8 mulhon

Registered No (3183445




To increase funds under management

(FUM)

St James's Piace ple Annwal Report and Accounts 2074

To achieve sustamable growth n
reported prqﬁts on all measures

13

PROGRESS DURING 2014

[n another successful year, new business from clients combmed with

positive growth in underlying investments, resultzng 1n anincrease m
total FUM to £52 billion, growth of 17% over the year This growth

feeds through directly to the financial performance in the year

The profitality measures of the Group are uitimately driven by the
income we earn from FUM The FUM have exhibited compound
annual growth of 18 5% over the last ten years

Grass inflows 15 the gross new investment and pensions business
{prmeipally single premium) recewved durmg the year We aun to
grow Gross Inflows by 15-20% per annum over the long term, which
we again achieved in 2014

Retention of funds 15 a result of satishied clrents and 15 essentaal of the
FUM 1s to continue to grow Growth of 20% 1n the year was higher
than we had expecied and reflected lower levels of withdrawal,
particularly due to pensions chents defernng retirement and
vestment clients Temaining invested through volatile markets

PROGRESS DURING 2014

Qur business model 15 simple and 13 aligned with the needs of both cur
chents and our Partners Strong performance in those areas combined
with pusitive imestmont purformance to underpin the inancial results
We are pleased to report a contznuation of the trend of recent years

The EEV reporting bass assesses the full value of the emergence of
shareholder cash returns over the long-term New business (Gross
Inflows) 15 the most sigmificant underlying driver of EEV Operating
Profit, but posiuve cxperience variances alsa eantributed to the
strong growth of 29% year on year

Steady growth 1n the fundamentals of the business underpinned the
2014 result of £182 9 rullion The 2013 result benefited by £8 9
mllien from a reinsurance transaction during the year The
progression in recent years has also been impacted by accounting
changes ansing from changes to the adviser charging rules m 2013

Growth in profit measures, pai ucularly cash, means the Company
15 able to tncrease the level of dividend We are pleased to confirm
an Increase of 46% in dividend i the year, bringing the total
increase over the last 5 years to 418%
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Chief Financial

Officer’s Report

Andrew Croft

‘Following the very strong
performance of the business m
recent years | am pleased to
report the continuation @F this

trend in 2014.

‘We have commented earher 1n this report on the record £7 8
billion of new mvestments which, together with the contnuing
excellent retention of clrent funds and strong 1vestment markets,

have led to a 17% growth in funds under management to a record
£52 O balhien

We have also provided an update on the Partnership and adviser
numbers Whilst the investment in new advisers translates into
expense today, 1t 1s a lead 1nq1catos {ue fLie=c nev bnoness
Therefore, the strong growth in advisers over the last few years
and, 1n particular the 10% growth in 2014, has resulted 1n higher
establishment expenses but it bodes well for new business in 2015
and future years

In this statement [ will comment on the other financial results
and, as usual, a more detail review 1s provided 1n the Financial
Review on pages 18 to 33 which accomparues this report

Financial Results

As shareholders will be aware, we report our results on both IFR§
and EEV bases, as well as providing further detail on the cash
result emerging from the business

The EEV resule reflects the full economic value of the business
and 1s primanly driven by current year events, particularly new
business and 1investment performance The IFRS and cash results
are the cumulative effect of all previous years and so the increase
1n these measures over recent years 15 due as much to our strong
underlying retention as our success 1n attracting new business Of
course, retention and new business are related, as 1t 1s the positive
experience of clients which means they remain with the Group,
which leads to addiironal investment and also advocacy

The continuing strong performance of the underlying business
and excellent retention of clients are once again key features of
the results on all measures However, shareholders will be aware
of ithe changes to regulatory rules on adviser charging which were
introduced 1n 2013 Whilst the fundamentals of our business were
unaffected by the rule changes, we commented at the ime on a
number of changes to the accounting treatment of certamn cash
flows which partrcularly 1mpacted our IFRS reporting These
cffects are long-term and will develop 1n our accounts over the
coming years Therefore to further aid investors understanding
we have added a new measure called underlying profit, which
15 based on the [FRS result but adjusted to exclude the impact of
the DAC, DIR and PVIF mntangibles Hopefully investors will find
this addrtronal disclusure helpful Detail on the detinition of all
the measures 1s provided on pages 18 and 19

The key drivers to the result both this year and 2013 are the
growth in new business, the continued strong retention and the
mvestment we have made in future new business with the growth
in the number of advisers In addition, 1n each year, we have been
able to recogmise the value of a capital loss arsing n certain
legacy companies we originally inherited as part of the St James’s
Place Group
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The impact of the capital Joss in the current year has been a
positive within the [FRS post tax result of £39 5 million (2013
£27 9 milhon) and a positive in the EEV post tax result of £33 6
rmulhon (2013 £22 8 mullion) The benefit of these losses will
offset current tax n future years, which we estumate will increase
the cash result by ¢ £5 mullion per annum for the foreseeable
future However, i 2014 there was a positive impact of £16 7
milhon 1n the cash result We will continue the review of the
remaining handful of legacy companies during 2015 but 1t 1s too
carly to say 1f any further capital losses exist

Looking now at the performance of the key financial measures

IFRS Basis

The [FRS result includes a gross-up for the tax incurred on behalf of
policyholders in our UK hife assurance company and so historically
we have presented the profit before shareholder tax eliminating
thus cffect which 1s unrelated to the performance of the business As
noted above, this year we are alse introducing a new ‘non GAAP'
measure of underlying profit which 1s based on the IFRS result
but adjusted for the DAC and DIR 1ntangibles as well as the
amortisation of the PVIF In future the Board will be using
underlying profit as the most appropriate measure based upon
[FRS when considering the operating performance for the year

Table A below, provides the last five years’ results on both the
profit before shareholder tax and the underlying profit measure

Table A Profit and Underlying Profit

Underlying
Profit before profit before
shareholder shareholder
tax Growth tax Growth
£'Mrllion % £'Mallion Y
2014 1829 (4%) 173 6 (7%)
2013 190 7 42% 187 2 65%
2012 134 6 23% 110 8 55%
2011 109 7 30% 71 4 65%
2010 84 2 69% 43 4

The progression of profit before shareholder tax in recent years
has been impacted by the effect of the changes in the adviser
charging rules in 2013 In addition, the reinsurance transaction in
2013 resulted in a one oft positive £8 9 million in that year, whrch
reflects the net impact of a £21 4 million underlying benefitless a
reduction in the value of the DAC asset associated with this
business However, growth over the five year periad 1s stll strong
at 117%

The effect of the change in adviser charging rules 1s mingated in
the underlying profit result, although the 2013 result does reflect
the £21 4 milhion beneht from the reinsurance transaction There
15 no DAC 1n this measure and so no DAC asset reduction

St James's Flace ple Annual Report and Acoourts 2014 | 5

Removing this item would give a like for like comparison of

£165 8 million and an increase of 5% between the periods, which
reflects an increase in income from funds under management,
partially offset by both an increased share opuion expense and a
higher cost assocated with the back office infrastructure project
tn the current year

EEV Result

The three key measures within the EEV results are the new
business profit, the operating profit and the net asset value per
share The development of these measures aver the last five years
1s shown 1n Table B

Table B Key EEV Financial Measures

EEY new EEV EEY net

business operating asset value

contribution profit per share

E'Million £Malhon Pence

2014 37131 596 4 6579
2013 327 2 462 7 5753
2012 276 8 3659 461 0
2011 246 0 3n s 3850
2010 217 8 3326 3529

The new business profit at £373 | mullton was up 14% during the
year, 1n Line with the average growth through the whole period
The growth in new business profit reflects increasing new busimess
volumes, positive business mix and expense management

The operating profit increased by 29% duning the year to £596 4
mulhion reflectung the growth in the new business profit together
with strong positive experience varances in the year

The net asset value per share on an EEV basis at the end 2014 was
657 9 pence, some 14% higher than the start of the year and has
almost doubled over the period

Cash Result

The Group's underlying cash result s principally dependent on
the value of chent funds under management Since much of our
business does not generate net cash in the first six years, the level
of cash result will increase as a result of new business from six
years ago becoming cash generative

The first column in the table below {Table C) shows how the
underlying cash arising from the business in-force at the valuation
date (1n-force business) has grown by 26% in the year

Qver 30% of funds under management are currently not yet
generating any positive cash flow However, they are expected o
become cash generative once they reach the end of their sixth
year, at which time they will support future strong organic
growth 1n the cash anising from the in-force
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Chief Financial
Ofhcer’s Report

(continued)

Column 2 of the table shows the underlying level of cash earmings that
15 ‘re-invested” 1n acquiring new business Despite the new business
growth during the five year period, the level of the investment
required has stayed fairly constant Consequently the return which
shareholders can expect from this investment has increased

The net effect of growing the cash arising from the in-foree
busess, wnist keepaug the lz el of rashinvested in new business
relatively flat, 1s growth in the underlying cash result As can be
seen from Table C, the underlying cash result was up 24% 1n the
year, resulting in a quadrupling of the result over the period

We fully expect the cash result to continue to grow as the
business continues to mature

Table C. Cash Result

Table D Dividend

Cash
Cash ansing mvested
on m-lorce acquiring  Underlying

business new business cash result Growth
£'Million £'Milhon £'Million %
2014 2365 27N 173 8 24%
2013 138 2 (48 3) 13¢ 9 67%
2012 144 5 (60 5) 84 0 33%
2011 125 4 (62 4) 630 54%
2010 102 3 (61 4) 40 8 74%

The underlying cash result 15 an important indicator for investors as this
s the key determunant 1n setting the annual dividend to shareholders
The continuing strong growthn this measure has enabled the Board
to increase the dividend ﬂgmﬁcantly N recent years

The underlying cash result 1s presented adjusting for a number
variances totalling a negative £8 7 muillion The total post tax cash
result for the year was therefore £165 1 million, shghtly lower
than the prior year

Dividend

As the business matures, the cash emerging from the in-force
business 15 increasing year by year, whilst the proportion of this
cash that 1s re-1nvested 1n acquiring new business 1s falling

This combination means the cash available for corporate purposes
and to return to shareholders 1s increasing Consequently the
Board has been able to follow a strategy of increasing the dividend
each year

Having increased the dividend by 50% last year, and by 33% 1n
each of the three previous years, we declared an increase in the
2014 interim dividend of 40% at the time of the interim results,
and indicated that the full year dividend would be increased by a
simlar amount However, given the strong results and mn
particular the strong underlying cash result, the Board has
proposed a 50% increase i the final dividend This wnll provide
for a pay-out ratio of 70% for the current year and we expect the
pay-out ratio to increase to 75% mn the near term

Dividend per
share Growth
Pence %
2014 2330 46%
2013 15 96 50%
2012 10 64 33%
2011 80 33%
2010 o d 339%
Capatal

A key financial abjective 15 to ensure the Group's selvency 14
managed safely through both goad and difficult times This s
tmportant not only for the safeguarding of our clients’ assets, but
also to ensure we can maimntain returns to shareholders

The Group continues to be capitalised well in excess of regulatory
solvency requirements, and the surplus solvency assets remain
mvested prudently 1n cash, AA A rated money market funds and UK
government securiies We also believe we will continue to be well
capitalised when the new Solvency Il regime 15 implemented 1n
2016 The relative lack of balance sheet risk, not least due to our
prudent investment policy, has provided for an increasingly resihent
solvency position over recent years despite the difficult financial and
market environment recently experienced

Future Developments

We have commenced an investment programme working with
our key ‘back-office’ admimstration provider to enhance our
‘back office’ systems to accommodate both continued growth and
achieve futuie efficiency savings Whilst the major systemns
development costs will be amortised over the term of the
contract, we will incur our own internal project costs over the
next couple of years and this 1s covered in more detatl in Section 4
of the Financial Review

Over a ssmular timeframe, national regulators are required to
implement the new EU Solvency Il regulations We are well
prepared for implementation and do not believe the Group will be
adversely impacted

Concludimg Remarks

2014 has been another year of strong growth in the fundamentals
of our business, which feed through inte the healthy underlying
financials Our business 15 1n good shape and we expect to
continue our growth trend

The developing cash result has enabled the Board to ssgmficantly
increase the dividend over the last five years and gven the strength
and resilience of the business we will move towards a dividend
pay-out ratio of 75% of the underlying cash in the future

oo

Andrew Croft
Chief Finaneial Officer

24 February 2015 Registered No 03183415




17

St James's Place plc Annual Reporr and Aecounts 2014

Strate

gic Report St James's Place Foundation Governance Financial Statements Other Information




18 St James's Place ple Annual Report and Accounss 2014

Financial

Review

The Financial Model

As described earlier, the Group's strategy 15 to attract and retain
retail funds under management on which we receive an annual
management fee for as long as we retain the funds This 1s the
prinaipat source of income for the Group out of which we meet
the overheads of the business, invest 1n growing the Partnership,
and invest 1n acqulrlng new funds under management

The level of Income 15 dopendsnt o~ the level of chent funds and
changes with market movements Since a proportion of our
business does not generate net cash 1n the fiist six years, the level
of mecome will increase as a result of new busimess from six years
ago becomng cash generative This deferral of cash generation
means the business always has s1x years’ worth of funds “in the
gestation period’ (see page 24)

Group expenditure is carefully managed with clear targets set for
growth in establhishment expenses in the year Many cther
expenses increase with business levels and are met from margins
11 the products (see page 31) However, the Group also invests in
new chent services, computer systems and other corporate
mitiatives, all of which are reported as development expenditure

A small proportion of Group expenditure 1s required to support
management of existing funds, but the majonity of expenditure 1s
investment 1n growing the Partnership and acquiring new funds
The resulting new business 15 expected to generate income for an
average of 14 years, and 15 expected to provide a goad return on
the investment (see page 24

As the business matures, the proportion of the cash emergence
from the existing business required to support the acquisition of
new busimess 15 reducing  This has resulted 1n strong growth in
underlying cash emergence in recent years which has ultumately

fed through to growth in the dividend

Presentation of Financial Results

Given the long-term nature of the business and the high level of
investment m new business generation each year, management
beheves the IFRS result does not provide an easy guide to the cash
likely to emerge in future years, nor does 1t reflect the total
econornc value of the business We therefore complement our
statutory IFRS reporting with additional analysis

Firstly, we provide additional analysis in relation to the tax reported
under IFRS The IFRS methodology requires that the tax recognised
1n the hnanaal statements should indude the tax incurred on behalf
of pohicyholders 1 our UK life assurance company Since the
policyholder tax charge 1s unrelated to the performance of the
business, management beheves 1t 1s useful to separately 1dentify the
profit before shareholder tax This measure reflects the profit
before tax adjusted for tax paid on behalf of policyholders
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Secondly, the IFRS standards promote recognition of profits in
hine with the provision of services and so, for long-term business,
some of the initial cash flows are spread over the life of the
contract through the use of intangible assets and habilities (known
as DAC — Deferred Acquisition Costs and DIR -- Deferred
Income) Our products are typically well matched n relation to
itial charges to meet imitial costs, and this treatment results in
the establishment of largely oﬂ'settmg DAC and DIR balances
However, the implementation of the changes to adviser charging
rules in 2013 resulted in changes to the nature of some of those
cashflows, moving them fiom long-term manufacturing margins
to short-term advice margins, which resulted in sigruficant
accounting presentation changes despite the fundamentals of our
vertically-integrated business remaining unchanged Management
has therefore developed a new ‘non-GAAP’ underlying profit
measure which doesn’t have the complexity associated with these
adjustments since 1t 1s derved from the IFRS profit by adjusting
for these intangibles Management believes this measure will
provide the most useful measure, based upen IFRS, of operating
performance n the future

The cash result measure was developed with the aim of asnisting
nvestors seeking to understand the sources of cash emergence
and to create a measure which more reflected the underlying cash
generated by the business

It 15 simular to the new underlying profit measure in that 1t 1s
based upon the IFRS result adjusted for the DAC, DIR and PVIF
intangibles, but also for deferred tax and share-option costs In
addition 1t also includes adjustments to reflect solvency
constraints on profits emmerging from regulated companies such as
our insurance businesses

Since the cash result can be 1mpacted by one off items, iming
variances and changes in insurance reserves, management belhieves
1t 15 also useful to present an underlying cash result, which
excludes these effects Neither of the cash result measures should
be confused with the IFRS cash flaw staterment which 1s prepared
mn accordance with IAS 7 and disclosed on page 105

It 15 the underlying cash result that the Board considers when
determining the drvidend payment to shareholders

As noted previously, the reported results reflect strong 1nvestment
in new business each year Management beheves it1s useful to
understand the contribution to profits from just the in-force
business as this reflects the value being generated by the
underlying business We therefore provide breakdown of the cash
result, identifying the new business impact and making clear the
ongoing contribution from the estabhished business

Finally, we also present an embedded value result Management
believes this 1s particularly useful for investors seeking to assess the
full value of the long-term emergence of shareholder cash returns,
since 1t includes an asset 1n the valuation reflecting the net present
value of the expected future cash flows from the business This type
of presentation 15 also commonly referred to as a "discounted cash
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flow’ valuatton Our embedded value 15 based on the EEV
princples, which were set out as an industry standard by the Chief
Financial Officers (CFO) Forum in 2004

Many of the future cash flows derive from fund charges, which
change with movements 1n stock markets Since the impact of
these changes 15 unrelated to the performance of the business,
management believes that the EEV operating profit (reflecting the
EEV profit before tax, adjusted to reflect only the expected
investment performance and no change 1n economic bass)
provides the most useful measure of performance 1n the year

Sections 1-3 below provide a commentary on the performance of
the bustness on the IFRS, Cash and EEV result bases, whilst
Section 4 covers other matters of interest to shareholders

Section 1 International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)

As noted at the start of this review the [FRS result includes the
tax mcurred on behalf of policyholders 1n our UK hfe assurance
company and therefore we present the IFRS profit before
sharecholder tax As [FRS also spreads the initial cash flows
over the life of the contract through the use of intangible assets,
we present an underlying profit in addiien which adjusts for
these 1tems together with the amortisation of the PVIF In future
the Board will be using the underlying profit as the most
appropriate measure, based upon [FRS, for considering the
operatng performance in the year

The detailed IFRS result 1s shown on pages 101 to 152 and 15
analysed in the table below

2014 2013
Before Before
Shareholder Shareholder
Tax After Tax Tax After Tax*
£Milhen £million £'Miltion £ Milhon
Underlying
proﬁt 173 6 1809 187 2 175 4
DAC (75 8) (60 2) (82 8) (40 4)
DIR 883 698 895 567
PVIF (3 2) (2 6) 372) {14)
IFRS proﬁt 182 9 187 9 150 7 %0 3
* includes the rmpact of the corporation tax rate change

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Pence Pence

IFRS basic earmings per share l66 374
IFRS diluted earnings per share 359 367
Underlying bastc earnings per share 352 34 4
Underlying diluted earnings per share 346 338
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Underlying Profit before Shareholder Tax

The result for the year was £173 6 millton compared with

£187 2 mullion for the prior year However, 2013 benefited froma
one-off £21 4 million relating to a rensurance transacton tn that year
Removing this stem would give a like for hie comparison of £165 8
million and an 1ncrease of 5% between the periods, which reflects an
ncrease 1n ingormne from funds under management partially offset by
both an increased share option expense and 4 lugher cost aceomaed
with the back office infrastructure project in the current year

A breakdown by segment of the underlying profit 15 provided 1n
the following table

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
£'vallion £'Million
Life business 160 7 1627
Unit Trust business 612 583
Dastribution business (109) (6 1)
Other (374) {277)
Underlying profit before
shareholder tax 173.6 187 2
Life Business

The Lite business profit for the year was £160 7 million
(2013 £162 7 million) margnally lower than last year

However, adjusting the prior year result for the £21 4 million one
oft from the reinsurance transaction, would give 2 hike for hke
comparison of £141 3 mulhion and therefore growth of some 14%
The principal contributor to this growth m profit was the increase
in income derived from higher funds under management

Unit Trust Business

The Umt Trust business profit for the year was £61 2 million

(2013 £58 3 million) which was 5% higher than last year As with
Lafe business, the principal contributor to this rise 1o profit was the
increase 1n imcome arsing from higher funds under management

Distribution Business

The impact of distribution activity 15 separately 1dentified from
‘Other’ operations St James's Place 15 a vertically integrated
firm, allowing it to benefit trom the synergies of combining
management of funds with distribution  Therefore, as well as the
income generated on the funds under management, there 15 a
further margin from the distribution activity In any one year, this
result will depend upon the level of new business and expenses

The Distribution business loss for the year was £10 9 million
{2013 ioss of £6 1 mullion) whch includes a negative contribution
of £1 7 million from the recently acquired Henley Group as we
integrate and nvest 1n the growth of this business The result also
reflects hugher expenscs in 2014 associated with the strong
increase in adviser reeruitment in recent years and the benefit
from this investment will be seen 1n future periods

The result continues to be impacted by the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme levy which remains at an elevated level for
the industry and which impacted St James's Place by £5 9 mullion
(2013 £5 5 million)

Other

Other operations contributed a loss of £37 4 million (2013 loss

of £277 rulbon) Included within this figure 15 the £11 9 million
(2013 £5 0 mullion) development costs reluted w the .~ coumentn
the back-office infrastructure, and £11 4 mullion (2013 £7 8 muilion)
for the cost of expensing share options The comparative was
impacted by one-off costs n relation to the reduction in the Lloyds
Banking Group (‘'LBG") shareholding on 11 March 2013 of

£6 2 million The balance, m hath years, mcluded the corporate
donation to the St James's Place Foundation but principally reflected
costs associated with corporate imtiatives and projects

DAC/DIR/PYIF before Shareholder Tax

As noted in the table below the net movement in these intangibles
provided for a posiive contribution to profit of £9 3 mullion for
the year compared with an increase in profit of £3 5 mulhon for
2013 However, the 2013 figure was negatively rmpacted by the
previously mentioned reimsurance transaction and therefore, ona
like for like basis, the net movement in the intangibles in 2013
increased profit by £16 0 mllion

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£Milhon £'Million
Amortisation charge 28.3 39 1
Arnsing on new business (19 0) (23 1)
Normalised movement
for the year 93 169
Revaluation of DAC for reinsurance
transaction - (12 5)
Movement 1n year 93 35

The reduction in the hke for like net movement 1o the intangibles
arises because of the changes in adviser charging rules in 2013,
which changed the nature of certain cash flows in the Group,
moving them from long term manufacturing margins to short term
advice margins Consequently, the positive contribution from the
amortsation of accumulated DAC, DIR and PVIF balances from
prior years 1s reducing and 1n 2015 15 expected to be £17 2 milhon
lower at £11 1 million In future years, the contribution 1s expected
to turn negative The DAC/DIR anising on new business 15
expected to move in line with new business growth

However, 1t 1s important to note the intangible and deferred nature
of these itemns, meaming that they don't reflect the aperating
performance of the business This 15 why management believes the
new underlying prafit will he the mast appiopriate measure, hased
upon IFRS, for considering the operaning performance in future
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Profit before Shareholder Tax

The profit before shareholder tax for the year was £182 9 milhion,
which was lower than the prior year result of £190 7 milhon As
with the underlying profit result, the prior year figure includes the
tmpact of the one off reinsurance treaty The reduced contribution
from the net movement 1n DAC/DIR/PVIF intangibles, as noted
above, also contributed to the lower result 1n the current year

Shareholder Tax

The tax repcorted under IFRS each year 1s impacted by a variety of
eflects, both current and future, particularly one-off events such
as the change 1n corporation tax rate Therefore, to assist
shareholders, the table below provides a lugh level analysis of
shareholder tax and the unplied tax rate A more detailed analysis
15 included in Note 8 to the inancial statements

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 3| December

2014 2013

£milhon £'Million
Expected shareholder tax (35 7) (41 9)
Recogmtion of capital losses 395 275
Other tax adjustments 12 16
Corporation tax rate change - 120
Actual shareholder tax 50 {0 4)
Expected shareholder tax rate 19 5% 22 0%
Actual shareholder tax rate (2.7%) 02%

The expected shareholder tax principally reflects the current
corporation tax rate applicable and will vary from year to year
depending upon the emergence of proht between the different tax
regimes which apply to the 5t James’s Place Group companies
More detail 15 included in Note 8 to the financial statements

As previously commented, the recogmtion of the future effect of
Group capital losses reduced the shareholder tax recognised in the
year by £39 5 million (2013 £27 9 mullion)

The impact of the corporation tax rate change on deferred
assets and habilitzes reduced the tax charge in 2013 by £12 0
millhion This impact reflected implementation of the full
corporation tax rate reductions from 23% to 20%

The overall impact of all of the above effects 15 to decrease the tax
charge reported i the IFRS results, moving 1t from a charge of
£0 4 milhon to a credit of £5 0 million However 1t 1s worth
noting that when deferred tax effects are stripped out, the total
current tax charge 1 the year was £25 5 rmllion (see Note 8 on

page 121)

In arriving at the profit before sharcholder tax, it 1s nceessary to
estimate the analysis of the total tax charge between that payable
n respect of policyholders and that payable by shareholders
Shareholder tax 1s estimated by making an assessment of the
effective rate of tax that 1s apphcable to the sharcholders, with
the balance being treated as tax in respect of policyholders
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IFRS Profit before Tax
The total IFRS result, 15 presented in the table below, grossed up
for the inclusion of tax incurred on behalf of pelicyholders

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£Million £'Million

IERS profit before tax 294 4 461 2
Policyholder tax (111 5) (270 5)
Profit before shareholder tax 1829 190 7
Sharehelder tax 50 {0 4)
IFRS profit after tax 1879 190 3

In 2014, the IFRS profit before tax for the year was £294 4
million (2013 £461 2 milhon) with the principal contribution to
the change being the reduction 1n the policyholder tax charges
from £270 5 mallion 1n 2013 to £111 5 rmilhon 10 2014

The policyholder tax charge depends on the level of underlying
poheyholder taxable benefit determined by growth in value of the
funds The lower charge in 2014 reflecting the lower stock
growth compared to 2013 The movement between the reporting
dates has resulted in a tax charge of £111 § million

IFRS Profit after Tax

The [FRS profit alter tax reduced margimally from £190 3 million
in 2013 to £187 9 million 1n 2014 The result reflects not only the
business performance in each year but also the recognition of
deferred tax assets for capital losses emerging in both years The
2013 result also benefitted trom both the reinsurance transaction
and the corporation tax rate change

Analysis of IFRS Assets and Net Assets per Share
The table below provides a summarised breakdown of the IFRS
posttion at the reporting dates
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Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£'Milhon £ Million

Purchased value of in-force* 294 320
Deferred acquisitton costs* 662 2 720 8
Deferred income* (398 7) (466 7)
QOther IFRS net assets 145 2 112 4
Solvency net assets 5720 507 &
Total IFRS net assets 1,0101 906 1

* net of deferved tax

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 3] December

2014 2013

Pence Pence

Net asset value per share 194 5 1759

|
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Section 2: Cash Result and Capital

In addinen to presenting the financial performance on the IFRS basis, we also provide an analysis of the sources of cash emergence in
the year, which we refer to as the cash result and 15 shown post tax This cash result 1s based on the underlying profit after tax but
15 adjusted for deferred tax (including the corporation tax rate change 1n 2013) and to reflect the level of regulatory solvency constraint
on profits emerging from regulated companies, such as our insurance businesses, in ine with that required by Regulators 1t1s also
adjusted for the share option cost 1n the year

Smeg o vash result ;= be ropacted hy iming vaniances and capitalised wnpacts 1n solvency requirements, management believes it s also
useful to present an underlying cash resull excluding these effects, which the Board reviews, 1n conjunciass vt Group solvency
when determining the proposed dividend to shareholders

The table below shows the movement from the underlying profit on page 19 1o the underlying cash result

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£ Malhon £ Million

Underlying profit after tax 180 9 175 4
Share options 114 78
IFRS deferred tax impacts (34 6) (14 6)
Sclvency reserves 74 {0 4)
Corporation tax rate change - 06
Cash result 165 1 168 8
Reinsurance transaction - {18 3)
Back ofhce intrastructure 9.3 40
Varance (0 6) (14 €)
Underlying cash result 173 8 1399

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Pence Pence

Underlying cash basic earmngs per share 338 275
Underlying cash diluted earnings per share 332 270

The underlying cash result for the year at £173 8 million increased by 24% over the same period last year principally reflecting the
hugher mcorne from funds under management

The cash result 1s 2 combimnation of the cash emerging from the business in force at the start of the year less the investment made to
acquire new business during the year

Registered No 03183415




St James's Place plc Annue! Report end Accounts 2014 93

The tables and commentary below provide an indicative analysis of the cash result, idenufying the different contributions from the

business in-force at the start of the year, and the new business added during the year

o

Year Ended 31 December 2014 Notes In-Force New Business Total ;"J‘

£Milhon £ Million £ Million U.FQ:.
Net annual management fee 1 344 1 293 373 4 r?
Unwind of early withdrawal charge 2 (121 0) (16 1) (137 1) =
Net income from funds under management 2231 132 236 3 )
Margin arising from new business 3 - 366 366
Establishment expenses 4 ()] (88 5) (98 4) o
Development expenses 5 - (156) (15 6) _:
Regulatory fees 6 {05) 42 (47 5
FSCS levy 7 (0.5) (42 (4.7) %
Shareholder interest 8 77 - 77 ]
Utihisation of capatal losses 9 16 7 - 167 §
Miscellaneous 10 (01) - (0 1) o"'l'i
Underlying cash result 2365 (627) 173 8 E_
Back office infrastructure i2 ¥ 3 &
Variance 13 06 L S
Cash result 165 1
Year Ended 31 Deccmber 2013 Notes In-Force  New Busipess Total )

£'Malhon £’Million £'Million 2

Net annual management fee 1 250 5 270 3175 g
Unwind of early withdrawal charge 2 (103 4) (15 9) (119 3) =
Net income from funds under management 187 1 11 198 2 &
Margin anising from new business 3 — 378 378
Establishment expenses 4 (8 6) (78 4) (87 0) N
Development expenses 5 - (10 8) (10 8) -
Regulatory fees 6 (0 9) 38 47 é
ESCS levy 7 — (4 2) 42) =
Shareholder interest 8 74 - 74 B
Miscellaneous 10 32 - 32 gcn
Underlying cash result 188 2 (48 3) 139 9 g
Reinsurance transaction 11 183 ﬁ
Back office infrastructure 12 4 0) -
Variance 13 146
Cash result 168 8
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Notes

Since all aumbers are expressed after 1ax they are impacted by the prevading tax rate for each year

I The net annual management fee ‘This is the manufacturing margin the Group retalns from the
funds under management after payment of the associated costs (e g mvestment advisory fees and
Partnerr ) Broadly speaking the Group retains around 1% before tax (0 77% after
tax) of funds under management
The leve! of act annual managemens fec was soma 18% higher than the priar year reflecting the
higher average funds uader management 1n 2014 compared 15 2013

2 Lnwind of early withdrawal charge This relates to the reserving methodology applied to the early
witharawa: tage &' be e eeueture of the single premium Dife bonds and pensions
At the outset of the product, we establish a hab:hity net of the outstanding early withdrawal charge
which would apply if the policy were 1o be encashed
As the early withdrawal charge reduces to zero, so the lability to the policyholder is enhanced by
creasing their funds by (% perannum aver the hrat six years of the product lifc to correspond
to this umwind" of the carly wichdrawal charge In cther waorvs, there 13 a cost which offsets the
annual management fee sbove
Like the et annual management fee, the unwind of the early withdrawal charge has increased due

to the growth m funds under manigement However the Increase isalso impacted by new funds
but oflset by Use Tact that the funds added six years ago have completed Uie willulrawal diarge
pertod

3 Margin arising from new bunness This 1s the cash impact of new business in the year after taking
into aceount the directly atmnbutable expenses
The result will be tpacted by volumes ol new bustness, business mix and the level of production
related costs

4 Esublushment expenses These are the expenses of running the Group's infrastructure as shown in
the table on page 31 Inline with the rest of this table, they are presented after allowance for tax

5 Development expenses These represent the sum of the other expenditure noted in the table on
page: 31 (e g developments, the cost of regulatory change and Academy) The irapact on the cash
result in the year was £15 6 mslhon 2013 £10 8 million)

6 Regulatory fees This relates to the fees payable to the Regulatory bodies

7 FSCSlevy Thisrelates 1o the charpe levied by the FSCS for the current year

8  Sharcholder interest arinng from regulated and non regulated business This is the actinal Income
accruing on the mvestments and cash held for regulatory purposes together with the interest
rectived on the surplus capital held by the Group
‘The small lncrease in interest recened reflects the mereased level of assets invested

9 Utlsauen of capital losses In 2013 a deferved tax asset of £27 9 million was established for old
caputal losses which were regarded a3 being capable of utilisation over the mediem term  During
2014, 416 T mullion tax value of these losses has been utilised bestefiung the cash resuls by the
Lame amount

10 Miscellaneous This represents the cash flow of the business not covered inany of the otler
categones together with the utihaauon of the deferred tax assztin respect of prior year s
unrelieved expenses (due co struerueal ming differences in the life company tax computation)

11 Remsurance transaction During 2013 aresnsurance treaty wes entered into by the UK life
company which reinsured the compahy s g I and p -y sk of its closed
book of Proteetion bustiness As a result of the transaction there wasa ane off impact on the cash
result of £18 3 mullion reflecting the release of the associzted prudent salvency reserves together
with: the veal of the capatalised value of d future margins

12 Back office infrastructure These casts relate to a major project sceking to combune our back
offices under ane management team and to put in place ooc unificd dient centiic admunzstranon
sysém emzbling them to deliver improved service and improved efficiency for the business

13 Varnce Thus reflects varances in the cash result in a year due to the impact of aceual experience
incled

P hanges and in performance) oninsurance reserves a3

well as varnnces in the settlement of tax related habihtiea between the policyholders (unit linked
fands) the shareholder and HMRC

The small benefit of £0 6 muliron 10 2014 refiects a number of offsettng impacts whulst the lasger
variange of £14 6 mullion In 2013 reflects a release of salvency reserves the wulisation of brought
forward penuon losses and pos:tive impacts from tax timing vanances

Return on In-Force Business

As shown in the tables above, the return on the in-force business
15 mainly driven by the level of the annual management fees, the

unwind of the early withdrawal charge, and the level of expenses

The vast majority of the return relates to the net income from funds
under management {annual management fees less the unwind of the
early withdrawal charge) Funds under management have been
increasing and, as they continue to develop, the future net income
should also increase correspondingly

In addition, a proportion of the new business has an early withdrawal
charge winch unwinds during the hrst six years and, consequently,

this business does not make a meaningful contribution to the cash
result until year seven The table below provides an estimated current
value of the funds under management where the early withdrawal
charge apphes This funds under management 1s not yet generating
income within the cash result

Estimated

Current

Teas Fund Value
£'Ballion

2009 18
2010 22
201 25
2012 28
2013 34
2014 34
Total 16.1

This £16 1 bithon represents some 31% of the total funds under
management which, if all the business reached the end of the early
withdrawal charge period, would contribute an additional £123 9
million to the annual post-tax cash result (based on 0 77%
post-tax earnings from funds under management)

The Board therefore expects the cash earnings from the in-foree
business to increase as funds under management grows and the
business matures

Return on Investment in New Business

As noted in the table on page 23, £62 7 million (2013 £48 3
muillion restated to exclude the £4 0 million of back office
nfrastructure cost) of the cash arising from the in-force business
has been re-tnvested i acquining the new business during the year -

This investment in new business will generate mcome 1n the future
that should sigmificantly exceed the cost of investment and therefore
provide positive returns for shareholders The table below provides
details of the new business added during the reporting pertods and
different measurces of valuing the investment

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Post-tax investment 1n new business
(£'Million) (627 {48 3)
Post-tax present value of expected
profit from mvestment (£'Milhon) 298 4 261 8
Gross inflow of funds under
marnagement (£ Billion) 79 68
Investment as % of gross inflow* 0 8% 0 8%
New business margin
(% of manufactured APE) 41 7% 42 9%
Cash payback period (years) 4 4
Internal rate of return (net of tax) 26 1% 28 4%

* The investment as a percentage of net inflow of funds under management was | 2% compared

with | 2% for the prior year
Registered No D3183415
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The level of investment to acquire new business 1s not expected to increase significantly m future years and therefore the proportion of the
cash generated from the in-force business that will be avatlable to pay dividends to shareholders 1s expected to continue expanding

Capital Position

In addition to presenting an IFRS balance sheet {on page 104) and an EEV balance sheet (on page 165), we beheve 1t 1s benefical to provide a
balance sheet using the approach underlying our cash result This 1s because the cash resultis adjusted for non-cash 1items such as DAC, DIR and
deferred tax The Board therefore considers thus cash result balance sheet provides the best indication of the net asset position of the Group
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The following table analyses the differences between the IFRS balance sheet and the cash result balance sheet These adjustments
include netting out assets and Liabilities of the policyholder interest in umt-linked funds, and removal of a number of significant

‘non-cash’ adjustments {in particular DAC, DIR and deferred tax) w
—_—
IFRS Cash Resuht =
Balance  Adjustment Adjustment Balance g
31 December 2014 Sheet 1 P4 Sheet 2013 z”..
£Malhon £Malhien £ Malhon £'Malhon &' Mallon s
Assets %—‘
Goodwll 10 1 101 - o
Deferred acquisition costs 8130 - (813 0) - - E
Acquired value of in force business 36 8 - (36 8) - - g“
Developments 77 ~ - 77 87 g
Property & equipment 79 - - 79 58 —
Deferred tax assets 192 8 — {192 8) - -
Investment property 1,031 4 (1,031 4) - - -
Equities 34,7349 (34,734 9) - - - L
Fixed income securities 6,838 8 (6,755 5) - 833 677 (3
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 2,961 7 (2,444 4) - 5173 5223 2
Derivative financial instruments 166 4 (166 4) — - - E
Reinsurance assets 855 - - 855 64 2
Insurance and investment contract receivables 635 - - 635 499
Other receivables 604 6 (306 9) (5 1) 292 6 226 0 —
Cash & cash equivalents 5,139 4 (4,865 1) - 274 3 197 1 -Sn
Total assets 52,6945 (50,304 6) (1,0477) 1,342 2 1,141 7 §
2,
Liabilities wn
Insurance contract hlabihues 474 4 (384 3) ()] 83 2 793 :J"D'
Other provisions 114 - - 11 4 97 E
Investment contracts 38,8512 (38,832 %) - 187 66 E’
Borrowings 843 - - 84 3 98 7 —
Dertvative hnancial instruments 793 (719 3) - - —
Deferred tax habilities 5198 B0 O) (176 2) 263 6 246 6 9
Insurance and investment contract payables 50 4 - - 50 4 381 5‘
Deferred income 463 2 - (463 2) - - =
Income tax lrabilities 328 - — 3218 49 :‘_.3:
Other payables 499 7 (3101 04 188 6 1250 E
NAV attributable to unit holders 10,6178 (10,617 8) - - - <;J
Preference shares 01 - - 01 01
- ——
Total hhabilities 51,684 4 (50,304 6) (640 7) 7391 602 0
Net assets 1,010 ¢ - (407 0) 603 1 5327
Adjustments

t  Nets out the policyholder interest in unit-hinked assets and labilities
2 Removal of IFRS non-cash adjustments
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The movement in the cash result net assets 1s equal to the cash result adjusted for dividends paid mn the year and other changes 1n equity
excluding the cost of share options (see page 103 — Conschidated Statement of Changes i Equity)

The table above provides an analysis of the differences between the IFRS balance sheet and the cash result balance sheet Asin previous
years, we also provide an analysis of the Solvency position The key difference between the cash result net assets (above) and the
Solvency net assets 1s an amount of additional reserves ansing from the Irish solvency regulations These reserves include additional
prudential reserves over that required by the UK regulator As a result, the Solvency position 15 £572 0 nullion, which 1s £31 1 nullion
lower than the cash result net assets of £603 1 milhion (2013 £507 6 mallion and £532 7 million, respectively)

The table below provides an analysts of the Solvency position between regulated and non-regulated entities, together with an assessment of
the sclvency position against both the required minimum regulatory capital and the internal capital requirement set by the Board (referred
to as the management solvency reqmrement)

Other
Life Regulated Other Total
£'Million £Million £Mallion £Million
Solvency net assets 3271 521 1928 5720
Intra-group proposed dividends (145 0) (10 0y 1550 -
Final 2014 dividend (74 6) {74 6)
Net assets after dividends 1821 42.1 2732 497 4
Required mimimum regulatory capital 489 22 3
Solvency ratio 372% 189%
Management solvency requirement 153 9 421
Management solvency ratic 118% 100%

Companison with previcus valuations will show that the Group solvency position remains resilient, reflecting the Group’s low appetite
for market, credit and lriquidity nisk in relation to solvency

A further measure of solvency for an insurance group 15 the Insurance Groups Directive (IGD) resources This 15 calculated by considering
the level of net assets in the Group {outside of the mnsurance compames) that could be available to support the solvency of the insurance

company (and other regulated companues) It therefore represents additional solvency cover over the £327 1 million Life company solvency
assets identified 1n the table above At 31 December 2014 the 1GD resources amount was estimated as £240 mullron (2013 £260 0 rullion)

The balance of other assets after intra-group dividends received and the payment of the final 2014 dividend 15 £273 2 million which
includes £112 5 mullion of non-cash items  The balance represents free group resources, including an amount of £90 mullion held as a
buffer ta maintain future dividends in the event of stack market \mlatlllty impacting the cash resultin a particular year

The Group continues to be capitalised well in excess of regulatory solvency requirements, with over 60% of cash result balance sheet

assets (and solvency assets) invested prudently in cash, AAA rated money market funds and UK government securities Other assets
(principally other recervables) are less hquid An analysis of the Lquid asset holdings 15 provided below
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£Malhon £'Milhon
UK government gilts
2 75% UK Treasury 22/01/2015 135
4 75% UK Treasury 07/03/2015 11 6
5 8% UK Treasury 26/07/2016 117
2 5% UK Treasury [ndex Linked 17/07/2024 188
2% UK Treasury [ndex Linked 26/01/2035 253 809
Other government bonds w
0 25% Singapore Government Bonds 2 4 <
AAA rated money market funds E
BlackRock 128 2 3
HSBC 83 9 =
Insight 200 E_j
Legal & General 826 8
Scottish Widows 400 2
JP Morgan 92 6 5173 g*
Bank balances =
UK banks* 271 4
Qthers 29 274 3
Total 8749

* HSBC, Barclays Lloyds Bank of Scotland RBS Santander NatWeat and Metro Bank

Solvency II

Naticnal regulators are required to implement the Solvency 11 regulations (when finalised) on 1 January 2016 As noted previously, we do
not believe the Group will be adversely impacted by the new requirements and expect 1o see a reduction 1o the total capital we are

required to hold for regulatory purposes

Share Options Maturity

At 31 December 2014, there were 4 9 mullion share options outstanding under the varicus share option schemes which, 1f exercised,
will provide up to £15 4 million (2013 £19 1 mulhion) of future capital for the Company

The table below provides a breakdown by date and exercise price

Average Number of
exercise share options Potential
price  outstandmg proceeds
£ Million £Milhon
Prior to 1 Jan 2015 290 35 100
Jan — Jun 2015 296 03 08
Jul — Dec 2015 275 07 20
Jan — Jun 2016 388 02 03
Jul = Dec 2016 - - -
Jan — Jun 2017 677 02 18
Tatal 49 154
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Financial

Review (continued)

Section 3: European Embedded Value (EEV)

Lafe agsurance and wealth management business differs from most
other businesses, 1n that the expected shareholder incorne from
the sale of a product emerges over a long period in the future We
therefore complement the IFRS and cash result by providing
additional disclosure on an EEV basis The EEV result brings into
account the net present value of the expected future cash flows
and we believe this measure 1s useful to wveawois » hon assessong
the total economic value of the Group's operating performance

The table below and accompanying notes summarise the profit
before tax of the combined business The detailed results are
shown on pages 163 to 173 and include information about the
sensitivity of the results to key assumptions on pages 167 and 168

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£Milhon £’ Million

Life business 467 0 3657
Unit Trust business 177 7 1308
Distribution (109) [CR)
Other (37 4) 277
EEV operating profit 596 4 462 7
Investment return variance 802 344 2
Economic assumption changes (70) 10 6
EEV profit before tax 669 6 817 &
Tax (132 6) (161 9)
Corporation tax change - 189
EEV profit after tax 837 0 674 5

Total EEV operatng profit for the year, at £596 4 mullion, was
29% higher than the 2013 result of £462 7 million

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
Pence Pence
EEV apcrating profit basic
earnings per share 93t 729
EEV operating profit diluted
earnings per share 915 716

EEY Operating Profit

Life Business

The Life business operating profit has increased to £467 0 million
in the year (2013 £365 7 mullion) mainly due to the sigmficant
contribution from experience variances in the year A full analysis
of the result 15 shown below

Year Ended Year Ended

31 Decemper 3. Scze—~he-

2014 2043
£Million £'Million
New business contribution 2337 213 6
Profit from existing business
— unwind of the discount rate 144 9 89 4
— experience variance 781 539
— operating assumption change 30 46
Investment income 73 42
Life business
EEV operating profit 467 0 365 7

The increase in the new business contribution for the year to
£233 7 million (2013 £213 6 million) reflects the positive impact
of the growth 1n new business being greater than the growth n
the associated expenses (the operational gearing)

The unwind of the discount rate was £144 9 mithon (2013
£39 4 million), reflecting both the hugher opening value
of in-force business and higher discount rate

As the discount rate 15 set by reference to the yield ona UK ten
year gult at the start of each reporting period, then the 1 2%
lower gilt yield at the start of 2015 will negatively impact the
unwind of the discount rate for the current year

The experience variance in the year was £78 1 million (2013
£53 9 mullion) The key contributors to the positive variance in
the current year were a £42 2 milhion (2013 £28 6 million) value
placed on turther capital losses identified within the Group,
which we now regard as being capable of utihsation in the
medwm term, and the continued strong retentton of client funds,
which contributed a further signiiicant positive variance of some
£39 4 mullion The balance 1s made up by a number of smaller
positive and negative variances

There was a small positive operating assumption change of
£3 0 mullion (2013 £4 6 million positive vanance)

The investment :ncome for the year was £7 3 mulhion (2013

£4 2 million) and reflects an assumed interest rate earned on our
free assets

Registered No 03183415




Unit Trust Business
The Unit Trust operating profit was £177 7 mullion {2013 £130 8
million} and a full analysis of the result 1s shown below

Year Ended Year Ended
D b 31 Decemb
2014 2013
£Millhon £'Million
New business contribution 139 4 113 6
Profit from existing business
~ unwind of the discount rate 371 227
— experlence varance 04 (6 5}
— operating assumptton change - -
Investment income 08 10
Umnit Trust business
EEV operating profit 177 7 1308

New business contribution at £139 4 million (2013 £113 6
million) was 23% higher than the prior year as a result of the strong
new business growth in the year together with lower growth of
associated expenses

The unwind of the discount rate was £37 1 milhion (2013
£22 7 mullion), reflecting both the higher opening value of
in-force business and higher discount rate

As noted above the 1 2% lower gilt yield at the start of 2015 wall
negatively impact the unwind of the discount rate for the current
year

There was a small posittve experience variance of £0 4 million
(2013 £6 5 mullion negative variance) which 1s accounted for by a
number of small posttive and negative ttems in both years

There were no operating assumption changes during the
year (2013 no assumption changes) and a small amount of
mvestment income of £0 8 million (2013 £1 0 mullion)

Distribution Business and Other
The results from distribution and other operations have already
been commented on 1n the [FRS section

Investment Return Variance

The 1nvestment return variance reflects the capitalised impact on
the future annual management fees resulting from the difference
between the actual and assumed mvestment returns Given the
size of our funds under management, a small difference between
the actual and assumed investment return can resultn a large
pOSItlve or nﬁgatlve variance

St James's Place plc Annual Report and Accounts 2014 )G

During 2014, world stock markets rose, with, for example, the
MSCI £ world index increasing by some 9% This was reflected in
the investment return on our funds, which exceeded the assumed
investment return As a result, there wasa positive investment
return variance of £80 2 milhon for the year

In the prior year, there was a positive mvestiment variance of
£344 2 mithon, reflecting the hgher level of stock market growth

Economic Assumption Changes

There was a negative vanance of £7 0 million anising from changes
in the economuic basis adopted at the year end and, in particular,
decreases in ‘real’ yields below inflanon (2013 £10 6 rmlhon
posttave variance)

EEY Profit before Tax

The total EEV profit betore tax for the year was L669 6 million
(2013 £817 5 million) with the higher 2014 operating
pertormance being more than offsct by the higher investment
varmance 1n the prior year

Tax

The tax charge at £132 6 millien (2013 £161 9 milhon charge)
was lower than 2013 reflecting the higher profit before tax in the
prlor year

The prior year also included a posttive 1mpact of £18 9 million
from a 1% reductien n the corporation tax rate announced 1n
that year

EEV Profit after Tax

The EEV profit after tax was £537 0 mullien (2013 £674 5
million) The principal reason for the varation 15 the change in
investment return variance
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Financial

Review (continued)

New Business Margin

The largest single element of the EEV operating profit i1s the new business contribution (see analysis 1 the previous section) The level
of new business contribution generally moves in line with new business performance To demonstrate this hnk and aid understanding
of the results, we provide additional analysis of the new business margin (‘margin’y This 1s calculated as the new business contribution
divided by a relevant new business measure, and 15 expressed as a percentage

The table below presents margin results based on each of the two main measures of new business performance used by the insurance sector

* Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) — calculated as e suin of rogulzr premams nlus 1/10th single premiums

* Present Value of New Business Premium (PVNBP) — calculated as single premiums plus the present value of expected premmums
from regular premium business, allowing for lapses and other EEV assumptions

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
Life business
New business contribution (£'Million) 2337 213 6
APE (£'Milhon) 5830 5329
Margin (%) 401 401
PVNEP (£'Million) 51940 4,758 0
Margin (%) 45 45
Umit Trust business
New business contribution (£'Million) 1394 1136
APE (£ Million) 3126 2300
Margin (%) 44 6 49 4
PVNBP (£’ Million) 3,126 1 2,300 2
Margin (%) 4.5 49
Total business
New business contribution (£'Million) 3731 3272
APE (£'Mllion) 8956 762 9
Margin (%) 417 429
PVNBP (£’ Milhon} 8,320 1 7,058 2
Margm (%) 4.5 46

The total business margin has reduced shghtly over the year from 4 6% to 4 5% on a PVNBP basis and from 42 9% to 41 7% on the APE baas
This reflects a high level of investment expenditure 1n the year The greater reduction in the margin for the Unit Trust business reflects a
reallocation of corporate expenses between Life and Umt Trust business as the respective proportions of the business change

Analysis of the European Embedded Value and Net Assets per Share
The table below provides a summarised breakdown of the embedded value position at the reporting dates

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3! December

2014 2013
£Million £'Milhon

Value of in-force
—Life 2,234 0 1,950 2
— Unit Trust 611 2 506 3
Solvency net assets 5720 507 6
Total embedded value 34172 2,964 1

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
Pence Pence
Net asset value per share 657 9 575 3

Registered No 03183415
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Section 4 Other Matters
This final section covers a number of additional areas that will be of interest to shareholders

Management Expenses
The table below provides the usual breakdown of the management expenditure (before tax) for the combined financial services activities
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2014 2013*
£valhon £'Mullion
Pand from policy margmns and advice charges o
Partner remuneration i 455 4 407 1 :
Investment expenses i 124 6 101 8 g
Third party administration 1 443 418 &
w
624.3 550 7 o
f<+]
Direct expenses 2
Other performance related costs 2 868 725 &
c
Establishment costs 3 1251 108 0 C:jL
Academy costs 4 4.1 27 Ee
Other development costs 5 156 119 =
N
Back ofhee infrastructure costs 6 119 50
Regulatory fees 7 6.1 61
FSCS levy 7 59 55
Regulatory change costs 8 - 31
Contribution from third party product sales 9 (2249 (20 4)
‘ 233 1 194 4
Total 857 4 745 1

* We have changed the presentation of this analyss of Group expenses to provide furiher information on performance related costsand business as usual other developments The 2013 comparative has

been re presented to be in a consmstent format

Notes

1 These costs are met from corresponding palicy margius and any variauan un them from duanges in the 1olumes of new business or the level of the stock markets doca not du ectly impact the piofiability of
the Group

2 Other pecformance 1elated costs for both Partners and emplovees, vary with the level of new bumness and aperating profit performance of the bunness Extablishment casts are the runaing costs of
the Group s infrastructure and are relatlvely fixed i natyre in the short term, although they are subject 10 10flationary increases These costs will increase as the infrastructere expands (o manage the
higher number of exsting clients, the growing number of sdvisers and increanng business volumes

3 The growth in cstablishment expenscs during the year was higher than our original expectations as a consequence of an increase 1 expenditure assoctated with the high level of advaser recruitment in
the year together with the costs relating to the higher business volumes We expect establishment expenses in 2015 to increase by around 10% N

4 The Academy Is an mpaortant strategic imvestnent for the future and the increase 1 the costs during 2014 reflects the ncreased number of students within the programme and the launch of our first >
regional Academy in Manchester

( SjusuIalel§ [erouRUL] |( SOUBUISACTH)

2015 will see further growth in thus investment as the Academy continues to expand with further intakes planned in London and Manchester tagedhier with aur first Academy intake in Solibull

§  Other development costs represent the expenditure agyociated with the on going develop in our nve: prop corporate initiatives, technology improvements and other system
developments These costs will vary year by year depending upon the extent of change and/or investment planned
The development expenses were £15 6 million durng 2014 (2013 211 9 million) and we expect a similar level of spend 16 2015

6  The coats of the back office juestment programome were £11 3 million fo: the year coinpared 16 a second half year costof £5 0 qullion in 2013
The change programme progressed well during 2014 and we ‘soft launched 1SA and unut trust business at the end of the year with full migration of this business expected 12 2015
As we continue to develop the system and migrate the existing business we will incur further investment expenditare and antictpate the costs for 2015 to be some £15 0 mullion

7 Theregulatory costs represent the fees payable to the regulatory badies of £6 | million (2013 £6 1 milhon) together with our required contribution to the Financia! Services Compensation Scheme
of £5 9 million (2013 £5 5 mulhion)

8 These were the ane off costs of changing our systems and pracess for the smplementation of the adviser charging rules A< theae changes have now been implemeanted we do oot expest further
expenditure m 2015

9 Contribunon fram thurd party product ew bustness ceficcta the net income recaned from wealth management business of 49 0 million (2013 48 2 mulling) from group pension buniaess of £0 R
mthon (2013 £0 5 mallion) and from Protecilon businessof £12 6 milkion (2013 £11 7 million)
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Financial

Review (continued)

The table below provides a reconcibation from these management expenses to the total group expenses included in the Consohdated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 101

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
£'Milhon £'Million
Expenses per table apove 8574 745 1
Reversa! of contribution from third party product sales ZZ 4 2004
Other expenses
DAC movement 758 828
Amortisation of PVIF 32 32
Investment transaction costs 206 14 1
Costs associated with the 2013 LBG share sale - 62
Share option costs 114 78
Share option NI . 27 34
Acquired IFA operating costs 60 67
Henley operating costs 36 -
Interest expense 38 28
Charitable donations 36 19
Other 124 24
143 1 131 3
Total expenses 1,022 9 896 8

Movement in Funds under Management
The table below shows the movement 1n the funds under management of the Group during the reporting period

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£Bilhon L'Billion

Opeming funds under management 44 3 34 8
New money invested 79 68
Investment return 26 52
54 8 46 8
Regular withdrawals/maturities 09 ©n
Surrenders/part surrenders (19) {18)
Closing funds under management 520 44 3
Imphed surrender rate as % of average funds under management 4 0% 4 7%
Net inflow of funds £5 09bn £4 23bn
Net inflow as % of opening funds under management 11 5% 12 2%

Shareholders will be pleased to note that the continued strong retention of funds under management, together with the level of new money
unvested, provides for a net inflow of funds of £5 02 billton, £0 86 billion higher than the prior ycar This net inflow represents 11 5%
(2013 12 2%) of opening funds under management and can be viewed as the organic growth of the business

Noted below 15 an explanation of regular withdrawals, maturnities and surrenders )

The regular withdrawals represent those amounts selected by chents which are paid out by way of periodic income The withdrawals
have been assumed in the calculation of the embedded value new business profit

Maturities are those sums paid out where the plan has reached the selected maturity date (e g retirement date) The expected maturities
have been assurned n the calculation of the embedded value new business profit
Registered No 03183415




St James’s Place plc Annua! Repors and Accounts 2014 33

Surrenders and part surrenders are those amounts where clients have chosen to withdraw money from their plan Surrenders are
assumed to oecur n the calculation of the embedded value new business profit based on actual experience, updated on an annuzl basis, by
plan duration and the age of the client The implied surrender rate shown in the table above 15 very much a simple average and reflects only
recent experience Whilst it could be compared with the long-terin assumptions underlying the calculation of the embedded value, 1t
should not be assumed that small movements 1n this rate will result 1n a change to the long term embedded value assumptions

Analysis of funds under management
The followmng table provides an analysis of the funds under management at 31 December 2014 split by geography and asset type

2014 2013

£'Billion £'"Rillion

UK Equities 149 133
North American Equities 104 84
Fixed Interest 71 61
European Equities ‘ 60 50
Asia & Pacific Equities 48 39
Property 15 11
Alternative Investments 09 13
Cash 4.4 36
Other 20 16
Total 520 44 3

The Henley Group
As shareholders are aware during 2014 we acquired The Henley Group ("THG'}, a business providing financial advice to largely British
expatriate clients based in Shanghai, Singapore and Hong Kong

We consider THG to be a strong cultural fit with our business and see the acquisition as an important extension of our existing face to
face advice model to clients through our own dedicated advisers albeit focusing on the expatriate market place

There are currently some 90,000 British expatriates in these three locations served by an estimated 310 British expatriate focused advisers
Our expectations are that the number of expatriates in these markets will continue to grow by some 7-10% per annum providing for
110-130,000 expatniates across Shanghai, Singapore and Hong Kong by 2020, with an estimated £2] hilhion of investible assets

THG currently has 4,400 clients with £453 million funds under management serviced by 51 advisers Qur intention, mirrering cur
UK proposition, 15 to expand the number of advisers and mcrease therr productivity year by year so that by 2020 we have an adviser
population of 200 and funds under management of over £2 billion

Since the acquisition we have been integrating the business mto cur Group, commencing conversations with a number of potential
adwviser recruits and applying for regulatory approval to market our products and services in these markets

The Ainancial details of the acquisition are include in Note 9 on page 123 Since the date of acquisiion during 2014, the integration and
running costs of £1 7 million {(which 15 reported in ‘Iistribution’) together with other costs and our mvestment spend of £2 3 milhon
(which 15 reported in ‘Other’)" have reduced proht by a total of £4 0 million We expect the ongoimg investment into THG to continue
for a number of years However, as the investment generates new funds under management we will see an increasing contribution to
the Embedded Value of the Group

We have recently rebranded THG as St James's Place Asia and continue o explore opportumties in other expatriate markets
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Risk, Risk

Management and
Internal Control

The mechantsms for 1dentifying, assessing, managing and
monutoring risks, including internal controls, are an integral part
of the management processes of the Group Understanding the
risks we face, and managing them appropriately, enables effective
decision-making, contributes to our competitive advantage and
helps us to achieve our business objectives as set out on pages 12
and 13 In estabhishing the system of internal control, the
Durectars have regard to the materiality of relevant risks, the
Likelihood of risks occurning and the costs of mritigating risks
The system does not seek to ehminate risk entirely, but rather s
designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and to provide reasonable assurance against material
financial mis-statement or loss

Risk Management Framework

The Risk Management Framework, which 1s the responsibility of
the Board, describes the ways in which the Group identifies,
assesses, measures, manages and monitors the risks that may
impact on the successful delivery of cur business objectives

The Risk Commuttee oversees our Risk Management Framework
on behalf of the Board The Risk Committee comprises Non-
executive Board members, and 1s responsible for ensuring thata
culture of effective risk wdentification and management 15 fostered
across the Group A report of their activity during the year can be
found on pages 63 and 64

The Risk Committee 15 supported by the Executive Board, and
also by a Risk Executive Commuttee and the Risk Management
team, which take the lead 1n ensuring an appropriate framework
15 1n place and that there 15 on-going development and co-
ordination of risk management within the Group

Regstered No 03183415




During 2014, a new Risk Management Framework has been

developed, to ensure continued close alignment between our

business objectives and the management of risks to those

objectives The revised framework 15 grounded m the outcomes

which are key to our organisation These are

— Clients — that we deliver positive outcomes to clients

— Partoers — that we continue to grow and develop the
Partnership

~ Investment Management Approach — that we increase the
amount of funds under managermnent

— Finanerals and shareholders — that we deliver strong,
sustainable financial results and shareholder value

— Regulators — that we are comphant and have an open and
honest relationship with our regulators

— People — that we treat all of our stakeholders well

Each of these outcomes, and each key project, has an owner on
the Executive Board, who 15 accountable for managing the risks in
that area and providing regular reports to the Executive Board,
covermg the key and topical nisks to that outcome or project, and
assomated management lnformatlon

To ensure a comprehensive nisk umverse, there 15 also a bottom-
up element to our framework Each division of the Group 15
responsible for :dentifying, managing and reporting of its own
risks via divisional risk logs, and 1s supported in this by the Rask
Management team Each risk 15 assessed by connidering 1ts
potennial impact and the hikehhood of 1ts occurrence, with impact
assessments being made against financial and non-financial

metrics Establishment of appropriate controls 1s a core part of the
risk management process

Fmnancial Reporting Processes

Specifically mn relation to the financial reporting processes, the

main features of the internal control and risk management

systems include

— Extensive documentation, operation and assessment of controls
1n key risk areas

— Monthly review and aign-off of all financial accounting data
submitted by outsourced providers and the results of all
subsidiaries within the Group

— Formal review of financial statements by scnter management,
for both individual companies and the consolidated Group

Control Self-assessment

The Group introduced a process of control self-assessments in
2013 The process requires business areas to review their key
controls and sign-off on their etheacy This process has been
further developed during 2014 and 1s now an annual process

Comphance with Corporate Governance Code and
Turnbull

Processes for identifying, evaluaung and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group have been in place throughout the year
under review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and Accounts, although the nature of these processes has been
revised during this period They are regularly reviewed by the
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Board, assisted by the Risk Commuittee, and accord with the
Guidance for Directors in C 2 | of the UK Corporate Governance
Code and with the Turnbull Guidance for Dhrectors on Internal
Control

Risk Appetite and Risk Policies

At the centre of our Risk Management Framework 1s the Risk
Appetite Statement In our Risk Appetite Statement, the Board
sets out risk ‘boundaries’ which speaify the types of risks the
Group 1s withng to take and to what extent It also sets out how
the Group operates in 1ts chosen business and speeifies appropriate
metrics for monstoring this The Statement 15 currently being
reshaped through engagement with risk owners across the
bustness to ensure 1ts continued relevance to the objectives of the
Group and to reflect the requirements of forthcoming Solvency 11
regulatxons Whilst some aspects, such as the appetite for overseas
chents, will change to accommodate the Group’s expansion into
Asia, there will not be a fundamental shift of the underlying nisk
appetite of the Group

In support of our Risk Appetite Statement, we have a number of
Rusk Policies which clearly establish our objectives, principles and
high level management activities in relation to each of the maimn
types of risk that the Group faces

Risk Schedules and Key Risk Indicators

Corporate and Divisional risk schedules and quarterly Key Rusk
Indicator reports are produced to facihtate the monitorin g of rnisks
by the Risk and Finance Executive Commuttees, Risk Commuttee
and Board These schedules and indicators provide a mechanism
for capturing and considering the sigmificant risks facing the
business

Risk Capital Management

Many of the activities of the Group, and the legal entities in the
Group are regulated We have existing relationships with UK and
Irish regulators and have developed new relationships with local
regulators m Singapore and Hong Kong this year The sensitive
nature of these activities and the regulatory focus results in
additional risk management activities including, but not limited
to, stress and scenano tesung, loss event recording, resolunion
plannmg and risk capital management activity

A s:gmﬁcant current project 1n relation to risk capital
management 1s the forthcoming implementation of Salvency 11
In 2014, development work to satisfy the transition requirements
included submission of Own Rusk and Solvency Assessment
(ORSA) reports to the relevant regulators for cur two insurance
companies As a result of this work we considered the allocation
of risk capital to ali the major risks in these entines and are
confident that our insurance companies remain strongly
capitalised
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Risk, Risk

Management and

Internal COl’ltI'Ol (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The following tables summarise the principal risks and uncertainties that are inherent within both the Group’s business model and the
market in which we operate These principal risks and uncertaintees, the business outcomes on which they umpact, and the high level

controls and processes through which we aim to mitigate them, are as follows

Chient propusiuun

Description Outcome

Clgnts imvarshly vely on Clients, financials and

members of our Partnership shareholders
for the provision of initial and

ongomng advice Failures in the

quality of service provided,

and 1n particular any advice

farlings, could lead to redress

costs, reputational damage and

regulatory intervention

J'\'lanagcmcnl and Contro

There are many processes n place to
mitigate this risk, mncluduy Jeraded
advice gwmdance, Partner traiming and
accredltatlon, appropriate Incentive
structures, quality checking, client
engagement conducted by the Client
Outcomes team and extensive
monitoring of the internal funds and
portfolios 'We also have appropriate
profeSSLOnal lndcmnlty 1nsurance 1mn
place

Competition

Finaneials and
shareholders

Competitor activity in the
adviser-based wealth
management market may
result in a reduction 1n new
business volumes, reduced
retention of existing business,
and the potential loss of
Partners

and key employees

Thas rnisk 1s mingated through ensuring
our business 1s run efficiently, being
responsive to the needs of our clients and
Partoers and seeking continual
lmprovemcnts to PrOCeSSCS Chargcs are
benchmarked against competitors and
competltor actwﬂ:y monitored Regular
reports are provided to the Executive
Board, allowing action to be taken in a
timely manner 1n the event of a threat to
cur business model We have a proven
track record m Partner acquisition and
retention, which we believe would make
it difficult for a new entrant to challenge
our position In addition, our more
established Partners often have
blgnxh(.ant t.‘qult)' 5takeb n r.hﬁl.l" pra.c.tl(.l:a
and their ability to access these 1s
structured to awd retention

Repulatory, legislative
and tax environment

~

Regulators, Partners,
clients, financials and

shareholders

The nature of the Group 1s
such that 1t falls under the
influence of regulators and
legislators in multiple
Junsdictions, a growing
number given the Group's
expansion nto Asia New
regulatory, legislative or tax
requirements may result in
implementation costs and
disruption to business The
Group could face a fine or
regulatory censure from
failure to comply with
apphicable regulations

Regulatory and legislative change 1s
largely a nsk which cannot be mitigated,
although the Group seeks to engage with
regulators and policy makers 1n an open
and constructive manner, with the aim
that key 1ssues impacting the group are
taken into consideration in the drafting
of changes Our governance structures,
management committees and comphance
monitoring activities seek to ensure we
remain comphant with regulation
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Peaple and culture

Cutcome

Description

People and the distinctive Pecple
culture of the Group play an

iumportant part in its success
Over-stretch, the loss of key

personnel or unwanted

changes to culture may

therefore impact on this

success
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Management and Controls

This risk 1s mitigated through effective
leadership including successien plannmg,
the implementation of executive and
management development imuatives and
regular surveys and consultation groups
The latter enable us to momtor the
sentiment of our staff and Partners and
ident:fy any potential adverse 1mpacts
upon, or trends withun, our culture, and
respond appropriately

Partner proposition,
recritrent and
retention

Group products are Partners
distnbuted, and ongoing
advice 15 provided, exclusively
through the St James’s Place
Partnership Inadequactes in
the range of products,
technology or processes
offered by the Partnership may
result 1n 1nefhiciencies and
frustration, with consequent
loss of Partners and chent
impact, or mability to recruit
new Partners

The Partner propositien 15 an area of
continual focus, with outputs from
regular Partner surveys and other
Partner feedback being reflected on an
ongoing basis We employ a number of
specialist managers speaifically to
manage the recruitment and retention of
high quality Partners, and a dedicated
senior management team oversees the
Academy, which broadens cur
recruitment streams Formal retention
sirategies are i place to ensure that,
wherever possible, we retain good
quality and experienced Partners All
recruitment and retention activity 1s
closely monitored

Investment Management
Approach

Our approach to investment
management may fail to
deliver expected returns to
clents of the Group

Clients, the Investment
Management Approach

We actively manage and monitor the
performance of our investment managers
through the Investment Commttee
which also makes usc of firms of
professional advisers —led by Stamford
Associates — to help them with this key
task We offer a broad range of funds,
which allows chient diversiheation and
mitigates cur new business, persistency
and market risks h
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Risk, Risk

Management and

Internal Control (continued)

Ouicome

Managcment and Controls

Operanens and IT The Group's business model Chents, financials and These risks are mitigated by service level
mnvolves the outsourcing of shareholders agreements, monitoring of
admimstration to third adminustration providers and an effective
parties Poor service from, or information security control framework
failure of, one of these third We are enhancing our existing cyber
partes, the fadwe of an 7T secunty risk management capabihities,
system, or a sigmficant including a significant improvement 1n
cyber-attack, could lead to our testung framework, in light of the
disruption of services to increasing threat in this area We
clients, reputational damage maintain close working relationships
and profit impacts There 1s with our outsourcing partners, who are
also a risk that clients or central to our business model This
Partners may experience enables us to work effectively and
disruption of service during efficiently together to deliver the best
the implementation of our result In the extreme event, all our
new third party relationships are governed by formal
admimstration platform agreements with notice periods and full

exit management plans and, if required,
strong alternative providers exist in the
market The business continuity
arrangements of each outsourcer are also
continually tested and improved and
scenario analysts 1s carried out The nisk
of service disruption on /implementation
of the new admimstration platform 1s
being mitrgated through diligent quality
checking and phased implementations

Political Changes 1n the political Financials and Ths visk 15 mitigated, to the extent this

landscape could lead to
substantial changes n policy,
resulting in significant
development costs and
disruption to the Group's
business Fatlure to deliver
changes in the required
timescales may lead to
reputational darnage and loss
of new business

shareholders

15 possible, through engagement with the
major political parties and through
engaging the services of relevant public
relations and communications
consultants

Investor relations

Failure to communicate
effectively with new and

existing shareholders may lead

to falls 1n the share price and
reputational damage

Financials and
shareholders

This nsk s mitigated through the work
of the mnvestor relations team, whose
remit 15 to ensure the maintenance of
positive relationships with shareholders

Regastered No 03183415
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Other Key Risks and Uncertainties

In addition to the principal risks and uncertainties mentioned above there are other key risks and uncertainties that are inherent within
the businesses and markets 1n which we operate These are detailed i the fellowing table under the relevant risk categories, together
with the high level controls and processes through which we aim to mitgate these risks

Finanaal risks

Description

Management and Contr

o

Credit The risk of loss due to a debtor’s non- The Group has adopted a nisk averse
payment of a loan or cther line of credut, approach to credit risk and has a stated
including holdings of cash and cash policy of not actively pursuing or W
equivalents, depostts and formal loans accepting credit risk except when —
with banks and financial institutions necessary to support other busmess 5
objectives Loans and advances to a2
Partners are assessed on a prudent bass f_’g
and momtored carefully g'—‘
Liqudity The nisk that the Group, although solvent,  The Group 15 averse to hiquidity risk and ::1
erther does not have available sufficient seeks to minimise thus risk by net actively 2
financial resources to enable 1t to meetits  pursuing it except where necessary to E_
obligations as they fall due, or can secure  support other business objectives o
such resources only at excessive cost Generally, free assets are invested in cash g
or near cash assets with strong
counterparties and the Group’s cash
position and forecast are monitored on a
monthly basis The Group also makes use )]
of some bank financing n certain, %
unlikely, circumstances (including change e
of control) the terms of these agreements =1
could mandate immediate repayment a
Market The risk of loss due to the impact of The Group adopts a risk averse approach
movement in the value of equity or other  to market risk, with a stated solvency .~
asset markets policy of not actively pu rsumg or
accepting market risk except where g’
necessary to support other business 2
objectives Generally, free assetsare g
invested 1n cash or near cash to mimimise o
market movement mmpact However, o
future profits are dependent on annual a8
management charges which will vary with g
mmarket levels ar
[nsurance The risk that arises from inherent The Group has a medium appetite for
uncertainties as to the occurrence, insurance rlsk, only actwe]y pursuing 1t
amount and tuming of msurance where beneficial, or in support of 9
liabilities The Group assumes insurance strategic objectives Historically, the E_
risk by 1ssuing insurance contracts under Group insured mortality and mortidity o
which 1t agrees to compensate the clientaf  nisks, through protection business, but =gl
a specified future event nccurs thus risk has now been substantially a
relasured through a combination of =3
treaties, leaving only small amounts of g
mortality and morbidity risk but
(N

including low levels of mortality risk on
other investment and pension insurance
contracts The Group has no longevity
risk as we have never written annuity
business

Further detail zhout the Gioup's expasure to financial risks 15 included 1n Note 29 of the consolidated financial statements
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We understand that responsible management s important to all our
stakeholders — shareholders, chents, Partners, employees, supplers
and the commumties in which we operate

Qur commitment to responsible management was established 1n
the founding principles of the Company and 15 expressed un both
the ‘Our Approach’ document, which 1s shared with all members
2four sammumnity and the “What 1t means to be 2 member’
brochure, which sets out the expectations for our Partners We
believe responsible management continues to be embedded 1n our
culture and reminders and encovragement to hve by thus
philosophy are provided regularly through team meetings and
staff and Partner newsletters

By hving up to the expectations established withm our culture,

C Or )Ol‘.ate S Ocial we believe we will be able to demonstrate trustworthrness,
I rehability and a commitment to the common good In a world
R 'b 3 1 't T where the reputation of the financial services industry 1s
esp On S]- ]- ]- } constantly under pressure, we aspire to create an authentic
alternative which all our stakeholders can trust, and which the

Rep Ol t communities we are part of can appreciate and admire

We are constantly seeking to tmprove our dehvery, but recent
public endorsements include
— Varnous awards relating to our chent offering including the

‘St. James’s P]ace 1S Commltted Wealth Adviser Awards ‘Best Private Client Investment
Manager’, the Personal Finance Awards ‘Best Financial
to grOW1n3 our bUSID.ESS 1 d Wa)/ Adwviser’ and the Financial Times/Investors Chronicle ‘Best
Wealth Manager’,
that COHSIderS the economic) SOC}C]] — Endorsement of our business model in National Business
! Awards, as a finalist in the ‘FTSE 100 Business of the Year’,
and environmental impacts of and
, — Maintaiming our incluston in the FTSE4Good Index, which
Wh at we do' comprises companies that meet globally recogmsed corporate

social responsibility cniteria

Registered No 03183415
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CSR Governance
Responsible management 1s central to our culture, and the task of mawtaining this culture (including our CSR ambitions) 15 a key focus
of the Executive Commuttee of the Board, with oversight by the full Board

« The Executive Commattee of the Board 15 supported 1n this objective (as 1n all of their work) by a number of sub-commuttees, which
PP 1 Y )
are chaired by Darectors or senior management

Managing Commiltee Remit

Our Culture Executive Commttee of the Board To ensure the strength and maintenance
of the umque culture throughout
our commumty

CSR overview, Local Community, CSR Group To co-ordinate the Group's approach to

Suppliers and the Environment CSR, with particular focus on prometing
local community engagement and
environmental matters

Investment Management Approach {nvestment Commuittee To manage our Investment Management
Approach and oversee our fund managers

The St James’s Place Foundauion Foundation Trustees To manage the St James's Place
Foundatien, mncluding overseeing
grant-making and comphance with the
charity's objectives

Commumty Activities

The St fames’s Place Foundation

We have always been mindful of the role that we play n our local communities and, from the founding of the Group, have encouraged cur
staff and Partners to use their expertise ta help local charities and other voluntary orgamsations The desire to provide support to the less
fortunate 1n society resulted 1n the establishment of the St James's Place Foundation which continues to receive support from all parts of
the St James's Place community employees, Partoers, chents, suppliers and shareholders During the year, the company agam matched
fundraising by members of our community resulting in a matching grant from the company of £3 6 million (including gift ad) You can
find out more about our Foundaticn and its activities on pages 46 ta 49 or on its website at www sjploundation co uk

Community Volunteering

Whlst the engagement of our employees with the Foundation has by far the largest impact on our communities, i recent years we have
explored new inhatives to recognise and support our employees who also volunteer in other areas We are proud of the generous spirit of
our employees and the fact that, according to feedback from our most recent employee survey, 20% of staff members are actively engaged
1n volunteering m their local communities Thas 13 an important part of our culture and 1s an area we are seeking to develop In 2014, we
invited members of staff who give up their tme to support a tocal charity or cormmumty group to apply for a grant of up to £1,000 to be
used for the benefit of the charity/group 35 grants totalling £22,583 were awarded during 2014, rewarding nearly 10,000 hours of
volunteering by our stafl We plan to expand this initiative 1 2015 to our wider community, including our Partners

Cirencester College

St James's Place has now heen providing support ta the further education eollege Incal to our head-office tor aver ten years
Cirencester College has over 1,600 students between the ages of 16 and 19 and cur mamn involvement 1s in providing support for the
four ‘Academy Programmes’, each designed for students who aspire to work 1n a particular market sector These programmes are
operated through the College’s affihation with the national charity ‘Career Ready’ Suppoert includes providing students with paid
summer mternships as well as extensive personal mentoring and business coaching by our employees We also sponsor a number of
awards and have representation on the varous Academy Boards at College and National tevel

Ovwer the years, we have offered 58 internshups to students trom Cirencester College, with 22 of them turning into full ume
employment opportumities This prompted an award from the Grow Gloucestershire Showcase awards for an *Outstanding Business
Contribution to Youth Employment and Sklls’
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Corporate Social

Responsibility

Report {continued)

A recent Academy graduate, who completed an Internship with
us, spoke of his experience saying

“"While working towards my A levels at college, ] ﬁund e cliﬁicuh to _ﬁncus
my artention on study due to the large number of distracttons that all
young people face In fact, | wos heading towards a set of prerty
disappointmg results My Internship et St james’s Ploce gave me a taste of
what 1t was like to work as part of a tedi nr v largs r.ceesgfied hrianess and
made me deternuned to start my second year at college with a different
attstude and get the grades [ knew I was capable of and would make me
more attractive to potential employers Because of my Internship
expenience, ! applied for an Apprenticeship at St James’s Place and was
accepted for a place I am now working for the Compan}qu time, while
seell workmg towards a recaﬁm\'ed quahﬁcatron None of'.[hn‘ would have
happened _an weren’t for that summer wternship, an appartumtyﬁr
which | am very grateful

Apprenticeships

Qur apprentices programme has been another very effective
intiative, run in conjunction with Cirencester College, which
provides the training In 2012 we recruited five apprentices into
different areas of the business and 141 2013 They have all
successfully completed their apprenticeships and been oftered
permanent jobs Qur 2014 intake of 11 started 1n September and
will complete their apprenticeships m Business Adrministration,
Marketing, [T and Accountancy in August 2015 The value of this
work to both young people and the local community was
recognised in the year through a variety of awards ranging froma
special award by our local Cirencester Chamber of Commerce, to
a commendation as a finalist in the National Apprentice Scheme
awards for Newcomer Large Employer of the year

Employability Skills Training

Separately we have been working closely with the chanty Young
Gloucestershire to provide employability skills tramming for young
people 1n the area, many of whom are less acadermucally able or
from a disadvantaged background A range of volunteers from the
company have fulfilled roles as trustees and mentors Some
financial support has also been provided The suppert helps the
young people to present themselves 1n the best possible way to
potentral new employers through CV skills, personal presentation
tips and interview techmques

We also prloted a programme with the charty Active Communities
Network (ACN) that works with mner city young people, often
from disadvantaged backgrounds A team of Partners and
employees from our City office attended a workshop to assist young
people on their ‘Urban Stars’ prograrme m Tower Hamlets with
bustness planning, CV wnting and mock interviews The workshop
was a great success and we are working with ACN to expand the
programme 1n London, Manchester and Belfast in 2015

Financaal Education ,
As one of the leading providers of financial advice to individuals
and business owners m the UK, we recognise the importance and
value of financial education As part of our work with the lacal
commumnty we have been looking to make use of cur expertse to
also help young people learn to manage their finances hetter

During 2014 we worked with teachers and students from a local
school, to build on carlicr materials for a financial education
programme that can be delivered on a day dedicated to the
subject, or spread over the course of a number of weeks 1f used 1n
individual lessons  The lesson plans include topics within both the
PSHE (Personal, Social and Health Education) and Maths
curriculum, fit with the rew financial education curriculum and
are targeted at pupils in year nine  An important element of the
delivery will be support provided by volunteers from amongst our
employees who can offer pupils wider experience beyond their
teachers The materials were launched to teachers in December
2014 with the first delivery date planned for January 2015

We have also developed more advanced financial education
materral for year 12 and 13 students, working 1n conjunction with
a company called Magnified Learning and Cirencester College
Many of these pupils may be consxdermg moving away from the
family home for work or University and will become responsible
for managing their own finances for the first ime These
materials will be used with pupils for the first time 1n early 2015

Loughborough University Swimming

In the year of 2 home Commonwealth Games, we were pleased to
continue our sponsorshup of the Loughborough University Swimmming
programme This enables the squad to receve additional coaching,
and, since our relationship started in 2007, the team have medalled in
all major UK and International events including European,
Commonwealth, World Champronshups and the Olympic Games

During 2014, the squad waun tour gold, three silver and hve
bronze medals at the Commonwealth Games If the squad were
an individual country, they would have Anished third 1n the
swimming medals table behind England in second and Austraha n
first place The squad also secured five gold, three silver and five
bronze medals in the European Swimming Champronships,
helping team GB to top the medals table

It was also a great year for Loughborough’s Paralympic swimmers
with Ellie Stmonds OBE leading the squad to three gold, three
silver and a bronze medal at the IPC European Championships in
Eindhovern Our support for the programme will continue at least
untl the 2016 Olympic Games 1n Brazl

Registered No 03183415
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Supphers and Supply Chain

St James's Place believes in treating all our stakeholders fairly We also believe 1n the benefits to be gained from bnlding long-term
relationships based on mutual trust As a result, many of our key suppliers have been associated with the Group for a number of years
and we have been able to cultivate very strong and mutually benefical relationships, such as our providers of outsourced admimistration
services [FDS, Capita and State Street

More generally, we expect all our suppliers to act 1 accordance with the standards embedded in our culture, and will undertake due
diligence on new service providers to ensure we are comfortable with their approach to socially responsible management An
important development for us 1n 2014 was accreditation with the Living Wage Foundation, which invelved us working closely with our
supply chain ‘We are particularly pleased that many of our suppliers share our des:re to make a positive and lasting dufference to the
lrves of those less fortunate than ourselves, and we are very grateful to all thase who have provided support to the St James’s Place
Foundation, both through donations and through active participation in many of the events

St James's Plage has always placed great reliance on the support nf third party suppliers and the continued success of our busimess reflects,
amongst other things, our success 1n cultivating and managing successful relationships with suppliers We are pleased to have signed up to
the Prompt Payment Code which 1s encouraged by the Department of Business Innovation and Skills (BIS) and demonstrates a
commutment to good practice between organisations and their suppliers Signatories to the Code commut to paying their suppliers within
agreed and clearly defined terms, and comrmut also to ensuring that there 15 a proper process for dealing with any 1ssucs that may arisc

The Environment

St James's Place 1s committed to managing our environmental impact through effective management of energy systems, travel, water usage
and waste recycling We recognise the effect our business can have on climate change and we take a pusitive approach to managing our busness
actvities, whalst at the same time encouraging all Partners and staff to consder their own personal impact on the environment

Oversight of our environmental strategy 1s through a Corporate Social Responsibility Group (CSR Group) with ulimate responsibility
resting with David Bellamy (CEQ) The group meets on a monthly basis and reviews environmental performance

We measure our environmental data from October to September and the following tables summanse targets and progress, expressed
in terms of both absolute and normalised CO,e emissions for our core business activities 1n recent years Core business activities are
defined as those within ‘Operational Control’, which exphicitly excludes our Unit Trusts The assessment uses the CarbonNeutral
Company Protocol together with the 2014 conversion rates as provided by DEFRA for all our emission categories but the methodology
for normalised emissions has changed to report ‘emissions per thousand square feet” The data has been checked and verified by RSK
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1) Targets e
Absolute Emissions Targets g
Base Year a
% of % \ncrease Emissions =
Emissions in pa from (tonnes 17¢]
1D Scope Description Scope Base Year Base Year COLe) Target Year E
Absl 1 Gas and owned vehicles 100% 5% 2013 851 2016 g
Abs? 2 Electriaty 100% 5% 2013 2,218 2016 5
wr
Abs3 3 Business travel 100% 5% 2013 3,704 2016 \
Normalised Emissions Targets 9
Base Year (':?_'
Normalised "t
% of % 1ncrease Emtssions 5'
Emissions m pa from {tonnes CO,e a8
1D Scope Description Scope Base Year Base Year per '000 sqft) Target Year 5
Intl 1 Gas and owned vehicles 100% 0% 2013 303 2016 =
Int2 2 Electriaty 100% 0% 2013 790 2016 S
Int3 3 Business travel 100% 0% 2013 1318 2016 —

In 2014, we set new targets for the next three years for both absolute and normalised measurements We are tarpeting that normalised
emussions targets will remain constant, 1 € a ml increase, but in absolute terms emissions will be limited to a 5% p a increase, which
compares to forecast business growth of 15% p a The targets cake 1nto account the commissioning of a second head office building 1n
Cirencester This 1s being built to accommodate business growth and 1s due to be completed during the target pertod We hope to achieve a
BREAM rating of ‘very good’ for the new bulding
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Corporate Social

Responsibility
Report (continued)

2) Progress
Absolute Emissions Progress

Actual
Emissionsin
Year (tonnes % variance

iD CO.x)  from Target Comment
The business has experienced an increase 1n the use of
Absl 932 1% wwucd schadles
Replacement of old electrical plant with more modern kat at
Abs2 1,888 (15%) several sites has resulted 1n reduced electricity usage
Fewer long haul flights during the year resulted in lower
Abs3 2,366 (39%) ermissions in one of our most significant areas

Normahsed Emissions Progress
Normalised
Emiss1ons m
Year (tonnes

CO,e per % vanance
1 *00¢sqft) From Target Comment
Increase use of owned vehicles was exacerbated
Intl 328 8% by a reduction in the amount of floor space
More cfficient modern appliances has resulted 1n a reduction
Int2? 6 65 (16%%) in normalised emissions, albeit for shghtly smaller footprint
The reduction in long haul flights causes a ssgmificant
Int3 8 33 (37%) reduction in normalised performance

Comparative data for 2013 1s presented as the Base Year information in the Target tables above 2014 has seen a sigmificant reduction in
electriaty consumption driven by efhuiencies as a result of plant replacement at several sites, resulting 1n 2 19% reduction in scope 2 emission
against our target track for absolute ermssions However, growth in staff numbers using Owned Vehicles caused us to miss our targets for
emissions related to Owned Vehides Long-haul flight experience can vary from year to year, and usage was relatively low in 2014

3) Gross and Net Emissions

Gross Emissions (tonnes CO,¢)

ID Scope Activity 2012 2013 2014
Absl 1 Gas and owned vehicles 847 851 932
Abs2 2 Electncity 2,144 2,218 1,888
Abs3 3 Business travel 3,275 3,704 2,366
Total 6,266 6,773 5,186
Carbon Offset (6,266)  (6,773)  (5,186)
Net Emissions 0 0 0

Recogmsing that we are unable to reduce our carbon emissions to a zero level while energy 15 primanly sourced from fossil fuels, we
will conunue to offset our consumption through the purchase of carbon credits Following a strategic review, we have hlgned anew
carbon offsetting contract with Carbon Clear In a further attempt to mimmse the impact of our fossil fuel consumption, during 2014
the Group also concluded new energy contracts to procure green energy for the next three years

We remain a member of the eTree mitiative (www eTreeuk com), which 1s run 1n association with the Woodland Trust ‘Tree for All’

campaign and encourages shareholders to recerve electronic communications

Finally, acknowledging that our greatest environmental footprint ts caused from the impact of our property funds, we are undertaking

a review of the impact from our funds under management

Registered No 03183415




Approval of the

Strategic Report

As part of the Annual Report by the Directors it 15 a statutory
requirernent to produce a Strategic Report

The purpose of the report 15

‘to mform members of the company cnd help them assess how the Directors
have performed their duty under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
(duty to promote the success of the company)’

The objective of the report s to provide shareholders with an analysis
of the Company’s past performance, to impart tnsight into its business
medel, strategies, objectives and principal risks and to provide
context for the financial statements in the Annual Report

The Directors consider that the report, comprising pages | to 44 of
this document, meets the statutory purpose and objectives of the
Strategic Report

On behalf of the Board
David Bellamy Andrew Croft
Chzef Executave Chief Finanaal Officer

24 February 2015
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St. James’s Place

Foundation

‘G1V1ng to he]p others less
fortunate 15 a key part
qf our culture.’

David Bellamy
Chief Executive
St James's Place ple

Franklyn

Financial’s

The Foundation 1s the charitable arm of the St James's Place Group,
which has been proud to nurture a culture of grving back, to those
who need it most, since the formaton of the Group 1n 1992 The vast
majonity of funds raised come from fundrasing or generous donations
made by the Partners and employees of St James’s Place each year
These funds are then matched pound for pound by the Company The
Company also covers all of the expenses related to the runming of the
Towalaiion, o3¢ that all the fmeds raised are passed on to regstered
charines working with people in need in the UK and ebroad that meet
the Foundation’s themes

The Foundanion Trustees are immensely proud of the fact that over
85% of the St James's Place Communmity (Partners and employees)
give to the Foundation through theiwr pay or earmngs on a monthly
basis, generanng over £2 million annually including matchuing This
on-gomng support enables the Foundation to help charities over a
number of years with mulni-year grants The Foundanon continues
to grow and extend its reach, and 1s regarded as one of the most
successful corporate charitres in the UK

Review of the Year
2014 was a record year for the Foundauon with over £6 1 milhon
raised by our commuruty and £6 3 mllion donated to good causes

both in the UK and abroad

St fames’s Place Partners and employees showed their generosity
from the very start of the year, responding positively to the late
Stephen Sutton’s inspirational speech at our Annual Company
Meeting m January 2014 A total of £388,000 was donated on the
day and this was followed by a further £128,000 after Stephen's
*final Thumbs Up’ message via somal media — all including Company
matching Ths generosity played a significant role in Stephen’s
fundraising campaign (whaich became known as ‘Stephen’s Story’,
helpmng hum reach hus first £1 milhon, as 1t went viral)

A number of successful fundratsing events were held m 2014,
raising over £3 mullion mcluding matching These events included

a 50 mule walk, an overseas mountain trek, a cycle ride, spinathon,
cross channel swim, dinners/balls, golf days, marathons, trathlons,
auctions, cake bakes and the like

Summer Swing

— £50,000

Registered No 03183415




Big Walk 2014 -
The White Horse

Trail raised
£28,000

Matt Cordas raised
over £12,000 by

running 5km every
day in 2014
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The Foundation makes donations of all sizes, from a few hundred
pounds to over £1 muthon, wath a particular focus on small to
mredum size charites whom the Trustees behieve are best equipped
to make a positive and lastng difference to people’s lives We

utlise the shalls of the Foundation’s management team, as well as

an experienced mdependent consultant, to carry out detaled due
diligence on the charities we consider for support We also have

a group of Ambassadors who volunteer their tme to visit causes,
providing recommendations for the Foundation team and Trustees
Charites are selected based an the swtablity of thewr project and
whether or not the werk they do matches the Foundation’s grant
maling themes and criteria These themes currently include cancer,
the hospice movement and support for children and young people
with disabilines, Life Lirmiting tllnesses or those who are disadvantaged
socially or economecally These themes have been chosen by our
communty and are regularly reviewed and updated The Foundation
will consider funding capital as well as revenue based projects

In 2014, the St James's Place Foundanon made 661 donanons to
616 charines, with around 20% donated o UK chartaes working
abroad and the remainder supporting those most 1 need in the
UK The impact of three of those donations 15 described below
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St. James’s Place

Foundation (continued)

Since 1992, over £40 million

has been raised and distributed to
good causes by The Foundation

Sport for Good

The Sport for Good programme, launched in 2012, aimed to
transform young hives through harnessing the power of sport
for both young people with a disability and those who are
disadvantaged across the UK

The Foundation has made a commatment of £2 3 milliento a
wide-ranging pot uohiv o1 38483 dffarant charmties each carefully
selected through an intense period of research and analysis The
programme provides fundmg for a mixture of projects delivered
over a number of years

By the end of 2014, the Sport for Good programme has
suceessfully reached 1its original anms, with over 32,000
marginahsed young people helped, over 4000 professional
accreditations awarded and over 1000 volunteers tramed to work
with young people, helping them to reach their full potential
through access to sport On top of that, our support has generated
over £1 mallion of match funding, enabling our partner charities to
operate i new areas of the country

Young people like Sharnssa Edwards (pictured) are typrcal of so many
of the young people that have been supported through Sport for Good

Sharrissa was born on a challenging estate 1n Brixton where
crume, drugs and gangs made hfe very challengmg Sharrissa
joined the Urban Stars programme 1n 2012 and found an
opportunity to rediscover her passton for sport She thrived and 1=
now a pa:d member of staff, working with Sport for Good partner
charity Active Commumities Network Sharrissa said* “There’s a lot
of erime and drugs on the estate, s easy to get caughe up o that Urban
Stars provided me with an opportunity to do something postuive, I've now
got a job and am making postrve choices with my life agam
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Jamie’s Farm

In 2014, the Foundabon agreed a joint funding imnative with LandAid
1 support of the charity Jarmie's Farm which works with disadvantaged
young people from mner aties by providing an intensive ‘therapeunc
expertence’ i a rural setting on a working farm The young people
receive emotional support as well as advice and guidance through
mentoring This experience helps them to build confidence and self-
esteem and means they are more able to reach their full potental

Jamie's Farm currently deliver their therapeutic services from a
farm in Waltshure and, with the help of the Foundation, they have
now been able to open a second farm i Herefordshure The new
farm will enable the charity to double the number of young pecple
they help — an addinonal 500 each year

‘The farm 1s a welcoming home for children to enjay, and a place for them
1o experience being part of a big supportive family These children benefir
froma change of scene, and special attentron from the teachers that come
with them, and especially from the famuly of dedicated adults who work
and volunteer at famie’s Farm The beauniful rural setting and the varzety
of farm activitres 15 new and wnspiring They get support to think about
themselves, gain confidence and start to toke contrsl of ther own hves”

Tish Ferlden, Joint Founder and Head Therapist

Hope and Homes for Children in Romania

Hope and Homes for Children (HHC) heip children orphaned
by war, conflict and or poverty and strive to ensure ail children
have the chance to grow up with the love of a family by closing
mstitutions and reforming childcare systems

The Foundation’s funding in 2014 has been assising HHC to
transform the lives of chuldren hiving in outdated and often
dilapidated orphanages i Romama Since 1999, when 100,000
children weie trapped in mstitutional care, the figure 1s now Jess
than a tenth of that and the Romanian Government has commntted
to close every state-run imstitution by 2020
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2014 Spinathon at

Tewkesbury Park

— £18,000 raised

Supporting Sherpa Children
In 2012, 25 members of the St James’s Place commumty took
part1n a trek to Everest Base Camp and one member of the team,
Roper Owen, successfully cimbed to the summut The event raised
an icredible £700,000 for the Foundation (including company
matching) and mspired 5t James’s Place employees Roger Owen
and Hazel Grace to help Sherpa children, who often live in poverty
without access to education Their aim became to improve the
quality of education loeally and to ensure their efforts would be
sustainable they set up the chanty ‘Supporting Sherpa Chuldren’

In 2014, the Foundason donated £46,740 to help fund the mnative,
m associatnion with the UK charity NYF (Nepalese Youth Foundaton)
The project 15 focused on ymproving schools, as well as the quality of
the teachers and the resources they use Roger and Hazel have played
a lead role 1n ensuring this project gets off the ground, workang
clascly with NYF's tecam 1n Nepal to transtorm the first school in
Pangboche and moving on to other scheols across the region

Plans for the Future

The Foundation plans to build on the record achrevements of 2014
and the success over the last few years by continung to grow our
fundraising and mvesting 1n worthwhile charitable projects in the
UK and overseas

In additton to the employees and Partners contributing to the
Foundation on 2 monthly basis, we also have a number of exciting
fundraismg events planned for 2015 We have no doubt that our
Community will continue to support the Foundation to achieve 1ts
objectives m 2015 and beyond

£190,000 raised for
Hope & Homes for

Children at St. James’s

Place Triathlon,
St. Albans
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Board of

Directors

Sarah Bates

Chairman
(N)

Sarah jomed the Board as an independent
Non-executne Director 1n 2004 and was
appointed Charman on 1 January 2014 Shes
also Chairman of the Nominauon Commuttee
Sarah has over thirty years’ investment
expenence and 1s chaxrman of the ] P Morgan
Amurian imvestment Trust pl, Wrtan Pacifi
Investment Trust, and a non-executive dirtctor of
Worldwide Healthcare and Polar Capatal
Technology imvestment trusts and Semer
Independent Director of Des clopment Securities
ple Sarahis chairman of the Cancer Research UK
Pension Fund Investment Commuttee and St
Joseph’s Hospice Investment Panel Sheisalsoan
adwser to the East Riding Pension Fund and a
member of the Unnersities Superannuation
Scheme Imvestment Committee

Key

A Member of Audit Commuttee

R Member of Risk Committee

Rem Member of Remuneration Committee
N Member of Normination Commuttee

David Bellamy

Chief Executive

David joined the $JP Group in 1991 and was
apponted to the Board in 1997, before becoming
Chief Executnve in 2007 He previously tulhliid a
rumber of roles at St James's Place including
Group Operations Director and Managing
Director David has worked in the hnaneial

se1 v ices industry since 1973 and 1s a Trustee of
the St James's Place Foundatnon Heisalsoa
member of the Financiat Conduct Authonity’s
Practihoner Panel

lan Gascoigne

Managing Director

Jan has worked 1n the financial scevices industry
smee 1986 and joined the SJP Group n 1991 He
was appomtcd to the Boardin 2003 lan s the
Managing Director responsible for the
management and des elopment of the Partnership
He1sa Trustee of the St James's Place
Foundation and 1s also on the Advisory Board of
Loughborough Unneraity Busimess School

Andrew Croft

Chief Fiancial Officer

Andrew joired the §]P Groupn 1993 and has
been Chicd Tinancal Officer sinee 2004 [T
qualibicd as a Chartered Accountant at
Pricewaterhouse Coopers in 1988 Andrewisa
Trustec of the St James's Place Foundation and 1s
a lay member of the Audit, Risk & Investment
Commuttees of the Royal College of Surgeons of
England

David Lamb

Managing Director

Dawvid joined the S]P Group in 1992 and was
appointed to the Board 1n 2007 David 15 the
Managing Director with responsibihity for
Operations, mncluding Chent Services,
Marketing, Business Derelopment and the
Group's fund range He 1s Chair of the
[nvestment Commuttee and a Trustee of St
James’s Place Foundation David isa non
executive director of The Henderson Smaller
Compames Imestment Trust plc and a director of
the Wealth Management Association Heisalsoa
Governor of the University of the West of
England
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lain Cornish

Semor Independent Non-executive
Darector (A) (R} (N)

lain was appointed 1o the Board as a Nen-
exceutne Director m 2011 and became Semor
Independent Director and Chan of the Risk
Commuttec on 1 January 2014 Heisalsoa
member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees lain has considerable board and
scmor management experience and was
previously Chiel Exccuttve of the Yorkshire
Buﬂdlng Society  Prior to jeming the Society, he
was a Sentor Consultant :n KPMG's Strategy
Services Consultan(:} Practice, spccmhsmg in
banking and hnance sector consultancy projects
lain 15 a non-executive director of Arrow Global
Group plc and 15 an independent director of the
Prudential Regulation Authonty He alse served
as a member of the FSA Practitioner Panel from
2007 to 2011, becorning Chairman in 2009

Baroness Wheatcroft

Independent Non-executive Director
(R) (Rem) (N}

Baroness Wheatcroft was appointed to the Board
as an independent Non-executive Director in
April 2012 and 13 a member of the Risk,
Remuneraton and Nommatior: Committecs
Baroness Wheatcroft 1s a member of the House of
Lords and 1s currently a non-executise director of
Fiat Chrysler Automobiles and of the Assocration
of Leading Visitor Attiactions She 15 Trustee and
Dcputy C%lalrmzm of the British Museum
Baroness Wheatcroft has considerable experience
of the media and journahsm, having previously
been Ediior-in-Chief at the Wall Street [ournal,
Europe, a former Edutor of the Sunday Telegraph,
and Business and City Editor of the Times She
was appainted chan man of the Financial Times
Appointments Commuttee 1n 2014 Baroness
Wheatcroft has been a non-executive dnectar

of Barclays Group plc and Shaftesbury ple,

and acts as an ads iser to, or member of various
other bodics
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Simon JeFﬁ*eys

Independent Non-executive Director
(A) (R) (Rem)

Simon was appomnted to the Board as an
mdcpundent Non-oecutne Dircetor with et
Irom 1 January 2014 and 1s Chairman of the
Audit Commuttee He 15 also a member of the
Remuneration and Risk Commuttees Simon was
a partner with Pricen aterhouseCoopers LLP
(1986-2008) where ke led the firm's Global
[nvestment Management practice, after which he
jomed Fidehty International as Group Chief
Admumistiative Officer (2006-2008) and then
Wellcome Trustas COO (2009-2014) Heis
non-executne director and Charr of Audit
Commuttee at Henderson International Income
Trust ple, Aon UK Lumuted and SimCorp A/S, a
lasted Danish finaneal services sottware
company

Ro ger Yates

Independent Non-executive Director
(A) (R) (Rem)

Roger Yates was appointed to the Board as an
mdep; ndent Non-cxcutne Threcten wath ffuct
from | January 2014 He1s Chairman of the
Remuneration Commuttee and 1s a member of
the Audit and Risk Commutiees Roger has over
30 years of imvestment management experience
at Morgen Grenfell, Imvesco and Henderson
Group ple, where he was Chief Executive
Officcr He s currently non-eaecutve chainman
of Pioneer Global Asset Management S p A and
of Flectra Prwvate Equity ple Hesalsoa

non executne director of | P Morgan Elect plc

and IG Group Haldings ple
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-

Chairman’s

Report

Sarah Bates

T am p]eased we are reporting
to you on another good year
for St. James’s Place ple, 1ts

clients, shareholders, Partners,

Stclﬁr and other stakeholders.’

David Bellamy reports on the achievements of the Company in
detail on pages 2 to 4 of the Annual Report and Accounts and
Andrew Croft reports on financial developments on pages 14 to
16 In addition, the Commuttee Chairmen report on the work of
therr commuttees over the year

My task s to provide an overview of the work of the Board of the
Company and 1ts support for and oversight of the Group, 1ts
operations and its strategy

As noted elsewhere 1n this report, we have seen considerable
change in the last year, 1n the economy, 1n our market place, for
our clients, n politics, in financial services and m ather areas af
regulation It seems unlikely that the rate of change will decrease
and we need to continue to adapt to new circumstances as
eftectively as we have done 1n the past Against this background,
your Board has been determined to ensure our business retains a
consistent approach St James's Place 15 unusual in 1ts
commitment to the centrality of the relationship between our
clients and their Partners This means that the distance between
our chents and Partners, and the Boardroom 1s quite short, and
the How of both mformal and formal information 1s rapid  Clients
and Partners appear to appreciate this approach and it ensures the
Board has access to very direct information about the marketplace
for cur services This continues to be invaluable in the
development of our strategy and in our understanding of the
external risks to our approach

Long-term Focus

A significant part of my task 15 to keep the Board's focus on the
long term and on how the business should adapt and develop for
the next 20 years, having been so successful in the first 23 years of
its existence More information about the varety of opportumities
and threats we considered 1n our strategic discussions
{particularly 1n specific sessions 1n April and September) can be
found on page 55 and a summary of our review of the principal
r1sks and challenges ‘from’ and ‘to’ our strategy and business
model 15 recorded on page 36 However a key part of the debate
wvolved exploring more generally what sort of strategic risks we
mght take We concluded that we must continue carefully to
evolve what we do Where we safely can, we will add to the range
of services we provide to our clients, including making further
small overscas moves, but we won’t take significant strategic

risks We still see conmiderable opportumity in our own market
place and must strive to keep doing what we currently do ever
more effectively, evelving to meet the ways our clieaty’
expectations and preferences change

Much of the input to the strategic discussions was developed with
members of the Executive Management Team by considering the
development of St James’s Place to 2020 This included work on
how to preserve our culture, the development of the operating
model and infrastructure, the development of the Partnership and
advisers, and the development of the [nvestment Management
Approach over that imescale The Board was pleased to spend
time with members of the EMT discussing their work and
debating the vision for the future
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Board and Executive Development

We were also pleased to see the expansion of the Executive Board
m the autumn with the appointment of four additional members,
Tain Rayner, lan Mackenzie, Jonathan McMahon and Mike
Gravestock This followed changes to the Investment Commuttee
in the middle of the year, with the appointment of David Lamb as
Chairman, the appointment of Davina Curhsh and Steven Daniels
as non-executive members to the Commuttee, and sigmificant
addition of internal resources to support the work of the
Investment Committee and Chris Ralph, our Chief Investment
Officer Italse built on the appointment of Jonathan McMahon as
our new Chief Risk Officer, and Bill Tonks as the Group Audit
Durector at the start of the year ‘All of these changes reflect the
growth in cur Group and anticipate the continited ncrease in
complexity of our activities and environment

Overseeing the building of the executive team for the future 15 an
important part of our Board responsibility, as 1s succession
planning for the Board itself and for the CEO The expansion and
development of the internal team 15 part of that planming We
were also pleased that Simon [effries and Roger Yates joined the
board as Independent Non-executive Directors, at the beginmng
of the year Simon took over as Chairman of the Audit Commuttee
as well as joining the Risk and Remuneration Commuttees Roger
has taken over as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
has joined the Risk and Audit Commuttees lain Cormsh was
appointed Senior Independent Director and Chairman of the Risk
Commuttee, at the beginning of the year Vivian Bazalgette
stepped down from the Board 1n June for family reasons, and we
are very grateful for the contribution he made to the Investment
Commuttee and to the board over the period of hus service
Foliowmg the new Non-executive Director appointments made at
the beginning of this year and our Board evaluation process in
2014, we do not see an immedate requirement to appoint any
further Non-executive Directors to the Board Our CEO
succession plans are also longer term

Ensuring we have the best people within our community has been
an important topic of discussion for the Board during the year
with particular focus on diversity Our industry 15 not particularly
diverse with regard to gender and we have found no evidence of
systematic gender discrimination in the Group However, 1f we
are imiting the opportunitres for particular groups, however
unintentionally, we are not being as cffective as we could be and
50 lan Gascoigne and [ have begun some more systematic research
into patterns of female participation in different parts of our
commumty from which we hope to learn in 2015

Board Culture and Evaluation

At the beginning of 2014, the Board spent some time tallang
about how 1t could be most effective and meet the expectations
and requirements of 1ts vartous stakeholders We noted the need
to meet formal governance requirements, as they encourage
debate and transparency and provide mechamsms to deal with
problems should they arise We also noted the essential
responsibility of the Board to sustain and promote the culture of
‘doing the right thing’, without which 1t would be very difficult to
deliver safc and sustainable growth Given the increased
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complexity and scale of the business, we noted the need to bring
different and diverse perspectives and approaches to our
discussions and considered that the best way of achieving our
responsibilities to support and oversee the business was through
constructive dialogue The asymmetry of information between
Executive and Non-executive directors was 1dentified as a
challenge and so we have developed methods of working to seek
to address this 1ssue [nformal topic-specific meetings have proved
useful, as did visits to particular areas of operation which the
NEDs undertook asa team [ was pleased that both our new
NEDs were able to comment favourably on the openness of the
business and the access they have within the organisation

Our internal but thorough Board evaluation process at the end of
2014 provided useful feedback on how these developments were
working There was common agreement that we had made good
progress in developing our strategic discussions, 1n developing our
risk discussions and 1n developing a way of working in which
there continue to be no ‘no-go’ arcas Morc detail of the findings
can be found on page 56 but a key message was that we should
continue 1n the same direction For 2015, our Board objectives
will include overseeing the development of the new Executive
Board’s oversight of the day to day running of the business, and
the How of information which allows 1t to do that, as the
orgamsation becomes more complex We will undertake an
external Board evaluation in 2015, led by Boardroom Dialogue

Corporate Governance

Finally, there are many rather strongly held views about the role
of the Board and Corporate Governance St James’s Place has an
unusual position 1n these debates, as both a listed company itself,
seeking to meet the requirements of our shareholders, and also as
custodian of our clients’ assets We are both the subject and
object of corporate governance activity In promoting a culture of
*doing the right thing’ we are clear about our responsibility to our
sharcholders It has always been important to us that our fund
managers should engage with the compames 1 which they mvest
by voting their stock, but this 15 a topical area m which we will be
further developing our thinking 1n 2015 [am, of course, available
to talk to shareholders and can always be contacted via our
Company Secretary (details on page 176}

As [ sugpested at the start, it has been another good year for
St James’s Place, but also for your Board, and we arc delighted
with the proposed final dividend of 14 37 pence per share

ye

Sarah Bates
Chairman

24 February 2015
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Corporate (Governance Report

Corporate

Responsibihities & Compliance

Governance

Report

Board Leadership

Your Board 1s responsible for providing entrepreneurial leadership
and direction to the Company, as well as setting out 1ts strategic
aims, visions and values It 15 also responsible for ensuring that
adequate controls existin order to deliver value to shareholders
Make up of the Board and 1ts Commuttees and other stakcholders who derive benefit from our activitics

The Board
Sarah Bates {Charrman)
David Bellamy (CEQ)

Andrew Croft How have we complied with the UK Corporate
[an Gascoigne

David Lamb Governance Code?

Tawn Cormsh (SID) Under the FCA Listing Rules, al! UK histed companes must state
whether they have comphed with the provisions of the

UK Corpaorate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) throughout the year,
and where they have not complied, they are required to explain
such non-comphiance The provisions of the Code can be found on
Audat the Financial Reporting Council’s website, www fre org uk

Simon Jefreys (Chair)
lain Cornish
Roger Yates

Biographical details of the Executive and Non-executive Directors
who make up your Board are set out on pages 50 and 51

Simon Jeffreys
Baroness Wheatcroft
Roger Yates

The Company reviews its compliance with the Code on an ongoing
basis Details of how your Company has complied with the Code
throughout the year are set out in thus Report Particular detail on
those principles from the Code whach relate to remuneration 1s set

[
|
|
|
|

Risk out in the Remuneration Report on pages 67 to 87 ‘

lain Cormsh (Chazr)
Simon Jeffreys
Baroness Wheatcroft
Roger Yates

Your Board considers that the Company has complied with all of
the provisions of the 2012 Code during 2014

Nomination
Sarah Bates (Chair)
[ain Cornish
Barcness Wheatcroft

Remuneration
Roger Yates (Charr)
Simon feffreys
Baroness Wheatcroft
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How did your Board carry out its work during 2014?

Meetings
During the year, seven formal Board meetings were held, and two additional Board Strategy meetings

Attendance at both Board and Board Commuttee meetings 1s set out below

Board and Committee Attendance in 2004

Member - Pl Board Auwit Rizk  Remuneration Nomination
Sarah Bates® 7N - - 4 (4 3(3)
Vivian Bazalgette™ 4 (4) 24 - LN -
David Bellamy TN - - - -
Tain Cornish®™ 77N 7(7 5% - 3(3)
Andrew Croft T{hH — - — —
lan Gascoigne 7N — - - -
Simon Jeffreys®™ TN 7(7) 4 (4} 3(5) -
David Lamb T{7) - - - —
Baroness Wheatcroft TN - 5¢5 5(5 2(3)
Roger Yates™ 6 (7) 4 (S) 4 (5) 3(5) —

Note The number in brackets denotes the sumber of mecnngs that the Board members were ¢ligible to attend

Footnotes

(1) Sarah Bates stood down from the Remuneranon Committee on 14 May 2014 and Roger Yates was appointed as Chairman n her place
(w) ¥ivian Bazalgette resigned from the Bourd on 30 June 2014

(i) Jain Cornush took aver as Charrman of the Risk Commattee and Semor Independent Director from 1 January 2014

(v} Siman Jeffreys became a member af the Risk Cammurtee on { April 2014

(v) Roger Yatesbecame a member of the Audit Commutiee on 30 June 2014

In addition, the Independent Non-executive Directors met without the Executive Directors but with the Charrman twice durmg the
year, and also met once without the Chairman

Board activities during 2014
A summary of some of the topics considered by the Board during 2014 15 set out below and 1n the Chairman’s Report on pages 52
and 53 Reports on the activities of each of the Board Commuttees during 2014 are set out on pages 59 to 67

Strategy and Risk Evaluation

Durmg 2014, the Board devoted considerable time to reviewing the medum term strategic direction of the Group to 2020, and more
generally the overall strategic appetite of the Group Two strategy days provided opportumty to review the existing business model,
consider future market developments including competition, and explore a variety of opportunities to enhance the chent and Partner
affcring The Board determined that the business tocus shouid remain on carctul evolution of our current business model

A speaific opportunity considered by the Board early in the year was the possibility of direct involvemnent with a private bank
Following extensive review 1t was decided not to pursue the mitiative at this stage, but instead the Board encouraged exploration of an
alternative offering This culmunated in a new bankung proposition for chients beung developed :n conjunction with Metro Bank

In the first half of the year, the Board spent time reviewing a potennial overseas acquisition, which could be used to expand the
geographical range of our activity After much careful consideration, approval was given for the acquisition of The Henley Group n
Asta Oversight of 1ts bedding into the business remains a key focus of the Board and 1ts various Commuttees

Discretionary Fund Management was again a topic of discussion during 2014 and remans on the radar Presentations about “online”
and ‘digital” developments also provided the Board with food for thought and, whilst the Board noted the potential for solutions to aid
Partners in providing even more effective service for our chients, 1t was agreed that the ‘face to face’ advice proposition remains a key
competiive advantage for our business

The Board continued to develop 1ts thinking about assessing client outcomes Ths 1s a complex topic with a wide variety of useful
information options Given the importance of clients to our business, the Board expanded the breadth of client metrics included within
the Board's KPT pack

Rusk 1s a key responsibility of the Board and so the major risks facing the Group were revisited through a Risk Recahbration Process
(see also the report of the Risk Commuttee on pages 63 and 64)

A particular area of risk focus for the Board was oversight of the major project to upg: ade the Group’s back-office admimstration
systems This1s a very large but vizally impaortant imtiative for the Group, which 1s expected to delver major henefits for clhients,
Partners and shareholders As part of their engagement with the project the Board spent time with our administration provider, IFDS,
m Basildon, and one of the Board meetings in the year was held at our dedicated administration centre in Craigforth Progress on this
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Corporate (Governance Report continued

project will continue to be a key topic for the Board during 2015
Finally, the Board also spent time considering the Investment
Management Approach Following a review of the oversight of the
process 1t was agreed that the Investment Commttee should
become a sub-committee of the Executive Board commaittee, and
David Lamb was appownted Charr

Governance

Throughout the year the Board was very conscious of the pace
of change 1n the regulatory environment The Board spent ime
seeking to understand the opportunities, risks and impacts these
changes created for the Group, but at the heart of the work was a
desire to understand the regulator’s agendas, and maintain
appropriate relationships with them

The Board also worked to ensure, via 1ts various reporting forums that
the Group comphied wath all of its obligations and responsiblities under
UK company law as well as the UK Corporate Governance Code

A speafic responsibility 1s to consider whether the Group's
financial reporting s fair, balanced and understandable As noted
1n the Audit Commuittee report, the Board reviewed the results
and considered they were indeed fair, balanced and
understandable, providing the necessary clarity required by
shareholders to sufficiently understand the business

[n 2014, there was also an internal evaluatton of Board members and
the performance of the Board generally, which was particularly
important grven that the Board had a new Chairman and two new
Non-executive Directors, as well as no longer having a controlling
shareholder in the form of Lloyds Banking Group

People

As noted 10 the Chairman’s Report the Board spent considerable
time reviewing and improving the Group's succession plans, as well
as ensuring the continued development of semor management A
key development in the year was the addition of four new members
of sentor management to the Execunve Board Committee

Employee welfare and the maintenance of cur culture 15 taken
sertously by the Board and 1t was pleased to see a hugh and very
positive response rate to the biannual Employee Engagement
Survey, details of which can be found on page 11 All feedback1s
reviewed by the Board and acted on as appropriate

A new imitiative was started, to consider patterns of female
partiapatten tn different parts of our community This will be
developed Further 1n 2015

Following the appointment of new Board members and changes in
a number of members’ roles, approprate focus was given to
training for new members and tatlored ongoing development for
existing members

Board Evaluation

The Board undertakes a review of its effectiveness each year,
orgamised by the Chairman At Jeast once every three years this1s
facilitated by an external party The next formal external
evaluation of the Board will take place n 2015

In 2014, the Board carnied out an nternal evaluation of its
effectiveness A questionnaire, drafted by the Chairman and the
Company Secretary, was arculated to all members of the Board,
seeking their feedback on, amongst ather things, whether the Board
met 1ts objectaves during 2014 and the effectiveness of Board
processes and those of its Commuttees The Chairman also assessed
the individual performance of each member of the Board by way of
questinnnarre and individual discussions, to consider performance,
and establish Board related objectives, as well as trainmg and
development needs for 2015 The Sentor Independent Director
carried out a smilar process 1n relatton to the Chawrman This
process also enabled the Chairman to review the completion of the
various actions arising from the Board evaluation carnied out in 2013

The key findings of the evaluation 1ncluded the following

— The refreshed Board had come together well, with open and
constructive discussions taking place regarding the Company’s
strategy and the key risks faced by the Group,

— In depth discussions around particular topics, together with
the use of external advisors where appropriate, had been
helpful and informative,

— The two Strategy days had helped the Board to progress
various strategic developments currently being considered,

— The oversight role of the Board was contimung to expand
proportionately with the size and complexaty of the Group,

— Setting aside time at future Board meetings to discuss various
1ssues 1n more depth, such as investment management, client
outcomes and the key risks affecting the Group was important,
and

— Further traming and development for the Non-executive
Directors in 2015, to update them on various regulatory and other
developments impacting the Group, would be important

How does your Board Function?

Matters reserved to the Board

The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for
it, but acknowledges that 1t remains responsible for concentrating
on growing the business successfully and sustamably, whlst
encouraging a culture of mnovation and continual improvement
Matters specifically reserved to your Board include

Determining the overall

strategy of the Company

Perodically reviewing the results
and operations of the Company

Ensuring that the Company's

operations are well managed

Ensur]ng that proper aCCountlng
records are mamntained and
adequate controls are in place

to safeguard the assets of the
Company from fraud and other
significant risks

and proper succession plans
are in place

Reviewing major transactions
or imuiatives proposed by the
Executive Directors

Identifying and managing the
material risks that could impact
the Company’s operations

Implementmg approprlate
corporate governance
procedures

Deciding the Company’s policy on
charitable and political donations
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The Company also maintains a Board Control Manual which sets
out the primary policy and decision-making mechanisms within
the Company This includes terms of reference for the various
Board Comimnttees, as well as the Company's risk policies and
risk appetite statement Detailed job descriptions for each
Executive Director are also included, as well as the general

Job deseription which outhnes the responsibilities of your
Non-executive Directors The Board Control Manual 15 reviewed
and updated by the Company Secretary on an annual basis

Board Organisation

The Roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive

Sarah Bates was appointed as Chawrman on 1 January 2014 The
division of responsibihities between the Chairman of the Board
and the Chict Executive, David Bellamy, arc clearly defined and
documented As Chairman, Sarah takes responsimlity for the
leadership of your Board, ensuring 1ts continued effectiveness,
and promoting effective communication between the Executive
and Non-executive Directors, as well as with shareholders
generally As Cheef Executive, David’s primary responsibility 1s to
manage the Company via the executive management team and
implement the strateges adopted by the Board

The Senior Independent Director

Tain Cormsh replaced Sarah Bates as Senior Independent
Director 1n January 2014 The Senior [ndependent Director acts
as a sounding board and confidant for the Chairman and the
Non-executive Directors lain also ensures he 15 available to meet
with shareholders and raises any shareholder concerns with the
Board that rmght not be resolved through normal channels

St James's Place plc Anaual Report and Accounes 2044 57

Committees

There are four Non-executive Committees of the Board Audit,
Nomination, Remuneration, and Risk The membership and
terms of reference of each of these Board Commuittees are
reviewed annually and are available on the corporate website
(www s)p co uk), or on request from the Company Secretary

There 1s also an Executive Commuttee, (the *Executive Board”)
compresing the Executive Directors of the Board and other
members of senior management It 1s via the Executive Board that
operational matters are delegated to management The Executive
Board 1s responsible for communicating and implementing the
Group’s business plan objectives, ensuring that the necessary
resources are 1n place 1n order to achieve those objectives, and
managing the day-to-day operational activities of the Group The
terms of reference for the Executive Board are also regularly
reviewed and are mcluded in the Board Control Manual

There are also a number of committees below the main Board
commuttees and these assist the Executive Board 1n executing its
responsibilities A table showing this governance structure 1s set
out above
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Corporate (Governance Report continued

Meeting Administration

For each Board meeting, ali Board members are suppled with an
agenda and pack containing reports and management information
on current trading, operational issues, comphance, risk,
accounting and financial matters The Chairs of the various
comrmttees of the Board report to the Board at each Board
meeting and coples of commttee meeting minutes are included 1in

the Board packs

Independence

When determining whether a Non-executive Director 15
mdependent, your Board consmiders each individual agamnst the
criteria set out in the Code and also considers how they conduct
themselves in Board meetings, including how they exercise
judgement and independent thinking Taking these factors into
account, the Board believes that all the Non-executive Directors
continue to demonstrate their independence

Culture

The Board exercises oversight over the Company's culture and
regularly considers how both employees and Partners adhere to 1t
and reviews measures to retain the Group's culture The manner
in which employees and Partners can adhere to the culture 15 set
out 1n a series of “Our Approach” documents, including The
Sprrat of the Partnership

Confhets of Interest

Formal procedures are 1n place to deal with any potential or
actual conflicts of interest The relevant Director must disclose to
the Board the actual or potential confhet of interest for discussion
by the other members of the Board and the Board will then
congsider the potential COIDﬂlCt on 1ts particular tacts, deciding
whether to waive the potential confliet and /or impose conditions
on such waiver, 1f 1t believes this to be in the best interests of the
Company In additzon to declarations at Board and Commuittee
meetings, an znnual review of the Conflicts of Interest Register 15
also carried out by the Board

Durectors’ and Qfficers’ Indemnity and Insurance

The Company has taken out insurance covering Directors and
officers against Liabilities they may incur in their capacity as
Dircetors or officers of the Company and its subsidiaries

The Company has granted indemnities to all of 1ts Directors {and
Directors of subsidiary companies) on terms consistent with the
applicable statutory provisions Qualifying third party indemnity
provisions for the purposes of section 234 of the Companies Act
2006 were accordingly m force during the course of the hnanual
year ended 31 Decenber 2014, and remain in force at the date of
this report

Board Training

Induction

An appropriate induction programme 15 designed to enable new
Directors to meet senior management, understand the business
and future strategy, visit various office locations and speak
directly to Partners and staff around the country During 2014,
the Chairman and the Company Secretary implemented tailored
wdact.c™ pragrammes far Smmon [effreys and Roger Yates, which
included visits to the Cirencester head office, an administration
centre, an event for new members of the Partnership and
meetings with various members of semor management

Continuing Professional Development

The Chairinan and Company Secretary also ensured the continuing
professional development for all your Directors, based on their
individual requirements, and a hist of training carried out during
the year 15 mantained by the Company Secretary Such traming
includes topical 1ssues, visits to head office and other locations to
meet with staff and members of the Partnership and attend
serminars or other events taking place throughout the year In
addition to thus, ad hoc training 13 set up i the year to deal with
individual requests and the Non-executive Directors are able to
attend semunars or conferences which they consider will assist them
in carrying out their duties Non-executive Directors are brefed on
the views of major shareholders at Board meetings and are provided
with the opportunity to meet with shareholders, as necessary

Board members also regularly attend meetings at the head offices
at Crrencester and tn 2014 also visited the administration centre
at Craigforth

Company Secretariat

Directors have access to the advice of the Company Secretary at
all times, as well as independent professional advice where needed
i order to assist them 1n carrying out their duties

Relations with Shareholders

The Company maintains close relationships with istitutional
shareholders through dialogue and frequent meetings, and meets
regularly with the Group’s brokers who facilitate meetings with
investors and their representatives The Chief Financial Officer
provides feedback to the Board on any matertal topics raised in
these meetings and Board members also recetve copies of the
latest analysts’ and brokers’ reports on the Company, and will
attend shareholder and/or analyst meetings from time to time

During 2014, the Board received a presentation from one of the
Company’s joint corporate brokers (JPM Cazenove) and
commussioned addiional reports from shareholder analysis services
At the start of the year, members of the Remuneration Commuttee
engaged with a selection of shareholders as the Remuneration Policy
was being finahised, and the Chairman met with a number of
investors during the year The Chairman will also be engaging with
our major shareholders as part of this reporting process

‘The Chairman, Semor Independent Director and other Non-executive
Directors are avallable for consultation with shareholders on request
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Report of the Audit Committee

Chairman of the

Audit Committee

Simon Jeffreys

Role of the Committee in Summary

— To be responsible for the accuracy and integrity of the Group's
financial statements,

— To review the external auditors’ reports thereon,

— To momtor the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function,

— Ta ensure the eflectiveness at the systems ol internal contral,

— To review, and where appropriate refer on to the Board, any
significant control failures, and

— To report to the Board on how the Committee has discharged
1ts responsibilities

Audit Committee Members
Simon Jeffreys (Charr)

{ain Cornish

Roger Yates

1 am pleased to be making my first report of the Audit
Commuttee, having assumed the role of Chairman of the
Commuttee on 1 March 2014 1 succeeded lain Cornish who has
successfully led the Commuttee for the past two years and who,
[ am pleased to report, will remain a member of the Committee

There was one further change to the Commuttee during the year,
when Vivian Bazalgette stepped down on 30 June 2014 and

I would like to express my thanks to Vivian for his contribution
over the past two years Roger Yates became a member 1n his
place and | believe we continue to have sufficient independent
Non-executive Directors on the Audit Committee who bring the
appropriate balance of recent and relevant financial experience
and expertise

The 1ntegrity of the Group’s finanaial results and the effectiveness
of 1ts internal control systems are of the utmost importance to
your Company, and 1t 15 the role of the Audit Commuttee to assist
the Board in 1ts oversight and monitoring of financial reporting
and those internal controls The Commuttee does this by testing
and challenging these areas, and by working closely with
management and both external and internal auditors The
Commuttee also assists the Board in ensuring that the Company’s
financwal reports provide a fair, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company's positton

The key activities of the Committee 1n 2014 mcluded reviewing
the annual and half yearly Report and Accounts, associated
announcements and the external auditors’ reports, monttoring
and reviewing the effectiveness of the Internal Audit funcuon,
including engaging with development of the Internal Audit plan
for the year, monitoring progress against this plan and considering
the results of all Internal Audit activity, particularly the major
areas of internal audit focus during the year The Commuttee also
maintained an appropriate relattonship with the Company’s
external auditors

This report aims to provide more in-depth details of the role of
the Audit Commuittee and the work 1t has undertaken
throughout 2014

Simon Jeffreys
On behaif of the Audi Committee
24 February 2015
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Report of the Audit Committee contmued

Committee Membershap during 2014

Simon Jeffreys jomed the Commuttee on 1 January 2014 and
became Chair from 1 March 2014 Vivian Bazalgette ceased being
a member on 30 June 2014 and Roger Yates joined the
Commuitree on 1 July 2014

All members of the Audit Commuttee throughout the year were
independent Non-executive Utrectors and us rema.re the cace ar
the date of this report The Board remains satisfied that all
members of the Audit Committee have the expenence and
quzlifications ta perform their roles, noting in particular that a
majority of members have recent and relevant financal experience
and expertise

Details of attendance at the meetings of the Audit Commuittee
throughout the year can be found on page 55 Additional
attendees at the meetings included the Chairman, the Chief
Financal Officer, the Director of Internal Audit, the Corporate
Actuary and other members of the Finance team, as well as
representatives from the external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP The Chief Executive Officer and
the Group Risk Director both attended the joint meeting of the
Audit and Risk Commuttees held in October 2014

Commuttee Activities during 2014

Report and Accounts

As 1n previous years, the Commuttee spent a significant amount of

tume reviewing the annual and half yearly Report and Accounts,

together with the external auditors’ reports thereon The focus was
particularly on process and control 1ssues, for example, confirming
the process of how judgements were made, who was involved and
how decisions were implemented The topics discussed were driven
both by consideration of risk of mus-statement of the accounts, but
also by consideranon of risks in the business Topics that received
dechcated fime in the year, both in Commuttee meetings and in
separate informal sessions, included

— actuarial assumptions, with a particular focus on persistency
rates used 1n the assessment of the embedded value, which was
the topic of additional meetings in December and early
January 2015,

— review of principal areas where the Group applies accounting
estimates, including valuation of deferred tax assets and
lLabihities and impairment tesung of other intangible assets
Particular attention was directed to asset judgements in hght
of experience at Tesco’s during the year,

— 1mpact on the business from regulatory and legal risks,
including disclosure and accounting for them,

— areview of the valuations of assets of the Group,

— process for extending loans or advances to Partners and
assessing the risk of them bemg unabie to repay,

— financial imphications and the reporting of disclosures 1n
relation to the new outsourced administration contract with
International Financral Data Services (IFDS), and

— transactton costs and the reporting of disclosures around the
acquisition of the Henley Group in Asia, and speaifically
comparison of the forecast cashflows with the
Goodwill assessment

The Commuttee also spent time considering the use of ‘non-GAAP’
measures 1n the accounts In relatton to the introduction of the new
‘underlying profit’ measure the Commuttee considered the range of
adjustments to the GAAP result that maght be appropriate and
alternative disclosure options The approach was also discussed
with the Auditors However, ulumately the Commuttee concluded
that the additienal information would help investors better
understand the business performance

After careful review of how all of these points were represented
iy the Report and Accounts, including the new non-GAAP
measure, the Commuttee concluded that their final treatment
was appropriate

In relation to the review of the Report and Accounts, as part of
the regular Internal Audit plan, the Company’s reporting
processes were, as usual, the subject of a number of internal
audits, which were designed to complement the external audit,
and which were reported to and considered by the Committee 1n
its review of the Report and Accounts

Internal Audit Function Effectiveness

In relation to the effectiveness of the Internal Audit tudcnion, the
Commuttee spent a sgnificant amount of time reviewing the
Internal Audit Plan in order to ensure that the Internal Audit
department had the necessary resources, both internal and
external, to implement the plan in a imely manner

As part of an independent review of the internal audit function
cartied out by Deloitte LLP (‘Delotte’) 1n 2013, a number of
changes had been recommended which were intended to
strengthen the profile, resources and operation of the Internal
Audit team and 1mprove 1ts alignment with the Risk functions
operating within the Group The Commuttee, which accepted
those recommendations in full, has continued to monitor progress
and the various actions from the Deloitte report were completed
n 2014

Internal Audit Activity

During the year, the Commuttee recaived regular updates in

relation to the Internal Audit Plan and results from completed

audits These audits are risk-based and during 2014 covered areas

such as

— anti-fraud, bribery and corruption conirols,

— data security,

— advice gmdance,

— governance of outsourced administration by third party
admmstrators, including [FDS,

— acquisition of Independent Financial Adviser firms,

— Solvency I, and

— the project to upgrade the Group’s back-office administration
systerns
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When recerving regular updates from the Director of Internal
Audit in relazion to the results from completed audus, the
Commuttee paid careful attention to any areas where the audit led
to remedsal action being recommended The actions anising were
monltorcd to ensure CDmPlCthn In Practlce 85% Of actions were
completed 1n line with the original agreed deadline, with the rest
bewng completed by appropriately agreed revised deadlines

Internal Control Evaluation

The Board, through the Audit Cormimittee, conducts an annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal control, n line
with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code The
Group adopts the ‘three Lines of defence model’ as the design basis for
its internal control framework and the process for reviewing the
effectiveness of the framework 1s aligned to the same model

In summary, the Chuct Exccutive has ultimatc responsibality for the first
two lines of defence and uses his knowledge of the business, and that of
hus sentor managernent team, to provide an opunton on the control
systerns Internal Audit then provides an independent second opimion,
from a third line perspective, based on Internal Audit activity
conducted throughout the year and Internal Audrt's further analysis and
appraisal of the cutput from a wide range of other sources

In providing his opinion, the Chief Executive was able to take into
account the output of the ‘Control Self-Assessment’ {‘CSA”) processes
which had been established m 2013 for a number of departments within
the Group and which were subsequently fully embedded and extended
to the rest of the Group during 2014 The CSA processes continue to
be encouraged by the Audit Commuttee and are delivered alongside,
but independently from, the [nternal Audit function

Jowntly, the two opinions assist the Audit Commuttee m completing
its annual review and enable the Audit Commuttee to attest on
behalf of the Board that it has been able to properly review the
effectiveness of the Company's system of internal control 1n
accordance with the Turnbull Guidance for Directors on Internal
Control Where any matters have arisen from the review, the Audit
Commttee has ensured that corrective action has been taken

Other Actrvity

Finally, a variety of presentations about the business were received
from sentor management during the year, including presentations
on cyber security, Solvency II/ORSA and tax valuations on capital
losses The Commuttee also carnied out a formal review of the risk
schedules, and recerved updates from the Char of the Risk
Commuttee, particularly in regard to 1ts reshaping of the risk
framework, and reports from the Managing Director of St James’s
Place International ple (the Group's Irish-registered Life company)
The Commuttee carefully considered the proposed changes to the
appointment and tenure of external auditors and also explored the
potential impact of various anticipated changes to IFRS accounting
The chair of the Commuttee acted as the key contact for the
Whistleblowing Policy and the Committee reviewed the
arrangements durmg the year The Commuttee's terms of reference
were reviewed during the year and it 15 satisfied that they remain
appropriate and conform to best practice
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‘Fair, Balanced and Understandable’ Opinion

The UK Corporate Governance Code requires the Board to give
their opinion as to whether they consider the Company’s Report
and Accounts to be fair, balanced and understandable During the
course of the year the Audit Committee requested a review of the
KPIs and objectives disclosed 1n the Report and Accounts to aid
the reader to understand the Company The review resulted in
the development of new measures incorporated in the reporting
for this year end

To axd the Board, the Audit Commuttee formally reviewed the
Report and Accounts 1n relation to this requirement and was able
to cenfirm their opinion, based on the activities and infor mation
deseribed abave, that the Company’s Report and Accounts for the
year ended 31 December 2014 are indeed fair, balanced and
understandable

External Auditor

The Commuttee has responsibility for the work of the external
auditors of the Company At the conclusion of the audit, the
Commuttee discussed the findings from their work under the
headings of the major risks as set out 1n the audit plan

Durmg the year, sentor management carried out its annual review
of the effecuiveness, independence and objectivity of the
Company’s external auditor This included consideration of the
findings of the annual review by the FRC of the main audiing
firms The Commuttee also took into account the Audit Quality
Review report on PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP speafically Asa
result of this work, the Committee concluded that the audit
service of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was fit for purpose and
would provide a robust evaluation of the risks underlying the
Company’s financial statements Following the completion of the
2014 audit, the performance of the auditors will again be
reviewed, including the use of a questionnarre to be completed by
Dhrectors and senior managers asking about the performance of
the auditors in relation to expectations The Audit Committee
will discuss the results with the auditors as part of the next
review of effectiveness

In relation to the review of the independence of the auditors, the
Committee noted the existence of a formal policy for the provision
of non-audit services by the external auditor The aim of the policy
1s to ensure that external auditor objectivity and independence

15 safeguarded by setting out the categories of non-audit services
which the external auditor 15 allowed to provide to the Group and
limiting the amount of activity The financial limut for non-audat
related advice and consultancy work by the external audit firm 1s
£100,000 per year Non-audit assignments exceeding 25% of the
audir fee, erther indidually or cumulatively, must have the prior
approval of the Audit Committee The amounts paid to the external
auditors during the year for audit and non-audit related services are
set out 1n the Notes to the Accounts on page 120, but the amount
for non-audit related services in the year was £5,000 (2013 £ml)
The Committee remains satisfied that PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP remains independent and objective in relation to 1ts audit
activities carried out for the Group
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Report of the Audit Committee contnued

The Company 1s commtted to regular rotation of the auditors and,
taking into account the EU and CMA rules, will review when the
next tender 1s required during 2015 a5 well as adopting a poliey of
tendering the audit contract at least every ten years
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was appointed as the Company’s
external auditor 1n 2009 and 1n 2014 the lead Aud:t Partner was
rotated Since the audit service provided m recent years has been
deemed ht tor purpose, the Company c5-s de-e that mrting the
audit engagement out to tender 1s not necessary at the current time
Having assessed the performance and independence of the auditors
as outlined above, the Committee recommends that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP be re-appointed as external auditor
and a resolution to effect this wall be put to shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting !

The terms of reference setting out the Commuttee’s role and
authority can be found on the corporate website at www 5]p co uk
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Report of the Risk Committee

Chairman of the

| Risk Committee

lain Cornish

Role of the Committee 1n Summary

— To foster a culture of effective risk identification and
management throughout the Group,

— To provide leadershup, direction and oversight of the Group's
management of risk,

— To review the principal risks affecting the Group and the ways
in which the risks are controlled and mitigated, and

— To report any material areas of concern to the full Board

Risk Committee Members
Tain Cormish (Charr)

Simen Jeffreys

Baroness Wheatcroft

Roger Yates

Firstly, having assumed the role of Chairman of the Commuttee at the
start of 2014, I would like to thank my predecessor, Mike Power, for
hus leadershup in recent years 'was also pleased to welcome both
Roger Yates and Simon Jeffreys to the Cornmttee durmng the year

Fostering a culture of effective risk management 15 of the utmost
importance to the Directors The Risk Committee s a
sub-commuttee of the Board and assists the Board in developing
this culture, by providing leadership, direction and oversight of
the Group's management of risk

In pursuing these objectives on behalf of the Board, the

Commuttee’s key activities 1n 2614 included

— monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s nisk
management functions and processes,

— reviewwng the principal risks and uncertainties aftecting the
Group and the Group's risk appetite statement,

— considering reports produced by the Group's Risk and
Compliance functions monitoring the ongoing interaction with
the Group’s regulators, and

— receiving presentations from members of senior management
about their business areas and reviewing the management of
the associated risks

The following report sets out in more deta] the Commuttee’s key
activities in 2014

Iain Cormsh
On behalf of the Risk Commuttee
24 February 2015
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Report of the Risk Committee contnued

Committee Membership during 2014

Tain Cornish was appointed Chair of the Risk Commuttee and
Roger Yates joined the Commuttee on 1 January 2014 Simon
Jeftreys joined the Commuttee on 1 April 2014 All members of
the Risk Commuttee have considerable financial, risk and/or other
experience and are independent Non-executve Directors Details
of attendance at the meetings of the Risk Commuttee throughout
the year can be tound on page 5>

Regular attendees at Committee meetings during the year
included the Chief Executive, the Managing Director responsible
for the Partnership, the Group Risk Director, the Compliance
Officer, the Corporate Actuary, the Business Development
Director and a representative from Internal Audit As Chairman
of the Board, Sarah Bates also attended Risk Commuttee meetings
on a regular basis

Commuttee Activities during 2014

Oversight of the Risk Management Framework 15 key to delivery
of the responsibilities of the Commuttee The framework and
associated documents are subject to regular review, and 1n 2014,
the Committee has focused on reshaping the framework to reflect
the growing complexity of the business, structuring 1t around the
risks that impact the key drivers of the business, 1 particular
those affecting clients, Partners, the Investment Management
Approach, shareholders, regulators and our people The
associated Risk Appeute Statements and management informatton
are being reshaped in line with the revised framework and to
reflect the requirements of forthcoming Solvency 11 regulations
This 15 an evolution of the existing statements and does not
invalve a fundamental shift in the underlying risk appetite of the
Group Further information about the Risk Management
Framework can be found on pages 34 and 35

The Committee 18 supported 1n its oversight of the Rusk
Management Framework by the Risk Management team and the
Commuttee spends a significant proportion of 1ts time receiving
updates from the Group Risk Director and the Head of Division
— Group Rusk, who both have direct access to the Chairman of
the Risk Commuttee should the need arise The Commuttee 15 also
able to review and provide challenge on the implementation of
risk mitigation 1n the business

As In previous years, the Commuttee regularly receved and

discussed a suite of management mformation to aid ther

monttoring of risks and risk exposure 1n the business The

information mncluded

— Risk Schedules, setting out the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, as well as how they are
mngated, and

— Key Rusk Indrcators (KRIs), assessing the current exposure to
key risks

During the year, and with the encouragement of the Commuttee,
the hist of key risks was refreshed The Group Board, working
actively with Risk Management, contributed to the process of
determining the key risks

As part of their oversight of risk management in the business, the

Commuittee continued to recerve and review reports from a

number of Executive Commuittees and other functions 1n the

Group including

— munutes of the Risk and Finance Executive Commuttee
meetings, where executive oversight 15 given to the
appropriateness and observance of the Group’s Risk Appetite,

— reports produced by the Compliance and Actuarial functions
relating to the management ot the risks faced by uic i egulated
subsidiary entities within the Group,

— reparts from the Group Risk Director on the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management systems, and

— anannual report from the Money Laundering Reporting
Officer on the activinies undertaken to mitigate money
laundering, bribery and fraud activities within the Group

Since most of the activity within the Group 1s regulated, the
Committee also considered regular updates on the Group’s
ongomng mteractions with the PRA and FCA, and the wider
regulatory interactions with firms 1n the financial services
marketplace This allowed them to monttor ongowng comphance
with regulation

Finally, the Commuttee requested reports from senior executives
and external consultants on speafic topies, including key
corporate initiatives The Committee spent time discussing
management of the assocated risks, and provided challenge to the
executives responsible Many of the topics were presented as joint
sessions with the Audit Commttee and allowed members of both
Commuttees wider exposure to the management of the Group and
an gpportumty to challenge senior management Presentation
topics 1n 2014 included

— the work being undertaken to enhance the quality of advice
documentation, including the ongeing supervision
arrangements and business checking procedures, .

— the Group's position in relation to information security,
following an earlier presentation on cyber security from
external consultants and a report from the Audit Director on
an internal audit into this area,

— the advice guidehnes around the provision of advice to Elderly
and vulnerable clients,

— the implications of the forthcoming Solvency II legislation,
including the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)
process, the key assumptions underlying the SJPUK ORSA and
the Group’s preparations for lmplementatlon of the new
regulation,

— the regulatory umpact of structural changes being made 1n light
of the Group’s new administration platform, including the
mmphcations of MiFID I, and

— the findings of an external review inta the development of the
new admimstration platform

This gave the Commuttee opportunity to ensure that risks are
bemng addressed and to test that the culture of risk idenufication
and management 13 embedded

The terms of reference setting out the Commuttee’s role and
authonty can be found on the corporate website at www s)p co uk
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Chairman of the

Nomination
Committee

Sarah Bates

Role of the Committee in Summary

— To regularly review Board and committee composition
and structure,

— Todentify, report on and recommend for Board approval
suitable candidates for appointment to the Board,

— To appropniately consider succession planning for Directors
and sentor management, taking into account diversity,
experience, knowledge and skills, and

— To report to the Board on the work of the Commuttee

Nomination Committee Members
Sarah Bates {Chair)

Iain Cornmish

Baroness Wheatcroft

Having the appropriate range of high calibre Directors on our
Board 1s key to achieving success in the Group's strategic
objectives, whilst helping to mitigate the regulatory and other
risks faced by the Group

Succession planning 1s also a core remt of the Commuttee
Assessing and developing the talent that hies below the Board 1s
key to maintaining healthy motivational and retention levels
amongst senior management, as well as ensuring smooth
transition when senior staff move in the Company

The Commuttee spent a considerable amount of time over the past
year reviewing the short and medium term succession plans for
the Executive Directors and for senior management below the
Board The Commuttee also considered the training and
development arrangements 1n place to enable future successors to
widen their skills and experience

The Commuttee also considered whether a new Non-executive
Durector should be appointed to replace Vivian Bazalgette, but
concluded that, at present, the Board has the right balance of
different skalls and experience

This report provides further details of the role of the Nommation
Commuttee and the work 1t has undertaken during the year

Sarah Bates
On behalf of the Nemimation Commuttee
24 February 2015

110day] 213a3e03g

|

(uomzpuno:[ aov[] sseure[ 1g

o
-
0]
=1
o
=
o]
el

[ UOHRULIOJU] ISY1() ” SJUSTHSIR} [RIDURUL] ‘




66 St James's Place plc Annual Reporr end Accouncs 2014

Report of the Nomination Committee contmued

Committee Membership during 2014

Sarah Bates joined and became Chair of the Committee

on 1 January 2014 and Baroness Wheatcroft also joined the
Committee on the same date These appointments followed
Charles Gregson and Mike Power ceasing to be members on
31 December 2013

Details of attendance at the meetings of tne INounnawss
Commuttee can be found on page 55

Committee Activities during 2014

In 2014, the Commuirtee spent the majority of its time reviewing
the succession plans for the Executive Directors and other semor
managers below the Board, so as to ensure a strong pipeline of
talent 1n future years The Commuttee reviewed each semor
management role and, in conjunction with the Chief Executive
Officer, tdentified both short and medium term successors lor
each role and considered any training or development needs to
cnable the idenufied successors to succeed 1n the relevant role
The Commuttee also appointed an experienced external
consultant, Boardroom Dialogue, to provide advice and assistance
in relation to successton planmng

The Commuttee continued to monitor diversity within the Group,
believing that diversity extends beyond the Boardroom and that
developimg all members of the senior management team (and
employees generally) 1s vital 1n order to develop and maintam an
effective succession programme It was noted that the Group had
introduced a number of new 1nmatives to develop senior talent
below the Board, mcluding bespoke traimng programmes with
development consultants, mentoring opportunties and a
programme cenired on healthy living and wellbeing The
Chairman also held a meeting with a number of women in
managerral roles within the Group to discuss whether there were
any barriers to progression and ways 1n which therr development
opportumties could be improved

The Commuittee reviewed the balance of skills and experience on
the Board in light of the resignation of Vivian Bazalgette in June
2014 it was noted that the proportion of the Board {excluding the
Chairman) that was independent directors was still 50% and so the
Board continued to comply with the Corporate Code
notwithstanding the resignation of Vivian Bazalgette The
Commuttee also considered the passibility of setting a 25% target
for female representation for the Board in 2015, but shareholders
will note that the Board 13 close to satistying the rargecau
present time and that the Company has a fenale Chairman  The
Board 15 concerned to encourage diversity, in the widest sense, but
after careful consideration, the Commttee concluded that the
Board had an appropriate balance of skalls and expertise at the
present time and, consequently, there was no pressing need to
recrut an additional independent Non-executive Director, male or
female The Commuittee will continue to review the independence,
balance and diversity of the Board on a regular basis

The terms of reference setting out the Commuttee’s role and
authority can be found on the corporate website at www s)p co uk

Registered No 03183415




St James's Place ple Annual Report and Accounts 2014 67

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Chairman of the

Remuneration
Committee

Roger Yates
S

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the Directors’
Remuneration Report for 2014

The report 15 split into two parts The Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, which was approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting ("AGM™) 1n 2014, 15 ncluded for information
The Remuneration Committee beheves that the policy remains
appropriate and should continue to operate for 2015 with no
changes proposed The Annual Report on Remuneration sets out
the remuneration pard to the Executive and Non-executive
Directors 1n respect of 2014, together with details of how the
Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be implemented 1n 2015

Remuneration 1s Linked to the Corporate Strategy
As we reported last year, the Remuneration Commattee (the
“Committee™) carried out a thorough review 1n 2013, and agreed a
Directors’ Remuneration Policy that supports the Group'’s business
strategy The major part of remuneration for Executives 1s
performance-dependent, including both annual and longer-term
measures aligned to a balanced set of business objectives There 1s
substantial deferral of variable remuneration into shares, and
requirements for Executives to hold company shares, through
munimurn shareholding thresholds and a post-vesting sale
restriction on Performance Share Plan (PSP} awards Following
extensive consultauon and some refinement to take account of
shareholder feedback, the Directors’ Remuneration Palicy was
approved at the 2014 AGM by 99 85% of shareholders voting

Corporate Performance and Remuneration for 2014
As reported i thus Annual Report, 2014 has been another year of
strong performance and our Executives’ remuneration for 2014
reflects this Based on the three-year performance to the end of 2014,
96 37% of the Executive Directors’ PSP awards granted m 2012 wall
vest in March 2015, as a result of relative total shareholder return
(TSR) and earmings per share (EPS) growth near to or above the
upper end of the performance range set by the Commuttee

The Remuneration Committee determined that 95% of the
maximum annual bonus should be payable for 2014, reflecting the
strong financial results for 2014 and strong progress against other
strategic objectives set by the Commuttee at the start of the year,
which are fully explained 1n the report Fafty percent of the bonus
1s deferred into shares for three years

Remuneration for 2015

The Remuneration Commattee considered the overall
remuneration arrangements for the Executive Directors, 1n
accordance with the policy which was agreed with shareholders
last year As was noted in last year’s report, Performance Share
Plan (PSP) grants in 2015 will be increased from the 2014 award
levels 200% of base salary (face value at maximum vesting) will
be granted to the Cluef Executive compared to 190% last year,
and 190% of base salary will be granted to each of the other
Executive Directors compared to 175% last year

In addition, the holding peniod requirement for PSP award, has
now been increzsed to two years post vesting (five years from
grant of the award) for awards granted from 2015

Taking tnto account these overall arrangements, the base salaries
of the Executive Directors are not being increased 1n 2015 The
Committee continues to monitor the complexity of the
responsibilities undertaken, the remuneration of staff generally,
an element of market comparison and inflation trends from year
to year The Committee may apply salary increases at subsequent
review dates as a result of analysis of these factors

Remuneration Codes

As a result of regulatory changes and the introduction of revised
administration arrangements at 5t James's Place, the Group s
required to comply with the provisions of the FCA Remuneration
Codes for the first time 1n 2015 The Commuttee has assessed the
requirerents of the Remuneration Codes, mncluding the
provisions that allow Codes to be applied in a proporticnate way,
to ensure that the remuneratton pohicy and the Group’s
administrative and internal processes are 1n compliance with the
requrements No changes to the shareholder approved Directors’
Remuneration Policy are required as a result of this review

Summary

‘The Group’s remuneration policy supports our corporate objectives
and the remuneration received by the Executive Directors reflects
the strong performance of the Company and management

Thope that you well suppert the remuneration resolution to be
proposed at the next AGM  Ifin the meantime you have any questions
regarding our remuneration policy then my colleagues and I on the
Remuneration Commuittee will be pleased to address them

Roger Yates
Chairman gfthe Remuneration Committee
24 February 2015
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Directors Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 December 2014 .

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Thus part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report sets out the remuneration pohicy for the Company, which was approved by
shareholders at the AGM 1 2014 There 1s no requirement for sharcholders to vote on the pohicy at the 2015 AGM unless changes to the
policy are proposed, and the Commutree does not wntend making any changes at this ume This policy will be effective until the AGM
1n 2017, unless changes are proposed and shareholders approve a new policy prior to that date The policy 1s set out below for
information only, the chart, showing remuneration scenarios on page 75 has been updated to reflect proposed 2015 remuneration levels
and munor changes to the text of the policy have been made to reflect the fact that the policy has been approved by shareholders and
that the policy 1s now being implemented 1n 2015 (and not 2014)

[n setting the remuneranion policy for the Executive Directors, the Committee takes into consideration a number of different factors

— the Commttee apphies the principles set out in Schedule A of the UK Corporate Governance Code and also takes into account best
practice guidance 1ssued by the major UK nstitutional investor bodses, the FCA (including the provisions of any apphicable
Remuneration Codes) and other relevant organisations,

— the Committee has overall responsibility for the remuneration policies and structures of the Group as a whole and 1t reviews
remuneration policy on a firm-wide hasis When the Commuttee determines and reviews the remuneration policy for the Executive
Durectors 1t considers and compares 1t agamst the pay, policy and employment conditions of the Group to ensure that 1t 13
comfortable that there 1s abgnment between the two, and

~ the Commuttee considers the external market 1n which the Group operates and uses comparator remuneration data from tume to
time to inform 1ts decisions  However, the Committee recogmses that such data should be used as a guide only (recognising that
data can be volatile) and that there 15 often a need to phase-in changes over a period of ime

The Commuttee’s overall policy, having had due regard to the factors above, 15 for a substantial proportion of total remuneration to be
based on variable pay Thus 1s achieved by setting base pay and benefits up to mid-market levels, with annual bonus and lung term
incentive opportumties linked to the achievement of demanding performance targets In this way, the Commuttee facilitates alignment
between the interests of shareholders and the total remuneration pard to the Executive Directors Historically, the levels of variable pay
paid to the Execuuves have varied considerably, reflecting the performance of the Group in the relevant year

Remuneration payments and payments tor loss of office can only be made if they are consistent with the approved Remuneration Policy
or are otherwise approved by ordinary resolution of the members of the Company

Engagement with Sharcholders

The Commuttee’s policy ts to engage with and seek the views of its major investors and investor representative bodies on any proposed
major changes to remuneraton policy The Commuittee will also engage on those aspects of implementation of that policy that it
considers appropriate Any views expressed by shareholders at general meetings of the Company or otherwise will be considered by the
Commuittee as part of any review of remuneration policy, or sooner if appropriate

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors
The remuneration polcy 1s designed to support and encourage the delivery of the Group’s short-term and long-term
business objectives

The following table summarises each element of the remuneration policy for the Executive Directors, explaining how each element
operates and how each part hinks to corporate strategy
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Salary
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Purpose and link to strategy including choice of
perﬁ)rmance metrics

To provide the core reward for the role

Sufficient level to recruit and retain individuals of the necessary calibre, taking
into account the skills, experience, demands and complexty of the role

Operation

Reviewed annually and fixed for 12 months commencing | March

Influenced by

— Role, experience and performance of the individual,

— Company performance,

— External economic conditions,

— Average change in broader workforce salary,

— Periodic benchmarking for each role against similar UK hsted companies, and

— Overall policy, having regard to the factors noted, 15 normally to target salaries
up to the mud market level

Maximum opportumty

Salary increases (in percentage terms) will normally be linked to the average of the
workforce generally other than 1n exceptional circumstances such as where the
increase may be higher for a significant change in responsibility, experence or
increase i role or the size or complexity of the Group where increases may

be phased

Where new joiners or recent promotees have been given a starting salary below
mud-market level, 2 series of increases above these granted to the wider workforce
(10 percentage terms) may be awarded over the following few years, subject to
satisfactory individual performance and development in the role

The base salaries for the Executive Directors from 1 March 2015 are set out 1n the
Annual Report on Remuneration

Performance metrics

The Commuittee considers all of the factors described in this table when deciding
how the salary policy operates
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Annual Bonus

Purpose and link to strategy including choice of
performance metrics

Rewards the achievement of annual hnanual and strategic business plan targets and
delivery of strategic objectives

Deferred element aids retention, encourages long-term shareholding, discourages

excessive risk taking and ahgns with shareholder interests

business plan, achievement of which will reflect performance 1 line with the
Group’s strategy

Operation

Performance measures, targets and weightings are reviewed annually and set in
line with the annual business plan

Bonus payments are determined by the Commuttee after the year end, based on
pay Y y
performance against the targets set

50% of any bonus payable 15 paid 1n cash with the remaining 50% deferred into
SJP shares, the vesting of which 1s normally subject to a three year continuous
Service requirement

Dividends that zcerue on the deferred shares are paid to the Executive Directors
during the three-year deferral pertod

All bonus payments are at the discrenion of the Committee

The Commuttee has the overriding discretion to scale back payments under the
strategic part of the annual bonus 1f it deems them to be inappropriate in the
context of the overall financial results of the Company

The Remuneration Commuttee has the over-riding discretion to adjust the bonus
outcome up or down (subject to the overall 150% maximum) to take account of
factors such as an exceptional positive or negative event

Annual bonus payments including deferred amounts are subject to claw-back 1f
there 15 found to have been a material mis-statement, error or misconduct
following the payment of the bonus

Maximum opportunity

150% of base salary

Performance metrics

Performance measured over one year

At least half the bonus 1s based on financial measures reflecting the key priorities of
the business for the relevant year

Up to half of the annual bonus can be based on the achievement of key strategic
objectives set at the start of the year

Actual measures and weightings may change fram year to year to reflect the
business priorities at that time

Details of performance critena set for the year under review and performance
against them 1s provided in the Annual Report on Remuneration

20% of the annual bonus vests for threshold performance
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Performance Share Plan
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Purpose and hink to strategy mncluding cheice of
performance metrics

Incentivises the Directors to achieve superior long term sharehaolder returns
Provides long term retention

Focuses the Executives on longer term corporate performance and
P P
performance objectives

A mux of three performance conditions provides an appropriate balance of targets
that both incentivise the Executives to achieve stretching long-term financeal
performance while also keeping their interests aligned to those of shareholders

Operation

Awards are granted annually with vesting on the third anmiversary of the date of
grant dependent on the achievement of stretching performance conditions
mcasured over a period of three financal years

Metrics and targets are set in line with the business plan and are reviewed annually
to ensure they remain appropriate as well as the weighting between them

Awards 1n 2015 and beyond will be made under the performance share plan,
approved by shareholders at the AGM 1n 2014, and will have a post vesting holding
period of two years (net of tax) Dividend equivalents may accrue on awards made
between the date of grant and the end of the two year post vesting holding pertod
These dividend equivalents wiil be released only to the extent that awards vest

Subject to claw-back in the event of a material misstatement, error or musconduct
allowing summary dismissal

Maximum opportunity

The maximum annual award under the plan rules 15 250% of salary as at date of
grant although the Commuttee will not increase above the 2015 award levels
without prior consultation with the Company's major shareholders

The PSP award levels for 2014 {as 1n 2013) will be 190% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 175% of salary for the other Executive Directors (value of shares at
date of award)

The Comrnittee intends to mncrease the PSP award levels for 2015 to 200% of
salary for the Chief Executive and 190% of salary for the other Bxecutive
Directors (value of shares at date of award)

Performance metrics

The vesting of awards 15 dependent on the achievement of three equally weighted
performance measures as set out below The Committee may choose alternative
measures and weightings between them 1f it deems 1t appropriate taking into
account the strategic objectives of the Company The vesting of at least one-third
of the PSP award will however be determined by a relative TSR target

The performance targets for the 2015 PSP awards will be based on

— EPS growth hased an EEV adjusted profit,

— EPS growth as above but excluding the impact of the EEV unwind of the
discount rate (effectively excluding the impact of stock market movements
on earnings), and

— relative TSR performance

For each performance condition, a threshold and streteh level of performance 15
set At threshold, 25% of the relevant element vests

110day o'Fareng

|

‘/uouepuno:[ 3B} ssowe[ 1g

g
]
o
&
=
[#]
%

{ $)UBUIIIEIG [RIOURW :{ﬁ‘

{’ uoTyeLoFu] P10




72 St James's Place ple Annual Report and Accouncs 2014

Directors’ Remuneration Report conimued
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Pension

Purpose and link to strategy ncluding choice of
performance metrics

HGIPS recruit and retain Executives

Provides a discrete element of the package to contribute to
post-retirement lifestyle

Operation

Defined contributicn pension scheme  20% ot salary 15 pard into the Group
personal pension scheme for the Executive or an equivalent cash amount va
non-pensionanle satary supplemeny fthe Exccut ¢ - 2facted by the nension can

Maximum opportunity

20% of base salary

Performance metrics

N/A

Other Benefits

Purpose and link to strategy including choice of
performance metrics

Operate competitive benefits 1o help recruit, retain and support the well-being
of employees

Operation

Including but not himited to
Company car {or salary supplement in heu), private medical insurance, life,
critical 1llness and death 1n service cover, relocation assistance where necessary

and the use of a driver for business purposes

Participation m the Group’s all employee SIP and SAYE schemes

Maximum opportunity

Benefit costs are montored and controlled and represent a smalt element of total
remuneration costs

Performance metrics

N/A

Non-executive Directors’ Fees

To attract high quality, experienced Non-executive Directors

The Chairman 1s paid an all-encompassing annual fee, which 15 reviewed
periodically by the Committee

All Non-executive Directors recerve a basic annual fee for carrying out their
dutres, together with additional fees being paid 1n respect of Board Commuttees
and other responsibilities, with fee levels reviewed periodically by the Board They
may also be paid additronal fees (calculated at an appropriate day rate) in the event
of exceptional levels of additional time being required, for instance in response to
corporate developrents

There 1s no prescribed maximum annual increase Reviews take into account
market data for similar non-executive roles 1n other companies of a sumilar size
and/or business to St James's Place as well as the tume commitment of 115
Non-executive Directors

The Company’s pelicy 1s to pay up to the mid-market level based on similar time
commitments of chairman and non-executives 1n simular sized compames
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The performance measures and targets that are set for the
Executrve Directors’ annual bonus and PSP awards are carefully
selected to align with the Company’s strategic and key
performance indicators

For the annual bonus financial and strategic measures are
reviewed and selected by the Commuittee annually The measures
selected and weighting between them may vary annually
depending on the key prionities of the business for the year ahead
Robust and demandmg targets will be set annually taking into
account the economic environment, market expectations and the
Company's budget and business plan for the year ahead EEV
operzting profit 1s nsed to assess financal performance as this
measure reflects a number of key metrics including new business,
persistency, retention of funds under management and cost
control The balance 1s determined based on strategic measures
set annually on a balanced scorecard basis

The Company has used a comparative TSR measure and EPS
growth targets for the PSP for a number of years in line with the
Group's strategy of dehvcrmg proﬁtab]e growth and superior
returns to its shareholders The Committee will continue to review
the choice of performance measures and the appropriateness of
targets prior to each PSP award being made and wll set robust and
stretching measures for any alternative measures used For the EPS
growth measure stretching targets will be set annually taking inte
account the economic environment, market expectations and the
Company’s budget and business plan at that ime For the
comparative TSR measure the Committee’s policy 15 to set
threshold vesting for median performance rising to full vesting for
upper quartile performance The Committee will assess annually
the approprateness of the TSR comparator group

No performance targets are set for the SAYE and SIP awards as
these form part of all employee arrangements designed to
encourage employees across the Group to purchase shares in
the Company

Shareholding Guidelines

Executives are required to build and mamtain a shareholding
equivalent to 150% of base salary Unti] the threshold 15 reached,
50% of vested shares from the PSP and other share awards (less tax
lrability) must be retained Executives are also required to hold a
further 50% of salary in shares and/or 1n one or more S]P funds,
thus providing further alignment with shareholders and chents

Annual Bonus Plan and Share Plan Policy

The Commuttee will operate the annual bonus plan, deferred bonus

plan, PSP and all-employee share plans according to the rules of each

respective plan and consistent with normal market practice and the

Lisung Rules, where relevant The Commuirtee will retain flesability

1o a number of areas regarding the operation and adrmmstration of

these plans, including (but not hmited to) the following

— Who participates in the plans,

— When to make awards and payments,

— How to determine the size of an award, a payment, or when
and how much of an award should vest,

— How to deal with a change of control or restructuring of the Group,
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— Inthe case of stated good leaver reasons or otherwise, whether
a Director 1s a good/bad leaver for mcentive plan purposes and
whether and what proportion of awards vest at the time of
leaving or at the original vesting date(s) as relevant, and

— How and whether an award may be adjusted in certain
circumstances (e g fora nghts 135ue, a corporate restructuring
ar for special dividends)

The Commuttee also retains the discretion withun the policy to
adjust targets and/or set different measures and alter weightings
for the annual bonus plan and the PSP if events happen that cause
1t to determine that the original targets or conditions are no
longer appropriate and the amendment 1s required so that the
targets or conditions achieve their original purpose and are not
materially less difficult tn satisty

The use of discretion would, where relevant, be explained 1n the
Annual Report on Remuneration and may, as appropriate, be
subject to consultation with the Company’s major shareholders

Awards made prior to the Effective Date

For the avoidance of doubt, 1n approving the Policy Report,
authority was given to the Company to honour any commitments
entered into with current or former Directors that have been
disclosed to shareholders in previous remuneration reports This
mncludes all historic awards that were granted under any current
ar previous share schemnes operated by the Company but remain
outstanding (detailed on pages 84 and 85 of this Report) and
which will remnamn eligible to vest based on their original award
terms Details of any payments to former Directors will be set out
i the Annual Remuneration Report as they anise

Approach to Remuneration for Recruitment

and Promotions

The Commuttee would aim to set a new Executive Darector’s
remuneratton package 1n [ine with the Company’s approved pohcy
at the time of appointment The Commuttee will take into
account, 1n arriving at a total package and 1n considering the
quantum for each element of the package, the skills and
experience of the candidate, the market rate for a candidate of
that experience as well as the importance of securing the best
candidate For new appoitments, base salary and total
remuneration may be set imtially at below normal market rates on
the basis that 1t may be ucreased once expertise and performance
has been proven and sustained

Annual bonus potential will not exceed 150% of salary and
long-term incentives will nor exceed 250% of salary {not
including any arrangements to replace forfeited deferred pay)
Participation in the annual bonus plan and Performance Share
Plan will normally be pro-rated for the year of jorning and
dufferent performance measures may be set from those applying to
the other Directors, 1f 1t 1s appropriate to do so to reflect the
individual’s responsibilities and the point in the year in which they
joined the Board
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Directors’ Remuneration Report contmued

for the year ended 31 December 2014

The Commttee may make additional cash and /or share-based
awards as 1t deems appropriate and 1f the circumstances so demand
to take account of deferred pay forferted by an executive on leaving
a previous employer Awards to replace deferred pay forferted
would, where possible, reflect the nature of awards forfeited in
terms of delivery mechanism (cash or shares), time horizons,
attributed expected value and performance condiions Other
payries may 5o rade m relatinn to relocation expenses and other
incidental expenses as appropriate

In the case of an internal appointment, any variable pay element
awarded 1n respect of the prior role would be allowed to pay out
according to 1ts terms and any other ongoing remuneration
obhgations existing prior to appowntiment would continue

If appropriate and 1n exceptional circumstances the Committee
may agree, on the recruitment of a new executive, a notice period
of n excess of 12 months but reducing to 12 months over a
specified period

For the appomntment of a new Chairman or Non-executive
Durector, the fee arrangement would be set 1n accordance with
the approved remuneration policy at that tume

Risk Management

Risk 1s managed within the remuneration policy through

the Commuttee

— Taking into consideration the recommendations contained 1n
any applicable Remuneration Codes and associated guidance
which apply to the St James’s Place Group

— Structuring the annual bonus plan to contain a mix of financial
and strategic performance metrics, where performance
conditions are tailored to the business outlook and strategy,
wicluding the management of risk within the business The
Committee also retains the discretion to reduce the bonus
out-turn where appropnate

— Assessing the performance metrics from a risk perspective,
with input from the Chairman of the Risk Committee

— Requiring deferral of 50% of annual bonus payments into
St James's Place shares which are deferred for three years

— Requining the Executive Directors to retain shares acquired on
vesting of PSP awards granted from 1 January 2015 fora
two year period past the date of vesting (nct of tax)

— Ensuring that the majority of the incentive pay comes n the
form of a long-term incentive plan subject to stretching
performance targets measured over mulu-year performance
pertods, with the performance period for subsequent awards
overlapping the previous award, together with an additional
two year holding period This ensures that there is no
partlcular incentive to maximise performance over a
particular period

— Incorporating claw back into the Company’s bonus and long
term incentive plans

— Requiring the Executive Directors to build and maintain a
substantial shareholding 1n the Company

Remuneration Policy across the Group

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors 1s designed
with regard to the policy for employees across the Group as a
whole and the Commuttee aims, where appropriate, for there to
be 2 consistent approach applied For instance, the surte of
benefits in kind 15 generally consistent {other than in relation to
quantum) and all employees participate in annual bonus plans All
employees, including the Executive Directors, are offered the
opportunity to parucipaie s the Srewp's SAYF Share Ovtion
Plan and Share Incenuve Plan Senior managers participate in the
long-term incentive plan

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors 15 more
weaghted towards variable pay than for other employees to make a
greater part of their pay conditional on the successful delwvery of
business strategy, and in line with shareholder interests In
addition, more of senior level remuneration 1s deferred than 1s the
case for the workforce as a whole

Employees were not consulted in respect of the Directors’
remuneration pohcy, but the Commuttee does consider the
remuneration arrangements for the broader employee population
when determumng the policy for the Executive Directors
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Remuneration Scenaros for Executive Directors

The chart below shows how the proportion of each Execunive Director’s remuneration package varies at different levels of performance
1n accordance with the policy to be implemented 1n 2015 and using the assumptions set out below A sigmificant proporoon of
remuneration 1s linked to performance, particularly at maximum performance levels

Assumptions

Threshold = fixed pay only (salary, benefits and pension)

Target = fixed pay plus 60% vesting of the annual bonus and 50% vesting of PSP awards

Maximum = fixed pay plus 100% vesting of the annual bonus and PSP awards

Salartes used are those applying on 1 March 2015 and taxable benefits are those reported for the year ending 31 December 2014
Pension 15 based on 2015 policy apphed to 1 March 2015 salaries

Amounts have been rounded to the nearest £1,000 Participation in all employee plans, dividends payable on PSP awards over the vesting
period or on deferred share bonus awards are not included 1n the above scenartos and the table assumes no mcrease to the share price

Service Contracts

The Company’s policy 15 that service contracts may be terminated with 12 months’ notice from either the Company or from the
Executive Director (except in certain exceptional recruitment situations where a longer notice period from the Company may be set
provided 1t reduces to a maxunum of 12 months with a specified tume himity Service contracts do not contain a fixed end date

Under thetr service contracty the Executive Directors are entitled to salary, pension contributions and benefits for therr notice period
{except on termination for events such as gross misconduct where payment will be for sums earned up to the date of termination with
no notice period only) The Company would seek to ensure that any payment 1s mingated by use of phased payments and offset against
earnings elsewhere 1n the event that an Executive Director finds alternative employment during his notice period There are no
contractual provisions in force other than those set out above that impact any termination payment
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
for the year ended 31 December 2014

In summary the position on cessation of employment 15 as follows

Provision Detailed terms

Notice period 12 months by either party

Termmation payment Base salary plus benefits (including pension) An express obhigation on the Executive to mitigate hus
loss Payments can be made on a monthly basis and reduced if an Executive 1s able to secure alternative
employment

Lis addit or any statntory amounts would be paid as necessary

Remuneration entitlements A pro-rata bonus may alse become payable for the period of active service along witn the vesung &f
on cessation outstanding share awards (in certain circumstances as described below)

Change of control As on termination and with remuneration entitlements as described above

When considering the size of any proposed termunation payment, the Commuttee would take mto account a number of factors
including the health, length of service and performance of the relevant executive, including the duty to mitigate his own loss, with a
broad aim to avoid rewarding poor performance while deahing fairly with cases where the departure 1s due to other reasons, for
example 1llness or redundancy

Any unvested awards held under the PSP schemes will lapse at cessation, unless the indwvidual 1s leaving for certain reasons (defined
under the plan as death, mjury, ill-health, disabihity, redundancy, retirement, his office or employment being either a company which
ceases to be a Group member or relating to a business or part of a business which 1s transferred to a person who 15 not a Group member,
or any other reason the Commuttee so decides) In these circumstances, unvested awards will normally vest at the normal vesting date
{unless the Committee decides they should vest at cessation) subject to performance conditions being met and scaling back i respect of
actual service as a proportion of the total vesting period (unless the Committee decides that scaling back 15 mappropriate) The same
approach applies on a change of control

Any unvested awards held under the Deferred Bonus Scheme will lapse at cessation unless the Commuttee determines otherwise In
these circumstances the Comnmuttee may determine that unvested awards will vest at the cessation (unless the Committee decides
they should vest at the normal vesting date)

The Commuttee may agree to the payment of disbursements such as legal costs and outplacement services if appropriate and depending
on the circumstances of the leaving Executive

Non-executive Directors’ Letters of Appointment

The Non-executive Directors (including the Chairman) do not have service contracts or any benefits in kind arrangements and do not
participate 1n any of the Group's pension or incentive arrangements The appointment of each Non-executive Director can be
termunated by giving three months’ notice {subject to annual re-appointment at the AGM) Any period of service longer than six years
1s subject to parncularly rigorous review by the Nomination Commuttee of the Board The Non-executive Directors’ letters of
appointment do not provide for any payment on termination except for accrued fees and expenses to the date of termnation

The terms and conditions of Executive Directors’ service contracts and the letters of appointment of the Non-executive Directors are
available tor inspection at the Company's registered office during normal business hours and at the AGM, the details of which can be
found on page 30

External Appointments

Executive Directors are permitted to be appeinted to an external board or commuttee so long as this 1s unlikely to interfere with the
business of the Group Any fees recerved 1n respect of external appointments are retained by the relevant Executive Director
Currently, the only Executive Director who acts as a non-executive director on the Board of another listed company, 15 David Lamb,
who 18 a non-executive director of The Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust ple

Registered No 03183415




Annual Report on Remuneration

The Annual Remuneration Report below will be put to an
advisory shareholder vote at the 2015 AGM The information on
pages 80 to 86 has been audited where indicated

How the Committee operates to set the
Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Commuttee, on behalf of the Board,
determines the Company’s remuneration policy and the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors of the
Company and the Chairman In addition, the Commuittee
momtors the remuneration of the senior management team,
mncluding the Group Risk Director and his senior colleagues in the
Risk Mivision (including employees classified as Code Staft) and
oversees the operation of the executive long term mcentive
schemes and all employee share schemes

The membership and terms of reference of the Commuttee are
reviewed annually and the terms of reference are available on the
Company’s website

Membership of and Attendance at the

Remuneration Committee Meetings

Sumon [effreys and Roger Yates were appointed as members of the
Commuttee from 1 January 2014 Sarah Bates stepped down as
Chairman of the Commuttee after the AGM in May 2014, to be
replaced by Roger Yates Details of attendance at the meetings of
the Remuneration Committee throughout the year can be found
on page 55

The Commuittee receives advice from several different sources
— The Cornpany Secretary who acts as Secretary to the
Committee and provides advice on corporate governance, legal
and regulatory 1ssues as well as the design and operation of the
long term incentive schemes
— Members of the executive team or other third parties as the
Committee sees fit including
~ the Chief Executive to provide information on corporate or
individual performance to the Commttee, or to provide
recommendations regarding the remuneration packages of
individual Dhirectors,
— the Chairman to provide information on the performance
of individual Directors, including the Chief Executive,
— the Chicf Financial Ofheer to provide explanations on
financial information relating to the Group,
— the Charrman of the Risk Committee as part of the
Company’s risk management process, and
— New Bridge Street as independent adviser to the Commattee

Any recommendations from the management team are discussed
by the Commuttee and adopted or amended as the Commuttee
sees fit No Director 1s present at any part of a meeting of the
Commuttee when their individual remuneration or contractual
terms are bemng discussed
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Adwvisers to the Commattee

The Comrruttee 1s advised by independent remuneration
consultants New Bridge Street (NBS) NBS's appomntment as
adviser to the Commuttee 1s reviewed annually by the Commuttee

NES provided advice to the Committee on remuneration matters
generally, including on executive pay, the legislation on
remuneration reporting and incentive plans which are of
particular relevance to the Company NBS 15 a signatory to the
Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct, which requires its
advice to be impai tial NBS has confirmed to the Commuittee 1ts
comphance with the Code

The total fees paid to New Bridge Street for the advice provided
to the Commuittee during the year were £100,047 {excluding
VAT) Fees are charged predominately on a ‘“ime spent’ basis

NBS has not provided any other services to the Company during
the year However, certain subsidiaries of Aon ple, the parent
company of NBS, have provided some consultancy work relating
to property fund monitoring and hedge funds to the Investment
Committee and the fees for this work during 2014 were £128,140
{excluding VAT) The Commuttee has been advised of the basis on
which NBS 1s erganised and managed as part of the wider Aon
organiation and the basis on which its staff are remunerated and
1s satisfied that the addizional services provided by other Aon
group companies did not 1n any way compromise the
independence of advice provided by NBS to the Commuttee

Engagement with Shareholders

As explamned 1n last year’s Remuneration Report, during 2013,
the Remuneration Commiuttee reviewed the Remuneration Policy
for the Executive Directors and other semior executives As part
of this pracess, 1t sought the views of the Company’s major
shareholders and investor representatives and was pleased that
shareholders overwhelmingly approved the Group’s remuneration
policy at the 2014 AGM (99 85% voted 1n favour of the
resclution)

The Commttee 1s updated on the latest views of major
shareholders {and their representative bodies) through meetings
with investors (and their representative bodies) and from various
written communications recetved including published guidelines
and the Chairman of the Commttee 1s happy to meet with
shareholders on request to discuss any concerns regarding
remuneration 1ssues, should they arise
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
for the year ended 31 December 2014

How the Remuneration Policy will be applied for 2015
2015 Salary Review

The base salaries of the Executive Directors are not being increased 1n 2015 However the Commuttee retains the discretion to award

salary increases in line with the Directors’ remuneration policy i future years
'

The current salaries as at 1 March 2014 and from 1 March 2015 are as follows

Ingrease from

1 March 2014

Salary from  balary trom 10 1 Mar¢n

Director 1 March 2014 1 March 2015 2018
David Bellamy £492,000  £492,000 0%
Andrew Croft £356,000  £356,000 0%
lan Gascorgne £356,000 £356,000 0%
Dawvid Lamb £356,000 £356,000 0%

Annual Bonus
The Executive Directors’ maximum bonus opportunity for 2015 will be the same as for 2014 being 150% of salary Half of the annual
bonus will be determined by EEV operating profit and half by key strategic targets

50% of the annual bonus earned for performance in 2015 will be paid 1n cash and the remaining 50% will be deferred 1n SJP shares for
a three year pertod and subject to coniinued service

The EEV operating profit target set by the Commutiee 15 based on a shiding seale ta progressively reward incremental performance The
EEV result 15 calculated based on ‘best estimate’ assumptions and any deviation or changes from these assumptions are reported asan
experience variance or an aperating assumptton change In setting the operating profit target for the year it 15 assumed the combined
operating experience variance and operating assumption changes will have a neutral impact on the outcome for the year In setting the
2015 EEV Operating Profit target, the Commuttee mantained the new business and expense growth objectives at the same level as in
previous years However, 1t was recognised that, m comparison to the 2014 operating profit target, the 2015 contribution to operating
profit from the unwind of the discount rate will be negatively impacted by the lower discount rate, due to the 1 2% reduction n the
UK ten-year Government gilt yreld during 2014

The Board considers that the performance targets for the annual bonus are commercially sensmtive and 1s not disclosing them at this
time The performance metrics and performance against them will be disclosed i the 2015 Remuneration Report to the extent that
they do not remain commerctally sensitive at that time

The team element of the 2015 annual bonus will be assessed by reference to key strategic targets based around the 2015 business plan,
including elements relating to chients, shareholders and other key stakeholders Specific objectives include the delivery of excellent
service to the Group's clients as measured by surveys and other client feedback, enhancing the range of investment funds and
maintaining strong investment performance, the successful recruitment and retention of high quality new Partners, successfully
implementing the new admimstration system and transferring certain existing assets onto the new system, successfully controlling and
mitigating the material risks that could impact the Group, and maintaining the Greup’s good relations with 1ts shareholders and
regulators

Registered Mo 03183415
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Performance Share Plan Awards
As set out 1n the pelicy approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM the Executive Drrectors will each receive a PSP award 1 2015 of
190% of salary, except for David Bellamy who will recerve a PSP award of 200% of salary

The PSP awards to be granted in 2015 will be subject to a relative TSR performance condition for one-third of the award and earnings
per share growth targets for two-thirds of the award as follows

Average annual adjusted Average annual adjusted EPS

FPS growth (including the growth (excluding the

unwind of the discount rate) unwind of the discount rate)

TSR relative to the FTSE 51 to 150 {Note 1) 1n excess of RPI (Note 2) 1n excess of RPI (Note 2)

% of one % of one % of one

thard of third of ‘' third of

award award award

Performance level hurdle Performance requrred vesting Perlormance required vesting Performance required vesting
Below threshold Below Median 0% Below 5% 0% Below 5% 0%
Threshold Median 25% At least 5% 25% At least 5% 25%
Stretch or above Upper Quartile or above 100% 16% or above 100% 16% or above 100%

Note |
FTSE §) to 150 exchading investment trusts and compamies in the FTSE o1l gas producers and miming sectors Straight line vesung occurs in between threshold and masimum vesting

Note 2

The Brst EPS performance condition 1s calculated by reference ta adjusted consolidated profit after tax on the EEV basis of accousting for both the Life and unat tryst businesses (on a fully duuted per share
basis) The eflect of the adjustment to the consolidated after tax figures will be 10 atrip out the past tax EEV investment variance and any ecanomic assumption change in the final year of the performance
period at these factors are nor withun the control of management and ean produce wide variations eo reparted earnengs due to stock marker uctuations However this measure of EPS 15 still impacted by
stock market movements In the prior year duc to the impact of any such moverents o the unwind of the discount rate 1n the current year

The second EPS performance candition 1= calculated 10 a aimilar way to the firn EPS condition save that a further adjustment 15 made to strap oyt the impact of the unwind of the discount rate Thas
adjastment elminates any direct impact of stock market volatlity and changes in the economic assumptions throughout the whole three year period of the performance condition

Straight line vesting occurs in between threshold and maximum vesting

Fees for the Chairman and Non-executive Directors

The fees for the Chairrman and Non-executive Directors from 1 January 2014 to 30 June 2014 are as set out in column 1 below In early
2014 the Executive Directors and Chairman reviewed the Non-executive Directors fee structure with a view to stmphification The
stmplified structure provides a higher base fee which includes commuttee membership (rather than paying 2 base fee and additional
committee membership fees) The additional fee for the Chairmanship of 2 Committee continues This revised fee structure was
implemented from 1 July 2014 and 15 set out 1n column 2 below The revised fee structure did not result 1n an aggregate increase to the
fees pard to the Non-exccutive Dircctors 1n the second half of 2014, when compared to the first half of 2014, although the fees paid to
some Non-executive Directors increased due to taking on additional responsibilities For 2015, the fees of the Chatrman and the
Non-executive Directors have been increased by 3%, 1n recogmition of their increased workload, regulatory responsibilities and the
size of the Group The 2015 fee levels are set out in column 3 of the table below

) 2) (3)
Fees from

Fees 10 1Julyto  Feesfrom
30]June 31 December 1 January
2014 2014 2018
Charrman £170,000 £170,000 £175,100
Base fee £27,000 £56,500 £58,200
Audit Committee Member £16,250 N/A N/A
[nvestment Committee Member £26,000 N/A N/A
Risk Committee Member £13,000 N/A N/A
Remuneration Committee Member £9,750 N/A N/A
Nemination Committee Member £6,500 N/A N/A
Committee Chair £6,500 £16,000 £16,480
Semor Independent Director £2,700 £2,700  £2,780
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Remuneration Payable 1n respect of Performance 1n 2014

Durectors’ Remuneration (audited

The following table sets out each element of remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 {or period thereof for
appointments or cessations dunng the year)

Salary Annual Long-term
& fees Benefits™ bonus™  incentrves® Pension™ Total
£ £ L £ £ i
Bvaentive Threctors
David Bellamy 201 4890,8¢7 57 RR7 701 100 1,847,115 97,933 3,193,682
2013 475,833 59,516 563,244 2,168,891 25,167 3,362,651
Andrew Croft 2014 354,333 41,613 507,300 1,229,315 70,867 2,203,428
2013 344,333 41,191 407,704 1,443,465 68,867 2,305,560
fan Gascoigne 2014 354,333 49 508 507,300 1,229,315 70,867 2,211,323
2013 344 333 47,619 407,704 1,443,465 68,867 2,311,988
David Lamb™? 2014 354,333 46,176 507,300 1,229,315 70,867 2,207,991
2013 344,333 50,585 407,704 1,443,465 68,867 2,314,954
Non-executive Directors
Sarah Bates (Chairman)™ 2014 170,000 170,000
2013 66,675 66,675
Vivian Bazalgette 2014 42,750 42,750
2013 82,850 82,950
[ain Cormish® 2014 74,658 74,658
2013 67,200 67,200
Simon Jeffreys 2014 68,167 68,167
2013 - -
Patience Wheatcroft™ 2014 56,375 56,375
2013 48,300 48,300
Roger Yates 2014 61,938 61,938
2013 - -
Notes

(1) Benefits comprse the entitletment ta company car or cash equivalent, fuel privare health care Lfe and crstical illness coner permanent health Insurance and health screening and are generally the amounts
which are returned for tuxation purposes

(u) Asexplained on page 70, hall of the annual bonus i pard i cash, with the other half being used 1o purchase St james s Place shares which are subject 1o forfesture for three years under the terms of the
Deferred Bonus Scheme

(111) The value of the lonp term incentives is the value of shares vesting under the PSP scheme in the year (12 the three year performance period ends in that year) together with the value of the dividends that
would bave been Leceived during the three vear performance period The figures for 2014 have been calculated vung the average of the §[P thare price in the three manth period to 31 December 2014,
being £7 51, as the actual vesting date of the PSP award o on 26 March 2015 The figures for 2013 have been updated from the tiree month average figur es used wn last year's report (beng £1,726,979 for
David Bellamy and £1 149,358 for Andrew Croft lan Gascoigne and Davad Lamb) to take into account the S|P share price on the date of vesting on 15 March 2014, being £8 25

{tv) Contributions made to the money purchase group pension scheme for the Executive Directors, being 20% of base salary To the extent that pension contnbutions were capped by legislation, &
non pensiotable salary supplement was paid to the Executive Directors for the balance

() Sarzh Dates was sppointed Charr of the Board on | January 20{4 The flex tncreases for Jain Carnish and Panence Wheateroft between 2013 and 2014 ave due to wn increase 1n thair Comrmttes
respensibilities and Jain Cornish b g the scmor independent director from 1 Janvary 2014

(v} Make Wilsan aformer direetor of the Company, was paid £200 00011 2014 (£200 000 15 2013) in respect of hisrole as Charrman of the 5t James s Place Foundati
mentoring various members of the St James s Place Partnership

(v1) David Lamb was 2 non execuuve director of the Henderson Smaller Companies Investment Trust ple during the year and was paid a fee of £19,375 1n 2014 10 connection with that rele (2013 £4,500)

and

Acad
g the y

Details of Variable Pay Earned in the Year

Annual Bonus
For the year under report, the performance conditions which apphed to the bonus and the resulting payout under these were as follows

Weighting Weighting Maxamum Payout Payout
Mecasure (%ofsalary) (Y ofmaximum) Threshold value Actual (% ofsalary) (% of maxunum)
EEV operating T5% 50% £497m  £549m £596 4m 75% 50%
profit range of
between £497m
and £545m
{Note 1)
Strategic 75% 50% Assessment by the Commuttee Performance 67 5% 45%
business of the performance of the assessed
plan objectives Executive Directors as a teamn by the Commuttee
in relanion to the various as
aobjectives set by the Commuttee described more
at the start of the year fully below
‘Total Payout 142 5% 95%

Note! Insetting the operating profit target for the year it was assurned that the combined operatng experience vasance and operaring assumption changes woald hae a neuteal Irmpact on the outcome
for the year The actual outcone for the year Included a combined potitng umpact to the cperating profiz from these two ems of £81 5 ullion The Cammuttee concluded that this positne
outcome was as 3 result of management action during the year and should therefore be mcluded when assessing the bonus payout for the year
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Annual Bonus Strategic Targets Performance

Assessment

As described 1n other parts of the Report and Accounts, the
Company dehivered strong performance 1n 2014 for our clients,
shareholders and other stakeholders The Commuttee considered
these three groups when setting the strategic targets for 2014,
together with other objectives set outin the 2014 business plan
In serving our clients well, developing our employees and the
Partnership for the future and striving to improve the
eftectiveness of our organisation, we will be best placed to meet
our long-term business objectives, and create additional value for
our shareholders We also focus on the importance of safe and
sustainable growth through prudent managerment of risk and the
highest standards of regulatory comphance

The Commuttee assessed how well the Executive team had
performed in relation to the objectives set at the start of the year
The Commuttee did not place fixed werghtings on the factors
assessed, but made a judgement based on the Commuttee’s view of
the relative importance and rmpact of those factors over the
course of the year For some factors the Commuttee putn place
quantitative metrics, and for others qualitative judgments were
made, depending on the nature of the strategic objective

As regards client satisfaction, the Committee took into account

the following objectives

— the independent clent satisfaction survey results for 2014 were
very strong and 1n some categories the results were the highest
achieved since the annual survey began in 2007 In sumnmary,
83% of chents rated their ‘overall satisfaction’ with SJP as 8 or
more out of 10 {compared to 84% in 20i3) and 83% of clients
would be happy to recommend SJP to their contacts
{compared to 81% 1n 2013) Client service continues to be a
key differentiator with 88% of clients rating 8 or more out ot
10 1n relation to the statement ‘SJP provides excellent client
service ’ In the annual Wealth Account survey, 94% of chents
would recommend §]P to friends or contacts and 52% of those
surveyed have done so already,

— clients continued to benefit from above average performance
acrass the majority of funds, aver a five and ten year period
Over the ten year period 65% of funds outperformed their peer
group As regards the range of standard fund portfolios available
to chients, the majority of portiohios outperformed the relevant
[nvestment Asscciation sector in 2014, with 7 out of 8 portfolios
outperforming the relevant Asset Risk Consultants (ARC)
Private Client Index,

— the Group won a number of industry awards, further details of
which are set out on page 40, many of which were voted on by
clients, and

— the above factors, together with strong service levels, generally
contributed to excellent retention of funds under management,
with 96% of existing funds being retained (see page 32 for
further details) and a 7% reduction 1n complaint levels
compared to 2013
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In terms of strategic objectives designed to ensure the success of

the business in the future, the Commuttee took 1nte account

— the growth in the size of the Partnership of 6 3% 1n 2014,

— the success of the Academy in attracting switable candidates to
the courses run in 2014, the establishment of a new Academy
based 1n Manchester and 75 advisers graduating from the
Academy and jowning the Partnership 1n 2014,

— the hugh levels of retention for both employees and members of
the Partnership, assisted by additional traiming and
development opportumities for both the senior management
team, the Partnership and the workforce generally,

— strong results from the employee survey conducted in 2014,
with employee engagement measured at 7% (compared to
86% trom the last survey 1n 2012) and significantly ahead ot
the finaneial services comparator group, and

— the improvement to documentation standards 1n relation to
new business submitted by the Partnership

In addition to the above, the Commuttee assessed and noted the
satisfactory completion of the various strategic objectives set out
mn the business plan, including

— the completion of the acquisition to purchase the Henley
Group n Asa,

— conuinumng positlve engagement with the Group's regulators,

~ the completion of various objectives designed to enhance and
strengthen the moﬁltormg and mitigation of key regulatory
risks impacting the Group,

— the introduction {on a pilot basis) of the new admuinistration
platform for some umt trust and ISA business,

— the continuing development of the Group’s range of funds, the
range of fund managers available to chents and the
strengthening of the investment Committee, and

— the ongoing success of the Group’s CSR objectives, mcluding
raising a record £6m for the Foundation and expanding the
volunteering opportunities available to employees

Taking all the above strategic objectives into account, the
Committee awarded a bonus of 67 5% of salary (90% of the
maximum) under the team performance element of the annual
bonus scheme, recogmsing that a lugh proportion of the strategic
objectives were graded as "outstanding’ or ‘above stretch’ and that
nearly all of the major business plan objectives had been
satisfactonly completed

Notea
{} The Commuttee has the discretion to srale back the annual bonus payable In respect of the
strategic measures 1Fjt conmders st inappropriate o the context of the overall fnancal result
of the Group The Commuttee reviewed the Group s performance and agreed that no

scale back was appropriate

The Committee retains the discretion 10 amend each dement of the bonus cp or down
within the overall cap of 150% of salary to take into account other relevant factors such as the
dto

)

Group's perlormance ganusations or, for (1.}

P ) P

pasitive or negative event which impacts the Group The Committet reviewed the Group's
performance as well 83 competitors and the external market at the end of the performance
peried and agreed that ro adjustment was required

(il1) Hall of the bonus i3 paid in cash, with ther d d 1 the C

and deferred for three years under the Group s deferred bonus plan

being s shares

pany
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Directors’ Remuneration Report conunued
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Long Term Incentive Awards

Vesting of Performance Share Plan (PSP) awards (audited)
On 31 December 2014, the awards made on 26 March 2012 under the PSP reached the end of their three year performance period
These will vest on 26 March 2015, being the third anmiversary of the date of grant The performance conditions which applied to the
2012 PSP awards, and the actual performance achieved against these conditions, are set out in the table below

TSR relative to the FTSE 250%

Average annual adjusted
EPS growth (including the
unwind of the discount rate)
10 eXCcess 0L KL

Average annual adjusted
EPS growth (excluding the
unwind of the discount rate)

~ g.cecs of RPY

% of one % of one % of one

third of third of third of

award award award

Performance level hurdle Performance required vesting Performance required vesting Performance required vesting
Below threshold Below Median 0% Below 5% 0% Below 5% 0%
Threshold Median 25% At least 5% 25% At least 5% 25%
Stretch or above Upper Quarule or above 100% 16% or above 100% 16% or above 100%
Actual Achieved 29 out of 168 compames 100% 18 6% 100% 14 4% 89 1%

Above Upper Quartle

*  FTSE 250, excluding investment trusts and companses in the FTSE ¢l gas and mining sectors

Accordingly, the total percentage of the 2012 PSP awards vesting was 96 37%, which resulted 1n the following awards vesting to the

Executive Directors

Total Value of

number Percentage Number shares

of shares of awards of shares vesting

Director granted vesting vesting {£000)
David Bellamy 242,220 %96 37% 233,419 £1,753
Andrew Croft 161,206 %6 37% 155,348 £1,167
[an Gascoigne 161,206 96 37% 155,348 £1,167
David Lamb 161,206 26 37% 155,348 £1,167

Note 1 The deemed share price used to calculate the value of shares veating was £7 51 bemg the 3 month average to 31 Decemnber 2014 (as the awards wiil not actually vest unul 26 March 2015)

Share Awards granted to the Executive Directors in 2014

Number of
SIP shares % of face
Average over which value that
share price award was Face value would vest
at date of granted ofaward  at threshold
Director Type of award Basis of award granted grant (Note 1) (£'000) performance
David Bellamy Nil cost option 190% of salary of £492,000 £8 515 109,782 £935 25%
Andrew Croft Nil cost option 175% of salary of £356,000 £8 515 73,165 £623 25%
Tan Gascoigne Ni! cost option 175% of salary of £356,000 £8 515 73,165 £623 25%
David Lamb Nil cost option 175% of salary of £356,000 £8 515 73,165 £623 25%

Mote 1 The number of shares awarded was calculated based on the average share price over a period of three days prior to the date of grant on 26 March 2014, being £8 515 per share The face value of
the award figure 15 calculated by multiplylag the number of shares awarded by the average share price figure of £3 515

PSP awards are structured as nil cost options and there 15 therefore no exercise price payable on exercise Dividend equivalents acerue
to the Executive Directors between the date of grant and exercise of the award (up to a maximum of five years trom date of grant), but
are released only to the extent that awards vest Further details of the performance conditions which apply to the awards are set outin

Notes 1 and 2 on page 79
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Total Shareholder Return Performance

The graph below shows a comparisen of the Company’s TSR performance against the FTSE All-Share index over the last six financial
years The Company considers this to be the most appropriate comparative index, given the broad nature of the index and the
compantes withinat

Total Remuneration for the Chief Executive

The table below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chiet Executive during each of the financial years shown The total
temuneratton figure includes the annual banus and long-term meentive awards which vested based on performance in those years (and
ending 1n that year for PSP scheme awards)

Year ending 31 December

y1oday odareng

|

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Total Remuneration £1,039,723 £1,495,600 £1,998,758 £2,410,380 £3,362,651 £3,193 682
Annual Bonus (% of maximum) 92% 96% 63% 46% 98% 95%
LTIP vesting (% of maximum} 0% 57% 83% 87% 95% 96 37%

The deemed value of the PSP award m the table above for 201415 £1,752,997 Of thas, £881,624 15 due to mcreases in the SJP share
price over the vesting period, being an increase of 101%

The value of long-term incentive awards for 2014 has been calculated using the average of the §]P share price in the three month period
to 31 December 2014, being £7 51, as the actual vesting date of the PSP award 15 on 26 March 2015 The 2013 figure for total
remuneration has been updated by substituting the three month average figure used to calculate the value of long-term mcentive awards
1n last year’s report by a revised figure based on the S]P share price on the date of vesting on 15 March 2014, bemg £8 25

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The following table sets out the percentage change in profit, dividends and overall spend on pay in the year ending 31 December 2014,

compared to the year ending 31 December 2013

2013 2014 Percentage

£Milhion £Milhon change

Operaung profit after tax 190 3 1879 (1%)
Dividends 821 1207 47%
Employee remuneration costs 88 6 1117 26%

The increase i the employee remuneration costs in 2014 were largely due to an increase tn employee headcount (partly as a result of
the acquisition of the Henley Group i Asia), and an increase to the costs of share awards due to the headcount increase and the

increase 1n the SJP share price
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Directors’ Remuneration Report conanued
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Percentage Increase 1in the Remuneration of the Chief Executive
The table below shows the percentage movement in the salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive between the current
and previous financial year compared to that for the average Group employee

% change

2013 to 2014
Chief Executive
Salary 29
Benefits {(Note 1) 28
Bonus 24 5
Average per Employee
Salary 32
Benefits 24
Bonus 129

Note1  See Note (1) on page BO for further detuils

Share Awards
The tables below set out details of share awards that have been granted to individuals who were Directors during 2014 and which had
yet to vest at some point during the year

Performance Share Plan — awards held 1 return for anhﬁfmg Services during 2014 (audlted)

Balanceat Granted Lapsed  Exercised Balance at
Darector 1 Janvary 2014 n year"? 1 yearl? tnyear™ 31 December 2014 Dates from which exercisable
David Bellamy 267,322® - 13,352 - 253,970 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
242,220 - — - 242,220 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
176,178 - - - 176,178 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
109,782 - - 105,782 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
Andrew Croft 177,9120 - 8,887 - 169,025 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
¥ 161,206™ - - - 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
' 117,458 - — - 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
73,165 - - 73,165 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
lan Gascoigne 177,912¢ — 8,887 - 169,025 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206W - - - 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,458 - - - 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
73,165 - - 73,165 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020
David Lamb 177,9120 - 8,887 - 169,025 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206M = - - 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
117,4584% - - - 117,458 21 Mar 2016 to 21 Mar 2019
73,165 - - 73,165 26 Mar 2017 to 26 Mar 2020

Notes

@) These awards were made on 15 March 2011 when the St James's Place share price was £3 14 The performance period is the three year period ending on 31 December 2013 The performance condstions,
each in rerpect of one third of the award relate to (i) EP5 (including the impact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described more fully on page 71) (1) EPS exchuding the impact of the said unwind
and (u1) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding investment trusts and companies n the wml, pas and muning sectors The EPS scale starts st RPI-+6% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at R
+16% For 100% of the award to vest with pro rata vesting between the said paints The TSR shding scale 1s between median and upper quartile with 25% of the TSR part of the award vesting at median

(i} These awards were made on 26 March 2012 when the St James’s Place share price was £3 733 The performance period i the three year period ending on 3t Decerber 2014 The perfortance condutions
eachinrespect of one thmd of the award, rehate to (1) EPS (lacluding the impact of the unwind of the discount rate, as descrabed more fully on page 71) () EPS excluding the impact of the sad umwind and
(1) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index, excluding investment trusts and companics 1n the otl, gas and minmg seetors The EPS scale starts at RPI +5% for 25% of the award to vest and ends st RPE +16%
for 100% of the award to vest with pro rata vesting between the sad points The TSR slding scale 1sbetween median and upper quartile with 25% of the TSR part of the award vestmg at medun

{1} These awards were miade on 21 March 2013 when the St James 1 Place share price was £5 07 The performance period 1 the three year period ending on 31 December 2015 The three performance
conditions, each in respect ol one third of the award, relate to (1) EPS {inctuding the unpact of the unwind of the discount rate, as deseribed more fully on page 71) (i1} EPS excluding the impact of the said
unwind and (1if) TSR compared to the FTSE 250 Index excluding inveatment trusts and compames in the o1 gas and mining sectors The EPS scale starts at RP1 +5% for 25% of 1he award to vest and
ends 2t RP1 +16% far 100% of the award 1o vest, with pro rata vesting between the sard points. The TSR sliding scale 1 between median and upper quartile with 25% of the TSR part of the award vesting
atmednn Up to774 shares (being the maximum value under the £30% Inlind Revenue cap on approved share optlons) can be exercised via a hnked award under an approved share optian scheme with an
excrase price of £5 155

(i) These awards were made on 26 March 2014 when the St. James s Place thare price was £8 515 The performance period s the three year penod ending on 31 December 2016 The three performance conditians, each
i respect of one third of the award relate to (1) EPS (including the impact of the unwind of the discount rate a3 descnibed more Fully on page 71 (1) EPS exchuding the tmpact of the sald unwind and (ui) TSR
compared to the FTSE 51 150 Index exchiding investment trusts and compantes in the cl, gas and muning sectors The EPS scale starts 2t RPE45% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at RPI +16% for 100% of
the award 1o vest, with pro rata vesting between the said points. The TSR stiding scale 1 between medsan and upper quartde with 25% of the TSR, pars of theaward vesting st median Up to3,054 shares (being the
muxanmum value under the £30k Intand Revenue cap on approved share options) can be exerased viaa linked award under an approved share option scheme with an exercuse price of £8 515

(+) Theae awards lapsed dur ta the perfarmance condnion based an FPS {more fully descnbed un note (1) above) nor being fully satisfied and axa resule 14 9R4% of the award lapsed at the end af the
performance period (13 352 shars lapsed for Dand Bellamy and 8,887 shares lapzed for the other Exetutive Directors)

v1) Mone of the Directors exercised PSP awards in 2014
Registered No 03183415




Deferred Bonus Scheme — Shares held during 2014 (audited)
The table below sets out details of the awards held by the Directors under the deferred element of the annual bonus scheme during 2014
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Balance at Released Awarded Balance at
Director 1 January 2014 dunng year® during year® 31 December 2014610 Vesting date
David Bellamy 77,558 77,558 - - 15 Mar 2014
49,563 - - 49,563 26 Mar 2015
24,591 - - 24,591 21 Mar 2016
- 33,924 13,924 26 Mar 2017
Andrew Croft 58,397 58,397 - — 15 Mar 2014
35,813 - - 35,813 26 Mar 2015
17,769 - - 17,769 21 Mar 2016
- 24,556 24,556 26 Mar 2017
lan Gascoigne 58,397 58,397 - - 15 Mar 2014
35,813 - - 35,813 26 Mar 2015
17,769 - - 17,769 21 Mar 2016
- 24,556 24,556 26 Mar 2017
David Lamb 58,397 58,397 - - 15 Mar 2014
35,813 - - 35,813 26 Mar 2015
17,769 - - 17,769 21 Mar 2016
- 24,556 24,556 26 Mar 2017
Notes

(1) These deferred share awards were awarded on 15 March 2011 equal i value to the Executive’s 2010 annual cash boous The 5t James's Place share price on the date of the award was £3 |4 and on the date

of release {15 March 2014) was £8 25

@) These deferred share awards were swarded on 26 March 2014, equal ta value to the Executive £ 2013 annual cash bonus These shares will be held for a restricted pertod ending on 26 March 2017 The

St Jaumes's Flace thare price o 26 March 2014 was €8 515

(i) Qutstanding awards at the year end relate to deferred shire awards awarded :n 2012 2013 and 2014 (see (1i) above) The share price at the date ol the 2012 award (26 March 2012) was £3 733 and 25 at the

date of the 2013 sward (21 March 2013) was £5 07

(1v) Purther detauls af the deferred element of the annual boous scheme are <et aut on page 70 Dividends acere i the Executive Nireciors during the three vear perind while the shares are subjeat to foefesture

SAYE Share Option Scheme — Shares held during 2014 (aud:ted)
Details of the options held by the Directors in 2014 under the SAYE scheme and any movements during the year are as follows

Options Options
held at held at
1January Grantedin Lapsedin  Exercised 31 December Exercise
Director 20i4 year year myear 2014 price Dates from which exercisable
David Bellamy 3,040 - - - 3,040 £2 96 t May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
Andrew Croft 3,040 — - — 3,040 £2 96 I May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
lan Gascoigne 3,272 - - — 3,272 £275 1 Nov 2015 to 30 Apr 2016
David Lamb 3,272 — — — 3,272 £275 1 Nov 2015 to 30 Apr 2016
Note

(1) At 31 December 2014 the mid marke: price for St James's Place shares was £B 145 The range of prices between | January 2014 and 31 December 2014 wis between £6 480 and £8 795

Share Incentive Plan - Shares held during 2014 (aucﬁted)

The table below sets out detals of the awards held by the Directors under the Share Inceative Plan during 2014

Balance at Partnership  Matching shares  Dividend shares Balance at

1 January sharesallocated allocated allocated 31 December
Darector 2004 during year during year during year 2014 Holding period (matching shares)
Andrew Croft® 642 - - - 642 26 Mar 2010 to 26 Mar 2013
325 - - - 325 26 Mar 2013 w0 26 Mar 2016
Tan Gascorgne™ 502 - - - 502 28 Mar 2011 to 28 Mar 2014

176

210 26 Mar 2014 w0 26 Mar 2017

Notes
{1) No further shares were purchased for Mr Croft during 2014

{li) 176 partnershup thares were awarded on 26 March 2014 st a price of L8 515 per share, tn return for L1 500 being deducted from Mr Gascoigne 1 pre tax salary A further 17 matching shares were
awarded on the same date The dividend received on ail of Mr Gascoigne's sharea in this plan was rewnvested on 20 May 2014 to purchase an additional erght shares at a price of £7 555 The dividend
recerved on all of Mr Gascoigne a shares in this plan was renvested on 25 Sep 2014 to purchase an additional nine shares at a price of L7 23

(m) The partnership, dividend and matching shares will he held by an employes henehr trust on behalf of the Directer The matching and dividend shares must be held for 2 minimum period of three years

from the date of the award
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Directors’ Remuneration Report contnued
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Between 31 December 2014 and 24 February 2015 there were no exercises or other dealings 1n the Company's share awards by
the Directors

Share Interests and Shareholding Guidelines (audited)

To align the interests of the Executive Directors with shareholders, the Executive Directors are required to build up a shareholding
equivalent to 150% of salary, to be achieved through retaning at least 50% of thewr net of taxes gain arising from any shares vesting
or acquired under the various incentive share plans, until such time as the upper limit of their share ownership target has been met

Executives are also required to hold a furiher 5896 of sala ;12 shares and/or in one or more St James’s Place fund portfolios, thus

providing further alignment with shareholders and chents Details of the Directors’ interests 1n shares are shown in the tapie beivw
All of the Executive Directors have met the shareholding guideline

Directors’ Interests in Shares

Shares held Shares held % of base salary held
atlfanuary  at31December in §fP shares asat
Director 2014 2014 31 December 20140
David Bellamy 1,294 458 1,291,838 2,138%
Andrew Croft 803,738 785,980 1,798%
Ian Gascoigne 693,263 660,125 1,510%
Dawid Lamb 415,003 381,162 872%
Sarah Bates 13,500 13,500
Vivian Bazalgette™ 20,000 -
[ain Cornish - -
Simaon Jeffreys™ - 18,364
Patience Wheatcroft 1,500 2,500
Roger Yates™ 10,000 10,000

Notes

() Calculated using the mud market price at 3| December 2014 of £8 145

(1) The incerests of the Directors include thoae of their Connected Persons as defined 10 section 96B(2) of the Financial Services and Markets Act

(1i1) The :nterests of the Executive Directars set aut above include deferred bonus scheme awards held ia trust for the Durectors, details of which are set out on page 85 The mterests of the Executive
Durectors also include awards under the Share Incentive Plan, details of which are sct out on page 85

(i¥) The Company's reguster of Directors’ interests contains full detanls of Directors shareholdings and any share awards under the Company s various share schemes

{¥) Vivian Bazalgette eeased being a member of the Board with effect from 30 June 2014

{v1) Siman Jelfreys and Roger Yatea were appoimted Non exccutive Directors on 1 January 2014

(vu) Dusclosure of the Directors interests in share awards 1 given on pages 84 and 85 of the Remuneration Report 2nd alsa in Note 34 - Related Party Transactions

Between 31 December 2014 and 24 February 2015 there were no transactions in the Company’s shares by the Directors

Executive Directors’ Shareholdings and Outstanding Share Awards

Beneficrally Cutstanding Qutstanding

ownedat PSP awards SAYE options DBS awards SIP shares

31December  (performance (no performance [hoperforrmance  (neperformance

Director 20140 conditions)™ conditions)™ conditions)™ conditions)™
David Bellamy 1,291,838 782,150 3,040 108,078 -
Andrew Croft 785,980 520,854 3,040 78,138 967
lan Gascoigne 660,125 520,854 3,272 78,138 712
David Lamb 381,162 520,854 3,272 78,138 -

(1} Beneficrally owaed shares include those DBS Awards and SIP Shares set out 1n columns (1v) and {v) zhove
{u) Detals on the PSP awards are set put on page 84

() Details on the SAYE options are sct on page 85

(1v) Details on DBS awards are set out onpage 85

(v} Details on the SIP shares are set out on page 85

Dilution

Dilution limits agreed by shareholders at the time of shareholder approval of the various long term incentive schemes allow for
the following

— up to 5% of share capital i ten years to be used for grants to employees under discretionary schemes,

— up to 10% of share capital 1n ten years to be used for grants to employees under all employee share schemes, and

- up to 10% of share capital 1n ten years to be used for grants to employees and members of the St James's Place Partnership under all

share schemes1 e both the employee and ‘Partner’ share schemes

Registered No 03183415
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The table below sets out, as at 31 December 2014, the number of new ordinary shares in the Company which have been 1ssued, or are
capable of being 1ssued (subject to the sausfaction of any applicable performance conditions) as a result of options or awards granted
under the various long term incentive schemes operated by the Company in the ten years prior to 31 December 2014

Share Scheme

% of total 1ssued
share capital asat
3t December 2014

Number of new
ordinary shares
of 15 pence each

SAYE schemes 3,876,708 0 75%
Executive share schemes 11,623,086 2 24%
Partners’ share schemes 19,792,425 3181%
Total 35,292,219 6 80%

In additton, as at 31 December 2014, the Group’s Employee Share Trust held 2,048,288 shares m the Company which were acquired to
satisfy awards made under the PSP and executive share option schemes

A further 1,676,958 shares, registered to employees under the terms of the Group's deferred bonus scheme, have been allocated by the
Group’s Employee Share Trust These shares are allocated to the relevant individuals on a restricted basis whereby the recipients are
not entitled to the shares until completion of the three year restricted period Further details of the deferred bonus scheme are set out
on page 70

Interests in Shares Held 1n Trusts

Certain Execunve Directors and emplayees are deemed to have an interest or a potential interest as potential discretionary beneficiaries
under the St James's Place Employee Share Trust As such, they were treated as at 31 December 2014 as being interested 1n 2,048,288
ordinary shares of 15 pence 1n the Company, such shares being held by § G Hambros Trust Company (Channel Islands) Limited, the
trustee of that trust

Statement of Shareholding Voting at AGM
At last year’s AGM held on 14 May 2014, the Remuneration Policy for the Group and the Drrectors’ Remuneration Report received the
following votes from shareholders

Remuneration Report

uodag :nﬁ';nens

(

Total number of votes % of votes cast

For 340,809,682 99 83%
Against 187,505 0 06%
Abstentions 384,431 011%
Total 341,381,618 100%

Remuneration Policy

Total number of votes % of votes cast
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For 333,159,283 97 5%%
Against 499,327 0 15%
Abstentions 7,723,008 2 26%
Total 341,381,618 100%
Thus report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behaif by .

Roger Yates
Chairman c_lfthe Remuneration Commuttee
24 February 2015
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Report and the Annual Report and
Accounts and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 All of the Directors
were in office throughout the financial year and up to the date of
signing this report with the exception of Vivian Bazalgette, as
detailed below

tor the purposes uf wuuipliance thDTR 41 SR{7}and DTR

4 1 8R, the required content of the “Management Report” can be
found 1n the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report,
including the sections of the Annual Report and Accounts
incorporated by reference Specific reference to CO, emissions
can be found on page 43

For the purposes of compliance with the UK Financial Conduct
Authonity’s Lisuing Rules (LR 9 8 4C), the information required to
be disclosed by LR 5 8 4 can be found in the following sections

Interest Capitalised Not applicable

Publication of Unaudrted
Financial Information

Not applicable

Details of Long Term Incentive The Directors’ Remuneration

Schemes Report on pages 67 to 87
Waiver of Emoluments by a Not applicable

Director

Waiver of Future Emoluments Not applicable

by a Director

Non Pre-Empuve [ssues of Not applicable

Equity for Cash

Item {7} 1n Relation to Major Not applicable

Subsidiary Undertakings

Parent Participation in a Placing  Not applicable

by a Listed Subsidiary

Contracts of Sigmficance Duirectors’ Report

Provision of Services by a Not applicable

Controlling Shareholder

Shareholder Waivers of Dividends Directors’ Report

Shareholder Waivers of Future
Dhividends

Directors’ Report

Agreements with Controlling Not apphcable

Shareholders

Results and Dividends

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income 15 on

pages 101 and 102 and profit for the financial year attributable to
equity shareholders amounted 1o £187 9 rmllion An intenim
dividend of 8 93 pence per share, which equates to £46 1 milhen,
was pawd on 24 September 2014 (2013 6 38 pence

per share/£32 7 million) The Directors recormnmend that
shareholders approve a final dividend of 14 37 pence per share,
which equates to £74 6 mullion (2013 final dividend of 3 58 pence
per share/£49 4 milhon) to be paid on 15 May 2015 to shareholders
on the regster at the close of business on 10 Apnl 2015

In 2012, the Directors introduced a Dividend Reinvestment Plan
(‘DRP’), details of which are set out on page 175

Status of Company
The Company 1s registered as a public himited company under the
Compames Act 2006

For details of the Company's subsidiaries and overseas branches, |
please sue page 150 |

The Directors

Details of the Directors as at 24 February 2015 and their
biographues are shown on pages 50 and 51 Brief particulars of the
Directors’ membership of the Board commuttees are contatned 1n
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 54 to 58

Vivian Bazalgette resigned from the Board with effect from 30
June 2014 No additional payments or benefits were conferred
upon him 1n relation to his departure

The Company’s Articles of Association require that any Director
appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy must stand for
reappointment at the next Anmual General Meeting and that, at
each Annual Genera! Meeting, all those Directors who were
elected or last re-elected at or before the Annual General Meeting
held in the third calendar year before the current year, shall retire
from office by rotation Directors can be removed from office by
an ordinary resolution of shareholders or 1n certain other
circumstances as set out 1in the Articles of Association

In accordance with the recommendations of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the whole Board of Directors will retire by
rotatron at the Annual General Meetingin 2015 Before a Director
18 proposed for re-election by shareholders, the Chairman considers
whethex his or her performance continues to be effective and
whether they demonstrate commitment to the role After careful
consideration, the Chairman s pleased to confirm that, fellowing
the performance evaluation referred to on page 56, the Directors
seelang re-election continue to make a valuable contrbution to the
Roard and continue to dedicate sufficient time to their duties Your
Dhrectors each bring a great deal of experience and expertise to the
Board as a result of ther varied careers and we believe this diversity
15 essentral to contributing to the appropriate mux of slalls and
experience needed by the Board and 1ts commuttees in order to
protect sharehelders’ interests The Board therefore recommends
to 1ts shareholders that all the Directors retiring at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting should be re-elected

Except as stated m the Directors’ Remuneration Report, no
Director has, or has had during the year under review, any material
Interest in any contract or arrangement with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries Details of all Executive Directors’ service contracts
are set out 1n the Remuneration Report on page 75

The Company does not have agreements with any Director or
employee that would provide compensation for less of office or
employment resulting from 2 takeover, except that provisions in the
Company’s share schemes may, 1n certain circumstances, cause share
awards granted to employees under such schemes to vest ona takeover
Registered No 03183415




Power of the Directors

The Directors are responsible for managing the business of the
Company and their powers are subject to any regulations of the
Articles, to the provisions of the Statutes and to such regulations
as may be prescribed by Special Resolution of the Company

The Company's Articles of Association contain, for example,
specific provisions and restrictions concerning the Company's
power to borrow money They also provide that Directors have
the power to allot unmssued shares, up to pre-determned levels
set and approved by sharehclders in general meetings Thus also
applies to the Directors allothng equity securities otherwise than
1n accordance with statutory pre-emption rules

Share Capital

Structure of the Company’s Capital

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s 1ssued and fully paid up
share capital was 519,447,391 ordinary shares of 15 pence cach
All ordinary shares are quoted on the London Stock Exchange and
can be held 1n uncertificated form via CREST Details of the
movement in the 15sued share capital during the year are provided
1n Note 31 to the hnancial statements on page 144

Voting Rights

Atany General Meeting, on a show of hands, each member who 1s
present in person has one vote and every proxy present who has been
duly appointed by a member entitled to vote on a resolution has one
vote Ona poll, every member who 1s present in person or by proxy
shall have one vote for every share of which he 15 the holder

Forms appointing a proxy sent by the Company to shareholders,
i relation to any General Meeting, must be recerved by the
Company or their registrars not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting

Restrictions on Voting Rights

If any sharcholder has been sent a notice by the Company under
section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 and failed to supply the
relevant information for a period of 14 days, then the shareholder
may not (for so long as the default continues) be entitled to attend
or vote either personally or by proxy ata shareholders’ meeting,
ar to exercise any other nght conferred by membership in relation
to sharcholders’ meetings

If those default shares represent at least 0 25 per cent of their
class, any dividend payable in respect of the shares will be
withheld by the Company and (subject to certan limited
exceptions) no transfer, other than an excepted transfer, of any
shares held by the member in certificated form will be registered

Articles qf Association

The full rlghts and obllgatlons attaching to the ordlnary shares of
the Company are set out in the Articles of Association The
articles can be amended by a special resolution of the members of
the Company and copies can be obtained from Companies House
Holders of ordinary shares are enunitled to receive the Company’s
Reports and Accounts, attend, speak and exercise voung rights,
and appont proxies 1o attend general meetings
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Restrictions on Share Transfers

There are restrictions on share transfers, all of which are set cut
in the Articles of Association Restrictions include transfers made
1n favour of more than four joint holders and transfers held in
certificated form Directors may dechne to recognise a transfer,
unless 1t 15 1n respect of only one class of share and lodged (and
duly stamped) with the Transfer Office The Directors may also
refuse to register any transfer of shares held 1n certificated form
which are not fully paid Directors may also choose to decline
requests for share transfers from a US Person (as defined under
Regulation § of the United States Securities Act 1933) that would
cause the aggregate number of beneficial owneis of 1ssued shares
who are US Persons to exceed 70

The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for
such periods (not exceeding 30 days i any year) as the Directors
may from trme to time determine 1n respect of any class of shares

The Company 15 not aware of any agreements between
shareholders that restrict the transfer of shares or votng rights
attached to the shares

Employees

Details of the Company's approach to maintaiming an appropriately
skilled and diverse workforce can be found 1n the Strategic Report
on page 11 The Company has a policy of ensuring that no
discrimination takes place with regards to 1ts job applicants and
employees Appointments and promotions are made based on far
and considered judgements, with the individuals being assessed on
their ments and skill sets In particular, we strive to give full and
farr consideration to applications from and promotions of disabled
people, having regard to their particutar aptitudes and abilities, and
where appropriate, we will consider modifications to the working
environment so they can take up opportunttes or enhance ther
rale We will sumularly make every effortin the event of an
employee becoming 11l or disabled, for example, by arranging
appropriate training By adopting best practuice principles we seek to
ensure that our responsibilities are met as an equal opportumty
employer and that everyone can enjoy an environment free from
discrimination of any sort

The right to collective bargaining has not been exercised by any of
the Company’s employees, however were they to do so the
Company would look to comply with due process

The Company considers 1t important to provide 1ts employees
with a balanced work and home life, and does not expect its
employees to work excessive hours

The Company has a calendar of regular communication with
employees and this includes a bi-annual employee satisfaction
survey, the most recent of which was conducted in 2014

Information on the survey’s findings can be tound on page 11
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The Company also offers a range of development options which

reflect business priorities and offer employees the opportunity to

grow thetr careers within the Group Such opportunities include

— An apprenticeship programme launched 1n 2012,

— Membership of the Institute of Customer Service,

— A rolling programme of Knowledge Development Meetings,

— Support for employees seeking externally recognised
professional qualibications,

— Management development activities for those with the interest
and ability to develop their careers as leaders in the business, and

— Speatfic development programmes for the more specialist roles
within the Company’s Field Manapement Team

Bribery Act 2010

The Board 1s respensible for the oversight of the Company's ant1-
bribery, corruption and whistleblowing policies and procedures
During 2014, the Company carned out its annual review to ensure
that 1t has adequate policies and procedures in place to prevent
bribery and corruption This mcluded reviewing the Bribery Act
Policy Statement, along with other related polices and procedures,
and providing traiming to employees and Partners with regards to
maney laundering, fraud, bribery and corruption via an online
trauning programme, the completion of which 1s compulsory

The Company also operates a Whistleblowing policy, whereby 1t
encourages all employees and Partners to advise the appropriate
person 1n the Company if they become aware of any wrongdoing,
which they can do on an anonymous basis The key contact for
Whistleblowing 1s the Chair of the Audit Committee

Dunng 2014, no employees or Partners were disaiplined or
dismussed due to non-compliance with the Anti-Bribery and
Corruption policies and no fines were levied against the Company
in relation to bribery or corruption

‘The Bribery Act Policy Staternent and the Whustleblowing procedure
are available to all employees and Partners via the Company’s intranet

Substantial Shareholders

As at 23 February 2015, the Company had been notified of the
following interests disclosed to the Company under Disclosure
and Transparency Rule 5

Holding at % held at Holdingat %heldat

Shareholder 31 Dec2014 31Dec2il4 23 Feb 2015 23 Feb 2015
Ameriprise

Financial inc 27,806,089 5 47 27,806,089 547
FMR LLC 26,126,505 503 26,126,505 503
Bailie Gifford

& Co 26,009,981 501 26,009,981 s
The Capital Group

Compames, Inc 15,744,796 303 20,933,591 403
Legal & General

Group plc 15,920,718 307 15,920,718 307

The interests of the Directors, their farmulies and any connected persons
i the ssued share caprtal of the Company are shown on page 86

Significant Contracts and Change of Control

The Company has a number of contractual arrangements which it
considers essential to the business of the Company Speaifically,
these are commutted loan facilitzes from a number of banks and
arrangements with third party providers of admnistrative services

A change of control of the Company may cause some agreements
tn which the Company 15 a party to alter or terrminate These
include bank facihity agreements and employee share pians

The Group had committed facilitres totaling £83 8 mllien as at

23 February 2015 which contain clauses which requare lender
consent for any change of control In addition, the Group
guarantees the obligations of loans made to Partners 1n connection
with facilities agreed with various lenders totalling £22 7 million m
aggregate Should consent not be given, a change of control would
trigger mandatory repayment of the said facilities

All the Company’s employee share plans contain provisions
relating to a change of control Outstanding awards and options
may vest and become exercisable on a change of control, subject
where appropriate to the sausfaction of any performance
conditions at that ume and pro-rating of awards

Political Donations

It 15 the Group’s policy not to make any donations to pohtical
parties within the meaning of the definitions set out 1n the
Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000 and
sections 362 to 379 of the Companies Act 2006 The Group did
not make any pohtical donations during the year (2013 £nil)

Annual General Meetin

The Company’s Annual General Meeting will be held on 14 May
2015 at The Royal Aeronautical Socrety, 4 Hamlton Place,
London W1] 7B(Q at t1 00am

New Partner Share Scheme

At the Annual General Meeting in 2005, shareholders approved a
share scheme whereby the Directors could make share awards to
members of the Partnership, subject to the satisfaction of
appropriate performance conditions The ten year hfe of the
scheme expires in May 2015 As a result, the Board intends to
seek shareholder approval for a new share scheme for the
Partnership at the Annual General Meeting 1n 2015 Further
details relating to the proposed scheme will be set out in the
explanatory notes for the Annual General Meeting

Authority to Purchase Own Shares

At the Annual General Meeting 1n 2014, shareholders granted
authority to the Directors for the purchase by the Company of its
own shares This authority will expire at the end of the Annuel
General Meeting to be held 1in 2015, or 18 months from the date
granted, whichever is the earher During the year, the Company
did not purchase any of its own shares The Directors will
propose the renewal of the authority to purchase 1ts own shares at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Registered No 03183415




Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
Thus statement 1s set out on page 92 The complete Corporate
Governance Report 15 set out on pages 54 to 58

Going Concern

The Company's business activities, together with the factors Iikely
to affect 1ts future development, performance and position are set
out in the Strategic Report, as referred to on page 45 The
financial position of the Company, its cash flows, hquidity
position and borrowing facilities are described 1n the Strategic
Report on pages 18 to 33 In addition, the Notes on pages 131 and
pages 135 to 143 and the Ruisk, Risk Management and Internal
Control section on pages 34 to 39 include the Company’s
objectaves, policies and processes for managing its capital, 1ts
financial risk management ohjectives, details of its financial
instruments and 1ts exposures to credit risk and hquidity

As shown on pages 25 to 27 of the Strategic Report, the Group's
capital position 18 strong and well in excess of regulatory
requirements The long-term nature of the business results in
considerable positive cash flows, arising trom existing business
As a consequence, the Directors believe that the Company 15 well
placed to manage 1ts business risks successfully

The Directors confirm that they are satisfied that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis wn preparing the accounts Further information on the
basis of preparation of these accounts can be seen in Note 1 to both
the Consohdated Accounts under International Fmancial Reporting
Standards and Parent Company Accounts on UK GAAP basis

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Each of the Directors, at the date of approval of this report,

confirms that

— 5o far as each Director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the auditors are unaware, and

~ each Drrector has taken all reasonable steps to ascertain
relevant audit information and ensure that the auditors are
aware of such information

Thus confirmation 15 given and should be wterpreted 1n accordance
with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Independent Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their
willingness to continue 1n office and a Resolution that they be
re-appointed until the end of the 2016 Annual General Meeting
will be put to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on

14 May 2015

On behalf of the Board

Hotar—, ACoO

David Bellamy Andrew Croft
Chief Executve Chief Financral Officer
24 February 2015

St James's Place ple Annuai Report and Accounts 2014
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Statement of Directors’

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements
1n accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors
have prepared the Group financial statements m accordance with
International Financiai Repos ung Standards (JFRSe) ac adopted by
the European Union, and the Parent Company financial
statements 1n accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law} Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and far view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period In preparing these financial statements, the Directors
are required to

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

— make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

— state whether [FRSs as adopted by the European Union and
apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been fgllowed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 1n
the Group and Parent Company financial staterents
respectively, and

— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue 1 business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tiume the
financal posttion of the Company and the Group and enable them
to ensure that the financtal statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Compames Act 2006

and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulanon They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities

The Directors have chosen to prepare supplementary information
i accordance with the European Embedded Value Principles
1ssued an May 2004 by the Chiel Financial Officers Forum, as
supplemented by the Additional Guidance on European
Embedded Value Disclosures 1ssued in October 2005 (“the EEV
Principles”) When compliance with the EEV Principles 1s stated,
those principles require the Directors to prepare supplementary
information in accordance with the Embedded Value
methodaology (EVM) contained 1n the EEV Principles and to
disclose and explain any non-compliance with the EEV Guidance
mcluded in the EEV Prinaiples

Responsibﬂities

In preparing the EEV supplementary mformation, the Directors have

— prepared the supplementary information 1n accordance with
the EEV Principles,

— 1dentified and described the business covered by the EVM,

— apphied the EVM consistently to the covered business,

— determined assumptions on a realistic basis, having regard to
past, current and expected future experience and to any
relevant external data, and then applied them consistently, and

— made estimates that are reasonable and consistent

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom goverming
the preparation and dissermination of financial statements may
differ tram ]eglq]atmn n other jursdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are histed in
Board of Dircctors scctton of the Annual Report confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge

— the Group financial statemants, which have been prepared 1n
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and
fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit
of the Group,

— the European Embedded Valie (EEV) supplementary
information has been prepared 1n accordance with the
European Embedded Value principles 1ssued in May 2004 by
the Chiel Financial Officers Forum as supplemented by the
Additional Guidance on European Embedded Value
Disclosures tssued m October 2005 (“the EEV Principles™),

~ the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the Group,
together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that 1t faces, and

— the Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Company’s performance, business model and strategy

By order of the Board

0N/

Hugh Gladman
Company Secretary
24 February 2015

Registered No 03183415
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

REPORT ON THE GROUP FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, St James’s Place ple's group financial statements

(the ‘financial statements’)

— gweatrue and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at
31 Decemper 2614 and o1t profir and cash flows for the year
then ended,

— have been properly prepared 1n accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs") as adopted by the
European Union, and

— have been prepared i accordance with the requirements of the
Compantes Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited

St James’s Place plc’s financial statements comprise

— the consohdated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014,

— the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,

— the consolidated statement of cash Alows for the year then
ended,

— the consohdated statement of changes 1n equity for the year
then ended, and

— the notes to the financial statements, which include 2 summary
of significant accounting pohcies and other explanatory
information

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the
Annual Report and Accounts {the ‘Annual Report'), rather thanin
the notes to the financial statements These are cross-referenced
from the financial statements and are 1dentified as andited

The financral reporting framewaork that has been apphed 1n the
preparation of the financial statements 1s applicable law and IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union

Our audat approach

Overview

Materiahty

— Overall group materiality has been set at £15 mallion which
represents approximatcly 8% of profit before tax attributable
to shareholders’ returns

Audit scope

— The Group 1s structured to reflectits vertically integrated
msurance and wealth management business and operates
predominantly within the Umnted Kingdom

— The Group financial statements are a consolidation mcluding
six financially sigmificant business units, all of which are
subject to full scope audit procedures, comprising the Group's
speeting bnanesses and centrahised functions and the
consolidated 5t Jjames’s Place Unit Trusts

Qur areas of focus were

— Recogmition of revenue

—~ Recoverability of deferred tax asset arising from historic
caprtal losses

— Accounting for the acquisition of The Henley Group

— Transactions in respect of a key operational services agreement
with an outsourced service provider

~ Adequacy of other provisions and charges

— Recoverability of outstanding loans to Partners who have
subsequently left the partnership

— Existence and valuation of financial investments and
investment prope.rty

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘'ISAs (UK & Ireland))

We designed our audit by determining materiahty and assessing
the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements In
particular, we looked at where the Directors made subjective
judgements, for example in respect of ssgmficant accounting
estimates that invelved making assumptions and considering
future events that are mherently uncertain As 1n all of our audits,
we also addressed the rnisk of management overnde of internal
controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bras
by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstatement
due to fraud

The risks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on
our audit, including the allocation of aur resources and effort, are
Wdentified as ‘areas of focus’ 1n the table below We have also set
out how we tatlored our audit to address these speafic areas in
order to provide an apinion on the financial statements as a whole,
and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
should be read in this context Ths is not a complete st of all
risks identified by our audat

Registered No 03183415
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How our audit addressed the area of focus

Recognition of revenue

See note 2 to the finanaal statements for the Directors’ diselosure of
erttical agcounting estimates and judgements i applying accountng
policies for further information

15As (UK & Ireland} presume there 1s a risk of fraud in revenue
recognition because of the pressure management may feel to
achieve market expectations In this regard we focused on
transactions which included a judgemental element in their
calculation, typical within the hife insurance industry, as set out 1n
note 2 to the financal statements

We focused spealfically on the following

* deferral of income and acqusition costs and amortisation of
Deferred Income (‘DIR’), and Deferred Acquisition Costs
{'DAC’) under IFRS methodology In the year, the movement
of DIR of £75 4m was recognused as revenue (see note 4) and
£26 9m of acquisition costs were deferred and £102 7m of
DAC was amortised (see note 6), and

* dassification of the Group’s products between insurance and
mvestment business to ensure that investinent business 1s depost

* accounted in the consolidated statement of financial position

We also considered the recogmitron of income or costs which
may have a close relationship to earned insurance premums

and fees, 1n accordance with Auditing Practices Board Practice
Note 20 — “The audit of insurers in the United Kingdom', such as
remnsurance costs The Group fully reinsures the UK insurance
risk of 1ts closed book of protection business and therefore we
focused on whether the £33 5m of premium 1ncome associated
with this business that was reversed out of the consolidated
statement of comprehenstve income was complete

We assessed the critical accounting estimates and judgements

as set out 1n note 2 to the financial statements that had a direct

1mpact on revenue Speafically we

* substantively tested the deferred income and acqusition costs and
the amortisatton of DIR and DAC, including assessing the future
profitalility of the preducts to which the income and acquisition
costs related to ensurc that profitabality was sufficient to support
the carrying value of the deferred balances, and

* confirmed substantively the classification of the Group’s

products between insurance and investment business to check

that mmsurance product revenue was appropriately included

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and

investment business (except for'fees related to mvestment

contract management) was excluded

‘We obtained contracts for matenal rexnsurance arrangements and
agreed the nature of remsurance premiums ceded to remsurers to
the contractual terms and substantively tested the premiums ceded
to the remnsurer

Qur work on the above areas of judgement was supported by
controls testing and substantive procedures over all material
revenue streams including
reconciling fees on investment business to confirmations
provided by the asset custodian, State Street,
*+ testing internal controls over the accuracy and oceurrence of
revenue recagnised in the financial statements,
obtaining and reading the International Standard on Assurance
Engagements ('ISAE’) 3402 ‘Assurance Reports on Controls at
a Service Orgarusation’ for International Financial Data Services
(‘IFDS’), 1 particular focusing on the controls designed to
prevent and detect fraud operating over the Group umt trust
business administration system owned and operated by IFDS, and
* testing a sample of journal entries posted throughout the
year to revenue accounts that met specthe critenia to identify
unusual or irregular items

There were no 1ssues in the ISAE 3402 report that impacted our
audit scope Overall, we noted no exceptions n our testing and
found the judgements taken by the Directors to be reasonable

Recoverability of deferred tax asset arising from historic
capital losses

See notes 2 and 15 to the ﬁnancml statements for the Directors’ disclosure
of determmung the value of deferred cax assets for further mformation

A deferred tax asset of £39 5m has been recognised following
management’s investigation of historic capital losses crystalhising
within the Group on the planned winding up of a Group entity,
SJPC 2000 plc {see note 15)

We focused on this item due to the judgements required 1n
forecasting future capital growth and gamns mn future years in
Group companics to offscr against the capital losses, speaifically,
the key asset growth assumptions used to forecast future gains

We assessed the basis of the capital losses that gave nise to the
£39 5m deferred tax asset, including by evaluating the advice
received by management from external tax advisers

We assessed the Group’s forecasts for the utilisation of the losses
against future capital gans, which can be off-set against the capital
losses, mecluding assessing the hikelthood of such gatns

We challenged the asset growth assumptions used by the Directors
1n the calculatron of capital gans and compared these to industry
benchmarks where relevant

We considered the application of relevant taxation legrslation and
accounting standards around the recognition of the deferred tax asset

We exarmined correspondence between the Group and HMRC

On the evidence obtained we assessed that the recogmition and
measurement of deferred tax assets artsing from capital losses was
reasonable
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Independent Auditors’ Report contnued

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Accounting for the acquisition of The Henley Group
See notes 2 and 9 to the financial statements for the Directors” disclosure
of business combinations for further mformatron

The Group acquired The Henley Group in the year for £15 3m
Tnis was an atca of focus einee the interpretation of the sale and
purchase contractual agreements and the requirements ot [FRY> 3
— ‘Business Combinations’ are relatively complex in relation both
to the consideration payable and the assets and lhabilitres acquired

Furthermore, mtangible and financial assets recognised on
acquisition are required to be assessed for impairment at least
annually, to ensure the carrying value 15 recoverable

We obtained an*understanding of the acquisition of The Henley

Group, by reading the relevant contractual documentation, and

tested

+ The cost of the acquisitton made 1n the year,

» The fair value measurements of assets and habilrties acquired,
predomnantly focusing on the renewal 1ncome asset recognised
Ol ayuiEhs, and

* The goodwill year end carrying value

In performing this work we had regard to the fact that The Henley
Group 1s located 1n new territories for the Group and regulatory
authorisation 1s pendmg n one of these terntories Accordmgly we
apphed sigmificant downward adjustments in testing the sensiovity
of the Directors’ forecasts for renewal and new business attributed
to The Henley Group

We noted no exceptions m our testing The Directors’ forecasts
demonstrated sufficient headroom to support the carrying value of
assets acquired even after significant downward adjustments were

applied

Transactions in respect qf a key operatwnal services agreement
with IFDS

See the Report of the Audit Commattee for further mformation and notes 2,
18 and 28 to the financial statements for the Darectors’ disclosure of other
recervables and payables

In the year a new operational services agreement was signed with
the Group’s main policy administration service provider, [FDS

The contractua) terms include matenial payments to and from [FDS
and will also result in future changes to the operational services
tanffs, which have not yet been agreed

The Group has accounted for some of the amounts pad to IFDS
during the year as prepaid costs as at the year end

Due to the nature and magmitude of amounts ansing from the
contractual terms the recogmtion of transactions in respect of this
has been an area of audit focus

We obtained and read the operational services agreement and
subsequent amendments

We substantively tested the payments to IFDS associated with the
new operational services agreement and assessed them against
the lower of the Directors’ future anticipated cost savings (based
on the Directors’ expectation of future service tariffs) and the
termnation payments set out 1n the contract, to ensure that the
Group will recerve value for the amounts recogmised as a prepatd
cost asset 1n the consolidated statement of Anancial position

We assessed the accounting adopted for amounts recerved from
IFDS which are repayable over the life of the contract

‘We noted no exceptions 1n our testing of the transactions in the
financial staternents

Adequacy of other provisions and charges
See note 23 1o the finencial statements for the Directors’ disclosure of
other provistons and eontiagent habulitees for further mformation

The Group operates in an industry where there 15 the inherent
risk of customer redress being required as a result of mis-selhing,
mcluding past indivrdual Partner or Group actions or historic
Group policy and non-Group products provided by Partners

Due to the inherent risk of redress associated wath the industry
this was an area of audit focus

We examined the Group’s complaints log and Board minutes and
obtained correspondence between the Group and the Financial
Conduct Authority, the Prudential Regulation Authority and,
where relevant, the Financial Ombudsman Service, to assess
whether there were any matters that required the recognition of a
provision or dasclosure

We also evaluated the results of Compliance and Internal Audit
work during the year

We substantively tested provisions recogmsed at the year end
No exceptions were noted 1n our testing Based on the evidence

provided, we noted no other matters that we consider would
require recognytion as a provision and disclosure

Registered No 03183415
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How our audit addressed the arca of focus

Recoverabiitty of outstanding loans to Partners who have
subsequently left the partnership

See notes 2 and 18 o the financial statements for the Directory’ duelosure
of partnersinp loans for further mformation

Loans td active Partners are secured against both 1mitial advice
charge, ongoing advice fee and, for business written prior to
the Retail Distribution Review, renewal commission tncome
generated by the Partner

The ex1sting loans to former Partners are secured against
ongoing advice fee and renewal commussion income only, or
are unsecured

We focused on the recoverability of loans to former Partners due
to the lower level of secunity provided against these loans

We tested the Group’s controls over the authorisation of partnership
loans and controls over partnership loans 1n arrears

We examined the actual recoverability experience of total

former partner loans in 2014 and compared this to the Directors’
assessment of predicted recoverability made for the year ended 31
December 2013, to assess the reliability of the Directors’ forecasts
for recoverability

We also substantively tested a sample of indindual loans to former
Partners to test whether the repayment of the loan was 1n line with
the Directors’ expectations

We substantively agreed loan amounts to loan statements and
exarmined any complaints made by Partners to the Group 1n respect
of Ioans

We substantively tested a sample of loans to source loan documents
and we sample tested standing data associated with the partnership
loan book

We found that the Directors’ forecasts were within an acceptable
range of possible outcomes We noted no exceptions 1n our testing
and consider the recoverability of the loans to former Partners to be
supported by the evidence obtained

Existence and valuation of finanaal investments and
mvesiment property

See note 29 1o the financal statement for the Directors’ disclosure of
Jinanaal risk ﬁr further :qformauon

Financial investments and investment properties were an area of
focus for our testing, 1n particular, the judgemental valuations of
mvestment properties and derivatives

Due to the magmtude of the balance of financial mvestments this
wad an area of saignificant audit effort and focus

St James's Place plc outsources investment custodian and
valuation activities to State Street Qur audit procedures
therefore considered the evidence avatlable over the rehability of
these cutsourced processes

We agreed the existence of all holdings of the financial investment
portfolio to a confirmation recerved directly from independent
custodians as at year end

‘We independently agreed the existence of a sample of holdings of
investment properties at year end to the Land Register maintained
by the Land Registry

We obtained and read the International Standard on Assurance
Engagements (‘ISAE’) 3402 ‘Assurance Reports on Controls ata
Service Orgamisation’ for State Street’s Global Fund Accounting
and Custody operatiens, which provided a description of the
systems and centrols 1n place and the results of testing of the
operational effectiveness of those controls

We independently re-priced a sample of derivative investments

as at year end ‘We independently re-priced a sample of equuty,
fixed income and eollective investment scheme imvestments at the
year end to complement our controls rehance We agreed our

" mdependent prices 1o those provided by State Street

For investment properties we tested the inputs to the valuation
process and tested the reasonableness of the rental yield
assumptions used by the Directors in the valuation of the portfoho
by reference to industry accepted benchmarks

We found no material exceptions 1n our testing
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Independent Auditors’ Report contmued

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be able ta give an opinion on the financtal
statements as a whole, taking into account the geographic
structure of the group, the accounting processes and controls,
and the industry m which the group operates

The consolidated hinancial staternems orc a consolidanon ol six
financially sigmficant business umts, comprising the Group’s
operating businesses and centralised functions and the St James's
Place Ut Trusts where they are considered to be subsidharies of
the Group

In establishing the overall approach to the group audit, we
determined the type of work that needed to be performed at the
business units by us, as the group engagement team, or
component auditars from other PwC network firms operating
under our instruction

Where the work was performed by component auditors, we
determined the level of involvement we needed to have in the
audit work at those busmess units to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as a basis
for our opinwn on the conselidated Ananial statements as a
whale We visited the Group operations in the Republic of Ireland
and met with local management and the PwC Ireland component
audit team during the course of our work

The s1x financially significant business umts required an audit of
their complete financial mformation, due to ther size and/or
their risk characteristics

Speaific audit procedures on certain balances and transactions
were also performed over those St James's Place Unit Trusts
regarded as subsidiaries of the Group

The Group outsources a large proportion of 1ts back office
admnistration services to [FDS, Capita and State Street,
accordingly the financially sigmficant business processes
performed for the Group by these outsourcer services providers
were addressed 1n our audit

Together with additicnal procedures performed at the
consolidated level, this scope of work gave us the evidence we
nceded for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our zpplication of
materiahty We set certain quantitative thresholds for maternahity
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to
determine the scope of our audit and the nature, tming and
extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements
as a whole '

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenahty
for the financial statements as a whole as tollows

Overall group materiality  £15 rmthon (2013 £15 malhion)

Hosv we determmned 1t 8% o profit before tax attributable Lo

shareholders’ returns

Rarronale for benchmork  This 15 a generally accepted market
appled benchmark and one of the measures the
Group uses to monitor 1ts results

We agreed with the Audit Commuttee that we would report to
them musstatements identified during our audit above £0 75 milhon
(2013 £0 75 milhon) as well as msstatements below that amount
that, 1n our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the directors’
statement, set out on page 91, 1n relation to going concern 'We
have nothing to report having performed our review

As noted 1n the directors’ statement, the directors have concluded
that 1t15 appropnate to prepare the financial statements using the
going concern basis of accounting The going concern basis
presumes that the group has adequate resources to remain 1n
operation, and that the directors intend 1t to do so, for at least one
year from the date the financial statements were signed As part
of our audit we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis 18 appropriate

However, because not all future events or condittons can be

predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as to the group’s
abihty to continue as a going concern

Registered No 03183415




OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Consistency of other information

Companies Act 2006 opmnions

In our opimion

* theinformation given in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements, and

* the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement
set out 1n the Governance section with respect to internal
control and risk managerment systems and about share capital
structures 15 consistent with the financial statements

ISAs (UK & Ireland) reporting
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if,
n our opimion

‘We have no exceptions to
report arsing from this

Information in the Annual Report 1s
* matenally inconsistent with the
information i the audited financial  responsibahity
statemnents, or
. apparently materially incorrect
based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, our knowledge of the
group acquired 1n the course of
performing our audit, or
* otherwise misleading

‘We have no exceptions to
report anising from this
responsibility

* the statement given by the
directors on page 92, in accordance
with provision C 1 | of the UK
Corporate Governance Code
(‘the Code'), that they consider
the Annual Report taken as a
whole to be fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the
information necessary for members
to assess the group’s performance,
business model and strategy 13
matenally inconststent with our
knowledge of the group acquired 1n
the course of performing our audit

* the section of the Annual Report on We have no exceptions to
page 60, as required by provision  report ansing from this
C 3 8 of the Code, describing the  responsibility
work of the Audit Commuittee does
not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit
Commirttee

St James's Place plc Annual Report and Actounts 2014 §Q

Adequacy of information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, 1n our opimion, we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit We have no exceptions to
report arising from thus responsibility |

IDirectors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, 1n our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report
arising from these responsibilities

Corporate governance statement

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, 1n our opinion, a corporate governance statement has not been
prepared by the parent company We have no exceptions to report
ansing from this responsibility

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement reIaung to the parent
company’s compliance with ten provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code We have nothing to report having performed
our review

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 92, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satsfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an optnicn on the
financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and ISAs
(UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Ths report, mcludmg the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the company’s members as a body 1n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responstlity for any other purpase or to any other person to
whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly apgreed by our prior consent 1n wriing
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Independent Auditors’ Report continued

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit mvolves obtamming evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable

assurance that the financral statements are free from materal

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error Thus includes an

assessment of

— whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s
circumstances and nave beeu cona.stently a;’\[ﬂlpr] and
adequately disclosed,

— the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the directors, and

— the overall presentation of the financial statements

We primarily focus our work 1n these areas by assessing the
directors’ judgements against available evidence, formmng our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the
financial statements

We test and examine 1nformation, using samphing and other
auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain
audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of contro ls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both

In addition, we read all the inanual and non-financaal
information n the Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identfy any mformation that 1s apparently materially incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired
by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware
of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

OTHER MATTER

We have reparted separately on the parent company financial
statements of St James's Place plc for the year ended

31 December 2014 and on the tnformation in the Drrectors’
Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been audited

Jeremy Jensen (Senor Statutory Auditor)
_for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Starutory Auditors
London
24 February 2015

Notes

The maintenance and integrity of the St James's Place ple webste is the responaibiity of the
directors, the work cuarried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and,
aceordingly, the auditors accept no responsibnlity for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial stacements since they were lnitally presented on the webace

Legislaion in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financlal
statements may differ from leglslation in other jurfsdictions

Registered No 03183415




Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 Decemnber
Notes 2014 2013
£Mallion £'Milhon
Insurance premium mecome 574 612
Less premiums ceded to reinsurers (33 5) (54 3)
Net insurance premium income 239 69
Fee and commission 1ncome 4 1,201 0 1,013 3
[nvestment return 5 3,3471 5,831 1
Other operating income 12 25
Net income 3 4,573 2 6,853 8
Policy claims and benefits
— Gross amount (58.8) (50 2)
— Rewnsurers’ share 241 205
Net polieyholder claims and benefits incurred (347) (29 7y
Change 1n insurance contract habilities
— Gross amount B0 (42 3)
— Reinsurers' share 212 56
Net change 1n insurance contract habilities 132 (167}
Investment contract benefits 24 (3,2344) (5449 4)
Fees, commussion and other acquisition costs (824.0) (734 7)
Administration expenses (195 7) (158 %)
Other operating expenses (32 32
6 (1,022 9) (896 8)
Profit before tax 3 294 4 461 2
Tax attributable to policyholders’ returns 8 (111 5) (270 5)
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 1829 190 7
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Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income continued

Year Ended Year Ended
3t December 31 December
Notes 2014 2013
£mMallion £ Million
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 1829 190 7
Tntal tax expense 8 (106 5) (270 9)
Less tax attributable to poucyhulders’ returns 8 1115 270 5
Tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 8 50 0 4)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 187 9 190 3
Profit/(loss) attributable to non-controlling interests ©n (02)
Profit attributable to equity sharehalders 188 0 190 5
Profit and totak comprehensive income for the year 1879 190 3
Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 10 366 ' 374
Diluted earmings per sharc 10 359 367
The notes and information below and on pages 106 to 152 form part of these financial statements
Underlying profit measure
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2014 2043
£Milhon £'Malbion
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 1829 190 7
Adjustments
DAC/DIR/PVIF (23) 35
Underlying profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 173 6 187 2
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 187.9 190 3
Adjustments
DAC/DIR/PVIF (7 0) (14 9
Underlying profit and total comprehensive income for the year 1809 175 4
Pence Pence
Underlying basic ¢carnings per share 10 352 34 4
Underlying diluted earmings per share 10 346 338

Registered No 03183415
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Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

Attnibutable to Equity Sharcholders
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Treasury Non-
Share Share Shares Retained Misc centrolling
Note Capatal Premium Reserve Earnungs Reserves Total Interests Total
£Million £Milhwon £Milhen £'Mulhon £Milhon £Milhion L'Million £Million
At 1 January 2013 760 1277 (89) 5654 23 7625 - 7625
Non-controlling interests
artsing on the purchase of
subsidiaries during the year 02 02
Profit/(loss) and total
comprehensive income
for the year 190 5 190 5 @2 190 3
Dividends 11 (65 3) {65 3) (65 3)
Issue of share capital 03 013 03
Exeraise of options 10 14§ 155 155
Consideration paid for own
shares {5 3) {53 53
Own shares vesting charge 40 (4 0) - -
Retained earmings credit
1n respect of share option
charges 78 78 78
Retatned earnings credit in
respect of proceeds from
exercise of share options held
n trust 01 01 a1
At 31 December 2013 773 142 2 {10 2) 694 5 23 905 1 - 906 1
Non-controlling interests
artaing on the purchase of
subsidiaries during the year — -
Profit/(loss) and total
comprehensive income for
the year T 1880 188 0 ©1 1879
IDividends il (95 5) (95 5) (95 5
Issue of share capital 02 02 02
Exerase of options 04 52 56 56
Consideratron paid for own
shares (5 2) 52 52)
Own shares vesting charge 49 (4 9) - -
Retaned earnings credit
1 respect of share option
charges 110 110 10
At 31 December 2014 779 147 4 (10 5) 7931 23 1,010 2 (0 1) 1,010 1

The number of shares held in the Treasury Share Reserve 1s given in Note 31 Share Caprtal on page 144

Mascellaneous reserves represent other non-distributable reserves

The notes and information on pages 106 to 152 form part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

31 December 31 December

Notes 2014 2013
£'Malhon £"Mallion
Assets
Goodwill 12 101 -
Intangible assets
— Deferred acquisition costs 13 813 ¢ 888 8
— Acquired value ot in-force ousiucss 13 368 400
— Computer software 13 77 87
867 6 9375
Property & equipment 14 79 58
Deferred tax assets 15 192 8 181 8
Investment property 16 1,031.4 7327
Investments
—Equittes 34,7349 29,614 B
— Fixted income securities 6,838 8 5,965 7
— Investrmtent in Collective Investment Schemes 2,961.7 3,244 3
— Derivative Financial Instruments 166 4 142 5
Rewnsurance assets 22 855 64 2
Insurance and 1mvestment contract recervables 635 499
Other recervables 18 604 6 554 0
Cash & cash equivalents 19 5,139.4 3,845 7
Total assets 52,6945 45,3323
Liabtlities
Insurance contract habilities 21 474 4 466 4
Other provisions 23 114 97
Financial lrablities
— [nvestment contracts benefits 24 38,8512 33,7175
— Borrowings 25 843 98 7
- Dervative Financial Instruments 793 B7 8
Deferred tax liabilities 26 5198 495 6
Insurance and investment contract payables 504 38 1
Deferred income 27 463 2 5386
Incoime tax labilities 328 49
_Other payables 28 499.7 439 4
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 17 10,617 8 8,535 4
Preference shares 0.1 01
Total habilities 51,684 4 44,433 2
Net assets 1,010 1 906 1
Shareholders’ eqtty
Share capital 31 779 773
Share premium 147 4 142 2
Treasury shares reserve (10 5) (10 2)
Miscellaneous reserves 23 213
Retained earnings 7931 694 5
Shareholders’ equity 1,010 2 206 1
Non-controlling interests (0.1) —
Total equity 1,010 1 906 1
Pence Pence
Net assets per share 1945 175 9

The financral statements on pages 101 to 152 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2015 and signed on its behalf by

Yhte—, \oo

David Bellamy Andrew Croft
Chief Executrve Cheef Financial Qfficer

The notes and information on pages 106 to 152 form part of these financial statements Registered No 03133415
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of Cash Flows
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2004 2013
£'Milhon £'Million
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year 294 4 461 2
Adjustments for
Deprecration 14 19 16
Revaluation 14 - 01
Amortisation of acquired value of in-force business 13 32 32
Amortisation of computer software and customer List 13 28 25
Share-based payment charge 32 114 78
Interest income (21 9) (22 5)
Interest paid . 28
Changes 1n operating assets and habalitres
Decrease 1n deferred acquisition costs (net) 758 828
Increase n investment property (298.7) (135 1)
Increase in investments (5,734 1) (9,382 2)
[ncrease i reinsurance assets (21 3) 25 6)
Increase 1o insurance and investment contract recetvables (13.6) G4
Increase i other recervables (84.9) (22 4)
Increase 1n 1nsurance contract Liabilitres 80 42 4
Increase 1o provisions 17 05
Increase in financial liabilines (excluding barrawings) 5,1252 6,6050
Increase in insurance and mvestment contract payables 12.3 132
Decrease 1n deferred mncome (75 4) (77 9)
Increase in other payables 603 3a
Increase 1n net assets attributable to unit holders 2,082 4 3,241 9
Cash generated from operating activities 1,433 3 799 5
Interest received 219 225§
Interest pad 38 (28
[ncome taxes paid (355) (14 8)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,415.9 804 4
Cash flows from mvesting activities
Acquisition of property & equipment (40) (3 8)
(Acquisition)/disposal of intangible assets 13 (18) 05
Acquisition of subsidiaries and other business combinations, net of cash acquired (72) ®n
Net cash from investing actrvities (13.0) {12 4)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the 1ssue of share capital 5% 158
Consideration paid for own shares 52 53
Proceeds from exercise of options over shares held in trust - 01
Proceeds from 1ssue of non-redeemable preference shares - 01
Acquisition of non-controlhing interests - 02
Additional borrowings - 300
Repayment of borrowings {14 4} 20
Dividends pard 11 (955) {65 3)
Net cash used 1n financing activities (109 2) {26 4)
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents 1,293 7 765 6
Cash & cash equivalents at [ January 3,845 7 3,080 1
Cash & cash equivalents at 31 December 5,139 4 3,845 7

Exchange rate fluctuations result from cash held in the umt-linked funds

The notes and informatton on pages 106 to 152 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Finanaal Reporting Standards

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
§t James's Place ple (‘the Company’) 15 a company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales

Statement of Comphance
The Group financal statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries {together referred to as the ‘Group’)

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors m accordance with International Financial
Repnrting Standards as adopted by the EU (‘adopted IFRSs") and 1nterpretations 1ssued by the IFRS Interpretations Commuttee
{'IFRS IC’) and those parts of the Campanies Act 2006 that are applicable when repor ung unues 1IR3

The following amended standards and interpretation, which the Group have adopted as of 1 January 2014, have not had any material
impact on the Group's reported results

IAS 32 Amendment — Financial Instruments Presentation

IAS 36 Amendment — Impairment of Assets

1AS 39 Amendment — Finanaial Instruments Recognition and Measurement
IFRS IC Interpretation 21 — Levies

Annual [mprovements to IFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle

Asat 31 December 2014, the following new and amended standards, which are relevant to the Group but have not been applied in the
financial statements, were 1n 1ssue but not yet effective

1AS 1 Amendment — Disclosure Imtiative
IAS 16 and IAS 38 Amendments — Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 Amendments — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and 1ts Assecate or Joint Venture

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Amendments — Investment Entities Applying the Consolidation Exception
[FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above standards and nterpretation 1s not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s results reported
within the financial statements other than requiting additional disclosure or alternative presentation However the impact of these
standards will continue to be monitored

The Group financal statements also comply with the revised Statement of Recommended Practice 1ssued by the Association ot British
Insurers in December 2005 (as amended 1n December 2006), to the extent that it 15 consistent with IFRS standards

Basis of Preparation
As discussed in the Directors’ Report, the gomg concern basis has been adopted in preparing these financial statements

The financial statements arc presented 1n pounds Sterhing, rounded to the nearest onc hundred thousand pounds They arc prepared on
a historical cost basis, except lor asscts classificd as mnvestment property, available-for-sale financial assets and asscts and liabihities at far
valuc through profit and loss

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estumates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets 2nd liabilities, income and expenses The estimates and assouiated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are beheved to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of makang the judgements about carrying values of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources Actual results may duffer from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmised 1 the
year 1n which the estimate 1s revised 1f the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future years, if the revision
affects both current and future years

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have sigmificant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment 1n the next year are discussed 1in Note 2

Registered No 03183415
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The financial statements are prepared 1n accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to compames reporting under IFRS and
the accounting polices set out below have been applied consistently ta all years presented 1n these consolidated financial statements

An underlying profit measure has been included as a useful measure of performance This 15 2 non-Generally Accepted Accounting
Prmciples (GA AP) measure and 15 derived from, the IFRS based Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns by excluding the
movement i DAC, DIR and PVIF A reconciliation to the underlying profit 1s set out in the Financial Review on page 19

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Bass of consolidatren

The consolidated financial intormation mcorporates the assets, Labihities and the results of the Company and of 1ts subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those entities 1n which the Group 1s exposed to, or has rights to, varable returns from 1ts involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through sts power over the entity (including unit trusts 1n which the Group holds more than
30% of the units) Assnciates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control and are accounted for at fair
value through the profit or loss The Group uses the acquisiton method of accounting to account for business combinations and
expenses all acquisition costs as they are incurred The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consohidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with policies adopted by the Group

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group 1s recognised at fair value at the acquisition date  Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration that 15 deemed to be an asset or Irability 15 recogrused i accordance with IAS 39 1n the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

The treatment of trangactions with non-controlling interests depends on whether, as a result of the transaction, the Group alters
control of the subsidiary Changes 1n the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transacuons, any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideranion pad or received 1s recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the parent entity Where the Group
loses control of the subsidiary, at the date when control 15 lost the amount of any non-controlling interest i that former subsidrary 1s
derecognised and any investment retained in the former subsidiary 13 remeasured to its fair value, the gam or loss that 1s recognised 1n
profit or loss on the partial disposal of the subsidiary includes the gain or loss on the remeasurement of the retamned interest

Intragroup balances, and any mcome and expenses or unreahsed gains and losses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements

{b) Product classtfication

The Group’s products are classified for accounting purposes as either insurance contracts or mvestment contracts

(1) Insurance contracts
Insurance contracts are contracts that transfer signmificant insurance risk The Group's product range ncludes a variety of term
assurance and whole of life protection contracts involving significant insurance risk transfer

(nn) Investment contracts
Contracts that do not transter significant insurance risk arc treated as investment contracts The majority of the business written by the

Group 15 unit linked 1nvestment business and 1s classified as investment contracts

¢) Long term business
4

(1) Insurance premium revenue
For unit inked insurance contracts, premums are recognised as revenue when the habilities arsing from them are recogmsed All

other premiums are accounted for when due for payment

Investment contract premiums are not included in the statement of comprehensive income but are reported as deposits to investment
contract liabiliies 1n the balance sheet
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES conttnued

{(n} Revenue from ivestment contracts

Fees charged for services related to the management of investment contracts are recogmised as revenue as the services are provided
Tnitral fees, including dealing margins from umit trusts, which exceed the level of recurring fees and relate to the future provision of
services, are deferred These are amortised over the anticipated pertod n which services will be provided

(1) Policy claims and benefivs
For nsurance contracts, death claims are accounted for on noufication ot deatn Criugal sllnese claime are accounted for when
admutted All other claims and surrenders are accounted for when payment s due

For investment contracts, benefits paid are not included in the statement of comprehensive income but are instead deducted from
\nvesiment contract liabiliies The movement 10 imvestment contract benefits within the statement of comprehensive iIncome
principally represents the investment return credited to policyholders

Explicit advice charges are payable to St James's Place distribution company by most clients who wish to recetve advice with their
mnvestment ina St James's Place retail investment product 5t James'’s Place facilitates the payment of these charges for the client, by
arranging withdrawals from the chent's policy, which are then recognised as mcome to St James's Place distribution company

A proportion of the charge 15 then paid to the St James's Place adviser (‘Partner’) whe provides the advice (see (g)(1) Expenses)

(1v) Acquisition costs
For insurance contracts, acquisition costs comprise direct costs such as imitial commission and the indirect costs of obtamning and |
processing new business Acquisition costs which are incurred during a Anancial year, net of any impairment losses, are deferred and \
then amertised on a straight line basis over the period during which the costs are expected to be recoverable and 1n accordance with
the incidence of future related margins

For 1nvestment contracts, only directly attnibutable acquisinion costs, which vary with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts, are deferred, and only to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue These deferred
acqusition costs, which represent the contractual nght to benefit from providing mvestment managernent services, net of any
impairment losses, are amortised on a straight-hne basis over the expected hfetime of the Group's investment contracts All other
costs are recognised as expenses when mcurred Note, following the implementation of the Retaill Distnbution Review {(RDR) on
31 December 2012, the imtial advice costs are no longer an acquisition cost linked to the contractual right to benefit from providing
investment management services and so they are no longer deferred

The period over which costs are expected to be recoverable are as follows
Insurance contracts 6 years
Investment contracts 12-14 years

{v) Insurance contract labilities

Insurance contract liabihity provisions are determined following an anpual actuanal investigation of the long-term fund 1n accordance with
regulatory requirements The provisions are calculated on the basis of current information and using the gross premium valuation method
The Group's accounting policies for msurance contracts meet the minimum speafied requirements for hiabihity adequacy testing under
IFRS 4, as they consider current estimates of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flow such as claims handling costs

Insurance contraet habilities can never be definitive as to thew timing nor the amount of claims and arc thercfore subject to subsequent
reassessment on a regular basis

(1) Investment contract lrabihties

All of the Group's investment contracts are umt linked Unit inked Liabilities are measured at fair value by reference to the value of the
underlying net asset value of the Group’s unitised investment funds, determined on a bid value, at the reporting date An allowance for
deductions due to (or from) the Company n respect of policyholder tax on capital gamns (and losses) in the hife assurance funds 15 also
reflected 1n the measurement of unit hnked habilies [nvestment contract liabilities are recogused when units are first 2llocated to the
policyholder, they are derecogmised when umits allocated to the policyholder have been cancelled

The decision by the Group to designate 1ts unit linked liabilities as fair value through the profit and loss statement reflects the fact that
the underlying investment portfoho 15 managed, and 1ts performance evaluated, on a fair value basis
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(v11) Insurance and investment contract recervables and payables

Insurance and investment contract recervables and payables are intnally recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost,
using the effectve interest method, less impairment losses

(d) Remsurance '

Rewmnsurance premiums are accounted for when due for payment, and remnsurance recoveries, 1n respect of insurance contract habilities, are
accounted for wm the same period as the related claun Amounts recoverable from reinsurers m respect of claims and amounts payable 1n
respect of future remsurance premiums are reported as part of insurance and investment contract recervables and payables, respectively

(¢) Fee and commussion income

Fee and commission income comprises

1) advice charges paid by chients who wish to receive advice with therr 1nvestment in a St James’s Place or third party retail
investment product,

n) commission, due i respect of products sold on behalf of third parties, and

m) fees charged for services related to the management of investment contracts

Advice charges and commisston are recognsed in full on acceptance and inception of the associated policy by the relevant product
provider Where the product provider retarns the right to clawback of commussion on an indemmity basis, turnover on sale of these
products 1s recognised net of a provision for the estimated clawback

Investment contract management fees are generally recognised as revenue as the services are provided (see also accounting policy

note (¢ (i1))

(f) Investent return
Investment return comprises myestment mncome and investment gains and losses Investment income includes dlv:dends, interest and

rental income from 1nvestment properties under operating leases Dividends are accrued on an ex-dividend basis, and rental income 15
recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease Interest, which 1s generated on
assets classified as fair value through profit or loss, 1s accounted for on an aceruals basis

(g) Expenses

(1) Partner remuneratton

Partner remuneration comprises imtial commission and mitial advice fees (IAF) (paid for imtia] advice, at policy cutset and within an
‘imt1al period’), renewal commission and renewal advice fees (payable on regular contribunens) and fund fee commission or angoing
advice fee (OAF) (based on funds under management and payable on the policy anniversary) Imtral and renewal commssion and advice
fees are recogmsed 1 hne with the associated prermum mcorme, but imitial commssion on insurance and mvestment contracts may be
deferred as set out 1n accounting policy (¢) 1v) Fund fee commisston and ongoing advice fee are recogmised on an accruals basis

Commussion and advice fees in respect of some insuranee and investment business may be paid 1n advance on renewal prermums and
accelerated by up to five years The unearned element of this accelerated remuneration 15 recogmised as an asset within other
recervables Should the contributions reduce or stop within the imihal period, any unearned amount 1s recovered

(1) Operaung lease payments \

Leascs where a sigmificant proportion of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by the lessor are classified as opcrating leases
Payments made under operating leases are recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basts over the term
of the lease Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an integral part of the total lease

expense and are spread over the hfe of the lease

(h} Income taxes

income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax payable by the Group 1n respect of pohcyholders and
sharehelders Income tax 1s recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to 1tems
recognised directly in equity, 1n which case it 1s recogmised in equity

(1) Current tax
Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable 1n respect of previous years
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-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES contmued

(1) Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabshities for Ainancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following differences are not provided for
the 1mitial recogmtion of assets or liabilities that affect nesther accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to mnvestments in
subsidiaries to the extent that they wall probably not reverse m the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided 15 based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabihities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date

A deferred tax asset 15 recogmised only to the extent thatit 1s probable that huture taxable profits will be available agamst which the asset
can be utihised Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that 1t 15 no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be reahised

Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxahle entities where there 15 an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

(w1 Pohcyholder and shareholder tax

The total income tax charge 15 a separate adjustment wiathin the statement of comprehensive income based on the movement in current
and deferred income taxes tn respect of income, gains and cxpenses The total charge reflects tax incurred on behalf of policyholders as
well as shareholders, and so 1t 15 useful to be able to :dentify these separately Shareholder tax 15 estimated by making an assessment of
the effective rate of tax that 1s applicable to the shareholders, with the balance being treated as tax mn respect of policyholders

(1) Dividends paid
Dividend diseributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised n the period in which the dividends are paid, and, for the final
dividend, are disclosed {but unpaid) when approved by the Company’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

(1) Intangble assets
(1) Deferred acquisitton costs
See accounting policy {c) (1v)

(1) Acquired value of sn-force business

The acquired value of in-force business in respect of insurance business represents the present vatue of profits that are expected ta emerge
from 1nsurance business acquired on business combmations It 1s calculated at the ime of acquisiion using best estimate actuarial
assumptions for nterest, mortality, persistency and expenses, net of any impairment losses, and 1t 1s amortised on a straight line basis as
profits emerge over the anticipated lives of the related contracts in the portfoho An ntangible asset 18 also recogmsed in respect of
acquired mnvestment management contracts representing the fair value of contractual rights acquired under those contracts The acquired
value of m-Force bustness 1s expressed as a gross figure in the balance sheet with the assocated tax included within deferred tax liabihities Tt
1 assessed for impairment at each reporting date and any movement 1s charged to the statement of comprehensive income

(1) Computer software
Computer software 1s stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any recogmsed impairment loss The carrying value 1s reviewed
for impairment when events or changes n circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

Computer software 1s recognised as an intangible asset during development with amortisation commencing when the software 1s
operational Amortisation 13 charged to the statement of comprehensive income to administration expenses on a strarght-line basis over
four years, being the estimated useful life of the intangible asset

(k) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquinition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets of the
acquired entity at the date of acquisiion Where the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets of the acquired entity 15
greater than the cost of acquisition, the excess 1s recogmsed immediately 1in the statement of comprehensive income

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset at cost and 15 reviewed at least annually for impairment or when circumstances or events indicate
there may be uncertainty over this value Ifan impairment 13 1dentified, the carrying value of the goodwill 1s written down immediately
through the statement of comprehensive income and 1s not subsequently reversed At the date of disposal of a subsidiary, the carrying
vahue of attributable goodwill 1s included 1n the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal except where it has been written off directly
to reserves 1n the past
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(I) Property & equipment

Items of property & equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation  Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset
and the costs attributable to bringing the asset toits working condition for 1ts intended use Land 1s shown at far value, based on
valuations by external independent valuers The carrying value 1s reviewed for impairment when events or changes in aircumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable and any assets that may have suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

Depreaiation 1s charged to the statement of comprehensive income to administration expenses on a straght-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the property & equipment as follows

Computers 3 years
Fixtures and fittings 5 years
Office equiprnent 5 years

Land 1s not depreciated

(m} Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when therr carrying amount 1s to be recovered prineipally through a sale transaction
and a sale 15 considered nghly probable They are stated at the lower of the carrying amount and their fair value less costs to sell

{n} Investment property
Investment properties, which are all held within the umit inked funds, are properties which are held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation  They are stated at fair value

An external, independent valuer, having an appropriate recognised professional qualificatton and recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, values the portfolio every month

The fair values are based on open market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller 1n an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wheren the parties had
each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion

Any gam or loss arising from a change in fair value 1s recogmised in the statement of comprehensive income within investment income
Rental return from 1nvestment property 1s accounted for as described in accounting pohiey ()

(o) Investments

The Group’s investments are initially and subsequently recognuised at fair value through profit or loss, with all gains and losses
recognised within investment income 1n the statement of comprehensive income  The fair values of quoted financial investments, which
represent the vast majority of the Group’s mvestments, are based on the value within the bid-ask spread that 1s most representative of
fair value I the market for a inanaial investment s not active, the Group establishes fair value by using valuatien techniques such as
recent arm’s length transactions, reference to stmilar listed investments, discounted cash flow models or option priung models

The deczsion by the Group to designate its investments at fair value through the profit and loss reflects the fact that the investment
portfolio 15 managed, and its performance evaluated, on a fair value basis

The Group recogmses purchases and sales of investments on trade date The costs associated with investment transactions are included
within administration expenses in the statement of comprehensive income

{p) Dermvative finonaal instruments

The Group uses derwvative financial instruments within some urnt linked funds, with each contract mnally and subsequently
recognised at fair value, based on observable market prices All changes in value are recogmised within investment mcome 1n the
statement of comprehensive mcome
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
(q) Other recervables

Other receivables are imitially recogmsed at farr value and subsequently held at amortised cost less impatrment losses, except for
renewal income which 15 held at fair value The value of any rmparrment recognised 1s the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate See accounting pehey
note {r) for information relating to the treatment of 1mpaired amounts

(r) Impairment policy

{1) Non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment when circumstances or events indicate there may be uncertainty
over this value An impairment loss 1s recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount
The recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use

(1) Financial assets

Formal reviews ta assess the recoverablity of financial assets are carried out at each reporong date The recoverabhbty of such assets1s
measured and the asset 15 deemed impaired 1f the projected future margins are less than the carrying value of the asset If there 15 any
wndication of irrecoverability or impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount 15 estimated based on the present value of 1ts estimated
futurc cash flows

Impairment losses are reversed — through the statement of comprehensive income — if there 15 a change 1n the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount Such losses are reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation where applicable, if no impairment loss had
been recogmsed

(s) Cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term hghly liquid investments, and bank
overdrafts to the extent that they are an mtegral part of the Group’s cash management

Cash & cash equivalents held wathin unit linked and umit trust funds are classified at fair value through the profit and loss All other
cash & cash equivalents are classified as loans and recewvables !

(t) Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present legal or constructive obhgation as a result of past events such that 1t 1s probable
that an outflow of econamic benefits wall be required to settle the oblrgation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
he made Provisions are measured as the discounted expected future cash flows taking account of the risks and uncertainties assaciated
with the speaific liabihity where appropriate

(u} Borrowings

Borrowangs are measured imtially at farr value, net of directly attributable transaction costs, and subsequently stated at amortised cost
The difference between the proceeds and the redemption value 15 recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive incorne over the
borrowing period on an effective interest rate basis Borrowings are reco gnised on drawdown and derecognised on repayment

(v) Other payables

Other payables are recognised imitrally at tair value and subscquently mcasured at amortised cost using the chlective interest method

(w) Net asset value attributable to unit holders

The Group consolidates umt trustsin which 1t holds more than 30% of the units and exercises control The third party interests 1n
these unit trusts are measured at fair value, since the underlying investment portfolios are managed on a fair value basis, and they are
presented in the balance sheet as net asset value attributable to unit holders Income attributable to the third party interests 1s
2ccounted for within investment income, offset by a corresponding change in investment contract benefits

(x) Employee benefits

(1) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution personal pension plan for us employees Contributions to this plan are recogmsed as an
expense 1n the statement of comprehensive income as mcurred The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold suficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and

prior periods
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{(n) Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of share-based payment plans The fair value of equity instruments granted 1s recogmsed as an expense
spread over the vesung period of the instrument which accords with the period for which related services are provided, with a
corresponding increase 1n equity in the case of equity settled plans The total amount to be expensed 15 determined by reference to the
fair value of the awards at the grant date, measured using standard option pricing models

At each reporting date, the Group revises 1ts estimate of the number of equity nstruments that are expected to vest and 1t recognises
the 1mpact of the revision of original estimates, 1f any, 1n the statement of comprehensive income, such that the amount recogmsed for
employee services are based on the number of shares that actually vest The charge to the statement of comprehensive mcormne 1s not
revised for any changes in market vesting cond:tions

(y) Treasury shares

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s share capital, the consideration paid 15 deducted from equity attributable to
shareholders, as disclosed i the Treasury Shares reserve Where such shares are subsequently sald, reissued or otherwise disposed of,
any consideration recerved 15 included 1n equity attributable to sharehelders, net of any directly attributable mecremental transaction

casts and the related income tax effects

(z) Foreign currency translation
The Group’s presentation and the Company’s functional currency 1s pounds Sterling .

Foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transactions Menetary
assets and lrabihities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and the
gamn or losses on translation are recogrused 1n the statement of comprehensive income

Non-monetary assets and labilities which are held at historical cost are translated using exchange rates prevailing at the date of
transaction, those held at fatr value are translated using exchange rates ruling at the date on which the fair value was determined

(aa) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner conststent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker

The chief operating decision maker, which 1s responsible for allocating resources and assessimg performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Executive Commuttee of the Board

(ab) Current and non-current disclosure
Assets which are expected to be recovered or settled no more than twelve months after the reporting date are disclosed as current
within the notes to the financial statements Those expected to be recovered or settled more than twelve months after the reporting

date are disclosed as non-current

Liabilittes which are expected and due to be settled no more than twelve manths after the reporting date are disclosed as current
within the notes ta the finanaial statements Those habihties which are expected and due to be settled more than twelve months after

the reporting date are disclosed as non-current

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Judgements

The primary arcas in which the Group has applied judgement 1n applying accounting policics are in the classification of contracts
between insurance and investment business and when applying the concept of control to determine which entities are subsidiaries

Classification of contracts between 1insurance and 1investment business

Contracts with a blgntlhcant degree of tnsurance risk are treated as insurance All other contracts are treated as investment contracts
The Group has also elected to treat all assets backing linked and non unit linked contracts as fair value through profit or loss although
some of the assets 1n question may ultimately be held to maturity

Subsidiaries
Subsitharies are those entities 1n which the Group 15 exposed 1o, or has rights to, variable returns from 1ts involvement with the entity

and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity (including unit trusts in which the Group holds more than
30% of the unszs)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Estimates

The principal areas n which the Group applies accounting estimates are

— Determining the value of msurance contract habilities

— Decding the amount of management expenses that are treated as acquisition expenses
— Amortisation and recoverability of deferred acquisition costs and deferred income

— Determining the fair value, auwos wsston and recoverability of acquired in-force business
— Determumng the fair value habality to policyholders for caprtal losses in unit funds

— Determuning the value of deferred tax assets

— Determining the fair value of financial 1nstruments and mvestment property

— Determinng the fair value of share-based payments

— Recoverability of St James's Place Partnership loans

— Measurement of prepaid operational readiness costs

— Fair value estimation of assets acquired

Estimates are also apphed m determiming the amount of deferred tax asset recogmised on unrelieved expenses and the value of
other provisions

Measurement of msurance contract habilities
The assumptions used 1n the calculation of insurance contract habilities that have a ssgmificant effect on the statement of comprehensive

income of the Group are

— The lapse assumption, which s set prudently based on an investigation of experience during the year

— The level of expenses, which 15 based on actual expenses in 2014 and expected long term rates

— The mortality and morbidity rates, which are based on the results of an investigation of expenence during the year
— The assumed rate of investment return, which 15 based on current gilt yields

Greater detail on the assumptions applied 1s shown 1 Note 21

Acquisition expenses
Certain management expenses vary with the level of new business and have been treated as acquisition costs  Each line of costs has
been reviewed and its variability to new bustness volumes estimated on the bass of the Jevel of costs that would be incurred if new

business ceased

Amortisation and recoverability of Deferred Acquusition Costs ( DAC) and Deferred Income (DIR)

Defefred acquisition costs on investment contracts are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected lifetime of the underlying
contracts The expected hifeime of the contracts has been estimated from the experienced termination rates and the age of chients at
inception and maturity

Deferred 1ncome on investment contracts 15 amortised on a straight line basis over the expected hfetime of the underlying contracts,
although on certam contracts, the impacts of early withdrawal charges means the mcome 13 effectively recognised over a shorter

penod

Deferred acquisition costs on tnsurance contracts are amortised over the period during which the costs are expected to be recoverable
n accordance with the projected emergence of future margins

Deferred acquisition costs relating to msurance and investment contracts are tested annually for recoverability by reference to
expected future mncome levels Future income levels are projected using assumptions consistent with those underlying our embedded
value calculatton

Acquired m-force business

There have been no new business combinations generating acquired in-force business during the year The acquired value of the
in-force business 1s amortised on a bass that reflects the expected profit stream arising from the business acquired at the date of
acquisitton This profit stream 1s estumated from the experienced termination rates, expenses of management and age of the clients
under the mdividual contracts as well as global estrmates of investment growth, based on recent experience at the date of acquisition

The acquired value of in-force business relating to insurance and mvestment contracts 12 tested annually for recoverability by reference
to expected future income levels
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Valimg capital losses in the umt funds
In hne with IAS 12, the Group has recogmised a deferred tax asset in relation to caprtal losses in the wnit funds at the reporting date
Thes asset has been tested for impairment against the level of capital gains reahstically expected to arse in future

Much of the henefit of the deferred tax asset an capital losses m the umit funds will be shared with pohcyhalders The policyholder
mvestment contract habthty has therefore heen increased to reflect the fair value of this additional henefit The assumptions that have a
sigmficant effect on the fair value of the liability are as follows

— The assumed rate of investment return, which 1s based on curreat gilt yields

~ The lapse assumption, which 15 set prudently based on experience during the year

— The assumed period for development of capital gans, which 1s estimated from recent experience

Determiming the value of deferred tax assets

In hine with [AS 12, the Group has recognised deferred tax assets for future tax benefits that will accrue The asset value has taken

into constderation the likelihood of appropreate future income or gains against which the tax asset can be utilised In particular,

tuture investment income from the existing assets will be sufficient to utilise the unreheved expenses, and capiral gans crystallising

in the unit hnked funds will utihise the capital losses Tax assets in relation to deferred income will be utilised as the underlying mcome
13 recognised

Determmung the fair value of finanaal mmstruments and mvestment property

In accordance with IFRS 13, the Group categorises financial imstruments carrred on the balance sheet at fair value using a three level
hierarchy Financial instruments categonised as level 1 are valued using quoted market prices and therefore there 1s mimimal judgement
applied 1n determuning fair value However, the fair value of financial instruments categorised as level 2 and, 1 particular, level 315
determined using valuation techmiques These valuation techniques involve management judgement and estimates, the extent of which
depends on the complexity of the instrument and the availability of market observable information Further detals of these valuations
are described in Note 29

Determining the fazr value of share-based payments

In determining the fair value of share-based payments and the related charge to the income statement, the Group makes assumptions
about the future events and market conditions In particular, judgement must be formed as to the ltkely number of shares that wall vest,
and the fair value of each award granted Further details of these assumptions used are described 1n Note 32

Recoverability of St James’s Place Partnership loans

During the normal course of business the Group provides loans to St James's Place Partners in order to support the development and
growth of the St James’s Place Partnership The St James's Place Partnership loans are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently held at amortised cost less impairment losses The recoverability of loans 1s measured and the asset 13 deemed impaired 1f
the projected future margins are less than the carrying value of the asset The allowance for impairment losses on St James's Place
Partnership loans 15 management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the porttolio at the statement of hnanaal position date

Measurement of prepard operational readiness costs

Included within prepayments are operational readiness costs relating to the new admimistration service agreement which are imnially
recognised at the amounts advanced The prepayment s expensed in line with the provision of services under the service agreement At
each statement of financial position date, the value of the prepayment is assessed for impairment recognised aganst the present value of
the estimated future contract benefits In determining the present value of the estimated future contract benefits, the cnitical
Judgements are the levels of future business that will be serviced, the antucipated future service taniffs, terminations fees payable and
recervable under the contract and the rate used to discount amounts to present value

Fair value estunation of assets acquired

Tn accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, as of the acquisition date, the Group recogmses, separately from goodwil, the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest 1n the acquiree and clzssifies the 1dentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed on the basis of the contractual terms, economic conditions, 1ts operating or accounting policies and
other pertinent conditions as they exist at the acquisition date The Group measures the identifiable assets acquired and the lizbilives
assumed at thetr acqusition-date fawr values
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

3 SEGMENT REPORTING

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be 1dentified on the basis of mnternal reports about components of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board in order to allocate rescurces to each segment and assess 1ts performance
The Group’s reportable segments under [FRS § are therefore as follows

1 Life business — offering pensions, protection and mvestment products through the Group’s Iife assurance subsidiaries
2 Unit Trust business — offering unit trust investment products, including ISAs, through the St James's Place Unit Trust Group

3 Distribution business — the distribution network for tne 51 Jamcs’s Place hfe and umt trust products as well as finanaial products
such as annumies, mortgages and stakeholder pensions, from thurd party providers

The figures for segment income provided to the Board in respect of the distribution business relate to the distnbution of the products
of third party providers only The figures for segment profit provided to the Board take account of lees and commussions payable by the
Life business and unit trust business to the distribution business

4 Other - all other Group activittes

Separate geographical segmental information 1s not presented since the Group does not segment 1ts business geographically Most of 1ts
customers are based 1o the Umted Kingdom, as 1s management of the assets In particular, the new operation based 1n South East Asia s
not yet material for separate consideration

The incame, profit and asscts of these segments arc set out below

Segment Income

Annual Premium Equivalents ("APE’)
APE, bemg regular premuums plus one tenth of single premuums, 15 the income measure that 1s monitered on a monthly basis by the Board

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£Mllion £’ Million
Life business 583.0 5329
Unit Trust business 312.6 2300
Distribution busmess 111.6 102 3
Total APE 1,007.2 865 2
Adjustments to reconcile to IFRS basis
Life business
Exclude investment business APE (580.7) (530 5)
Difference between nsurance business APE and premmum recevable 552 588
Less insurance premium income ceded to reinsurers (33.5) (54 3)
Fee income (management fees and imit1al margin) 520.8 460 7
Net movement on deferred income 64 7 708
[nvestment income {(primanly i unit hnked funds) 2,914 6 4,886 3
Unit Trust business
Exclude umt trust APE (312 6) (230 0)
Fee income (dealing profit and management fees) 1700 150 9
Net movement on deferred income 107 71
Investment 1ncome 04 03
Distribution business
Exclude distnibution APE (117) (102 3)
Fee and commission 1ncome receivable 429.3 315 2
Other mvestment income 03 Q2
Other business
Income recewvable 5.5 46
Investment income on third party holdings i consolidated umt trusts 4259 939 2
Other investment income 59 51
Other operating income 1.2 25
Total adjustments 3,566 0 5,988 6
Net income — IFRS 4,573.2 6,853 8

All segment 1ncormne 15 generated by external customers and there are no segment income transactions between operating segments as
measured by APE

Registered No 03183415




Segment Profit

Three separate measures of profit are momtored on a monthly basis by the Board These are pre-tax European Embedded Value

(‘EEV"), post-tax cash result and the pre-tax IFRS result

Going forward an additional profit measure ‘underlying profit” will be momitored by the chief operating decision maker This measure

has been included on a pre-tax basis below for mnformation

EEV Operating Profit

EEV operating profit 1s monitored on a monthly basis by the Board The components of the EEV operating profit 1e included 1n more
detail in the Supplementary Information on EEV basis within the Annual Report and Accounts on pages 163 to 173 A reconciliation of
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EEV operating profit to IFRS profit before tax 1s shown below w
~
Year Ended Year Ended Lg-u_‘
31 December  3i December =}
2014 2013 a.
£ Mallion £'Million :'AU
Life business 4670 3657 =3
Unit Trust business 1777 130 8 :_’
Distribution business (109) 61 e
Other business {37.4) 277 =3
EEV operating profit 596 4 4627 E}
[nvestment return variance 802 344 2 g
Econormic assumption changes (7.0) 106
EEV profit before tax 669.6 8175
Adjustments to IFRS basis o
Deduct amortisation of acquired value of in-force 32 (32) Q
Movement n life value of in-force (net of tax) (241 7y (360 1} ¢
Movement 1n unit trust value of in-force (net of tax) (104 9) (122 8) g
Tax of movement 1n value of in-force (136.9) (140 7) 2
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 1829 1907 i
Tax attributable to policyholder returns 11 s 270 5
294 4 461 2 L——

IFRS profit before tax

Cash Result

Year Ended Year Ended
3l December 31 December

xy]
=
Y
=
L]
=
=
=
=
e}
=
=
e}
=
=
4

X 2014 2013
£'Million £'Millien
Life business 146 2 143 8
Unit Trust business 481 44 8
Distribution business (85) 47
Other business (207) (15 b
Cash result after tax 165 1 168 8
[FRS adjustments (after tax) (@)
Share option expense (11 2) (78 %‘
Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) (58 6) (62 9) o
Deferred income (DIR) 680 679 ‘g';
Acquired value of in-force (PVIF) (2 6) {2 6) e
Sterling reserves 74 04 =
IFRS deferred tax adjustments 348 26 5 oy
o
IFRS profit after tax 1879 190 3 ]
Shareholder tax G0 04 \
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders® returns 1829 190 7
Policyholder tax 1115 2705
294 4 461 2

IFRS profit before tax ,
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING continued

IFRS Result
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2313
£ Mallion £'Million
Lafz business
— shareholder 1717 170 6
— policyholder tax gross up 111 5 2705
Umit Trust business 595 539
Distribution business (109) ((B))]
Other business (37.4) (277
294 4 461 2

IFRS profit before tax

Underlying profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
£pallion £'Maliion
Life business 160 7 1627
Unit Trust business 612 583
Distnbution business (109) 6 1)
Other business (374) (277
Underlying profit 173.6 187 2
Adjustments
DAC/DIR/PVIF 93 3s
IFRS profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 1829 190 7

Included within the EEV, IFRS prafit before tax, post-tax cash result and underlying profit are the followng

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£Mallhon £ Mullion

Shareholder interest income 88 73
19 16

Depreciation

Registered No 03183415
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Segment Assets
Funds under Management (‘JFUM’) wn
FUM within the St James's Place Group, rounded to the nearest £0 1 hillion, are momitored on a monthly basis by the Board 5
31 December 3t December a
2014 2013 °§
£Million £"™Million s
)
Life business 39,2000 34,1000 g
Unrt Trust business 12,800 0 10,200 0 at
Total FUIM 52,0000 44,3000
Exclude third party holdings in non-consohdated umt trusts (2,086 4) (1,665 6)
Add balance sheet habilities 1n unit linked funds 480.9 545 6 W
Adjustments for other balance sheet assets excluded from FUM <
DAC 8130 888 8 g
PVIF 368 400 2
Computer software 77 87 .‘:”U
Goodwill 101 - %
Property & equipment 79 58 g
Deferred tax assets 1928 1818 o
Fixed income securitres B33 677 g
Collective investment schemes 5217 5230 A.
Remnsurance assets 855 642 3
Insurance and mvestment contract recervables 635 499 g
Other receivables 292 6 1289 N~
Other receivables elimmated on consehdation (94 9) (151 %)
Cash & cash equivalents 2743 1971
Other adjustments 57 543 o
Total adjustments 694 5 1,039 3 2
a
Total assets 52,6945 45,3393 o)
1)
2]
4 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 8
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013*
£ilhon £ Milhion 'T
Advice charges 340 4 250 8 z
Third party fee and commssion income 94 4 730 A
Life company imtial margin 263 27 9% s
Life company management fees 494 5 432 g+ «©
Unat Trust dealiag profic 160 191t ;
Umnit Trust management fees 122 4 105 3% 5:
Unit Trust other income 316 26 5% &
Movement 1n deferred income 754 779 o
Total fee and commission 1ncome 1,201 0 10133
*  These figures have been re presented 1o more approp ly reflect the I fee income for Iwfe and unit truse business O
5. INVESTMENT RETURN QS_
Year Ended Year Ended fd
31 December 31 December E’h
2014 2013 g
£Milhon £'Malhion E
Dhvidend income 5053 455 6 Ef
Interest income 23 4 225 &
Rental income 508 41 8
Unut linked funds cross holding investment income 423.1 3581
Net reahsed gawms 3815 454 1
Net unrealised gans 1,537 1 3,559 8
Income attributable to third party holdings in umt trusts 4259 939 2

Total investment return 3,347 1 5,831 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

6. EXPENSES

The following 1terns are included within the expenses disclosed in the statement of comprehenstive income

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
£'Million £'Million
Employee costs (see Note 7) 1117 88 6
Depreciation 19 16
Revaluations - 01
Amortisation of acquired value of in-force business 32 32
Armortisation of DAC 1027 117 1
Amortisation of computer software 28 25
Deferral of DAC (26 9) (34 3)
Partner remuneration 455.4 407 1
Payment under operating leases 138 101
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the parent Company and consolidated
financal statements 01 01
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor
for other services
— The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 06 06
— Audit-related assurance services 02 01
— Non-audit related services -
7. EMPLOYEE COSTS
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Becember 31 December
2014 2013
£Million £' Million
Wages and salaries 842 669
Socal secunty costs 101 89
Other pension costs in relation to defined contribution schemes 60 50
Cost of share awards and options 11.4 78
Total employee costs 1117 88 ¢
Average monthly number of persons employed by the Group during the year 1,225 985

The above information includes Directors’ remuneration Details of the Directors’ remuneration, share options, penston entitlements
) P P

and 1nterests in shares are disclosed 1n the Remuneration Report on pages 67 to 87

Registered No 03183415
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8. INCOME TAXES

Year Ended Year Ended [ 7]
3] December 31 December g
2014 2013 &'
£Mallton £'Mithon Ug
UK corporation tax x
— Currént year charge 96 2 290 g
— Adjustment an respect of prior year (76) 25 %
QOverseas taxes
— Current year charge 69 \_
955 18 7}
Deferred tax on unreahised capital gamns and losses 1n umit hinked funds 40 6 278 1 :_
Deferred tax on uarelieved expenses 84 22 [
Deferred tax on pensions business losses - 6 4 %
Deferred tax on Group Company capital losses e
— Current year {29.6) 27 9) s
— Adjustment 1n respect of prior year 68 - a
Deferred tax charge on other items (13.3) (14 2) (._:_1
Effect on deferred tax of change in tax rate - (i20) e
Qverseas taxes {1.9) — a
110 2326 &
Total tax charge for the year 106 5 2709 S
~
Attributable to
— polieyholders 1115 270 §
— shareholders 50) 04
106 5 270 9 9
E
The prior year adjustment in current tax above includes a credit of £0 6 mllion 1 respect of policyholder tax (2013 £1 7 million charge) §
o
In arrving at the profit before tax attnbutable to shareholders’ returns, it necessary 1o estimate the analyss of the total tax charge
between that payable in respect of policyholders and that payable by shareholders Shareholder tax 1s estimated by rmaking an assessment

ot the effective rate of tax that 1s applicable to the sharehalders, with the balance being treated as tax in respect of policyholders

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Decemnber

Deferred tax 2014 2013
£Milhon £'Milhon

Balance at 1 January 3148 781
Charge through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 110 2326
Arnsing on acquisitions durmg the year 12 41
Balance at 31 December 3270 314 8

The deferred tax components to which movements above relate to are disclosed 1n Note 15 Deferred Tax Assets and Note 26 Deferred

Tax Liabihnes

Included within the deferred tax current year charge 1sa credit of £1 5 mullion (2013 £1 7 million credst) relating to share-based

payments Details of share-based payments are disclosed in Note 32 Share-based Payments

The change 1n the corporation tax rate trom 21% to 20% effectve from 1 April 2015 had already been incorporated into the deferred

tax balances 1n 2013

|
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8. INCOME TAXES continued

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Reconciliation of tax charge 2014 2013
£'Mallion £'Mithon
Profit before tax 294.4 461 2
Tax at 21 5% (2013 23 25%) 633 107 2
eflects of
Overseas rates and bases of tax (3 6) 24
|Shareholder deduction for policyholder tax 875 207 ¢
Group company capital losses (32 5) (27 9)
Share options (21) Zn
Dhsallowable expenses 09 14
Adjustment 1n respect of prior year (¢ 2) 08
Change In tax rate - (12 0)
Other adjustments 02 (11
Total tax charge for the year 106.5 2709
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Reconcihation of tax charge 2014 2013
£Million £'Mallion
Profit before tax 294 4 461 2
Tax attributable to pohicyholders’ returns* (111 5) (270 5)
Proft before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 1829 190 7
Shareholder tax charge at corporate tax rate of 21 5% (2013 23 25%) 393 21 5% 443  2325%
Adjustments
Tax regime differences
Mifference due to overseas subuidiaries (36) (20%) @24 (13%)
Otker
Creation of deferred tax asset on Group Company capital losses (39 5) (279
Adjustment 1n respect of prior year (02) 08
Share options 2.1) 27
Disallowable expenses 09 14
Other 0z (an
(407) (22 3%) (28 5) (15 5%)
Change in tax rate - (12 0) (6 3%)
Shareholder tax charge (50) (27%) 04 0 2%
Policyholder tax charge 1115 270 5
Total tax charge for the year 106 5 2709

*  Tax auributable to policybalder returns s equal to the policyholder tax charge

Registered No 03183415
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During the year the Group acquired the following subsidiartes in line with the Group’s strategic objective of growing the Partnership

Subsicdhary undertaking

Principal activity

% Shareholding

Date of acquisition

PFP Group

PFPTime Limited IFA* 100 24 January 2014
G M B Fmancial Services Limited Non-tradmg 100 24 January 2014
PFPTume {IFA) Limited Dormant 100 24 January 2014
Henley Group

Henley Wealth Management International Pte Limited Holding Company 100 10 June 2014
Austrahan Expatriate Services Limited Dormant 100 10 June 2014
Expatrate Insurance Group Limited Dormant 100 10 June 2014
International Protection Group Pte Lumited General Insurance 100 10 June 2014
The Henley Group Limited IFA* 100 10 June 2014
The Henley Group Pte Limmted IFA* 100 10 June 2014
THG Wealth Management Limited UK Dustnbunon 100 10 june 2014

*  Independent Financia] Adviser

Acquisition-related costs of £0 | million have been charged to administration expenses in the consolidated income statement for the

year ended 31 December 2014

PFP Group

The PFP Group acquisition contributed £0 8 rmllion to revenue and a £0 2 mullion profit before ncome tax for the period between the

acquisztion date and the statement of financial position date

The net assets, fair value adjustments and consideration for these acqusitions are summanrised below (all values shown as at their

acquisition dates)

Farr value

Book value ad)justment Total

£Mvallion £'Mallron £'Mallion

Financial assets 01 L8 19

Cash and cash equrvalents 04 - 04
Financial hiabihties (15) - (15

Total (10) 18 08

Consideration

Cash consideration 0.5

Conungent consideration 0.3

08

Total consideration

y10day o1dazeng

|

The contingent consideration 15 payable if certain performance targets are met, being based on the individual Partner Performances
It 13 expected this will be paid in full with no changes to the amount imtially recognised The carrying amount of the contingent
consideration at the statement of financial position date 15 £0 3 million Of the remaining balance to be settled, the Group expects
that £0 15 milhon wall be settled by 24 April 2015 and another £0 15 million settled by 24 April 2016
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9. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS continued

The Henley Group

The Henley Group acqusition contributed £3 8 million to revenue and a £1 7 mullien loss before ;ncome tax for the period between the
acquisition date and the statement of financial posttion date  Had the above acquisitions been consolidated from 1 January 2014, they
would have contributed £5 5 muillion to revenue and a £1 8 milhon loss before income tax to the consclidated statement of income for
the year

The net assets, fair value adjustments and consideration for these acquisingas are summansed below (all values shown as at their
acquisition dates)

Fair value

Book value adyustment Total

£'Mallion £Mmilhon £'Milhion

Financial assets 06 44 52

Cash and cash equivalents - - -

Financial habiines — —~ -

Total 06 46 52
Consideration

Cash consideration 71

Contingent consideration 82

Total consideration 153

Goodwill 101

Goodwll comprises of the value placed on the Asian distribution network bemg acquired and the local experience and knowledge that
The Henley Group holds across these regulatory junsdictions

It 15 expected that the contingent consideration will be pard 1n full with no changes to the amount imitially recogmsed, however, should
the target number of advisers not be met, the contingent consideration will decrease on a pro-rata basis down to a value of £1 3 mullion
The carrying amouat of the contingent considcration at the statement of financial position date 15 £8 2 mullion Of the remaining
balance to be settled, the Group expects that £3 4 million will be settled by 31 August 2015, £1 3 million settled by 30 June 2017 and
£3 5 muihion settled by 28 February 2017

10, EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 3t December

2014 2013

Pence Pence

Basic earmings per share 36 6 37 4
Diluted earnings per share ’ 359 36 7
Underlying basic earnings per share 352 34 4
Underlymg diluted earnings per share 34.6 33 8

Regstered No 03183415
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The earnings per share (EPS) caleulanons are based on the following figures

Year Ended Year Ended v
31 Decewber 31 December g
2014 2013 (.i‘:;
£'Milhon £ Million g
a
Earmings =)
Profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS) 187.9 190 3 811
<
Mallion Millien :‘r
Weighted average number of shares
Werghted average number of ordinary shares 1n 1ssue (for basic EPS) 514 0 509 4 N—
Adjustments for outstanding share options 90 92
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (for difuted EPS) 5230 5186

11. DIVIDENDS
The following dividends have been paid by the Group

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

{uonepunod aoe[d ssawe[ 15

2014 20i3 2014 2013
Pence per Pence per £Mallron £ Millien

Share Share
Final dividend 1n respect of previous financial year 9.58 6 39 49 4 326
Interim dividend 1in respect of current financial year 893 6 38 46 1 327
Total dividends 18.51 1277 95.5 653

€
The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 14 37 pence per share (2013 9 58 pence) This amounts to £74 6 nmullion g
(2013 £42 4 mulhion) and will, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 15 May 2015 to those o
shareholders on the register as at 10 April 2015 o1
a
o
12. GOODWILL
31 December 31 December
2014 03
£million £ Malhon

Balance at 1 January
Additions 101 -
Accumulated 1mpairment loss - -

Balance at 31 December 101

M
=
=
=
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Goodwill 18 reviewed at least annually for impairment or when circumstances or events indicate there may be uncertainty over this
value For the purposes of impairment testing, 100% of the goodwall 1s allocated to the appropriate cash generating unit, being Life

The recoverable amount has been based on a value 1n use caleulation The calculation applies an actuanally determined appraisal value,
based on the embedded value of the business The key assumptions used 1n the value m use calculation are growth in volume of new
business at 15% and profitability in line with other existing international business Mere information regarding the assumptions used 1n
the embedded value of the business can be found on pages 167 and 168

It 15 considered that any reasonably possibie levels of change in the key assumptions would not result in impairment of the goodwill
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
software
& other
Lafe Life Unit Trust Acquired speafic
business business business value of soltware
—Insurance —Investment -—investment in-force develop-
DAC DAC DAC Total DAC business ments Customer st Total
£M:llion £Million & Muuon LA LW £'Million £'Million £M:llion £Million
Cost
At 1 January 2013 106 7 1,122 2 2890 1,517 9 73 4 123 33 1,606 9
Additions g5 238 100 34 3 - - - 343
Disposals — - - - - (0 5) - (0 5)
Redlassification - - - - - - 33 33
At 31 December 2013 107 2 1,146 O 299 0 1,552 2 73 4 11 8 - 1,637 4
At 1 January 2014 107 2 1,146 0 299 ¢ 1,552 2 734 11.8 - 1,637.4
Additions 05 17.2 92 269 - 1.8 - 287
At 31 December 2014 107 7 1,163.2 3082 1,579.1 73.4 13.6 - 1,666 1
Accumulated
amortisation
At 1 January 2013 922 3679 86 2 546 3 30 2 06 03 5774
Charge for the year 135 822 214 117 1 32 25 — 122 8
Reclassificatton ~ - — - © 3 (0 3)
At 31 December 2013 105 7 450 1 107 6 663 4 334 31 - 699 9
At 1 January 2014 105 7 450.1 107.6 663 4 334 31 - 6999
Charge for the year 08 804 215 102.7 32 28 — 108 7
At 31 December 2014 106 5 5305 129 1 766.1 166 59 - 808 6
Carrying value
At 31 December 2013 15 695 9 191 4 888 8 400 87 - 9375
At 31 December 2014 12 6327 1791 8130 368 77 - 8575
Current 106.1
Non-current 751 4
8575
Qutstanding amortisation
period
At 31 December 2013 6 years 14 years 14 years 12 years 4 years
At 31 December 2014 6 years 14 years 14 years 12 years 4 years

Amortisation of deferred acquisttion costs 1s charged within the fees, commussion and other acquisihon costs Line 1n the statement of
comprehensive mcome The amortisation of the acquired value of n-force business 1s charged withun other operating expenses with the
amortisaton of computer software and customer list charged within adrimstration expenses Amartsation profiles are reassessed annually

Registered No 03183415
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14. PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT

Fixtures & w2
Fietings, q
Computers &  Assets Held %
Qffice for Sale— og
Equipment Land Total (¢}
£'Miilion £'Milhon £'Malhon gj
Cost *g
At 1 January 2013 329 13 342 3
Additions 17 02 319
Revaluation — 0 1) on —
At 31 December 2013 36 6 14 380 w
At 1 January 2014 366 14 38.0 -
Additions . 40 - 40 g
Disposals — - - S_
At 31 December 2014 40 6 14 420 o]
Accumulated depreciation . §
At 1 January 2013 306 - 306 o)
Charge for the year 16 - 16 g
=
At 31 December 2013 : 322 - 322 e
At 1 January 2014 32.2 - 322 g
Charge for the year 19 - 19 L2
At 31 December 2014 341 - 341
Net book value
At 1 January 2013 23 13 36 [
]
At 31 December 2013 44 14 58 &
At 31 December 2014 65 14 79 B
Current 32 8
Non-current 47
79

During the year, a contract was signed to sell the land for £1 4 million  Asat 31 December 2014 the full conditions of the contract had not yet
been met, therefore the land has been re-categorised as ‘Assets Held for Sale” and valued at the agreed sale price The agreed sale price 15

considered by the Group to be the farr value of the asset as at 31 December 2014 The sale 15 expected to complete 1n early 2015

15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

3i{ December 3| December

2014 2013

£'Million £'Million

Life business — unrelieved expenses 653 737
Life business — deferred income 18 4 237
Unit Trust business — deferred income 46.1 48 2
Capatal losses on hquidations 50 7 279
QOther 123 83
Total deferred tax assets 1928 181 8
Current 41 1 368
Non-current 1517 1450
192 8 181 8

Appropriate investment income, gains or profits are expected to arise against which the tax assets can be utthised In particular, tuture

investment income from the existing assets will be sufficient to uuhise the unrelieved expenses and capital gains crystallisimg in the unit

linked funds will utilise the capital losses Tax assets in relanon to deferred income will be utilised as the underlying income 1s recogrused

At the reporting date there were unrecognised deferred tax assets of £0 2 million (2013 £mil) 1n respect of losses in companies where

appropriate profits are not considered probable in the forecast period
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15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS contrued
During the year £16 7 rmullion (2013 nil) of deferred tax assets relating to capital lasses have been utilised and a further £39 5 mullion
(2013 £27 9 mitlion) has been recogmsed

The Group, from time to tune, reviews the possibility of remaoving companies from its Group structure that are no longer necessary for
its business operations Depending on the hustory of the companies involved, 1t 15 possible that a capital loss may arise in the future
Snould suds a loss grystalhiee the Group will ereate a tax asset, as appropriate, the 1mpact of which could potentially be material in
future periods

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£’Million £'Million

Balance at 1 January 7327 5976
Additions 254 2 194 1
Capitalised expenditure on existing properties 48 -
Disposals (46 1) (67 3)
Changes m far value 858 83
Balance at 31 December 1,031 4 7327

Investment property 1s held within umt linked funds and 1s considered current

Investment property 1s valued monthly by external chartered surveyors in accordance with the guidance 1ssued by The Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors The investment property valuation has been prepared using the ‘market approach’ valuatton technique — using
prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions mvolving identical or comparable (1 e sumilar) assets

The rental income and direct operating expenses recogmsed mn the statement of comprehensive income 10 respect of investment
properties are set out below All expenses relate to property generating rental income

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£ Milhon £'Mullion

Rental income 508 41 8
Direct operating expenses 62 51

At the year end contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property amounted to £2 2 mullion
(2013 £0 1 mmlhion) and to dispose of mvestment property amounted to £ml mallion {2013 £nil)

Registered No Q3183415
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17 ASSETS HELD TO COVER LINKED LIABILITIES AND THIRD PARTY HOLDINGS IN UNIT TRUSTS
Included within the balance sheet are the following assets and habilities which represent the net assets held to cover Linked liabilities
and those attnbutable to third party holdings i umt trusts (UTMI™) The difference between these assets and hialnhues and those
shown 1n the consolidated balance sheet represents assets and liabilities held outside the unit linked funds and the UTMI

31 December 31 December

2014 013
£'Million £Million
Assets
Investment property 1,031 4 7327
Investments
— Equities 34,7349 29,614 8

— Fixed income securities

— Investment w1 Collective [nvestment Schemes
— Currency forwards

— Interest rate swaps

— Collaterised mortgage obligations

-~ Fixed Income options

— Index options

-- Contracts for differences

— Other derivatives

Other recervables

Other recervables eliminated on consolidation
Cash & cash equivalents

6,7555 5,897 9
24401 27183

383 977
103 86
534 -
124 -
182 -
277 294
61 72
3120 324 1
94 8 151 9

4,865.1 3,648 6

Total assets

50,4002 43,2312

Liabihties
Financial liabilities

j10day ;iFajeng

|
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— Currency forwards 283 49 4
~ Interest rate swaps 51 118
— Fixed Income options 97 -
— Index options 81 -
- Contracts for differences 189 24 8
— Other derivatives 92 18
Other payables 183 7 2416
Other payables eliminated on consolidation 2179 216 2
Total habilities 480 9 545 6
Net assets held to cover linked liabilities and third party holdings 1n unmt trusts 499193 426856

Net assets held to cover linked liabihities and third party holdings i umt trusts are considered to have a maturity of up to one year since
the corresponding umit liabilities are repayable and transferable on demand

31 December 31 December
2014 2013

[nvestment contracts
Net asset value attributable to unit holders

£'Maillion £ Mallion

38,8512 33,7175
10,6178 8,535 4

Insurance contract habilities 384 3 3950
Consolidation adjustments 660 377
Net liabilities held to cover linked [rabilities and third party heldings 1o unit trusts 49,919.3 426856
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

18 OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£Milhion £ Milhon

St James's Place Partnership loans 158 9 144 2
Prepayments 625 250
Advancea Paruwics 1<mansmation 25.1 222
Unit hinked funds and UTMI (including outstanding security sales) 3120 324 1
Unit Trust dealing recewvables 32 40
Renewa!l income 291 16 6
Miscellaneous 138 179
Total other receivables 604 6 5540
Current 453.7 432 2
Non-current 150 9 121 8
604 6 554 0

The farr value of loans and receivables included in other reccivables 1s not materially different from amortised cost St James’s Place
Partnershup loans are interest bearmg (lnked to Bank of England base rate plus a margin), repayable on demand and secured against the
future renewal income streams of that Partner The St James’s Place Partnership loans are shown net of 2 £2 % million provision

(2013 £3 8 million} During the year £1 4 million of the provision was utihsed (2013 £2 1 milhon addition) whlst new provisions and
adjustments to existing provisions increased the total by £0 5 mullzon (2013 £0 8 mullion decrease)

Tncluded within prepayments are operational readiness costs relating to the new administration platform being developed by our key
outsourced back office adminmistration provider

Movement 1n renewal income

31 December 31 Deccmber

2014 2013

£Million £'Mithion

At | January 2014 166 -
Reclassificatton® 59 30
Additnons 95 16 7
Revaluation (29) B3
Total renewal income 291 16 6

* e current year reclasmification relutes Lo purchased S[P Pariner reneal income previously duclosed within muscellaveous 1be privr yeur redassificabon related Lo rencwal mcome previously
dizclosed within intang[ble assets {custamer futs)

The key assumptions used for the assessment of the fair value of the renewal income are as follows

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
Lapse rate — S]P Partner renewal income** 6% —10% 6% - 10%
Lapse rate — Non SJP renewal income** 14% —~ 21% 15 0%
Discount rate 5 0% 6 2%

#+  Fyture income streams are projected making use of persistency assumptions dertved from the Group s experience of the husiness or where insufficuent data exists, from external industry experience

These assumptions are reviewed on an annual bass

These assumptions have been used tor the analysis of cach business combination classified within renewal income

Registered No 03183415
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31 December 31 December

2014 203

£Milhon £ Mllion

Cash at bank 2735 195 5
Cash held by thurd parties 08 16
Cash & cash equivalents held outside umit inked and umt trust funds 274 3 197 1

Balances held wirhim umit inked and umit trust funds

43651 3,648 6

Total cash & cash equivalents

51394 3,845 7

All cash & cash equivalents are considered current

20 INSURANCE RISK

Insurance risk arises from inherent uncertamties as to the occurrence, amount and timing of msurance liabilities The Group assumes
insurance risk by 1ssuing insurance cantracts under which the Group agrees to compensate the client (m ather beneficiary) if a specified
future event (the insured event) occurs The Group insures mortality and morbidaty risks but has no longevity risk as we have never
written any annuity business The Group has a medium appetite for insurance risk, only actrvely pursuing 1t where finanaally

bencficial, or in support of strategic objectives

Description

Underwnting
a risk, or the impact of anti-
selection

Failure to price appropriately for

Management

The Group ceased writing new protection business 1n April 2011
Expenence 15 momtored regularly For most business the premum or
deduction rates can be re-set The Group has fully reinsured the UK
insurance risk

Eprdemic/disaster  An unusually large number of
claims arising from a single
incident er event

Protection 15 provided through remsurance The Group has fully reinsured
the UK insurance risk

Expense Administration costs exceed Adrmnistration 15 outsourced and a tanff ot costs 15 agreed The contract
expense allowance 15 momitored regularly to rationahse costs incurred Internal overhead
expenses are momtored and closely managed
Retention Loss of future profit duc to Retention of insurance contracts 1s closely momitored and unexpected

more chients than anticipated
withdrawing thear funds

experience 1s investigated Retention experience has continued in line with
assumptions during 2013

[uompunod 20e[J ssowe[ 3G ” 110day oidseng ~
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21, INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES
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. 2014 2013

£'Million £'Mullion

Balance at 1 January 466 4 424 0Q
Movement mn unit hinked hiabihties (107} 585

Movement in non-unit linked habihities

— New bustness 02) {0 3)
— Existing business 71 63
— Other assumption changes 69 (10 )
— Experience varlance 49 {11 8)
Total movement 1n non-umt hnked hiabilities 187 (16 1)
Balance at 31 December 474 4 466 4
Ut hinked 3843 3950
Non-unit inked 901 71 4
474 4 466 4

Current 106 7 1007
Non-current 3677 3657
474 4 466 4

During the year various contracts were reclassified from insurance to investment business
¥

Unit hnked habihties move as a tunction of net cash flows into pohicyholder funds and underlying 1nvestment pertormance af thase hunds
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

21, INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES continued

Assumptions used 1n the calculation of habies
The principal assumptions used 1n the calculation of the liabilities are

Assumption Description

Interest rate The valuation 1nterest rate 15 calculated by reference to the long term gilt yreld at 31 December
2014 and the specific gilts backing the Liabihities The speeific rates used arc between 1 6% and 2 1%
depending on the tax regime (2 5% and 3 3% at 31 December 2013)

Mortality Mortahty 15 based on Company experience and 13 set at 72% of the TM/F92 tables with an
additional loading for smokers There kas been no change since 2006
Morbidity Morbidity 15 based on Company experience There has been no change duning 2014 Sample annual
— Critical Illness rates per £ for a male non-smoker are
Rate
Age 2014 2013
25 0000760 0 000760
35 0001334 0001334
45 0003189 0 003189
Morbidity Morbidity 1s based on Company experience There has been no change during 2014 Sample annual
— Permanent Health Insurance rates per £ income benefit p a for a male non-smoker are Rate
Age 2014 2013
25 0.00548 0 00548
35 001447 0 01447
45 003138 003138
Expenses Contract habihities are calculated allowing for the actual costs of admimstration of the business The

assumption has been amended to allow for changes to the underlying administration costs

Annual Cost

Product 2014 2013
Protection business £34.98 £35 69
Persistency Allowance 1s made for a prudent level of lapses within the calculation of the liabilities The rates
have not changed 1n 2014 Sample annual lapse rates are
Lapses
2013 & 2014 Year 1 Year § Year 10
Protection business 7% 9% 8%

Sensitmity analysis
The table below sets out the sensitivity of the profit on insurance business and net assets to changes in key assumptions The levels of
sensitivity tested are consistent with those proposed i the EEV principles and reflect reasonably possible levels of change in the
assumptions The analyss reflects the change in the vanable/assumption shown while all other variables/assumptions are left
unchanged In practice variables/assumptions may change at the same time, as some may be correlated (for example, an increase 1n
interest rates may also result in an increase 1n expenses 1f the increase reflects higher inflation) It should also be noted that in some
instances sensitivities are non-hnear The sensitivity %o has been apphed to proportion the assumptione g appllcatlon ofa

10% sensitivity to a withdrawal assumption of 8% will reduce 1t to 7 2%

Changein Change tn
profit profit Change:n Change 1n
Changen before tax before 1ax net assets net assets
Sensitivity analysis assumption 2014 2013 2014 2013
% £'Mallion £'Million £'Milhon £'Million
Withdrawal rates -10% (11 (11) 9 (1 0)
Expense assumptions -10% 0.3 12 03 10
Mortality/morbidity -5% 00 00 00 00

A change 10 interest will have no material impact on mstrance profit or net assets
g ot rates will have n P p Registered No 03183415
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22 REINSURANCE ASSETS

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
£Milhon £'Mill:on
Reinsurers' share of msurance contract habilities
— Long term 1nsurance contract hability 766 605
— Claims outstanding 89 37
Reinsurance assets 855 64 2
Current 245 16 1
Non-current 610 48 1
B5.5 64 2
During the prior year the Group fully remnsured its remaining UK protection book of business
A reconciliation of the movement 1n the net reinsurance balance 1s set out below
2014 2013
£Milhon £'Million
Reinsurance assets at 1 January 64.2 386
Rewnsurance component of net change 1n claims provision 52 08
Rewnsurance compenent of change in insurance habihities 16.1 24 8
Reinsurance assets at 31 December 855 64 2

The overall impact of rexnsurance on the profit for the year was a net charge of £11 8 mallion (2013 charge of £8 2 nulhon)

23 OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
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£Mithon

At 1 January 2014 97
Utilised /released during the year (10.7)
Addinonal provisions 124
At 31 December 2014 11.4
Current 72
Non-current 42
114

Total provisions relate to the cost of redress for morigage endowment and other complaints The provision 1s based on estimates of the
total number of complaints expected to be upheld, the estimated cost of redress and the expected timing of settlement

As more fully set out 1n the summary of principal risks and uncertainties on pages 36 to 38, the Group could in the course of1ts
bustness be subject to legal proceedings and/or regulatory activity Should such an event arise, the Board would consider their best
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation and, where appropriate and material, establish a provision While there can be
no assurances that circumstances won't change, based upon information currently available to them, the Directors do not believe there
15 any poss:ble activity or event that could have a material adverse effect en the Group’s finzncal position

During the normal course of business, the Group may from tume to time provide guarantees to Partners, chents or other third parties
However, based upon the mformation currently available to them, the Directors do not believe there are any guarantees which would
have a material adverse effect on the Group's finanaial position, and so the fair value of any guarantees has been assessed as £mil

(2013 £ml)
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24, INVESTMENT CONTRACT BENEFITS

2014 2013

£'Million £'Million

Balance at 1 January 33,717 5 27,147 4
Deposits 5,022 8 4,612 3
Withdrawals (2,176 8) (2,091 7)
Investment contract benefits (principally representing 1nvestment expense/income) 3,234 4 5,449 4
Less investment contract benefits atirtbuable o fund deductions {520 8) (460 7)
Less investment contract benefits attributable to third party holdings in unit trusts 1423 5) ey
Balance at 31 December 38,8512 33,7175
Current 2,513 8 2,528 8
Non-current 35,9374 31,1887

38,8512 33,7175

25. BORROWINGS

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£Million £'Millicn

Bank loan 843 98 7
Current 297 47
Non-current 54 6 94 0
84 3 98 7

Bank loans include £750,000 (2013 £750,000) from Bank of Scotland which 1s secured on property disclosed m Note 14 to the
financial statements

The Group also guarantees £93 2 mullion (2013 £103 6 mullion) of direct loans from Bank of Scotland and £20 1 mithen

(2013 £1 2 mllion) of direct loans from Metro Bank plc to members of the St James’s Place Partnership drawn under total facilities
ot £120 O wmllion (2013 £125 0 millise) and £40 0 milhon (2013 £20 0 million), respectively In the event of default of any individual
Partner loan, the Group guarantees to repay the outstanding balance of that loan These Partners’ loans are secured against the future
renewal income streams of that Partner

The tair valuc of the cutstanding bank loans and guaranteces are not materially different from amortised cost

26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
31 December 31 December

2014 Mm3
FMillion £'Million

On deferred acquisition costs
— Life and pensions business 1150 1297
— Unit trust business 358 383
On acquired value of in-force business 74 80
In respect of unit linked funds 354.7 314 1
QOther 69 65
Total deferred tax habihities 5198 496 &
Current 765 617
Non-current 443 3 434 9
5198 496 6

The Group, from time to time, reviews the possiblity of removing companies from 1ts Group structure that are no longer necessary for
1ts business operations Depending on the history of the companes involved, 1t 15 possible that a caprtal gain may arise Should such a
gan crystallise, the Group will create a tax lrability
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27 DEFERRED INCOME

31 December 31 December w3

2014 2013 5

£Milhon £'Million Iy

Life business 2326 297 3 °§

Unit Trust business 2306 241 3 ?E

Total deferred income 463 2 538 6 e

g

Current 104 2 1196 -
Non-current 3590 4190 \

463.2 538 6

28. OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 31 December

(uouepuno:{ aoe[] ssawe[ g

2014 2013

£Million £'Mullion

Accruals 93.3 742
Unit Trust dealing payable 88.5 46 8
Unit hnked funds and UTMI (including outstanding security purchases) 183 7 2416
Miscellaneous 134 2 76 8
Total other payables 4997 439 4
Current 467 3 435 4
Non-current 32.4 —
499 7 439 4

Included within miscellaneous 1s a Contract Payment of £27 4 million (2013 £ml) which 1s non-interest bearing and repayable on a
straight-line bass over the life of a 12 year service agreement commencing 1n 2017

SOUBUIZACL)

29, FINANCIAL RISK

Risk management objectives and risk pohicies
The Group sceks to manage risk through the operation of unit hinked business whereby the pahieyholder bears the financial nisk In
addtion, shareholder assets are invested in hquid investments with a strong credit rating

[N

Under IFRS 7, the Group 1s required to analyse their exposure to the following risks
— Credit nsk

— Liquidity sk

— Market nisk

~ Currency nsk
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Credit risk 1s the risk of loss due to a debtor’s non-payment of a loan or other hne of credit Credit nisk alse arises from holdings of
cash and cash equivalents, deposits and formal loans with banks and finaneial institutions The Group has adopted a nisk averse approach
to such risk and has a stated pohey of not actively pursuing or accepting credit risk except when necessary to support other objectives
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29. FINANCIAL RISK contimued

Description

Shareholders’ Loss of assets
assets

Managcment

Shareholder funds are predominantly invested in AAA rated umtised money market
funds and deposits with approved banks Maximum counterparty hmats are set for
each company within the Group and aggregate limuts are also set at a Group level

Inuestment  Loss of value of assets
matching of

non-linked

habilities

These habilyties are matched by fixed interest securtties with mummum AAA credit
taungs o7 U Government Gilts, maximum counterparty Luruts for such holdings are
agam set for each company withun the Group and at an aggregate Group levid

Remnsurance Failure of counterparty or
counterparty unable to meet
lrabilities

Credit ratings ot potential remsurers must meet or exceed mimmum speaified
levels Consideration is also given to size, risk concentrations/exposures and
ownership 1n the selection of remsurers The Group also seeks to diversify 1ts
reinsurance credit risk through the use of a spread of reinsurers

Partner loans Inability of Partners to repay
and advances loans or advances from
St James’s Place

Loans and advances are managed m line with the Group’s secured lending pelicy Loans
are secured on the future renewal income stream expected from a Partner’s portfolic
and loan advances vary in relation to the projected future income of the relevant
Partner Outstanding balances are regularly reviewed and assessed on a conservative
basis Supportis provided to help Partners manage their business appropriately
Appropriate provision 1s made where there 13 objective evidence of imparrment

Liquuidity risk 15 the risk that the Group, although solvent, either does not have available suffictent financial resources to enable 1t to
meet 1ts obligations as they fall due, or can secure such resources only at excessive cost The Group 15 averse to liquidity risk and seeks
te mimimise this risk by not actively pursuing 1t except where necessary to support other objectives

Description

Cash or A significant cash or expense
expense requlrement needs to be met

requ:rement at short notice

Management

The majority of free assets are mvested 1n cash or cash equivalents and the cash position
and forecast are monitored on a monthly basis Also, the Group mawntains a margm of free
assets 1n excess of the mmmum required solvency caprtal within its regulated entities

Market risk 1s the impact a fall in the value of equity or other asset markets may have on the business The Group adopts a risk averse
approach to market risk, with a stated solvency policy of not actively pursuing or accepting market risk except where necessary to
support other objectives Hawever, the Group accepts the risk that the fall in equity or other asset markets will reduce the level of
annual management charge income derived from policyholder asscts and the nisk of lower future profits
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The table below summarises the mam market risks that the business 15 exposed to and the methods by which the Group seeks to mitigate them

Description Managemenl
Chent As a result of a reduction 1n equity This risk 1s substantially mitigated by the Group’s strategic focus on unit-hinked
habilities values, the Group may be unable  business, by not providing guarantees to clients on policy values and by the
to meet chient liabilities mmatching of assets and habihities
Tax In adverse market conditions, The tax position 15 monitored closely, 1n particular the size and sources of relevant
when the Group 1s realising \ncome streams

investment losses rather than
gans, the working of the I-E tax
regime can lead to short-term
capital inefficiencies, including the
defer1al of the cash benefit arising
from tax relief on expenses

Retention Loss of tuture profit on tnvestment Retention of investment contracts 1s closely monitored and unexpected experience
contracts due to more chents than variances are investigated Retention has remained consistently strong throughout
anticipated withdrawing their 2014, despite the challenging economic environment and volatility, and fund
funds, particularly asaresult of  surrender rates have remained low at ¢ 5%
poor investment performance

New Business Poor performance in the financial ~ The benefits to chents of longer term equity imvestment as part of a diversified
markets in absolute terms, and portfolio of assets 1s fundamental to our philosophy Advice and marketing become
relative to mfation, leads to even more important when market values fall, and greater attention 1s required to
existing and future clients rejecting support and give confidence to existing and future chents in such circumstances
investment 1n longer term assets  This 1s taken account of by the Group 1n 1ts activitzes

{uonepunog 20E[] ssoure[ 1g { ja0doyy o1derensg

Currency risk
The Group 1s not subject to any sigmficant currency risk stnce all material shareholder financial assets and financial habilities are

denommated 1n Sterking

JVUBUIBACH)

Categories of financial assets and financial habilities
The categories and carrying values of the financial assets and financal hiabthties held in the Group’s balance sheet are summarised in the

table below

Financial Financial
assetsat Liabihitzes at Financial
farr value fair value Labilities -
through through  measuredat =
profit Available Loansand profit amortised £
31 December 2014 and losst! forsale  receivables and loss® cost Total a,
£Millhon £'Million £*Mallion £'Mailion £Million £'Million 2
Financial Assets and Investment Properties .._,"f‘
Investment properties 1,031.4 1,031 4 o
Equities 34,7349 34,734 9 S
Fixed 1ncome securittes 6,838.8 6,838 8 =
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 2,961.7 29617 i
Derivative financial instruments 166 4 166 4
Other recervables®
— St James’s Place Partnership loans 158 9 1589 o
— Renewal income 291 291 %‘
— Other 3250 3290 X
Total other recervables 291 487 9 5170 g"*
Cash & cash equivalents 4,865 1 274 3 5,139 4 5
Total financial assets and investment properties 50,598 3 291 762 2 51,3896 gr
Financial Liabihities H
Investment contract benefits 38,851.2 38,8512 N
Borrowings 843 843
Dervative financial instroments 793 793
Other payables 499 7 499 7
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 10,617 8 10,617 8

Total financial habilities 49,548 3 5840 50,1323
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29. FINANCIAL RISK conrinued

Financal Financal
assets at Dablites at Fizancial
fair value farr value luabihities
through through measured at
profit Available Loansand profit amortised
31 December 2013 and loss® for sale receivables and loss™ cost Toal
£'Mallion £'Milhon £'Mallion £'Million £ Million £'Mullion
Financial Assew aid Investment Properties
[nvestment properties 1327 7327
Equutres 29,614 8 25,614 8
Fixed income securities 5,965 7 5,965 7
Investment 1n Collectrve Investment Schemes 3,244 3 3,244 3
Dervative financial instruments 142 9 142 9
Other receivables™
— St James's Place Partnershup loans 144 2 144 2
— Renewal income 16 6 166
— Other 3460 346 0
Total other receivables 16 6 490 2 506 8
Cash & cash equivalents 3,648 6 197 1 3,845 7
Total financial assets and investment properties 43,349 0 16 6 6873 44,052 9
Financial Liabilities
[nvestment contract benefits 33175 33,7175
Borrowings 98 7 98-7
Dervative financial instruments 878 878
Other payables 439 4 439 4
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 8,535 4 8,535 4
Total financial habilities 42,3407 5381 42,8788

(t) Allfinancial assers and Lishilitscs at falr value threugh profit or lots are designated 43 such upon imal recognition
(2) Other financlal assets exclude prepay ments and unearned commission lvom other receivables

The carrying value of the umt linked mvestment contract liabihities may differ from the amount contractually required to pay at
maturity Maturity values of the financial habibities vary with future policyholder investment and withdrawals as well as investment
return, coupled with the impact of capital losses mn the funds The contractual value required to be paid to policyholders as at

31 Pecember 2014 would be £20 1 rmillion lower than the investment contract benefits stated ahave

Income, expense, gains and losses arising from financial assets and financial hlabilities
The income, expense, gains and bosses anwing from financial assets and financial hahilites are summarised in the table helow

Financial Financial
assets at habhtiesat Financial
fair value fair value Labihties
through through measuredat
profit Avaalable Loans and profit amortised
Year Ended 31 December 2014 and loss® for sale recervables and loss®" cost Total
£Mmiihion £Milhon £'Malhion £'Mallion £'Millon £Milhon
Financial Assets and Investment Properties
Investment properties 85.8 858
Unit inked assets 3,3321 3,332 1
Fixed income securities 60 60
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 27 27
Other recervables
— 5t James’s Place Partnership loans 60 60
- Renewal income (2.9 29
Total other receivables 29 6.0 31
Cash & cash equivalents® 1.2 12
Total financial assets and investment properties 3,426 6 29 72 3,430 9
Financial Liabilities®
[nvestment contract benefits 2,287 6 2,287 6
Net asset value attributable to urut holders 4259 4259
Total financial habilities 2,713 5 2,713 5
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Financial Financial
asscts at liabilines at Finane:al
fair value fur value labshities
through through measured az
profit Available Loans and profic amortised
Year Ended 31 December 2013 and losst" for sale recervables and loss™ cast Totat
£'Million £'Milhon £'Millhen £'Million £ Millien £ Mitilon
Financial Assets and Investment Properties
Investment properties
Unat linked assets 5,825 6 5,825 6
Fixed income securities (20) (2 0)
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 20 20
Other recervables
— St James's Place Partnership loans 75 75
— Renewal income 31 30
Total other receivables 31 75 44
Cash & cash equivalents!” 09 09
Total financial assets and 1nvestment properties 5,825 6 30 84 5,830 9
Financial Liabilities®
Investment contract benefits 4,049 5 4,049 5
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 9352 939 2
Total finaneal habilities 4,988 7 4,988 7

(1) All inancsal assees and luabelities ar falr value through profit or loss are designated as such upon 1utial recogmition
{2) The majority of the return from cash & cazh equavalents is included withio unut iinked assets
(3} None of the change in che facr value of financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss us attriburable to changes in ther credic nsk

Fair value estimation

Financial assets and habilities, which are held at fair value 1n the financial statements, are required to have disclosed their tair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy
— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 1dentical assets or labilities (Level 1)
— Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabihity, either directly (that 1s, as prices)

or indirectly (that 1s, derived from prices) (Level 2)

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 15, unobservable inputs) (Level 3)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and habihties measured at fair value

Total
31 December 214 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
£Million £Million £Million £'Milhion
Financial Assets and Investment Properties
I[nvestment property 1,031 4 1,031 4
Equities 34,734 9 34,734 9
Fixed income securities 6,838 8 6,838 8
Investment m Collective Investment Schemes 29318 29.9 2,961.7
Dervative financial instruments 166 4 166 4
Qther receivables 29 1 291
Cash & cash equivalents 4,865.1 4,865 1
Total financial assets and investment propertics 42,5318 7,005 2 1,090 4  50,627.4
Financial Liabihties
Investment contract benefits 38,851 2 38,851 2
Dervative financal instruments 793 793
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 10,617 8 10,617 8
Total financial lkabilities 16,617.8 38,9305 49,548 3
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29 FINANCIAL RISK contmnued

31 December 2013 Level i Level 2 Level 3 Total balance
£ Mullion £Mallion £ Milion E'Million

Financial Assets and Investment Properties

Investment property 7327 7327
Equities 29,614 8 29,614 8
Fixed income securities 5,965 7 5,965 7
Investment it Cullect, o Ir estment Srhemes 3,243 0 13 3,244 3
Derivative financial instruments iz o 142 9
Other receivables 16 6 16 6
Cash & cash equivalents 3,648 6 3,648 6
Total financial assets and investment properties 36,506 4 6,108 6 7506 43,3656
Financial Liabilities

Investment contract benefits 33,717 5 33,7175
Derivative financial instruments 878 878
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 8,535 4 §,535 4
Total financtal habilities 8,535 4 33,805 3 42,340 7

The farr value of financial instruments traded in active markets 1s based on quoted bid prices at the reporting date, as described in the accounting
policy {6) These nstruments are included 1 Level | Instruments included m Level 1 comprise primarily listed equity mstruments

The Group closely montors the valuation of assets in markets that have become less liquid Determining whether a market 15 active
requires the exercise of judgement and 15 determined based upon the facts and circumstances of the market for the instrument being
measured Where 1t 15 determined that there 1s no active market, fair value 1s established using a valuation technique ‘The techniques
applhied incorporate relevant information available and reflect appropriate adjustments for credit and hquidity risks Thesc valuation
techniques rmaimse the use of obscrvable market data where it 1s available and rely as Intle as possible on cntity specific estimates The
relative weightings given to differing sources of information and the determination of non-observable inputs to valuation models can
require the exercise of significant judgement

itall sgmficant 1nputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument 18 mcluded 1n Level 2 1 one or more of the
significant inputs 1s not based on observable market data, the instrument 1s 1ncluded 1n Level 3

Note that all of the resulting farr value estumates are included 1n Level 2, except for certain equities and investments in Collective
Investment Schemes (CI8) and investment properties as detailed below

Specific valuation techniques used to value Level 2 financial assets and liabihties include
— The use of observable prices for :identical current arm’s lenpth transactions

Speaific valuation techniques used to value Level 3 financial assets and liabihties include

— The use of observable prices for recent arm’s length transactions

— Other techmgques, such as discounted cash flow and historic lapse rates, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year

Transfers into and out of Level 3 portfolios
Transfers out of Level 3 portfolios arise when inputs that could have a significant impact on the instrument’s valuation become market
observable, conversely, transfers into the portfolios anise when consistent sources of data cease to be available

Transfers in of certain equities and mvestments in Collective Investment Schemes (CIS) ocour when asset valuations can no longer be
obtained from an observable market price 1 ¢ become 1lhiquid, 1n hquidation, suspended etc The converse 1s true 1f an observable
market price becomes available

During 2014, £28 7 million relating ta CI8 and £5 9 milhon relating to a reclasaification within other recervables were transferred into

the Level 3 portfolio During 2013, IFRS 13 was adopted resulting in investment properties being included within the Level 3
portfolio, as the apphication of IFRS 13 was prospective investment properties were presented within transfers into Level 3
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The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss

2014 2013

£Mallion £ Million

Opening balance 7506 16
Transfer into Level 3 34 6 597 8
Additrons during the year 268 5 213 8
Disposed during the year (46 3) (677
Gamns recognised in the income statement 830 51
Closing balance 1,090 4 750 6

Total gains for the year included in the statement of comprehensive income

for assets held at the end of the reporting year 83.0 48

Additions include £259 0 million of investment propernies and £9 5 million of renewal income Gaimns recogmsed 1n the statement of
comprehensive income are included within investment return for certain equities and investments in Collective Investment Schemes
and vestment property, and within administration expenses for the renewal income

Sensitivity of Level 3 valuations
The valuation of certain equities and investments in Collective Investment Schemes (CIS) are based on the latest observable price

avarlable Whalst such valuations are sensitive to estimates, 1t 15 believed that changing the price applied to a reasonably possible
alternative would not change the fair value significantly

The valuation of renewal income 15 based on discounted cash flows and historic lapse rates The effect of applying reasonably possible
alternative assumptions of a movement of 100bps on the discount rate and a 10% movement 1n the lapse rate would resultin an
unfavourable change 1n valuation of £2 8 million and a favourable change 1n valuation of £3 4 milhon, respectively

The investment property valuation has been prepared using the 'market approach’ valuation technique — using prices and other relevant
wformation generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable (1 & simular) assets, as such 1t 15 agamn beheved that

changing the price applied to a reasonably possible alternative would not change the fair value sigmficantly Moreover any change in the
value of investment property 1s matched by the associated movement 1o the policyholder Liability and therefore would not impact on the

sharehelder net assets

Credit ri1sk

The following table scts out the maximum credn risk cxposure and ratings of financial and other asscts which are narther past duc or
impaired and susceptible to credit nisk
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Umt hnked
funds and
third party
holdings in
31 December 2014 AAA AA A BBB Unrated  unit truses® Total
£Million £malhon £Mallion £Milhon E'Mallion £Million £mullion
Fixed income securities 24 809 6,755 5 6,838 8
Investment 1n Collective Investment
Schemes & 5173 43 2,440 1 2,961 7
Cash & cash equivalents 51.8 212 4 15 86 4,865 1 5,139 4
Amounts due from remnsurers
— Claims outstanding 89 39
— Reinsurers share of long term insurance
contract liabibtres 766 76 6
Total amount due from reinsurers 855 855
Other receivables 46 1 3120 3581
Total 5197 218 2 2124 15 590 14,3727 15,383 5

(1) Credit visk relating to umt linked and unit trust funds 1s borne by the policyholder/unit holder
(2) Investment of shartholder assets in Coll L Sch refers o in umitised money market funds held for the longer term
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

29. FINANCIAL RISK continued

The table below sets out the comparative credit risk analysis as at 31 December 2013

Unat knked
funds and
thurd party
holdings n
31 December 2013 AAA AA A BBRB Unrated unat truststt ‘Total
£'Million £'Million £'Mallion £'Million £ Mitlion £'Milbon L'Mallion
Fixed income securities 6/77 5,898 0 5,965 7
Investment 1n Collective Investment
Schemes® 52213 37 2,718 3 3,244 3
Cash & cash equivalents 43 182 5 07 926 3,648 6 3,845 7
Amounts due from remnsurers
— Claims outstanding 37 37
— Remsurers share of long term 1nsurance
contract habilities &0 5 605
Total amount due from remsurers 64 2 64 2
Other receivables 385 3241 362 6
Total 5223 136 2 182 5 07 51 8 12,5890 13,4825

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired

Loans to §t James's Place Partnership of £158 9 mullion (2013 £144 2 mulhion) are net of an 1mpairment provision of £2 3 mllion
(2013 £3 8 mullion) (see Note 18) The factors considered in determining the umpairment mclude default history, the nature or type of
the Partner loan, exposure levels to mdividual Partners and whether the individual Partner 15 active or has left

The mevement n the impawrment provision will reflect utilisation of the existing provision during the year, but the overall cost of
impaired loans (including new provisions) recognised within administration expenses 1n the statement of comprehensive income during
the period was a charge of £0 9 million (2013 £0 2 milhon)

There are no other financial assets that are impaired, would originally have been past due or mnpaired but whose terms have been
renegotiated, or are past due but not impaired

Contractual maturity and hquidity analysis
The following table sets out the contractual matunty analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial halities as at 31 December 2014

Total ex
unit Unit hinked
linked funds and
funds and third party

Uptol 1-5 Over§ other umit  holdingsin

31 December 2614 year years years holders  unittrusts* Total

£Million £ Million £Milhion £'Milhon £Million £Milhion
Fimancial Assets
Equrties 34,7349 34,7349
Fixed income securities 274 11.7 44 2 833 6,755 5 6,838 8
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 517 3 517 3 2,444 4 2,961.7
Dermvative financral instruments 166 4 166 4
Other recervables
— 5t James’s Place Partnershuip loans 540 94.4 10.5 158.9 1589
— Renewal income 29.1 291 29.1
— Other 24 4 24 4 304 6 3290
Total cther receivables 1075 94 4 105 212 4 304 6 517 0
Cash & cash equvalents 2743 274 3 4,865 1 5,139 4
Total financial assets 926 5 106.1 547 1,0873 49,2709 50,358 2
Financial Liabilsties
Investment contract benefits 38,851.2 38,8512
Borrowings 297 504 4.2 843 84 3
Dervative financial instruments 79.3 793
Other payables 2851 103 206 3160 183 7 4997
Total financial habilities 314 8 60 7 24.8 4003 391142 39,5145
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The table below sets out comparative contractual maturity and hiquidity analysis as at 31 Deccrt}ber 2013

Total ex
unit Un:t hnked
linked {unds and
funds and third party
Uptot 1-5 Over 5 other unit holdings n
31 December 2013 year years years holders unit trusts* Total
£’ Maltion £ Million £'Millton £ Million £'Mulhon £ Million
Financial Assets
Equities 29,6148 29,6148
Fixed income securities 16 8 120 389 677 5,898 0 5,965 7
Investment 1in Collective Investment Schemes 5223 5223 2,722 0 3,244 3
Derrvative hnancial instruments 142 9 142 9
Other receivables
— St James's Place Partnership loans 412 850 180 144 2 144 2
— Renewal income 166 166 16 6
— Other 219 219 324 1 346 0
Total other receivables 757 850 18 ¢ 1827 3241 506 8
Cash & cash equivalents 197 1 197 1 3,648 6 3,845 7
Total financial assets 815 9 97 0 569 9658 42,3504 43,3202
Financial Liabalities
[nvestment contract benefits 33,7175 33,7175
Borrowings 47 890 50 98 7 98 7
Derivative financial instruments 878 878
Other payables 197 8 197 8 241 6 439 4
Total financial liabilities 202 5 89 0 50 256 5 34,046 9 34,343 4

*  Financial tubilines :ncluded under umt linked funds and net assets steributable to unit holders are deemed to bave 3 maturity of up to onc year since the corresponding unit linked habilities ave
repayable and tranaferable on demand In practice the contractual matunties of the assers may be longer than one year but the majority of atseta held within the unit linked and umit trust fundy are
tughly liquid snd the Group also actively monitors fund Liguidsty

Sensitivity analysis to market risks

The majority of the Group’s business 1s unit linked and the direct associated market risk 1s therefore borne by pohicyholders (although
there 15 a secondary Lmpact as shareholder income 1s dependent upon the markets) Financial assets and habihiies held outside unitised
funds primarily consist of fixed interest securities, units in money market funds, cash and cash equivalents, and other assets and
labihities The fixed interest securities are held to match non linked habihties and the hablity values move broadly i Line wath the
matching asset values such that fair value interest rate risk 18 :mmaterial, although these 1s some residual risk due to imperfect
matching Cash held 1n unitised money market funds and at bank is valued at par and 1s unaffected by movement 1n interest rates
Other assets and Liabilittes are similarly unaffected by market movements

As a result of these combined facturs, the Group's inancal assets and habilities held outside umtised funds are not materially subject to
market risk, and movements at the reporting date 1n interest rates and equity values have an immaterial impact on the Group’s proft
after tax and equity Future profits from annual management charges may be affected by movements 1o interest rates and equity values

30 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ALLOCATION

It1s the Group's pohcy to mamtain a strong capital base 1n order to

— protect policyholders’ and creditors’ interests,

— support the development of 1ts business and create shareholder value, and
— meet regulatory requirements at all times

Within the Group each subsidiary manages 1ts own capital in the context of the Group Capital Plan Capital generated in excess of
planned requirements 15 returned to the Group's parent, St James’s Place ple, normally by way of dividends The Group capital plan 1s
momitored by the Finance Executive Commuttee on behalf of the St James's Place plc Board

The Group’s policy 15 for each Company to hold the higher of
— the Company's internal assessment of the capital required, and
— the capital requirement of the relevant supervisory body plus a specified margin over this to ahsorb changes

Generally, because of the nature of the business and the current regulatory rules, the higher requirement 15 that of the supervisory
body plus the specified margin
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ALLOCATION continued

The following entities are under supervisory regulation and have to mantain a minumum level of regulatory capital

Entaty Regulatory Body and Junisdiction

St James's Place UK plc PRA & FCA Long-term msurance business

St James's Place International ple Central Bank of Ireland Life insurance business

St James's Place Unit Trust Group Limted FCA UCITS Management Company

5t james s Flave Wealth Management nle FCA Personal Investment Firm

St James's Place Investment Admmnistration Lirmited FCA Invesuuncut Durm

St James's Place Trust Company Jersey Limited Jersey Financial Services Commission

St James's Place Wealth Management {PCIS) Limited FCA Secunities and Futures

BFS Financial Services Lirmited FCA Personal Investment Firm

Lansdown Place Financial Management Limited FCA Personal Investment Firm

PFPTime Limited FCA Personal Investiment Firm

The Henley Group Limited Securities and Futures Commussion {(FHong Kong) A Member
of The Hong Kong Confederation of Insurance Brokers

The Henley Group Pte Limited Menetary Authority Singapore A Member of the Assocation of

Financal Advisors

The PRA regulatory requirement for St James's Place UK ple, which makes up the majority of the Group capital requirement, includes
the prescribed minimum solvency margin requirement (the Capital Resources Requirement (CRR)) and an assessment of the risks
faced under the business, known as the Individual Capital Assessment The capital requirement 15 assessed and momtored by the
Finance Executive Commuttee, a commuttee of the St James's Place ple Board In 2016 this regime will be replaced with Solvency II
The Group 1s well advanced in our preparations for the change 1n rules and expects to continue to be well capitaiised

The regulatory requirements for the remaing compantes within the Group are assessed and momtored by the relevant Board

There has been no matenial change m the Group’s management of capital during the year and all regulated entities exceeded the
minmum solvency reqmrements at the reporting date and durmg the year

Capital composition
The principal forms of capttal are indJuded mn the following balances un the consolidated statement of hnancial position

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£'Million £'Mathon

Share capital 779 773
Share premium 147 4 142 2
Treasury shares reserve (10 5) (10 2)
Miscellaneous reserves 23 23
Retained earnings 793.1 694 5
Shareholders’ equity 1,010 2 906 1
Non-controlling interests (0 1) -
Total equity 1,010 1 906 1

The above assets do not all qualify as regulatory capital Analysis of the assets which do qualify as regulatory capital 1s given in Section 2
of the Financial Review on page 26 The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally and
nternally imposed capital requirements throughout the year

31. SHARE CAPITAL
Number of Share
Ordinary Shares Capital
£Million
At 1 January 2013 506,831,147 76
— Exeraise of options 8,384,836 13
At 31 December 2013 515,215,983 773
— Exercise of options 4,231,408 06
At 31 December 2014 519,447,391 779
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The total authorised number of ordinary shares 1s 605 mullion (2013 605 wmullion), with a par value of 15 pence per share
(2013 15 pence per share) All 1ssued shares are fully paid

Included in the 1ssued share capatal are 3,760,585 (2013 3,338,458) shares held 1n the Treasury Shares Reserve with a normunal value of
£0 6 mullion (2013 £0 5 milhion)

The number of shares reserved for 1ssue under options and contracts for sale of shares, mcluding terms and conditions, 1s included
within Note 32

32 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group aperated a number of different equity settled share-based payment arrangements,

which are aggregated as follows

— SAYE plan — this 15 a standard HMRC approved scheme that 15 available to all employees where individuals may contribute up to
£250 per month aver three years to purchase shares at a price not less than 80% of the market price at the date of the wnvitation to
participate

— Share incentive plan (SIP) — thus 1s an HMRC approved scheme which 1s avalable to all employees where individuals may invest ap
to an annual lirmit of £1,500 of pre-tax salary in S]P shares, to which the Company will add a further 10% If the shares are held for
five years then they may be sold free of income tax or CGT

— Executive deferred bonus schemes — under these plans the deferred element of the annual bonus 15 used to purchase shares at market
value 1n the Company The shares are held by the Company until vesting after three years and, in addition to the performance
targets, which apply prior to any entitlemnent being granted, further performance conditions may also apply on vesting

— Executrve performance share plan — the Remuneration Commuttee of the Group Board may make awards of performance shares to
the Executive Directors and other senior managers Two-thirds of shares awarded to Directors are subject to an earnings growth
condition of the Group and one-third of shares awarded to Directors are subject to a comparative total shareholder return (TSR)
condition, bath measured over a three year period Further information regarding the vesting conditiens of the earnings growth and
total shareholder return dependent partions of the award 1s given in the Remuneration Repart on page 71 Awards made to senior
managers are largely only subject to the earnings growth condition of the Group

~ Partner share opticn schemes — these were offered to the Partners of the 5t james’s Place Partnership and vest over three to six
years subject to satisfying personal sales related performance eriteria The last award under these schemes was made i 2007

— Partner performance share plan — a new scheme was launched in January 2008 whereby Partners are entitled to purchase shares in
the future at nomnal value (15p) The number of shares the Partners are entitled to purchase will depend on their personal business
volumes in the year of the award and validation over the following three years

Share options outstanding under the various share option schemes, together with shares due under the deferred bonus schemes at

31 December 2014 amount to 11 9 million shares (2013 14 3 milhon) Of these, 3 5 mlhion (2013 5 3 mullion) are under option to
Partners of the St James's Place Partnership, 6 9 mtllion (2013 7 5 mullion) are under option to executives 2nd semor management
(inclucing 2 7 million (2013 2 & mullion) under option to Directors as disclosed in the Remuneranon Report on pages 84 and 35) and
1 5 mllion 2013 1 § rmllion) are under aption through the SAYE and SEP schemes These are exercisable on a range of tuture dates

The table below summarises the share-based payment awards made 1n 2013 and 2014

Share Executive Executive
Incentive Deferred Performance
SAYE Plan Bonus Share Plan
Awardsn 2013
Date of grant 25 March 26 March 21 March 21 March
Number granted 249,691 4,998 435177 1,335,003
Awards in 2014
Date of grant 25 March 26 March 26 March 26 March
Number granted 281,243 4,639 555,428 889,357
Contractual Life 3 5 years 3 years 3 years 3 5 years
Vesting conditions 3 year saving 3 year saving 3 years’ 3 years’
period peried service and service and
achievement achieverment
of personal of earmings
targets and TSR
n some targets

nstances
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

32 SHARE-BASED PAYMEN'TS contmued

Financral assumptions underlying the calculation of fair value

The fair value expense has been based on the fair value of the instruments granted, as calculated using appropriate dervative pricing
models The table below shows the assumpttons and models used to calculate the grant date fair value of each award

Share Executive Executive
Incentive Deferred Performance
SAYE Plan Bonus Share Plan
Valuation model Black Black Black Monte
Scholes Scholes Scheles Carlo

Awardsin 2013
Fair value (pence) 142 09 5070 5100 331 5/510 OW
Share price (pence) 505 5 5070 3647 510 0®
Exercise price (pence) 3850 000 000 000
Expected volanlity (% pa)'™® 30 N/A N/A 30
Expected dywidends (% pa) 21 N/A N/A® N/A
Rusk-free interest rate (% pa) 04 N/A N/A N/A
Volatiity of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A N/A 18 to 107
Correlation with competitors {%) N/A N/A N/A 20

Awards 1n 2014
Fair value (pence) 232 49 851 5 851 5 608 8/851 5™
Share price (pence) 8450 8515 8515 851 5&
Exercaise price (pence) 6770 00 00 oo
Expected volatility (% pa)®” 29 N/A N/A 29
Expected dividends (% pa) 19 N/A N/A® N/A
Rusk-free interest rate (% pa) 12 N/A N/A N/A
Volanlity of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A N/A 20to 62
Correlation with cempetitors (%0) N/A N/A N/A 20
E‘;le;xpccmd volatiliry ix based on an analys:s of the Company's hustorse thare price volaubity over a persod (typically three or five years) which s rate with the expected term of the options o the awards

(2) In2013and 2014 the vestng period for the SAYE plan was three years The vesting pertod may be extended by up to sx menths 1 order to catch up an raased contributions
(3) Dindends payable on the shares durmglherem‘octedpe’mdu’epmdoulduringlhcrﬂmctedperlodfnrdm:z:cuuv:dcfcmd bonus sch and no dbndend yield puian 13 therefore required

(4) The awards made under the executive performance thare plan are dependent upen carnings growth in the Company (two thirds of the sward) and a total shareholder return of s comparator group of companies

{one-thard of the award) Thus resulta In having two Eilr values for each of the awards made i the table above the first being it relation to the comparator sotal sharcholder return and the second relating to the
Company's earnings growth

[5) Awards were made under the executive performance share plan on three separate occamons dunng 2014 (2013 2)

(6) There were no awards made in 2013 or 2014 for the executive share option h or the ales g share option schemes

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2014 2013 2013
Number of  Weighted average Numberof ~ Weighted average
SAYE optmns eXercise PﬂCE GPUDM eXErcLse pnce
Outstanding at start of year 1,487,337 £2.92 1,572,172 £2 63
Granted 281,243 £6 77 249,691 £3 89
Forfeited (75,141) £417 (98,824) £2 83
Exercised (234,665) £243 (235,702) £2 04
Outstanding at end of year 1,458,774 £3 68 1,487,337 £2 92
Exercisable at end of year — 8,862 £3 07
Executive Share Options
Outstanding at start of year 135,444 £2 22 524,348 £2 01
Granted - —
Forfeited - -~
Exercised (81,174) £208 (388,904) £1 94
Outstanding at end of year 54,270 £243 135,444 £2 22
Exercisable at end of year 54,720 £243 135,444 £2 22
Partner Share Options
Outstanding at start of year 5,172,671 £2 81 10,411,138 £2 77
Granted - -
Forferted (11,262) £1.75 -
Exercised (1,754,044) £263 (5,238,467 £272
Outstanding at end of year 3,407,365 £291 5,172,671 £2 81
Exercisable at end of year 3,407,365 £2.91 5,162,046 £2 81

Regstered No 03183415




St James's Place ple Annual Report and Accounts 2014 | 477

The average share price of the options that were exercised during the year was 766 1 pence (2013 572 8 pence)

The SAYE plan options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had exercise prices of 296 pence (264,052 options), 275 pence
(712,287 options), 389 pence (221,993 options), 677 pence (260,442 options) and a weighted average remaining contractual Life of

11 years

The options outstanding under the executive share option schemes at 31 December 2014 had exercise prices ranging from 242 pence to
246 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0 2 years

The options outstanding under the Partner share option schemes at 31 December 2014 had exercise prices ranging from 219 pence to
465 pence and a weighted average remaming centractual hfe of 1 1 years

Share Incentive Plan {nil cost option — no proceeds on exercise)
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Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Number of MNumber of

options oprions

Outstanding at start of year 19,611 15,658
Granted 4,639 4,998
Forferted (555) (581)
Exercised (626) (464)

Outstanding at end of year 23,069 19,611
Exercsable at end of year - 10,005 —
Executive Performance Share Plan (nil cost option — no proceeds on exercise)

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Number of Number of

Dpllons UPUOH!

Outstanding at start of year 5,168,598 5,270,375
Granted 889,357 1,335,003
Forfeited (225,315) (369,221)
Exercised (620,229) {1,067,559)
Outstanding at end of year 5,212,411 5,168,598
Exercisable at end of year 1,447,642 516,514

Partner Performance Share Plan (15 pence nominal share value option — 15 pence per share on exercise)

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Number of Number of

options opuions

Outstanding at start of year 131,000 307,500
Granted - -
Forfeited — —
Exercised (35,500) (176,500)
Qutstanding at end of year 95,500 131,000
Exercisable at end of year 65,000 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS conunued

Executive Deferred Bonus (mil cost option —no proceeds on exercise) Year Ended Year Ended
r

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
Number of Number of
shares shares
Outstanding at start of year 2,210,882 2,923,687
Granted 555,428 435,177
Forfeited (1 ‘2,578) (19 598)
Exercised (1,073,674) (1,128,384)
Outstanding at end of year 1,676,958 2,210,882

Exercisable at end of year - —

Early exercise assumptions
The following allowance has been made for the impact of early exercise once options have vested '

1 SAYE plan —all option holders are assumed to exercise half-way through the six month exercise window

2 Executive, sales management and partner share option schemes — 1t 15 assumed that 10% of option holders exercise their options
each year irrespective of the level of the share price For the remainderit 1s assumed that one-half will exercise their options each
year if the share price 15 at least 33% above the exercise price

Allowance for performance conditions

The executive performance share plan includes a market based performance condition based on the Company’s total shareholder return
relative to an index of comparator companies The impact of this performance condition has been modelled using Monte Carlo
simulation techmques, which mvolve running many thousands of ssmulanions of future share price movements for both the Company
and the comparator index For the purpose of these simulations 1t 15 assumed that the share price of the Company and the comparator
index are 20% (2013 20%) correlated and that the comparator index has volatihities ranging between 20%pa to62%pa

(2013 18%pa to 107%pa)

The performance condition 15 based on the Company's performance relative to the comparator index over a three year period
commencing on 1 January each year The fair value calculations for the awards that were made in 2014 therefore include an allowance
for the actual performance of the Company's share price relative to the index over the period between 1 January 2014 and the various
award dates

Charge to the consolhidated statement of comprehensive income
The table below sets out the charge to the consohdated statement of comprehensive income mn respect of the share-based payment awards

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
£'¥alhon £'Milhon
Share-based payment expense 114 78

33, FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2014, the Group had the following annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases in connection with
the rental of office buildings and ofhce equipment with varying lease end dates ranging from 2014 to 2029

31 December i December

2014 2013

£Mailion £'Million

Within one year 12 05
Between two and five years 59 34
In more than five years 64 67
Total financial commitments 135 106

Asat 31 December 2014, there was £0 1 million (2013 £0 2 million) of future minimunm sublease payments expected to be recerved

under non-cancellable sub-leases
Registered No 03183415
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with St. James’s Place unit trusts

In respect of the non-consolidated St James's Place managed unit trusts that are held as investments 1n the St James’s Place ife and
pension funds, there was income recogmsed of £8 0 rmllion (2013 £16 1 million 1ncome) and the total value of transactions with those
non-consolidated umt trusts was £47 4 mallion (2013 £32 1 milhon) Net management fees recervable from these unit trusts ameunted
to £20 7 milhon (2013 £19 4 mullion) The value of the investment into the non-consolidated unit trusts at 31 December 2014 was
£130 7 mullion (2013 £92 2 mullion)

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel have been defined as the Board of Directors and members of the Executive Board Commattee The
remuneraton paid to the Board of Directors of St James’s Place, ts set out 1n the Remuneration Report on page 80, in addition to the
disclosure below

The Remuneration Report also sets out transactions with the Directors under the Deferred Bonus Scheme, the Performance Share
Plan, the Executive Share Option Scheme and the SAYE Share Option Schemes, together with details of the Directors’ mnterests in the
share capital of the Company

The remuneration paid to key management personnel s as follows

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£Mathon £'Mallien

Aggregate emoluments 26 18
Bonuses 31 18
Pension contribution 04 03
Other benefits 03 02
. 6.4 41

The charge to the statement of comprehensive income i1 respect of the share-based payment awards made to the key managernent
personnel of St James's Place during 2014 was £3 6 mithon (2013 £2 8 million)

Related parties
The total value of St James’s Place funds under management held by related parnes of the Group as at 31 December 2014 was £16 2

milhion (2013 £11 O mmlhon)

Commuission, advice fees and remuneration of £1,639,654 (2013 £865,019) was paid, under normal commercial terms, to St James’s
Place Partners and employees who were related parties by virtue of being connected persons with key management personnel The
outstanding amount payable at 31 December 2014 was £123,100 (2013 £105,440)

Outstanding at the year end were partner loans of £420,039 (2013 £479,816) due from St James’s Place Partners who were related
parties by virtue of being connected persons with key management personnel During the year £ml (2013 £ml) was advanced and
£90,302 (2013 £86,759) was repaid by Partners who were velated parties St James's Place Partnership loans are mnterest bearing
(linked to Bank of England base rate plus a margin), repayable on demand and secured agamnst the future renewal income streams of
that Partner

At the start of the year, related parties of key management personnel, held 177,029 (2013 - 73,333) shares and options under various
St James's Place plc share option schemes During the year 28,993 (2013 - Nil) shares and options were granted, 1,757 (2013 - Nil)
options lapsed, Nil (2013 - 45,000) options were exercised and 25,548 (2013 - Nil) shares were released
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reportlng Standards continued

35. INTERESTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Group operates investment vehicles, such as unit trusts, primarily to match umt holder habilities The investment vehicles are
primarily financed by investments from unit holders Note 2 sets out the judgements inherent in determining when the Group controls,
and therefore consolidates, the relevant investment vehicles

The majority of the risk from a change 1n the value of the Group’s investment in unconsolidated unit trusts 1s matched by a change in
pohicyholder nabiliucs 11, ever, the maximum exposure to toss 15 equal to the carrying value of the investment with the balance being
included within investments in Collective Investment Schemes At 31 Deceubar 2074, the total net asset value of unconsolidated unit
trusts in which the Group held a beneficial mterest was £2,235 0 mullion (2013 £1,783 3 rmllion)

The following umt trusts are not consolidated within the Group financial statements, however the Group does act as the manager ot
these unit trusts

Net asset value as at

% of ownership interest 31 December
Natureof Measurement
Name of entity 2014 213 relabonship method 2014 2013
£Million £'Mallion
Manager of
St James’s Place Property Umit Trust 000 000 umttrust N/A 620.0 393 4
Fair value
through
Manager of profit
St James’s Place UK High Income Unit Trust 810 661  umttrust or loss 1,6150 1,395 9

22350 1,789 3

As at 31 December 2014 the value of the Group’s interests i the indrvidual unconsohdated umit trusts were £n1l (2013 £ml) n
St James's Place Property Uit Trust and £130 8 mullion (2013 £92 3 mullion) 1n St James's Place UK High Income Unit Trust

Associates
The following unit trusts are not consolidated within the Group financial statements, however they do meet the criterta of an associate

Net asset value asat

% of ownership interest 31 December
Nature of Measurement
Name of entity 2014 2013 relauonship method 2014 2013
£Million £'Million
Fair value
through
Manager of profit
St James's Place UK High Income Umt Trust 8.10 661  umttrust or loss 1,615 0 1,395 9

1,6150 1,395 9

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

St James's Place Investments plc*

St James's Place Wealth Management Group plc*

St James's Place UK ple

St James's Place International ple {(incorporated 1n Irelond)
St James's Place Ut Trust Group Limited

Investment Holding Compames
Life Assurance

Unit Trust Management

Dhstribution St James’s Place Wealth Management plc
Management Services St James's Place Management Services Limited¥*
IFA Acquisittons St James's Place Acquisition Services Limited

Asia Distribution

* Directly held by 51 James s Place plc
** The Company also operates & branch i the Republic of Ireland

St James's Place International Distribution Limited

The Company owns either directly or indirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capital of the above-named subsidiaries, as

such they have been appropriately consolhidated

A full list of subsidiaries 1s available on request trom the registered office and will be submutted with the Company’s Annual Return

Registered No 03183415
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All of these companies are registered 1n England and Wales and operate principatly in the United Kingdom, except where otherwise
stated

Due to ongoing solvency requirements, there are restrictions on the amount of distributable reserves within the hife assurance, unt
trust and financial services operating companies of the Group which restricts their ability to transfer cash drvidends to the Company

The following subsidiaries of St James's Place plc have taken advantage of the exemption from statutory sudit granted by section 4794
of the Compames Act 2006 In accordance with section 479C, St James's Place plc has therefore guaranteed all the outstanding
liabilities as at 31 December 2014 of

Anglha Financral Lumited (03835743)

BFS Financral Services Lumited (4609753)

Chapman Associates Limited (3047530)

Chapman Hunter Group Limited (6034452)

Entellus Limited (01611224)

EW Smith & Co Independent Financial Advisors Limited (4088394)
G M B Financial Services Lunited (04074782)

Lansdown Place Financial Management Limited (2195886)
Lansdown Place Group Holdings Limited (6390547)

Lopsystern Limeted (01503794)

LP Auto Enrolment Sclutions Limited (8257531)

LP Wealth Management Limited (5458948}

M H § (Holdings) Limuted (00559995)

PEPTime Limted (04047197)

St James's Place Acquisition Services Limuted (7730835)

St James's Place Admumstration Linated (00740495)

St James’s Flace Client Sclutions Limited (5487108)

St James's Place International Distribution Limited (08798683)
5t James's Place Investment Administration Limited (08764231)
St James's Place Investment Trust Linuted (00209445)

St James's Place Investments ple (01773177)

St James's Place Nominees Limited (08764214)

St James's Place Partnership Limited (00425649)

St James's Place Reassurance (2009) Limited (6718989)

St James's Properties Liumated (01075927}

SJP AESOP Trustees Limited (04089795)

SJPC 2000 ple (S5CO13363)

THG Wealth Management Limted (08077989)

All Group companies have an accounting reference date of 31 December except for St James’s Place Investment Administration
Limited (08764231) that has an accounting reference date of 30 November
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES contimued

In addition, the Group financial statements consolidate the following umt trusts

St James’s Place Allshare Income Unit Trust

St James’s Place Alternative Assets Unit Trust

St James’s Place Balanced Managed Umt Trust

St James's Place Continental European Unit Trust

St James's Place Corporate Bond Unit Frust

St James's Place Emerging Markets Equity Umt Trust

St James's Place Equity [ncome Ut Trust

St James's Place Ethical Unit Trust

St James's Place Far East Unrt Trust

St James's Place Gilts Unut Trust

St James’s Place Global Emerging Markets Unit Trust

5t James’s Place Global Equity Income Umit Trust

St James’s Place Global Equity Unit Trust

St James's Place Global Unat Trust

St James’s Place Greater European Progressive Umt Trust
St James's Place High Octane Unit Trust

5t james's Place Index Linked Gilts Unit Trust

St James's Place International Corporate Bond Unit Trust
St James’s Place International Equity Umnit Trust

St James's Place Investment Grade Corporate Bond Unut Trust

St James’s Place Managed Growth Umt Trust

5t James’s Place Money Market Unit Trust

St James's Place Mult1 Asset Umt Trust

St James's Place North American Unit Trust

St James's Place Strategic Managed Umt Trust

§t James's Place UK and General Progressive Umt Trust
S5t James's Place UK and International Umit Trust

St James’s Place UK Absolute Return Unit Trust

St James's Place UK Growth Unit Trust

St James’s Place UK Income Unit Trust

St James’s Place Worldwide Opportunities Umt Trust

All of these unit trusts are managed in the United Kingdom

Registered No 03133415
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opimion, St James's Place plc’s parent company financial

statements (the ‘financial statements’)

— gveatrue and fair view of the state of the parent company's
arairs as av 31 Decamher 2014

~ have been properly prepared in accordance with Umted
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

— have been prepared m accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

What we have audited

St James's Place ple’s financial statements comprise

— the balance sheet of the parent company as at 31 December
2014, and

— the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary
of signuficant accounting policaes and other cxplanatery
information

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the
Annual Report and Accounts (the ‘Annual Report’), rather than n
the notes to the finanual statements These are cross-referenced
from the hnancial statements and are 1dentihed as audited

The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in the
preparation of the financial statements 15 applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Consistency of other information

Companies Act 2006 opintons

In our opinten, the information given in the Strategic Report and
the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

IS4s (UK & Ireland) reporting

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

('ISAs (UK & Ireland)’) we are required to report to you if, 1n our

opimion, information in the Annual Reportis

— matenally inconsmistent with the mformation in the audited
financial statements, or

— apparently materially mcorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the company acquired 1n
the course of performing our audit, or

— otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report arnsing from this responsibility

Adequacy of accounting records and information

and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you

if, 1n our opinion

— we have not recerved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recerved from branches not visited by us, or

— the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not 1n agreement with
the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration report - Companies Act 2006
opmnion

In our opimon, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
to be audited has been properly prepared in accordanee with the
Companies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, 1n our opimion, certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report
ansing from this responsibility

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 92, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
financal staternents i accordance with applicable law and [SAs
(UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thus report, including the opimions, has been prepared for and
only for the company’s members as a body mn accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, 1n giving these opintons, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom thus report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Registered No 03183415




What an audit of financial statements involves

‘We conducted our audit 1n accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland)

An audit involves obtamning evidence about the amounts and

disclaosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable

assurance that the financial statements are free from materal

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error Thisincludes an

assessment of

— whether the accounting pohcies are appropnate to the parent
company’s arcumstances and have been consistently apphed
and adequately disclosed,

— the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
the directors, and

— the overall presentation of the financaal statements

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the
directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the
financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions 'We obtarn
audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report to 1dentify materzal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect
based on, or materally inconsistent with, the knowledge acqurred
by us 1n the course of performing the audit If we become aware
of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

OTHER MATTER
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of
St James's Place ple for the year ended 31 December 2014

Jeremy Jensen (Sentor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London
24 February 2015

(a) Themantenance and 1ategrity of the St James s Place plc webnte {5 the responsibility of the
directors the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters
and accordingly the auditors aceept no responsibiiity for any changes that may have securred
1o the Tnancul stalements since they were mitally presented on the website

(b) Legislauon in the United Kingdum gaverning the prepai atien and dissermination of fuwnesal

statemeats muy differ from legaelation a ether jurdictions

St James's Place plc Annual Report and Accounts 2014 155
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company

31 December 31 December

Notes 2014 2013
£Milhion E'Mullion

Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiaries 2 4021 3907
Current assets
Amgante owed by Group undertakings 106 7 546
Current lhiabilities
Corporation tax liabilities ©4 02)
Net current assets 106 3 54 4
Total assets less current habihities 508 4 4451
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 3 779 773
Share premum account 4 147 4 142 2
Share option reserve 4 926 8112
Other reserves 4 0.1 01
Profit and loss account 4 190 4 144 3
Total shareholders’ funds 508 4 45 1

The hnancial statements on pages 156 to 160 were approved by the Board of Directors an 24 February 2015 and signed on its
behalf by

Yt hNeo

David Bellamy Andrew Croft
Chuef Executive Chief Financial Officer

The notes and information an pages 157 to 160 form part of these financal statements

Registered No 03183415
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Notes to the Parent Company
Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

St James's Place plc (‘the Company’) 1s a limited Lhability company mcorperated in England and Wales and whaose shares are publicly
traded The Company offers a range of insurance, investment and other wealth management services through 1ts subsidiaries, which are
mcorporated in the UK and Ireland

The financial statements have been prepared mn accordance with applicable accounting standards and under the historical cost
convention The Company has elected to continue to prepare the parent financial statements 1n accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice In publishing the Parent Company financial statements, the Company has taken advantage of the
exemption 1n Section 408 of the Compames Act 2006 not to present 1ts mdividual profit and loss account and related notes that form
part of these financial statements The Company 15 not required to present a statement of total recognised gamns and losses

As discussed 1n the Directors’ Report the gomng concern basts has been adopted 1n preparing these financial statements

All accounting pohcies have been reviewed for appropriateness in accordance with Finanaial Reporting Standard (FRS) 18 (Accounting
Pohcies) and have heen apphied conaistently to all years presented in these Parent Company financial statements The Company has nat
presented a cash flow statement as a consolidated cash flow statement 15 presented in the consolidated Group financnal statements

Significant accounting policies

(a) Investment return
Investment return comprises dividends from subsidianes, which are accounted for when recerved

( b) Taxation

Taxation 15 based on profits and income for the year as determined 1n accordance with the relevant tax legislation, together with
ad]ustments to provisions for prior years

(cg Investment 1n subsidraries
Investments 1n subsidiaries are carried at cost stated after any umpairment losses, plus the cost of share awards granted by the Company

of 1ts own shares

( d) Debtors

Debtors are inially recogrused at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost less impairment losses

(¢) Amounts owed to Group undertakings
Amounts owed to Group undertakings initially are recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost

{f) Impairment losses
The carrying amounts of the assets are reviewed at gach reporting date to determine whether there 1s any indication of impairment If
there 15 any indication of irrecoverabihty or impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount 1s estimated based on the present value of its

estimated future cash flows
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Notes to the Parent Company
Financial Statements contnued

2 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

2014 2013
£Million £'Mallion
Costat 1 January
Investment 1n Group undertakings 311 4 311 4
Share options granted by Company 812 734
3926 384 8
Additrons in the year !
Investment in Group undertakings - -
Share options granted by Company 11 4 78
11 4 78
Cost at 31 December
Investment 1n Group undertakings 311 4 311 4
Share options granted by Company 92.6 812
404 0 392 6
Impairment value
[nvestment in Group undertakings (19) (19)
Net book value at 31 December 402 1 390 7

The Directors’ believe that the carrying value of the investments 13 supported by their underlying net assets

Principal Subsidiary Undertakings at 31 December 2014

_Investment Holding St James's Place Investments plc
Companies St James's Place Wealth Management Group ple
Life Assurance St James's Place UK plc
St James's Place International ple (incorporated in Ireland)
Unit Trust Management St James’s Place Umt Trust Group Limited
Distribution St James's Place Wealth Management plc
Management Services St james’s Place Management Services Limited*
IFA Acquisitions St James’s Place Acquisition Services Limited
Asia Distribution St James's Place International Distribution Limzted

+  The Company ilso operates a brinch 1 the Republic of Ireland
A tull List of subsidiaries 1 available on request from the registered office and will be submutted with the Company’s Annual Return
The Company owns erther directly or indrrectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capital of the above-named subsidiaries

All of these companies are registered 1n England and Wales and operate principally 1n the United Kingdom except where
otherwase stated

Due to ongoing solvency requirements, there are restrictions on the amount of distributable reserves withm the life assurance, unit
trust and financial services cperating compares of the Group which restricts therr ability to transfer cash dividends to the Company

Repistered No 03183415
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3 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number of Called up wy

Ordinary Shares Share Capital g

£2Million Iy

[#32]

At 1 January 2013 506,831,147 76 0 A

— Exeraise of options 8,384,836 13 =z

At 31 December 2013 515,215,983 77 3 3

— Exerase of options 4,231,408 06 at
At 31 December 2014 519,447,391 779

The tota] authorised number of ordinary shares 1s 605 mlhion (2013 605 mullion), with a par value of 15 pence per share
(2013 15 pence per share) All1ssued shares are fully paid

4,231,408 shares were 1ssued 1n the year at a normunal value of £0 6 million, for which the Company received consideration of
£5 8 mithon

(uomepuno:{ a0®[] ssawe[ 1g

4 RESERVES
Share Profit Share
Premium and Loss Option Other
Account Account Reserve Reserves Total
£Milhon £Milhon £Mallion £nvillion £Milhon
At 1 January 2013 127 7 120 6 734 0t 321 8
Profit for the financial year 890 89 0
Dividends (65 3) {65 3)
Issue of share capital E-P
Exercise of options 145 145 =
Cost of share options expensed subst.d;ary 78 78 %
At 31 December 2013 142 2 144 3 312 01 367 & 51
Profit for the financial year 141 6 141 6 @
Dividends 95 5) (95 5)
Issue of share capital
Exercise of options 52 52
Cost of share options expensed 1o subsidiary it 4 114 '
At 31 December 2014 147.4 190.4 926 01 4305

5 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The total audit fee 1n respect of the Group 1s set out 1n Note 6 on page 120 of the consolidated financial statements The aud:t fee
charged to the Company for the year ended 31 December 201415 £1,000 (2013 £1,000)
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6. DIVIDENDS

The following dividends have been paid by the Group

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 'e)
11 Decemt 31D b 31 December 31 December g_‘

2014 2013 2014 2013 o

Pence per Pence per £'Malhen £Milhon :
share share E_’

a

Final dividend in respect of previous hnancal year 9.58 639 494 326 g
Interim dividend 1n respect of current financial year 893 6 38 46 1 327 g
Total 18 51 1277 955§ 653 g

.

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 14 37 pence per share (2013 9 58 pence) This amounts to £74 6 mullion
{2013 £49 4 mullicn) and will, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 15 May 2015 to those
shareholders on the register as at 10 Apnl 2015
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Notes to the Parent Company
Financial Statements continued

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
At the year end the following related party balances existed

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
£'Millhion £'Milhon
Investments 1n Group companies
St Tames's Place Partnership Limited 42.0 420
St James's Place Wealth Managemenct Gruup plc 1803 168 9
St James's Place Investments ple HAN 179 8
Intra group debtors
St James's Place Investments plc 106 7 54 6

During the year, the Company received £142 0 million (2013 £89 0 mullion) dividends from subsidiary undertalungs

The following wholly-owned subsidiaries of St James's Place ple have taken advantage of the exempuon from statutory audit granted by
section 4794 of the Companes Act 2006 In accerdance with section 479C, St James's Place ple has therefore guaranteed all the
outstanding habilities as at 31 December 2014 of

Angha Finanaal Limted (03835743)

BFS Financial Services Limited (4609753)

Chapman Associates Limited (3047530)

Chapman Hunter Group Lumted (6034452)

Entellus Limited (01611224)

EW Smuth & Co Independent Financial Advisors Limited (4088394)
G M B Financial Services Limited (04074782)

ELansdown Place Financial Management Limuted (2195886)
Lansdown Place Group Holdings Limited (6390547)

Lopsystem Limited (01503794)

LP Auto Enrolment Selutions Lirmted (8257531)

LP Wealth Management Lumited (54589438)

M H § (Holdings) Limited (00559995)

PFPTime Limited (04047197}

St James's Place Acquisiion Services Limated (7730835)

St James’s Place Admimstration Limited (00740495)

St James's Place Client Solutions Liruted (5487108)

St James's Place International Distribution Limited (08798683)
St James's Place Investment Administration Limited (08764231)
St James's Place Investment Trust Lumited (00209445)

St James’s Place Investments ple (01773177)

St James’s Place Nominees Limited (08764214}

St James’s Place Partnership Limited (00425649)

St James's Place Reassurance (2009) Limnited (671898%)

St James's Properties Lumited (01075927)

SJP AESOP Trustees Lumited (04089795)

SJPC 2000 ple (§C0O13363)

THG Wealth Management Limited (08077989)

All subsidiary compames have an accounting reference date of 31 December except for St James's Place Investment Administration
Limited (08764231) that has an accounting reference date of 30 November

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The Directors’ responsibilities relate primarily to the trading companes of the Group and accordingly their costs are charged to those
compamnes and none are met by the Parent Company Disclosure of the Directors’ emoluments 15 made within the Remuneration
Report on page 80

9. COMPANY INFORMATION
In the opinion of the Directors there 15 not considered to be any ultimate controlling party

Copies of the consolidated financial statements of St James’s Place ple may be obtained from the Company Secretary, St James’s Place
ple, St James's Place House, James’s Place House, 1 Tetbury Road, Cirencester, Gloucestershure, GL7 1FP
Registered No 03183415
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the Directors of St. James’s Place plc

REPORT ON THE GROUP SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — EUROPEAN
EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

Our opimion

In our opiruon, the St James’s Place plc (the “Group™)
Supptementary Financial Statements — European Embedded Value
Basis (the supplemantary franmal statements’) for the year ended
31 December 2014, have been properly prepared 1n all material
respects 1n accordance with the European Embedded Vatue
(‘EEV’) basis set out 1n Note [ — Basis of preparation

What we have audited

St James's Place ple’s supplementary financial statements

comprise

— the consolidated statement of income, European Embedded
Value Basis as at 31 December 2014,

— the consolidated statement of changes in equity, European
Embedded Value Basis as at 31 December 2014,

— the consolidated statement of financial positton, European
Embedded Value Basis as at 31 December 2014, and

— the notes to the supplementary financial statements which
should be read 1n conjunction: with the Group's
financial statements

The financial reporting framework that has been applied mn the
preparation of the supplementary financial statements 1s the EEV
basis set gut in Note I — Basts of preparation

In applying the EEV basis, the directors have made a number of
subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant
accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made
assumptions and considered future events as set out in Note 11—
Assumptions

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE SUPPLEMENTARY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explamed more fully in the Staternent of Directors’
Responsibilities, the directors are respensible for the preparation
of the supplementary financral statements in accordance with the
EEV basis set out in Note | — Basis of preparation

Our responsihility 15 to audit and express an opiien on the
supplementary financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Audinng (UK and Ireland)
(‘ISAs (UK & Ireland)’y Those standards require us to comply with
the Audrting Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thas report, meluding the opinion, has been prepared for and only
for the Company’s directors as a body 1n conformty with the
methodology and disclosure requrements contamned 1n the
document ‘Supplementary Reporting for Long Term Insurance
Business {the European Embedded Value Method)' 1ssued by the
CFO forum, 1n accordance with our engagement letter dated

17 July 2014 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving this
opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or
to any other person to whom this report 18 shown or into whose

hands 1t may come, including without limtation under any
contractual obligations of the company, save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in aceerdance with ISAs (UK & Ireland)

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and

disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable

assurance that the supplementary Anauuial stataments are free

from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error

This includes an assessment of

— whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed,

— the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates made by
the directors, and

— the overall presentation of the finanaal statements

We primarily focus cur work 1n these areas by assessing the
directors' judgements against available evidence, forming cur
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures 1n the
supplementary hnancial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and other
auditing techmiques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain
audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both

In addrtion, we read all the financial and non-financaal
information 1n the Annual Report and Accounts to identufy
material inconsistencies with the audited supplementary financial
statements and to identify any information thatis apparently
materially mcorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us n the course of performing the audit
If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
nconsistencies we consider the lmphcat:ons for our report

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants

Londen

24 February 2015

Motes
The maintenance and integrity of the 5t James's Place ple website s the responubility of the
directors the work carried out by the auditors doss not invelve conssderation of these matters
and, accordingly, the auditors aceept no responsibility for any changes that may have accurred
Lo the financul statettents since tiey were iially presented on the welsie
Legulation in the Umied Kingdom governing the preparauon snd dusemineuion of fizancial
sutements may diller from leguslation in oUer jurisdiclions
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Consolidated Statement of Income
European Embedded Value Basis

The following supplementary information shows the result for the Group adopting a European Embedded Value (EEV) basis for
reporting the results of 1ts wholly owned life and unit trust businesses o
Year Ended Year Ended g
31 December 31 December F.T
Note 2014 2013 o
£'Milhon £ Milhon ;
Lafe business 467 0 165 7 N
Unit Trust business 1777 130 8 =]
Distribution business (10%) 6 1) -
Other (374) (27 7)
EEV operating profit 596 4 462 7 w
Investment return variances 802 344 2 -
Economic assumption changes (70) 106 g
EEV profit before tax 669 6 817 5 o
Tax W
Life business (104 1y (127 5) =
Umt Trust business (394) (42 3) 2
Distribution business 21 14 oo
Other 88 65 g
Corporation tax rate change — 189 E,’_
(1326) (143 0) g
EEV profit after tax 537 ¢ 674 5 -
EEV profit attributable to non-controlling interests (o1 -
EEV profit attnibutable to equity share holders 537.1 6745 0
EEV profit on ordinary activities after tax 537.0 674 5 2
3
Pence Pence g
Basic earnings per share Vi 104 5 132 4 8
Dnluted earmings per share V1 102 7 130 1
Operating profit basic earnings per share Vi 93 1 729
M 915 716

Operating profit diluted earnings per share

The notes and information on pages 166 to 173 form part of this supplementary information
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

European Embedded Value Basis

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£Million £'Million

Opening equity on an EEV basis 2,964 1 2,336 3

EEV profit after tax for the year 53740 674 5

Issue of share capital 58 15 8

Retamed earnings credit in respect of share option charges 110 78

Metaoicd earninge rradit 10 respect of proceeds from exercise of share options of shares held 1n trust - 01
Dividends paid {95 &) (65 3)
Consideration paid for own shares (52) 53

- 02

Non-controlling interests arising on purchase of subsidiaries during the year

Closing equity on an EEV basis

3,417 2 2,964 1

The notes and information on pages 166 to 173 form part of this supplementary information
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

European Embedded Value Basis
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31 December 31 December
2014 2013
£Mailion £'Mallion
Assets
Goodwill 101 -
Intangible assets
Deferred acquisition costs 8130 888 8
Value of long-term business in-force
— long-term msurance 1,825 3 1,583 7
— unit trusts 6112 506 3
Computer software 77 87
3,267.3 2,987 §
Property & equipment 79 58
Deferred tax assets 192 8 181 8
Investment property 1,031 4 7327
Investments 44,7018 38,967 7
Remnsurance assets 855 64 2
Insurance and mnvestment contract receivables 635 49 9
Income tax assets - -
Other recervables 604 6 554 0
Cash & cash equivalents 51394 3,845 7
Total assets 55,0942 47,3853
Liabihities .
Insurance contract habilities 474 4 466 4
Other provisions 11 4 97
Financial Liabihties 39,0148 33,9040
Deferred tax liabilities 512 4 488 6
Insurance and investment contract payables 50 4 381
Deferred income 463 2 5386
Income tax liabilities 328 49
Other payables 499.7 439 4
Net asset value attributable to umt holders 10,617 8 8,535 4
Preference shares 01 01
Total hhlabihities 51,6770 44,4252
Net assets 3,417 2 2,964 1
Shareholders’ equity
Share capstal 779 773
Share premmum 147 4 142 2
Treasury share reserve (105) (102
Mascellaneous reserves 23 23
Retained earnings 3,200 1 2,752 5
Total shareholders’ equaty on an EEV basis 3,417 2 2,964 1
Pence Peace
6579 5753

Net assets per share

The supplementary mformation on pages 163 to 173 was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2015 and signed on 1ts

behalt by
David Bellamy Andrew Croft
Chief Executive Chaef Finanaial Officer

The notes and information on pages 166 to 173 form part of this supplementary mformation
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

I. BASIS OF PREFPARATION

The supplementary information on pages 163 to 173 shows the Group's results as measured on a European Embedded Value (EEV)
basis This includes results for the hife, pension and nvestment business, including unit trust business The valuation 1s undertaken on a
basis determined 1n accordance with the EEV Principles issued 1n May 2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum, a group of chief
financial officers from 19 major European 1nsurers as supplemented by the Additional Guidance on EEV Disclosures issued 1n October
2005 (together ‘the EEV Principles’) The treatment of all other transactions and balances 15 unchanged from the primary financal
statemnents on an IFRS basis The EEV basis recognises the long-term nature of the emergence of shareholder cash returns by reflecting
e net presesn value of oepected foture cash Aows

Under the EEV methodology, profit 1s recognised as 1t 1s earned over the life of the products within the covered business The
embedded value of the covered business 1s the sum of the shareholders’ net worth 1n respect of the covered business and the present
value of the projected profit stream

il. METHODOLOGY

{a) Covered business
The covered business 1s the life, pension and investment business, including umt trust business, undertaken by the Group

(b) Calculation of EEV on existing business

Profit from cxisting business compriscs the expected return on the value of in-torce business at the start of the year plus the impact of
any changes in the assumptions regarding future operanng experience, plus changes 1o reserving basis (other than economic assumption
changes), plus profits and lesses caused by differences between the actual experience lor the year and the assumptions used to calculate
the embedded value at the end of the year

(c) Allowance for risk

The allowance for risk 1o the shareholder cash flows 1s a key feature of the EEV Prinaiples The EEV Principles set out three mam areas
of allowance for risk 1n the embedded value

- the risk discount rate,

— the allowance for the cost of financial options and guarantees, and

— the cost of holding both prudential reserves and any additional capital required

The reported EEV allows for nsk viaa risk discount rate based on a bottom-up market-consistent approach, plus an appropriate
additional margin for non-market risk The Group does not offer products that carry any significant financial guarantees or options

(d) Non-market risk

Best estimate assumptions have been established based on available information and when used within the market consistent
calculations provide the primary evaluation of the impact of non-market risk However, some non-market operational risks are not
symmetric, with adverse experience having a higher impact on the EEV than favourable experience Allowance has been made for this
by increasing the risk discount rate by 0 8% (2013 0 8%)

(e) The risk discount rate
A market-consistent embedded value for each product class has been calculated

In principle, cach cash flow 15 valucd using the discount rate applied to such a cash flow 1n the capital markets However in practiee,
where cash flows are either independent or move lincarly with market movement, 1t 1s passible to apply a simplified method known as
the ‘certainty equivalent’ approach Under this approach all assets are assumed to earn the risk free rate and are discounted using that
risk free rate A market-consistent cost of holding the required capital has also been calculated

As part of this approach, an appropriate adjustment has been made to reflect the fact that the value of tax relief on expenses does not
move linearly with market movements Finally, an additional allowance for non-market risk has been made by increasing the discount
rate by 0 8%

For presentational purposes, a risk discount rate has then been calculated which under the EEV basis gives the same value determined

above This provides an average nisk discount rate for the EEV and 15 described 1n relation to the nisk free rate This average risk
discount rate has also been used to calculate the published value of new busmess

Remistered No 03183415
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(f} Cost of required capital

In ight of the results of internal analysis, the Directors consider that the rummum regulatory capital provides adequate capital cover
for the risks inherent 1n the covered business The required capital for the EEV calculations has therefore been set to the optimised
minimum regulatory capital

The EEV icludes a reduction for the cost of holding the required capizal No allowance has been made for any potential adjustment
that the investors may apply because they do not have direct control over their capital Any such adjustment would be subjective, as
different 1nvestors will have different views of what, if any, adjustment should be made

(g) New business

The new business contribution arising from reported new business premiums has been calculated using the same assumptions as used 1n
the EEV at the end of the financral year The value of contractual incremental premiums to existing business 1s treated as new business
1n the year of the increment, rather than at the outset of the policy This approach better reflects the way the Group manages 1ts business

The value of new business has been established at the end of the reporting year and has been calculated using actual acquisition costs

(b) Operating profit
Operating profit 1s determined as the increase in the ecmbedded value over the year excluding market-related ympacts such as the cffects
of economic assumption changes and investment variances and grossed up for shareholder tax

i) Tax
The EEV 1ncludes the present value of tax rehef on life assurance expenses calculated on a market-consistent basis This calculation
takes 1nto account all expense and income amounts projected for the mn-force business (including any carried forward unutihsed relief

on expenses)

In determining the market-consistent value an appropriate allowance 1s made to reflect the fact that the value of tax rehef on expenses
does not move linearly with market movements

When caleculating the value of new business, prionty 15 given to rehieving the expenses relating to that busimess

I1I. ASSUMPTIONS

{a) Economic assumptions
The principal economic assumptions used within the cash flows at 31 December are set out below

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Risk free rate 19% 31%

[nflation rate 29% 3 2%

Risk discount rate {net of tax) 5 0% 6 2%
Future investment returns

— Gilts 1 9% 3 1%

— Equities 49% 6 1%

— Unit hinked funds

— Capital growth 15% 2 5%

— Dhividend 1income 27% 2 9%

— Total 4 2% 5 4%

Expense inflation 37% 4 0%

The risk free rate 1s set by reference to the yield on ten year gilts Other investment returns are set by reference to the risk free rate

The inflation rate 1s derived from the implicit inflavion in the valuation of ten year index-hnked gilts Ths rate 1s increased to reflect
higher increases in earmings related expenses
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

continued

ITT ASSUMPTIONS contmued

(b) Experience assumptions
The principal experience assumptions have been set on a best esumate basis They are reviewed regularly

The persistency assumptions are denved from the Group’s own experience or, where msuffictent data exists, from external industry
experience They reflect our best estimate of experience over the long term  Given the significant changes currently being
implemented in the pension market, we have maintained our persistency assumptions for pension business unchanged at this year-end
At our next review of the assumption 1n 2015, we will take 1nto account both the positive experience from recent years, but also any
change 1n policyholder behaviour that becomes evident foliowing the Lhanges wm Apitl 2818 dusng the year Tnmd investors who wish
to make their own judgement about these changes, we have provided the pensions persistency sensitivity separately in our analysis on
page 171

The expense assumptions include allowance for both third party administration costs and corporate overhead costs incurred 1n respect
of covered business  The corporate costs have been apportioned so that the total maintenance cost represents the antiopated angoing
expenses, including systems development costs, which are expected to0 anise in future years in meeting the policy servicing
requiremnents of the in-force business  In line with the EEV principles, our expense assumptions make no allowance for eficiency
savings or future productivity gains that are not confirmed and quanufiable In particular, despite good progress with the investment
programme at our key outsource provider to enhance our ‘back office’ systems, we have not reflected any bencefit from these changes to
the ongoing expensc assumptions We expect that the impact will be confirmed during 2015 For investors who wish to make their
own judgement about the potential impact, an expense sensitivity 1s included on page 171

Mortality and morbidity assumptions have been set by reference to the Group's own expenence, published mdustry data and the rates
set by the Group’s reassurers

¢) Tax
'g'h)e EEV result has been calculated allowing for tax and has been grossed up to a pre-tax level for presentation in the profit and loss
account The corporation tax rate used for this grossing up 1s 20 1% (2013 20 3%) for UK Ife and pensions business, 12 5% (2013
12 5%) for Irish Iife and pensions business and 20 2% (2013 20 5%) for umt trust business Future tax has been determined assuming a
eontinuation of the current tax legislanon The reduction in tax rates for UK business reflects the changes in tax rate enacted 1 the year

IV. COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT
(a) Life business

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

Note 2014 03

. £Milhion £'Million

New business contribution 1 2337 213 6

Profit from existing business

Unwind of discount rate 144 9 89 4
Experience variances 781 539
Operating assumption changes 30 46
Investment income 73 492
EEV operating profit 467.0 365 7
Investment return varrances 61 8 271 8
Economuc assumption changes (33) 77
EEV profit before tax 5255 645 2
Tax (104.1) (127 5
Corporation tax rate change - 15 2
EEV profit after tax 421 4 5329

Note 1 New business contribution after tax 15 £187 6 million (2013 £17? 4 pullion)
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Note 2014 2013
£'Million £ Million
New business contribution 1 139 4 1136
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate 371 227
Experience variances 04 6 5)
Operating assumption changes - -
Investment income 08 10
EEV operating profit 177.7 130 8
Investment return variances 184 72 4
Economie assumption changes (37 29
EEV profit before tax 192.4 206 1
Tax (39 4) 42 3)
Corporation tax rate change - 37
EEV profit after tax 1530 167 5
MNote 1 Mew business contribution after tax 15 £110 8 milllon (2013 £90 3 million)
{c) Combined Life and Unit Trust business
Year Ended Year Ended
11 December 31 December
Note 2014 2013
£’Million £ Million
New business contribution 1 3731 3272
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate 1820 1121
Experience variances 78.5 47 4
Operating assumption changes 30 46
Investment income 81 52
EEV operating profit 6447 495 5
Investment return variances 80 2 344 2
Economuic assumption changes (7 (D 106
EEV profit before tax 7179 851 3
Tax (143 5) (169 8)
Corporation tax rate change - 18 9
EEV profit after tax 574 4 700 4

Note 1 New business contribunion after tax is £298 4 million (2013 £261 7 million)
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

continued

1V. COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT continued

(d) Detailed analysis

In order to better explain the movement in capital flows, the components af the EEV profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
shown separately between the movement in IFRS net assets and the present value of the in-force business (VIF) 1n the table below All
figures are shown net of tax

Movement
n IFRS Movement Movement
Net Assets m VIF n EEV
L vinhwon LM on Milhon
New business contnbution (49 3) 347 7 298 4
Profit from existing business 2367 (236 7) -
Unwind of discount rate - 1455 145 5
Experience variances 277 213 490
Operating assumption changes (14 40 26
Investment return 66 - 66
Investment return variances {0.1) 64 3 64 2
Economuc assumption changes {0.9) “7 (5.6)
Miscellaneous ) (31.3) ravi {23.6)
EEY profit after tax 188.0 3491 5371
The comparative figures for 2013 are as follows
Movement
1 I[FRS Movement Movement
Net Azsets in VIF m EEV
£'Mellion £ Million £ Mallion
New business contribution (45 8) 3076 2618
Profit from existing business 191 4 (191 4 -
Unwind of discount rate — 8% 6 8% 6
Experience variances 413 (it 3) 300
Operating assumption changes 50 90 40
Investment return 42 — 42
Investment return varances 18 4 257 1 275 5
Economic assumption changes 39 48 87
Miscellaneocus (18 2) - (18 2y
Corporation tax rate change - 18 9 189
EEV profit after tax 190 2 484 3 674 5
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V EEV SENSITIVITIES

The table below shows the estimated 1mpact on the combined Life and unit trust reparted value of new business and EEV to changes in
key assumptions The sensiivities are speaified by the EEV principles and reflect reasonably possible levels of change In each case, only
the indicated 1tem 15 varied relative to the restated values

Change 1n
European
Change 1n new business Exmbedded
contrbution value
Nate Pre-tax Post-tax Post-tax
£'Million £'Muillion £'vallion
Value at 31 December 2014 3731 298 4 3,417 2
100bp reduction 1n risk free rates, with corresponding change in fixed interest
asset values 1 (6 3) 510 (15 5)
10% reduction in withdrawal rates 2
Pensions 111 89 601
Other 221 177 121 2
Total 332 266 181 3
10% reduction in expenses 76 62 351
10% reduction in market value of equity assets 3 - - (322 2)
5% reduction 1n mortahity and morbidity 4 - - -
100bp increase 1n equity expected returns 5 - - -
100bp 1ncrease 1n agsumed nflation 6 74 (6 0) (28 9)

Note 1 Thas s the key economuc basis change sensitivity The busness medel ia relatively insenaitive to change In coonomiz basis Note that the sensitivity agsmes & corresponding change n all
investment refurns byt no change 1 inflation

Nate 2 The 10% reduction 1s applied Lo the lapse rate For instance, if the lapse rate Is 8% then a 10% seamtvity reduction would reflect a change to 7 2%

Note 3 Far the purposes of thu required sensitvity, all umt linked funds are assumed tobe invested 1n equzies The actual mix of assets varies and In recent years the proportion invested divectly in UK
and pverseas equities has exceeded 70%

Note 4 Assumes the beaehit of lower experience i passed on ta clients and reassurers at the carliest opportunicy

Nowe§ Asamarket conslstent approach i1 used, equity expected returns only affect the derived discaunt rates and not the embedded value or contributian to profit from new business

Note § Arsumed inflation is set b reference to ten year Index Jinked gie yaelds
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Change 10 new business Embedded

contribution Value

Pre-tax Past-tax Post-tax

£Millon E'Million £Million

100bp reduction in risk discount rate 46 7 374 2397

Although not directly relevant under a market-consistent valuation, this sensitivity shows the level of adjustment which would be
required to reflect differing investor views of risk

V1 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Pence Pence

Basic earnings per share 1045 132 4
Diluted earnings per share 102.7 1301
Operating basic earnings per share 923.1 729
Operating diluted earnings per share 91.5 716
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

continued

VI EARNINGS PER SHARE continued

The earmings per share calculations are based on the following figures Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 December

2014 2043
£Million £ Milhion
Earnings

Proht after tax {for both basic and drluted EFS) 5370 674 5
Operauny i oiit after tav {Jor harh basic and diluted EPS) 478 4 375
Milhion Million

Weighted average number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue (for basic EPS) 514 0 509 4
Adjustments for outstanding share options 90 92
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {for diluted EPS) 5230 518 6

VII RECONCILIATION OF IFRS AND EEV PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND NET ASSETS

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December

2014 M3

£’Milhon £ Million

IFRS profit before tax 294 4 461 2
Tax attributable to pohcyholder returns (111.5) (270 5)

Proft before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 1829 190 7

Add back amortisation of acquired value in-foree business 32 32

Movement in hife value of in-force (net of tax) 241.7 360 1

Movement 1n unit trust value of mn-force (net of tax) 104.9 122 8

Tax gross up of movement 1n value m-force 136 9 1407

EEV profit before tax 669 & 8t7 5

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

£'Milhon £'Mallion

IFRS net assets 1,010 1 906 1
Less acquired value of in-force (36 8) (40 0)
Add deferred tax on acquired value of n-force 7.4 80
Add life value of in-force 1,825 3 1,583 7
Add unit trust value of in-force 6112 506 3
EEY net assets 3,417 2 2,964 1
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VIII. RECONCILIATION OF LIFE COMPANY FREE ASSETS TO CONSOLIDATED GROUP EQUITY AND

ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENT IN FREE ASSETS

31 December

31 December

2004 2013

L'Mallion £'Mithion

Life company esttmated free assets 278 3 234 9
Estimated required hife company solvency capital 489 49 3
Other subsidiaries, consolidation and IFRS adjustments 6829 621 9
IFRS net assets 1,010 1 906 1

110day o18aeng

31 December

31 December

2014 2013

£mallion £'Million

Life company estimated free assets at 1 January 2349 1557
Investment 1n new business (26 8) (28 7)
Profit from exisung business 163 9 1570
Dividends paid (100.0) (47 0)
Investment returh 59 314
Movement 1n required solvency capital 04 (5 5)
278 3 2349

Life company estimated free assets at 31 December
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Shareholder Information

ANALYSIS OF NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Analysts by Number of Shares Holders % Shares held % w
1-999 2,455 44 25 924,963 018 ?_1
1,000- 5,959 2,244 40 45 6,742,560 130 a3
10,000 — 99,999 529 953 17,194,927 In o
100,000 and above 320 577 494,584 941 95 21 =
5,548 100 00 519,447,391 100 00 E
A
2015 FINANCIAL CALENDAR D—
¥
]
Ex-dividend date for final dividend Thursday, 9 April 2015 s
Record date for final dividend Friday, 10 April 2015 ]
Announcement of first quarter new business Tuesday, 28 April 2015 w”
Annual General Meeting Thursday, 14 May 2015 ‘?
Payment date for final drvidend Friday, 15 May 2015 a
Announcement of Interim Results and second quarter new business Wednesday, 29 July 2015 1
Ex-dividend date for interim dividend Thursday, 3 September 2015 2
Record date for intersm dividend Friday, 4 September 2015 g_.
Payment date for interim diidend Friday, 2 October 2015 &
Announcement of third quarter new business Tuesday, 27 October 2015 L ]

The above dates are subject to change and further information on the 2015 hnancial calendar can be found on the Company’s webute,

www 5]p co uk

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

The Directors itroduced a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) during 2012 If you would prefer to receive new shares instead of cash
dividends, please complete a Dividend Reimbursement Plan (DRF) mandate form, which is available from our Registrars,
Computershare Investor Services PLC Their contact details are on page 176

SHARE DEALING
A telephone share dealing service has been established with the Registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, which provides
shareholders with a ssmple way of buying or selling St James’s Place plc shares on the London Stock Exchange If you are interested in

this service, telephone 0870 703 0034

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS
If you would hke to have access to shareholder communications such as the Annual Report and the Notice of General Meeting through

the internet rather than receive them by post, please register at www etreeuk com /stjamesplace

Annternet share dealing service 15 also available Further information about this section can be obtained by logging on to
www computershare com/investor/sharedealing
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How to Contact Us

and Advisers

HOW TO CONTACT US

Registered Office
St James’s Place House
1 Tetbury Road
Cirencester
Gloucestersiine

GL7 IFP

Tel 01285 640302
Fax 01285 640436
www g)p co uk

Chairman
Sarah Bates
email ¢/o hugh gladman@sp co uk

Chief Executive
David Bellamy
email david bellamy(@s)p co uk

Chief Fimancial Officer
Andrew Crolt
emal andrew croft@sjp co uk

Company Secretary
Hugh Gladman
email hugh gladman@s)p co uk

Customer Service

Will Alterman

Tel 01285 878352

Fax 01285 878111

ematl will alterman@s)p co uk

Analyst Enquinies

Tony Dunk

Tel 01285 878079

Fax 01285 657208

email tony dunk@s)p co vk

Media Enquiries

Bell Pottinger

Tel 02037722566

ematl SJP@RBell-Potunger com

ADVISERS

Bankers

Bank of Scotland
150 Fountamnbnidge
Edinburgh

EH3 9PE

Barclays Bank FLC
1 Churchill Place
London

E14 SHP

The Royal Bank of Scotland
135 Bishopsgate

lLondon

EC2M 3UR

Brokers

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
25 Bank Street

London

El4 5]P

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
2 King Edward Street

London

ECIA 1HQ

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
7 More London Riverside

London

SE1 2RT

Registrars & Transfer Office
Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bristol

BS99 6ZZ

email webcorres(@computershare co uk

Tel 0870702 0197

www computershare com
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St. James’s Place

Partnership [Locations
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GLASGOW

John Neble

john noble@s)p co uk
0141 304 1700

BELFAST
Gerry Quinn

gerry qumn{@s)p co uk
028 9072 6500

MANCHESTER
Frank Gorrie

frank gorrie@spp co uk
0161 834 9480

LIVERPOOL
John Ronan

john ronan{@sp co uk
0151 224 8700

SOLIHULIL

Scan McKallop

sean mckillop@sjp co uk
0121 7336733

BRISTOL

George Hills

george hills@sjp co uk
01454 618700

NEWBURY

Chris Faerber

chris faerber@syp co uk
01635 582424

SOLENT

Jason Floed

jason flood@s)p co uk
01489 881400

WESTERHAM
Nick Froggate

nick froggatt@sjp co uk
01959 561 606

ABERDEEN

Mark Wylhe

mark wylle@sp co uk
0122 420 2400

EDINBURGH
Steve Herkes

steve herkes@s)p co uk
0131 459 9200

NEWCASTLE
Philip Pringle

phalip pringle@s)p co uk
0191 260 5373

LEEDS

Richard Balmferth

richard balmforth@syp co uk
0113 244 4054

NOTTINGHAM
Richard Thompson

richard thompsen@sjp co uk
0115 924 2899

WITHAM

Paolo Payne

paolo payne@s)p co uk
01376 501947

PICCADILLY

Damien Bradbury

damien bradbury@s)p co uk
020 7399 6889

ELSTREE

Mark Newrman

mark newman@s)p co uk
020 8207 4000

CITY

Roger McKibbin

roger mckibbin@syp co uk
020 7638 2400

HAMILTON PLACE
Nick Brett

nick brett(@s;p co uk

020 7495 1771

KINGSWAY

Ryan McDonald

ryan mcdonald@s)p co uk
020 7744 1600
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Glossary

ADVISER OR FINANCIAL ADVISER
An individual who 1s authorised by the FCA to provide
financial advice

ANNUAL PREMIUM EQUIVALENT (APE)
Used as a measure of annual sales, bemg the annual premwm of
new regular imvestments plus 10% of single premiurm investments

CASH RESULT

A post-tax measure of emergence during the year of cash available
for paying a dividend The measure reflects underlying cashftows
consistent with the IFRS results, but without adjustment for
intangibles mcluding DAC, DIR, PVIF and deferred tax The result
alsa reflects any reserving constrant imposed on an insurance
company 1n the Group by 1ts local statutory solvency regime
Finally, no allowance 1s made for the cost of share options

CHIEF OPERATING DECISION MAKER

The Executive Committee of the Board which s responsible for
allocating resources and assessing the performance of the
operatmg segmems

CLIENT NUMBERS
The number of individuals who have recerved advice from a
St James’s Place Partner and own a 8t James’s Place wrapper

CLIENT SATISFACTION

The business commussions a chient survey each year from Ledbury
Research Satisfaction 1s measured by the response to the question
“How would you rate your overall satisfaction with St James's
Place? (Marketplace your wealth manager) (where 101 very
satisfied and 115 very dissatisfied)” Qur chent satisfaction metrie
reports the proportion of chents that indicated a satisfaction
rating of 8 or more out of 10

CLIENT RETENTION

Client retention 1s assessed by calculating the proportion of chents
at Ist January m the year, who remain as a chent throughout the
year and are still 2 client on the 31st December of the same year

DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS (DAC)
Anintangible asset requred to be established through the
application of [FRS to our long-term business The value of the
asset 1s equal to the amount of all costs which accrue i hine with
new business volumes The asset 1s amortised over the expected
lifetime of the business

DEFERRED INCOME (DIR)

Deferred income which arises from the requirement 1 IFRS that
mtial charges on long-term financial instruments should only be
recogmised over the hfetime of the business The initial amount of
the balance 15 equal to the charge taken

EURQOPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE (EEV)

A value determined 1n accordance with the EEV Principles 1ssued
1 May 2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum, as
supplemented by the Additronal Gudance on EEV Disclosures
1ssued in October 2005 (together “the EEV Principles™) The EEV
recogruses the long-term nature of the emergence of shareholder
cash returns by reflecting the net present value of expected future
cash flows

FINANCIAL CONDUCT AUTHORITY (FCA)

One of the two bodies (along with the PRA} which replaced the
Finangial Services Authority from 1 April 2013 The FCA1sa
company limited by guarantee and 1s independent of the Bank of
England It1s responsible for the conduct of business regulation of
all irms (including those firms subject to prudential regulation by
the PRA) and the prudential regulation ot all firms nat regulated
by the PRA The FCA has three statutory objectives securing an
appropriate degree of protection for consumers, protecting and
enhancing the integrity of the UK financial system, and
promotung cffective competition in the interests of consumetrs

FINANCIAL SERVICES COMPENSATION SCHEME
(FSCS)

The FSCS 15 the UK's statutory compensation scheme for
customers of autharised financal services firms This means that
the FSCS can pay compensation 1f a firm 15 unable, or 15 hikely to
be unable, to pay claims against it The FSCS 15 an independent
body, set up under the Financia] Services and Markets Act 2000
(FSMA), and funded by a levy on “authorised financial services
firms” The scheme covers depasits, insurance policies, insurance
brokering, investments, mortgages and mortgage arrangement

FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT (FUM)

Represents all assets actively managed or admimistered by or on
behalf of the Group It includes all life insurance and unit trust
assets, but does not nclude assets managed by third parties where
we have only introduced or advised on the business

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRS)

These are accounting regulations designed to ensure comparable
preparatton and disclosure of statements of finaneial pesition, and
are the standards that all publicly listed companies in the
European Union ars required to use

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT APPROACH (IMA)
The IMA 15 how 5t James’s Place manages chents' investments It
1s managed by the 5t James's Place Investment Commuttee, which
n turn 1s advised by respected independent investment research
consultancies, led by Stamford Assoctates The Investment
Commiuttee 1s responsible for identafying fund-managers for our
funds, selecting from fund management firms all around world
They are also responsible for momtoring the performance of our
fund managers, and, if aircumstances should change and 1t
becomes necessary then they are responsble for changing the
Fund manager as well

Registered No 03183415




POLICYHOLDER AND SHAREHOLDER TAX

The UK tax regime facilitates the collection of tax from Life
mnsurance poheyholders by making an equivalent charge within the
corporate tax of the Company Ths part of the overall tax charge,
which 15 attributable to policyholders, 1s cailed policyholder tax
The rest 15 shareholder tax

PRESENT VALUE OF NEW BUSINESS (PVNBP)
Present value of new regular premiums plus 100% of single
premuums, calculated using assumptions consistent with those
used to determine the value of new busmess upder European
Embedded Value (EEV) principles published by the CFO forum

PR.OFIT BEFORE SHAREHOLDER TAX

A profit measure which reflects the 1FRS result adjusted for
pohcyholder tax, but before deduction of shareholder tax Within
the financial statements the full title of this measure 1s profit
before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns

PRUDENTIAL REGULATORY AUTHORITY (PRA)
One of the two bodies (along with the FCA) which replaced the
Financial Services Authonity from 1 April 2013 The PRA 15 a part
of the Bank of England and 15 responsible for the prudential
regulation of deposit taking institutions, 1nsurers and major
investment firms The PRA has two statutory objectives to
promote the safety and soundness of these firms and, specifically
for insurers, to contribute to the securing of an appropriate
degree of protection for pohcyholders

PURCHASED VALUE OF IN-FORCE (PVIF)

An intangible asset established on takeover or acquisition,
reflecting the present value of the expected emergence of profits
from a portfolic of long-term business The asset 15 amortised
line with the emergence of profits

REGISTERED INDIVIDUALS (Rl)

An individual who 13 registered by the FCA, particularly an
indidual who 15 registered to provide financial advice See alsa
Adviser and St James's Place Partner

SOLVENCY II

New 1nsurance regulations desxgned to harmonise EU insurance
regulation The key concerns of the regulation are to ensure
robust risk management in insurance companies and to use that
understanding of risk to help determine the right amount of
capital for European mnsurance compantes to hold to ensure their
ongoing viability 1n all but the most severe stressed scenarios
Solvency Il 1s due to become effective from 1 January 2016
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ST JAMES’S PLACE PARTNER

A member of the 5t James's Place Partnershup Speafically

the mdmidual or business that 1s registered as an Appointed
Representative of 5t James's Place on the FCA website St
James's Place Partner businesses vary in size and structure Many
are sole traders but there are also a growing number of businesses
employing many advisers

ST. JAMES’S PLACE PARTNERSHIP
‘The collective name for all of our advisers, who are Appointed
Representatives of St James's Place

THE HENLEY GROUP

A husiness providing financial advice to largely British expatriate
chents based 1n Shanghai, Singapore and Hong Kong Tt was
acquired by the Group during 2014

UNDERLYING CASH RESULT

Tlmmg variances int cash emergence, partlcular]y due to tax and
msurance reserve impacts, will impact the regular development
of the cash result The underlying cash result 15 adjusted for these
items, and therefore provides the most useful measure which the
Board reviews (1n conjunction with Group solvency)} when
determinung any proposed dividend to shareholders

UNDERLYING PROFIT

A profit measure, based upon Profit before shareholder tax, but
adjusted to remove the impact of movements in DAC, DIR and
PVIF balances and associated tax balances
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Notes
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ST JAMES'S PLACE PLC

ST JAMES’S PLACE HOUSE
1 TETBURY ROAD
CIRENCESTER
GLOUCESTERSHIRE

GL7 IFP

T 0800C 01 38 137

www.sjp.co.uk




